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P R O C E E D I N G S  

(Transcript follows in sequence from 

Volume 3.) 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Okay. We are back on the 

record from break. Mr. Walls, your witness. 

MR. WALLS: Yes. We call Mr. Portuondo back 

to the stand. 

Thereupon, 

JAVIER PROTUONDO 

was called as a rebuttal witness on behalf of Progress 

Energy Florida, Inc., and having been first duly sworn, 

was examined and testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. WALLS: 

Q. Mr. Portuondo, have you filed prefiled 

rebuttal testimony in this proceeding? 

A .  Yes, I have. 

Q. And do you have your prefiled rebuttal 

testimony with you? 

A .  Yes, I do. 

Q. Do you have any changes to make to your 

prefiled rebuttal testimony? 

A.  No, I don't. 

Q. If I asked you the same questions in your 

prefiled rebuttal testimony today, would you give the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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same answers that are reflected in that testimony? 

A .  Yes, I would. 

MR. WALLS: We request that the prefiled 

rebuttal testimony be moved into evidence as if it was 

read into the record. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: The prefiled rebuttal 

testimony will be entered into the record as though 

read. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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IN RE: PETITION TO RECOVER THE COSTS OF THE CRYSTAL 
RIVER UNIT 3 UPRATE THROUGH THE FUEL CLAUSE 

BY PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

FPSC DOCKET NO. 070052 

REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF 

JAVIER PORTUONDO 

I. INTRODUCTION AND QUALIFICATIONS 

Please state your name and business address. 

My name is Javier Portuondo. My business address is 410 South Wilmington 

Street, Raleigh, North Carolina, 27601. 

Have you previously submitted testimony in this docket? 

Yes. I filed both direct testimony and amended direct testimony in support of 

Progress Energy Florida, Inc.’s (“PEF’s”) request for recovery of the costs of the 

Crystal River Unit 3 (“CR3”) power uprate (the “Uprate Project”) through the Fuel 

and Purchase Power Cost Recovery Clause (“Fuel Clause”). 

Have any of your duties or responsibilities changed since you filed your 

amended direct testimony? 

No. 
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11. PURPOSE AND SUMMARY OF REBUTTAL TESTIMONY 

Q. Have you reviewed the intervener testimony of Daniel J, Lawton and Patricia 

W. Merchant, filed on behalf of the Office of Public Counsel (“OPC”), and of 

Jeffrey Pollock, filed on behalf of the Florida Industrial Power Users Group 

(“FIPUG”)? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you agree with what witnesses Lawton, Merchant, and Pollock have to say 

in response to PEP’S request for recovery of the Uprate Project costs through 

the Fuel Clause? 

A. No, I do not. 

Q. 

4. 

What is the purpose of your rebuttal testimony? 

The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to address the intervener witness arguments 

and explain why these arguments fail to show that PEF has not met Commission 

policy establishing that the Uprate Project costs should be recovered through the 

Fuel Clause. First, I will address the intervener witness arguments that additional 

tests and definitions should be used for the first time here that are nowhere found in 

Order 14546. These additional tests and definitions are inconsistent with Order 

14546 and the later orders applying the policy established in Order 14546, and if 

adopted, obliterate Commission policy in Order 14546. 
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Second, I will address the arguments of some intervener witnesses challenging 

the application of Commission policy in Order 14546 to PEF’s petition. I will 

demonstrate that PEF’s request for cost recovery through the Fuel Clause of the 

Uprate Costs is consistent with and supported by Order 14546 and the application of 

the policy in Order 14546 by the Commission in subsequent orders. 

Third, I will address the argument of witness Pollock that PEF’s petition 

violates the settlement agreement in PEF’s last base rate proceeding and explain that 

PEF’s petition does not violate and is’in fact consistent with that agreement. 

Fourth, I will address witness Pollock’s further argument that the Uprate 

Project is needed for reliability to maintain PEF reserve margins and, therefore, 

there will be additional revenues fiom customer growth or usage to support the 

Uprate Project costs. Mr. Pollock, quite simply, is wrong. As this Commission 

determined in Order No. PSC-07-0119-FOF-E1 the need for the Uprate Project was 

economic, based on the demonstrated fuel savings and increased fuel diversity, and 

not a reliability need. 

Finally, I will address the cost allocation issues raised by some of the 

intervener witnesses and explain that PEF’s request in its petition is, again, 

consistent with Commission application of the policy established in Order 14546. 

Please summarize your rebuttal testimony. 

The Uprate Project benefits PEF’s customers. The Uprate Project will provide 

PEF’s customers substantial fuel savings expected to be in excess of $2.6 billion by 

Page 3 of 38 



558 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

the end of 2036 with an expected net present value of savings to costs of $320 

million. Intervener witnesses agree that it is a beneficial project. 

Under well-established Commission policy set forth in item 10 of Order 

14546, recovery of the Uprate Project costs through the Fuel Clause is appropriate if 

the costs (1) were not recognized or anticipated in the costs levels used to determine 

current base rates and (2) if expended, will result in fuel savings to customers. 

PEF’s Uprate Project satisfies this two-part test and, therefore, PEF’s Petition 

should be granted. 

This Commission policy was adopted to encourage utilities to develop and 

pursue projects and programs that resulted in fuel savings and, thus, lower costs to 

customers. Intervener witnesses admit this policy provides an incentive for utilities 

to spend money that they might not otherwise choose to spend to save fuel costs. 

The policy works. PEF moved forward with the Uprate Project because it was 

aware of the policy in item 10 of Order 14546. Additionally, utilities have incurred 

the costs of numerous projects that resulted in fuel savings to customers over the last 

20 years because of the Commission policy in item 10 of Order 14546. 

Intervener witnesses seek to change this policy. They ask the Commission to 

consider requirements and definitions that are nowhere found in the Commission’s 

policy expressed in item 10 of Order 14546 and numerous, subsequent Commission 

orders applying that policy to other utility requests. The requirements and 

definitions they seek to add to this Commission policy do not merely change it, they 

obliterate it. If adopted, they will destroy the incentive to incur the costs of projects 
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that result in fuel savings to customers set forth in the clear, straight-forward, two- 

part test of item 10 of Order 14546. 

PEF’s request for recovery of the Uprate Project costs is consistent with the 

application of this policy over the last 20 years in numerous other projects approved 

for cost recovery under item 10 of Order 14546. PEF seeks only the same treatment 

for its Uprate Project. This does not harm current or future customers at all. In fact, 

they receive .the benefits of immediate fuel savings beginning in the first year of the 

Uprate Project and continuing for every year thereafter. These fuel savings pay for 

the costs of the Uprate Project, the customers do not, and therefore, customers 

clearly receive fuel savings benefits from the Uprate Project. The Uprate Project 

should be approved consistent with the Commission’s long-standing policy under 

item 10 of Order 14546. 

111. COMMISSION POLICY UNDER ORDER 14546 

Under what Commission policy is the request for cost recovery in PEF’s 

Petition made? 

PEF’s cost recovery request in its Petition is based on longstanding Commission 

policy encouraging utilities to incur the costs of innovative projects or programs that 

reduce costs to customers. This policy is incorporated in item 10 of Order 14546 

establishing the types of costs that prospectively can be recovered by utilities under 

the Fuel Clause. Under item 10 of Order 14546 a utility is entitled to recover 

through the Fuel Clause “fossil fuel-related costs normally recovered through base 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

rates but which were not recognized or anticipated in the costs levels used to 

determine current base rates and which, if expended, will result in fuel savings to 

customers.” 

What must a utility demonstrate to be entitled to recover costs through the 

Fuel Clause under the Commission policy established in Order 14546? 

Under item 10 of Order 14546 the utility must demonstrate: (1) the expected amount 

of the project costs; (2) that the expected project costs were not anticipated in 

current base rates; (3) the amount of projected fuel savings that will be generated if 

the costs are incurred; and (4) that those fuel savings are expected to exceed the 

project costs. No other requirements or tests must be met. 

Intervener witnesses argue that the costs must be volatile to be recovered under 

the Fuel Clause, even under item 10 of Order 14546. Do you agree? 

No. No such requirement appears in item 10 of Order 14546. The Commission was 

certainly aware that the Fuel Clause was historically used for the recovery of 

volatile costs when the Commission adopted the policy in item 10 of Order 14546. 

Yet, nowhere in item 10 or elsewhere in that Order, or in any later Commission 

Order applying the policy adopted in item 10 of Order 14546, has the Commission 

ever required a demonstration that the costs sought under item 10 of Order 14546 

must be volatile to be recovered through the Fuel Clause. In fact, the Commission 

expressly recognized in Order 14546 that its policy must be flexible enough to allow 

recovery through the Fuel Clause of costs normally recovered through base rates. 
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This is the very first part of the test set forth in Item 10, allowing the recovery of 

fossil fuel-related costs which are normally recovered through base rates, if they are 

not currently recovered in base rates and result in fuel savings. 

The Commission policy identified in item 10 of Order 14546 is, therefore, an 

exception to the general rule - as OPC witness Merchant admits (Merchant Test., p. 

12, lines 7-9) - providing for the recovery of volatile costs through the Fuel Clause. 

To read a volatility requirement that does not exist into Item 10 of Order 14546, as 

Interveners suggest, renders the Commission policy established in item 10 of Order 

14546 meaningless. Fossil fuel-related costs “normally recovered through base 

rates” by definition are not volatile costs and, therefore, they would never be 

recovered through the Fuel Clause - even when they result in fuel savings and are 

not currently recovered in base rates - if a “volatility” requirement is added to item 

10 of Order 14546. The Commission obviously did not intend a construction of its 

policy in Order 14546 that obliterates the very policy it adopted. Thus, PEF’s 

Uprate Project costs cannot be rejected because they are not volatile because that is 

not an appropriate part of the test articulated in Item 10 of Order 14546. 

Some intervener witnesses argue that the Uprate Project costs are not fossil 

fuel-related costs and, therefore, should not be recovered through the Fuel 

Clause. Do you agree? 

No. Under their interpretation of fossil fuel-related costs, such costs are limited to 

only those which are directly related to the delivered price of fossil fuel. No such 
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definition appears in item 10 of Order 14546, elsewhere in Order 14546, or in any 

Commission order applying the policy adopted in item 10 of Order 14546. 

As her support for this argument, Ms. Merchant relies on an example given in 

Order 14546 to illustrate one type of expense that was appropriately recovered 

under the Fuel Clause. The Commission acknowledged that the cost of a short-term 

lease of an oil storage tanker for a utility to take advantage of unanticipated lower 

oil costs, for example, was recoverable under item 10 through the Fuel Clause. Ms. 

Merchant claims this example shows that “fossil fuel-related cost” was meant to 

refer to only those costs “directly related to the delivered cost of fossil fuel to be 

burned in the boilers to generate electricity.” (Merchant Test., p. 12, lines 18-24). 

The Commission, however, nowhere limited the term “fossil fuel-related costs” in 

this way in Order 14546. The example provided in Order 14546 was meant to be 

just that, an example. Indeed, the Commission expressly stated that it intended the 

policy in Order 14546 to be a flexible one, which negates the narrow “list” of 

recoverable “fossil fuel-related costs” that Ms. Merchant would use based on the 

“example” in Order 14546. 

As I explained in detail in my amended direct testimony at pages 14-18, the 

Commission never expressed any intent to give the term “fossil fuel-related costs” 

in item 10 of Order 14546 the narrow interpretation advocated by intervener 

witnesses. Such a narrow definition of the term “fossil fuel-related costs” does not 

make sense because it is inconsistent with the Commission’s policy to encourage 

innovative projects that save fuel costs. Rather, the more logical interpretation 

consistent with Commission policy is that the term “fossil fuel-related costs” means 
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A. 

all costs that result in the reduction or replacement of other, more expensive fossil 

fuels. This interpretation is confirmed by the Commission’s consistent application 

of its policy in item 10 of Order 14546 in later Commission orders. Order No. 

PSC-96-1172-FOF-EI, Docket No. 960001-E1 (Sept. 19, 1996); Order No. PSC-95- 

1089-FOF-EI, Docket No. 950001 (Sept. 5, 1995); Order No. PSC-96-0353-FOF- 

EI, Docket No. 960001-E1 (Mar. 13, 1996); Order No. PSC-97-0359-FOF-E1, 

Docket No. 970001-E1 (Mar. 31, 1997); Order No. PSC-98-0412-FOF-E1, Docket 

NO. 980001-E1 (Mar. 20, 1998). 

The intervener witnesses apply an “earnings” test to Order 14546, arguing that 

if part or all of the Uprate Project costs can be absorbed by the Company in 

current base rates, recovery through the Fuel Clause for the Uprate Project 

should be denied. Is there an “earnings” test under Order 14546? 

No, there is not. To summarize the intervener witnesses’ argument, they assert that 

(1) the Uprate Project costs are the types of cost fluctuations that base rates are 

intended to cover, and (2) PEF’s earnings are such that the Uprate Project costs, 

especially for Phase 1, can be absorbed with only a negligible impact on earnings. 

In addition, Mr. Lawton argues that the Company in fact may be eaming too much 

if it is allowed to recover the project costs through the fuel clause, if base rates are 

sufficient to cover the costs. Intervener witnesses, therefore, are applying an 

abbreviated “earnings” test to Order 14546, comparing only the Uprate Project’s 

future costs against past Company surveillance reports, to conclude there is, in their 
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opinion, a “negligible” impact on PEF earnings as a result of the Uprate Project. 

There is, however, no such test in Order 14546, and appropriately so. 

No “earnings” test of any type is even mentioned in Order 14546. There is no 

requirement under item 10 of Order 14546 that a utility prove that it is incapable of 

recovering project costs through base rates without adversely affecting its allowable 

return on equity. Any requirement to determine if the utility’s earnings are affected 

by a project proposed under item 10 of Order 14546 would necessarily subject the 

utility to a base rate proceeding inquiry to obtain Fuel Clause recovery of project 

costs designed to generate fuel savings. 

The time and cost that must be invested in a base rate proceeding inquiry 

defeats the purpose of the Commission policy under item 10 of Order 14546. The 

Commission set forth a straight-forward, two-part test in item 10 of Order 14546 for 

Fuel Clause recovery to encourage utilities to pursue projects that would generate 

fuel savings for customers. Intervener witnesses agree that this was the 

Commission’s purpose in item 10 of Order 14546. This purpose is advanced by 

providing utilities the opportunity for cost recovery under a simple test in an 

abbreviated proceeding. Turning that simple test in a Fuel Clause proceeding into a 

base rate inquiry eliminates the very incentive the Commission intended to establish 

in item 10 of Order 14546. 

PEF specifically considered the Uprate Project because of the fuel savings 

presented by the Uprate Project and the ability to recover the costs of the Uprate 

Project through the Fuel Clause under item 10 of Order 14546. The Commission 

policy represented by item 10 of Order 14546, therefore, was in fact an incentive for 

Page 10 of 38 



565 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

the Uprate Project. The Commission’s policy to encourage projects that generate 

fuel savings to reduce customer costs works. The ability to recover the Uprate 

Project’s costs through the Fuel Clause under item 10 of Order 14546 was part of 

the Company’s decision to proceed with the Uprate Project. 

None of the Commission’s numerous orders applying the Commission’s 

policy under Item 10 of Order 14546 to a utility request for Fuel Clause recovery of 

project costs that generate fuel savings involved the consideration of the impact of 

the project costs on the return the utility was earning. For more than twenty years 

the Commission has applied item 10 of Order 14546 without any “earnings” test. 

PEF’s earnings are, therefore, irrelevant to this proceeding. What is relevant is 

whether the CR3 Uprate project qualifies under the test set forth in Item 10 of Order 

14546. Because it does, PEF’s request for Fuel Clause recovery for the Uprate 

Project costs should be approved. 

Intervener witnesses also argue that, if the costs sought through the Fuel 

Clause under Order 14546 can be recovered in future base rates, they cannot 

be recovered through the Fuel Clause. Is this argument consistent with the 

policy established in Order 14546? 

No. To explain this argument, intervener witnesses Lawton and Merchant both 

assert that Phases 2 and 3 of the Uprate Project are not appropriate for fuel clause 

recovery, because, by the time those costs are incurred, PEF will be able to go into a 

new base rates proceeding and obtain cost recovery through base rates. (Merchant 

Test., p. 26, lines 5-7; Lawton Test., p. 23, lines 2-9). Ms. Merchant goes on to 
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testify that, given PEF’s ability to initiate a new base rates proceeding, there will be 

no “regulatory lag” in recovering the CR3 Uprate costs, and this is really what 

Order 14546 was designed to prevent. (Merchant Test., p. 14, lines 7-16). 

Intervener witnesses Lawton and Merchant are again reading non-existent 

requirements into Order 14546. The Commission did not require the utility to show 

that project costs were not recoverable infuture base rates to obtain recovery of the 

project costs through the Fuel Clause under item 10 of Order 14546. Instead, the 

Commission required the utility to demonstrate that the project costs were not 

recognized or anticipated in current base rates. The intent was to protect against 

possible double recovery not to eliminate regulatory lag. 

Indeed, PEF always has the right to initiate a base rate proceeding to address 

costs that it believes should be included in base rates to provide an adequate return. 

Even under the rate case settlement agreement, PEF can initiate a base rate 

proceeding to include costs in base rates if PEF’s return falls below a certain level. 

A requirement that a utility demonstrate that project costs cannot be recovered in 

future base rates, again, defeats the purpose of the Commission policy established in 

Item 10 of Order 14546. And, again, in more than 20 years of applying its policy 

under item 10 of Order 14546, the Commission has never required the utility to 

show that the project costs cannot be recovered in future base rates to obtain 

recovery of those costs through the Fuel Clause. 

Intervener witnesses argue that the reference to “case-by-case’’ consideration 

of utility requests under item 10 of Order 14546 means that the Commission 
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should make any issue raised by any party to the proceeding a requirement 

that must be considered by the Commission in determining whether the relief 

requested should be granted. Do you agree? 

No. The Commission intentionally selected a straightforward, two-part test under 

item 10 of Order 14546 to encourage utilities to pursue projects that generated fuel 

savings and thus lowered the cost of providing power to customers. The 

Commission was certainly aware of every issue that the intervener witnesses raise in 

their testimony at the time the Commission adopted the policy in item 10 of Order 

14546, but the Commission decided not to make them requirements of item 10 of 

Order 14546. As I have explained, the reason the Commission decided not to add 

the issues raised by the intervener witnesses to the requirements for relief under 

item 10 of Order 14546 is clear: they are disincentives -- not incentives -- to a 

policy that encourages investment in projects that result in fuel savings to 

customers. 

A. 

Order 14546 resulted from the Commission’s direction to investor-owned 

utilities and other interested parties to consider the types of costs appropriate for 

fuel clause recovery. The parties did this and in fact “agreed to a policy addressing 

the appropriate prospective means of recovering such fossil fuel-related expenses.” 

Order 14546 at 1. This policy is reflected in items 1 through 10 of Order 14546, 

where the Commission states: “As a result of our determinations in this proceeding, 

prospectively, the following charges are properly considered in the computation of 

the average inventory price of fuel used in the development of fuel expenses in the 

utilities’ fuel cost recovery clauses.” Id. at 3. Thus, Order 14546 is a policy of 
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general applicability, which has the force of a rule, because it applies prospectively 

to all utilities. Intervener witnesses do not dispute that the Commission established 

a policy of general applicability in Order 14546, including item 10 of that Order. 

As a policy of general applicability, the Commission should apply item 10 of 

Order 14546 uniformly and consistently to all utilities, applying the same 

requirements to all to acheve fairness. Likewise, applying consistent, uniform 

requirements to all utilities provides certainty to Commission policy and, therefore, 

promotes that policy. In the case of the policy under item 10 of Order 14546, there 

is a two-part test for recovery under the Fuel Clause that does not include any of the 

issues raised by the intervener witnesses. Similarly, the Commission has repeatedly 

and consistently applied this two-part test for over 20 years, without adding any 

additional requirements as the intervener witnesses suggest. 

To allow the intervener witnesses to add to the requirements of item 10 of 

Order 14546 now, through their “case-by-case” argument, departs from the clear, 

express requirements of item 10 and past application of those requirements by the 

Commission, resulting in an unfair and uncertain application of Commission policy. 

The result will discourage, not encourage, utility projects in the future that achieve 

fuel savings to reduce customer costs. 

In any event, the reference to the recovery of costs under item 10 of Order 

14546 on a “case by case” basis does not mean what intervener witnesses say it 

means. The full statement is: “Recovery of such costs should be made on a case- 

by-case basis after Commission approval.” Order 14546 at 4. The express recovery 

of “such costs” refers to the preceding sentence in item 10 setting forth the two-part 
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test for the determination of recoverable costs under this item of Order 14546. The 

term “case-by-case basis,” then, cannot be an open-ended invitation to add 

requirements to the ability to recover costs under item 10 of Order 14546 because it 

renders meaningless the express reference to the recovery of “such costs” in the 

same sentence. 

Rather, the term “case-by-case basis after Commission approval” was 

included in item 10 to differentiate the costs under item 10 fi-om the costs under 

items 1 through 9 of Order 14546. Costs identified in items 1 through 9, by the 

terms of Order 14546 itself, can be included by the utility in the development of 

their fuel expenses in the Fuel Clause without further Commission action. Costs 

under item 10 of Order 14546, however, cannot automatically be added to the 

utilities’ fuel expenses but must be added only “after Commission approval,” which 

necessarily must be done case-by-case to determine if the two-part test established 

by the Commission in item 10 of Order 14546 has been met. 

Do the intervener witnesses seek to apply the Commission policy in item 10 of 

Order 14546 or change it? 

I believe the intervener witnesses seek to change Commission policy under item 10 

of Order 14546 rather than apply it to PEF’s Petition. Every argument that they 

assert to add to the requirements set forth under item 10 of Order 14546 - to impose 

a volatility requirement, to impose an “earnings” test, to narrowly define the term 

“fossil fuel-related costs”, and to impose a requirement that costs cannot be 

recovered in ‘‘future’ base rates - can be made with respect to any utility request for 
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cost recovery through the Fuel Clause under item 10 of Order 14546. Their 

arguments, in fact, fly in the face of years of consistent application by the 

Commission of the express requirements in item 10 of Order 14546. Order No. 

PSC-96-1172-FOF-E1, Docket No. 960001-E1 (Sept. 19, 1996); Order No. PSC-95- 

1089-FOF-EIY Docket No. 950001 (Sept. 5, 1995); Order No. PSC-96-0353-FOF- 

EI, Docket No. 960001-E1 (Mar. 13, 1996); Order No. PSC-97-0359-FOF-E1, 

Docket No. 970001-E1 (Mar. 3 1 , 1997); Order No. PSC-98-0412-FOF-EI, Docket 

No. 980001-E1 (Mar. 20, 1998). They, therefore, seek to change the Commission 

policy, not apply the existing Commission policy to PEF’s current request. If the 

interveners want to change the policy set forth by the Commission in item 10 of 

Order 14546, they should do so in a generic docket involving all utilities that would 

be affected by a change in the policy and other interested parties. Indeed, the policy 

in item 10 of Order 14546 was adopted in such a generic docket, providing all 

affected parties and interested persons an opportunity to participate in and comment 

on the development of that policy. 

IV. THE APPLICATION OF COMMISSION POLICY UNDER ORDER 14546 

Q. 

9. 

Do the intervener witnesses also challenge the application of Commission policy 

under item 10 of Order 14546 to PEF’s request for cost recovery? 

Yes, they do. Some intervener witnesses claim PEF has not demonstrated that the 

Uprate Project costs are not recoverable in current base rates even though they 

concede PEF has demonstrated that the Uprate Project costs were not recognized in 
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PEF’s minimum filing requirements (MFRs) in its last base rate proceeding. 

Intervener witnesses also challenge the return on equity and recovery period of the 

Uprate Costs under PEF’s request for cost recovery in its Petition. I will address 

each of these arguments in turn and explain why PEF’s request for recovery of the 

Uprate Project costs through the Fuel Clause is consistent with the Commission’s 

policy under item 10 of Order 14546 and Commission application of that policy to 

utility requests over the past 20 years. 

Q. Are the Uprate Project costs recognized or anticipated in PEF’s current base 

rates? 

No, they are not, As I demonstrated in my amended direct testimony, the Uprate 

Project costs were not anticipated and recognized in PEF’s MFRs at the time of 

PEF’s last base rate proceeding and, accordingly, the Uprate Project costs are not 

recognized or anticipated in PEF’s current base rates. Intervener Witness Merchant 

agrees that the Uprate Project costs are not recognized in PEF’s MFRs. (Merchant 

Test., p. 15, lines 20-23). 

A. 

Ms. Merchant argues, however, that just because the Uprate Project costs are 

not recognized in the Company’s MFR’s it does not mean that the Uprate Project 

costs could not be anticipated in current base rates. (Merchant Test., pp. 15-16). 

She essentially contends that base rates are designed to cover all base-rate type 

expenses, whether anticipated at the time of the utility’s MFRs or not, and therefore 

the Uprate Project costs were implicitly anticipated in current base rates. (Id.). 

Page 17 of 38 



572 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

Ms. Merchant’s argument is contrary to the very terms of item 10 of Order 

14546 and, if accepted, renders item 10 of Order 14546 meaningless. Under item 

10 of Order 14546 a utility is required to show in part that the costs for which 

recovery is sought are those “normally recovered through base rates but which were 

not recognized or anticipated in the cost levels used to determine current base rates.’’ 

Order 14546 at 4. The reference to the “cost levels used to determine current base 

rates” obviously refers to the Company’s MFRs because that is how utilities 

demonstrate their “cost levels” to “determine current base rates.” Ms. Merchant’s 

argument, then, is inconsistent with the express terms of item 10 and must be 

rejected. 

Additionally, if Ms. Merchant’s construction of item 10 of Order 14546 was 

accepted the policy the Commission adopted in item 10 is again rendered 

meaningless. Every cost “normally recovered through base rates’’ that results in fuel 

savings does not meet the test established by Ms. Merchant, therefore, no such cost 

would be recoverable through the Fuel Clause under item 10 of Order 14546. The 

Commission clearly did not intend to adopt a policy in item 10 of Order 14546 that 

could never be applied. 

Ms. Merchant cites no authority to support her novel construction of item 10 

of Order 14546. The Commission’s application of item 10 of Order 14546, in fact, 

refutes her construction of item 10. I am not aware of any Commission order 

applying item 10 of Order 14546 in the way Ms. Merchant does. 

Finally, this construction of item 10 by Ms. Merchant is just another way to 

assert that there should be an additional requirement of an earnings test to item 10 of 
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Order 14546. She is essentially saying that the costs sought by utilities under item 

10 of Order 14546 can and should be absorbed in base rates unless and until the 

utility determines that its earnings are affected. As I have explained, no such 

requirement exists under Order 14546 and any such “earnings” requirement 

undermines and does not advance the policy established by the Commission in item 

10 of Order 14546. 

Q. Intervener witnesses Lawton and Merchant argue that PEF’s request for cost 

recovery, in particular the return on equity, is inappropriate. Do you agree? 

No. PEF’s request is consistent with the prior Commission orders applying item 10 

of Order 14546. For example, the Commission approved FPL’s requested return of 

9.2897%’ which was FPL’s then-current weighted average cost of capital, when the 

Commission permitted FPL to recover the costs of its thermal power uprate at two 

of its nuclear units through the Fuel Clause under item 10 of Order 14546. See 

Order No. PSC-96-1 172-FOF-EIY Docket No. 960001-E1 (Sept. 19, 1996). 

Likewise, FPC (now PEF) was allowed to recover a return of 8.37%, which was 

authorized in Docket 91089-EIY PEF’s then-last rate case proceeding, when the 

Commission approved the recovery of the cost of PEF’s conversion of its 

Intercession City combustion turbine units P7 and P9 to burn natural gas through the 

Fuel Clause under item 10 of Order 14546. See Order No. PSC-95-1089-FOF-E1, 

Docket No. 950001 (Sept. 5,  1995). PEF’s current request is also consistent with 

other, prior Orders of the Commission under item 10 of Order 14546. See Order 

No. PSC-96-0353-FOF-EIY Docket No. 960001-E1 (Mar. 13, 1996); Order No. PSC- 

A. 
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Q. 

A. 

97-0359-FOF-EI, Docket No. 970001-E1 (Mar. 31, 1997); Order No. PSC-98-0412- 

FOF-EI, Docket No. 980001-E1 (Mar. 20, 1998). PEF does not request any 

different treatment for the Uprate Project costs than how other project costs were 

treated by the Commission under Order 14546. 

It must be remembered that the policy established by item 10 of Order 14546 

was intended to encourage utilities to invest in projects that resulted in fuel savings 

to the benefit of customers. Intervener witnesses agree that this was the intent 

behind item 10 of Order 14546. (Merchant Test., p. 18, lines 7-9; Lawton Test., top 

page 9.). Reducing the allowable retum on such project costs based on a claimed 

reduction in the risk, as intervener witnesses assert, would have the effect of 

discouraging, not encouraging, such projects through the Fuel Clause. That is not 

what the Commission intended in item 10 of Order 14546. 

Intervener witnesses also argue that the recovery of the Uprate Project costs 

should be spread out over the useful life of the Uprate Project rather than 

correspond to offsetting fuel savings. Do you agree? 

No. Again, PEF’s request is consistent with the Commission’s prior application of 

its policy under item 10 of Order 14546. In Order No. PSC-96-1172-FOF-E1, for 

example, FPL’s thermal power uprate costs were approved for recovery through the 

Fuel Clause under Order 14546 over a two-year period of time even though the fuel 

savings were projected out to 2011, meaning that the capital changes had an 

expected useful life of at least 15 years. Docket No. 960001-E1 (Sept. 19, 1996). In 

fact, through license extensions Turkey Point Unit 3 is licensed to operate until 2032 
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and Turkey Point Unit 4 until 2033. That means the expected benefit of those 

uprates will extend over about 36 years. This illustrates that the practice of 

providing for an abbreviated amortization period is nothing new for projects being 

recovered under item 10 of Order 14546. 

In Order No. 97-0359-FOF-EIY the Commission approved cost recovery over a 

five-year period through the Fuel Clause under Order 14546 for the conversion of 

peaking units to burn natural gas (DeBary 7,  Bartow 3 & 4, Suwannee 1). Docket 

No, 970001-E1 (Mar. 31, 1997). In Order No. 98-0412-FOF-EIY the Commission 

similarly approved cost recovery over a five-year period through the Fuel Clause 

under Order 14546 for the costs associated with converting Suwannee Unit 3 to be 

able to bum natural gas. Docket No. 980001-E1 (Mar. 20, 1998). Likewise, in 

Order No. PSC-95-1089-FOF-EIY the Commission approved a five-year recovery 

through the Fuel Clause under Order 14546 of the costs of converting Intercession 

City combustion turbine units P7 and P9 to gas. Docket No. 950001 (Sept. 5 ,  1995). 

Additionally, in Order No. PSC-96-0353-FOF-EIY the Commission approved FPC’s 

request for the recovery of the costs of converting Intercession City combustion 

turbine units P8 and P10 through the Fuel Clause under Order 14546 over a five- 

year period. Docket No. 960001-E1 (Mar. 13, 1996). These combustion turbines 

typically have a depreciable life of around 30 years. Suwannee 1 and 3 were placed 

in service in 1980, DeBary 7 in 1992, and Intercession City 7 and 9 in 1993. The 

fact that the Commission saw fit to approve shortened amortization periods for these 

projects further illustrates that the treatment PEF is requesting in this Petition is 
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Q- 

A. 

nothing new. Rather, PEF’s request is consistent with the hstoric treatment of 

items recovered under item 10 of Order 14546. 

Intervener witnesses Lawton and Merchant testify that PEF’s requested cost 

recovery period violates certain principles of the Uniform System of Accounts 

(WSOA”). Do you agree? 

No. When considering the USOA requirements it is important to realize that the 

Commission has the ability to modify their application. In fact, every time the 

Commission has approved abbreviated recovery of a capital project through the Fuel 

Clause in the past it has exercised this authority. Indeed, intervener witnesses 

Lawton and Merchant agree these requirements can be waived. (See, e.g., Merchant 

Test., p. 24, lines 4-6). This is, in fact, what the Commission has done time and 

again in the capital conversion projects and other projects that the Commission has 

approved pursuant to Item 10 of Order 14546. See Order No. PSC-96-1172-FOF- 

EI, Docket No. 960001-E1 (Sept. 19, 1996); Order No. PSC-95-1089-FOF-EIY 

Docket No. 950001 (Sept. 5, 1995); Order No. PSC-96-0353-FOF-EIY Docket No. 

960001-E1 (Mar. 13, 1996); Order No. PSC-97-0359-FOF-EI, Docket No. 970001- 

E1 (Mar. 31, 1997); Order No. PSC-98-0412-FOF-EI, Docket No. 980001-E1 (Mar. 

20, 1998). A shortened recovery period that corresponds to the period that fuel 

savings offset the project costs is nothing new and is in fact the typical manner of 

cost recovery approved under Order 14546. PEF’s request for a cost recovery 

period equal to that of the offsetting fuel savings is just an application of this typical 

Commission practice. 
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Q. 

A. 

Intervener witnesses also argue that PEP’S requested cost recovery period 

results in intergeneration inequity and harms PEF’s customers. Do you agree? 

No. First, intergeneration inequity arises when a customer today pays for 

something that will not produce benefits until some point in the future. With PEF’s 

Uprate Project, however, today’s customers will experience fuel savings 

immediately, in the first year after the Phase 1 of the Uprate, and projected for every 

year thereafter. In fact, the first year fuel savings are projected to exceed the Uprate 

Project costs that year. So, PEF’s current customers will experience the benefits of 

the Uprate Project in the form of immediate and continuing fuel savings. Indeed, 

because PEF will only recover costs to the extent of fuel savings, customers are not 

paying for Uprate Project costs at all. The Uprate Project costs are being paid for by 

the fuel savings. Customer bills will remain the same or they will be lower (all 

other things being equal), so there is no real cost to today’s or tomorrow’s 

customers for the Uprate Project. 

Second, PEF’s requested manner of cost recovery is consistent with every 

Commission order that has granted cost recovery for utility project costs under item 

10 of Order 14546. A similar argument regarding claimed intergeneration inequity 

can be made with respect to each of those past orders. For example, when the 

Commission approved the recovery of FPL’s nuclear uprate costs through the Fuel 

Clause under Order 14546 over a two-year period the fuel savings were expected to 

continue for at least 15 years, resulting in the same alleged intergenerational 

inequity that intervener witnesses claim exists here. See Order No. PSC-96-1172- 
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FOF-EI, Docket No. 960001-E1 (Sept. 19, 1996). The point is, in that order and in 

PEF’s current request, there is no real intergenerational inequity concern because all 

customers are receiving fuel savings that through some point in time are simply 

used to pay for the Uprate Project. Customers should at worst be indifferent to the 

cost recovery period because the fuel savings are paying for the project costs. This, 

again, is consistent with the Commission’s policy of encouraging utilities to take 

advantage of projects that result in fuel savings under item 10 of Order 14546. 

Finally, intervener witnesses’ arguments that PEF’s customers are harmed by 

PEF’s request rely almost exclusively on PEF’s response to a discovery request 

(OPC hterrogatory Number 12) requesting revenue requirements information. This 

spreadsheet, which Mr. Lawton relies on for his exhibit DJL-4, shows that at the end 

of nine years (2016) the cumulative savings exceed the Uprate Project costs by 

$19.27 million. Mr. Lawton focuses on the fact that this spreadsheet shows that at 

the end of year eight (2015) the net savings show a small negative amount. Mr. 

Lawton then draws the conclusion that PEF’s customers are harmed, at least through 

2015. Mr. Lawton’s reliance on this spreadsheet is misplaced. 

PEF developed the spreadsheet showing the revenue requirements as a 

demonstrative tool to show the cumulative effect of the Uprate Project’s fuel 

savings and to identify an initial cost recovery period whereby cumulative fuel 

savings exceed the Uprate Project costs. In the spreadsheet that occurs in year nine 

but PEF proposed an initial ten-year cost recovery period. The actual recovery 

period will depend, however, on the demonstration of the fuel savings to the costs in 

each fbel docket proceeding following approval of PEF’s petition. 
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As we have repeatedly said, we intend to recover the Uprate Project costs to 

the extent that there are fuel savings. If there is an insufficient level of fuel savings 

in any particular year to cover the Uprate Project costs those costs in excess of the 

fuel savings that year will be deferred to the next year, and so on, until the costs are 

paid for by the fuel savings. That is why this particular spreadsheet was not used to 

support PEF’s testimony in this proceeding, it is merely representative of the total 

fuel savings to costs. PEF’s position is consistent with prior Commission precedent. 

In Order No. PSC-98-0412-FOF-EI, the Commission explained: “If the fuel savings 

during any annual period are less than the amortization and return costs, [PEF] shall 

limit cost recovery to actual fkels savings and defer recovery of the difference to 

future periods.” Docket No. 980001-E1 (Mar. 20, 1998). This is precisely what 

PEF proposes to do in this proceeding. 

Mr. Lawton argues that “precedent has little value,” and so the Commission 

should not give much weight to its prior decisions. Do you agree? 

No. All intervener witnesses agree that the Commission established a prospective 

policy of general application in item 10 of Order 14546. As I have explained, for 

this policy to have the intended effect there must be clear requirements that are 

uniformly and consistently applied by the Commission to guide utility actions. As a 

result, the Commission’s prior application of the policy identified in item 10 of 

Order 14546 is especially important to the advancement of the Commission’s policy 

under that Order. Tellingly, Mr. Lawton cites no authority for his argument that the 

Commission should completely ignore what it has done with other utilities’ requests 
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pursuant to item 10 of Order 14546. He also ignores his own position and attempts 

to distinguish prior Commission precedent approving FPL’s request for cost 

recovery for its nuclear uprate project under Order 14546. 

Q. Do you agree with the distinctions that the intervener witnesses attempt to 

draw between the FPL uprate (Order 96-1172) and the CR3 Uprate project? 

No. None of the distinctions that Ms. Merchant (Merchant Test., p. 19) and Mr. 

Lawton (Lawton Test., p. 22) attempt to draw between FPL’s uprate and the CR3 

Uprate render reliance on Order 96-1 172 inappropriate here. 

A. 

Ms. Merchant first contends that the FPL uprate costs were “de minimus” 

compared to the fuel savings generated. There is no requirement in Item 10 of 

Order 14546, however, that the fuel savings must outweigh the costs by a certain 

percentage or by some nominal amount. The only requirement is that the projected 

fuel savings exceed the costs. Indeed, in FPC’s 1998 cost recovery petition for the 

conversion costs for Suwannee Unit 3 (Order 98-0412), the savings were not much 

more than the costs of the project. Nevertheless, the Commission approved fuel 

clause recovery for the costs under Order 14546. Docket No. 980001-E1 (Mar. 20, 

1998). No prior Commission order has imposed some threshold for the cost to 

savings to support recovery through the Fuel Clause under Order 14546 and Ms. 

Merchant suggests none in her testimony. This claimed distinction is irrelevant to 

PEF’s request. 

Next, Mr. Lawton claims the lower cost of FPL’s uprate, compared to the 

higher cost of the CR3 Uprate, is a material difference between the two projects. 
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Again, Order 14546 imposes no ceiling on the amount of project costs that may be 

passed through the Fuel Clause. The only requirement is that the projected fuel 

savings exceed the costs. As demonstrated in PEF’s amended direct testimony, the 

projected fuel savings substantially exceed projected costs for the Uprate Project. In 

fact, the projected fuel savings from the Uprate Project far exceed the projected fuel 

savings fiom FPL’s nuclear uprate or any other prior project approved under Order 

14546. 

Finally, intervener witnesses Merchant and Lawton both argue that FPL 

customers received savings in the first year, unlike what will happen with the CR3 

Uprate. They are wrong. PEF’s customers will receive fuel savings beginning in 

year one and continuing for every year throughout the projected twenty-year period. 

In sum, witnesses Merchant and Lawton attempt to diminish the importance of 

the FPL order by pointing to immaterial differences between the FPL nuclear uprate 

and the CR3 Uprate. When it comes to the application of the Commission’s policy 

in item 10 of Order 14546, there is no reason to treat PEF’s request different fiom 

the FPL request for cost recovery for its nuclear uprate project. 

Intervener witnesses Merchant and Lawton also attack PEF’s cost estimates 

and fuel savings projections for this project. Do you agree with their 

arguments? 

No, I do not. Witnesses Merchant and Lawton make various sweeping statements 

about PEF’s cost estimates and fuel savings projections to support their opposition 

to PEF’s Petition. Yet, neither of them have done any independent analysis of 
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PEF’s cost estimates or fuel savings projections nor do they have any reason to 

believe that PEF has not used the best available methodology and information to 

estimate the costs and fuel savings. The intervener witnesses offer no evidence to 

even suggest that PEF’s estimates are unreasonable or imprudent in some way. 

They further agree that prior utility requests for recovery of project costs through 

the Fuel Clause under item 10 of Order 14546 were similarly based on utility 

estimates of costs and fuel savings. 

PEF’s cost and fuel savings estimates are consistent with generally accepted 

utility estimating tools or methodology and consistent with PEF’s past and current 

cost and fuel savings estimation practice. I believe that our cost and fuel savings 

estimates are reasonable and prudent and represent the best information that is 

currently available to the Company. 

PEF’s petition further requests a determination that the Uprate Project is 

eligible for cost recovery through the Fuel Clause under item 10 of Order 14546 as 

applied by the Commission. PEF agrees that it will need to demonstrate that its 

Uprate Project costs are reasonable and prudent as it seeks recovery of the costs 

through the Fuel Clause as it has consistently done in all other applications of item 

10 of Order 14546. 

Witnesses Merchant and Lawton, however, both refer to cost estimates that 

they claim are different from PEF’s cost estimates to suggest that PEF’s cost 

estimates are unreliable. Do you agree? 
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A. No. Ms. Merchant, for example, claims that PEF’s costs are too indefinite because 

she says they increased by over $68 million in just one month. (Merchant Test., p. 4, 

lines 3-7). She is 

comparing the cost estimates presented in PEF’s amended direct testimony, which 

do not include AFDUC, to the cost estimates presented in my late-filed Exhibit 3, 

which do include AFDUC. The cost estimates have not increased by $68 million, 

rather, Ms. Merchant is comparing two different numbers. 

Ms. Merchant, however, is comparing apples to oranges. 

Mr. Lawton also claims that the fact that the cost estimates are not final places 

customers’ fuel savings at greater risk (meaning that if costs increase, the fuel 

savings decrease). Of course, the corollary to that is true as well, if the costs 

decrease, then fuel savings increase. If that occurred, customers would receive even 

greater benefits. In addition, there is no risk to customers because PEF is proposing 

to defer cost recovery to the extent fuel savings materialize each year. So, at worst, 

the project will pay for itself and customer bills will not increase as a result of the 

Uprate Project. 

V. THE RATE CASE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Mr. Pollock, on pages 5 to 6 of his testimony, argues that the costs of the CR3 

Uprate cannot be recovered through the Fuel Clause because such recovery 

violates the PEF rate case settlement prohibition against “new surcharges.” Do 

you agree with his argument? 
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A. No, I do not. First, the settlement agreement was not intended to preclude Fuel 

Clause recovery of costs that properly qualify for such recovery, including costs that 

qualify under the Commission policy in item 10 of Order 14546. This is also shown 

by paragraph 14 of the settlement agreement, which contemplates a return on equity 

for costs recovered through clauses, at exactly the amount that PEF seeks recovery 

in its Petition. 

Second, the settlement agreement does @ explicitly prohibit recovery 

through the Fuel Clause of costs incurred pursuant to the Commission policy in item 

10 of Order 14546. The agreement nowhere references Order 14546 at all. Order 

14546 was issued in 1985, well before the 2005 settlement agreement was signed, 

Thus, the parties to the agreement certainly knew about the Commission policy 

allowing Fuel Clause recovery pursuant to item 10 of Order 14546 at the time of the 

settlement. If the parties intended to explicitly prohibit the recovery through the 

Fuel Clause of costs allowed under the Commission policy in item 10 of Order 

14546 cost recovery they could and should have said so in the agreement. 

Lastly, the Company’s proposal cannot be considered a “surcharge” at all, 

because it will not result in increased customer bills. PEF proposes to recover costs 

only to the extent of fuel savings, such that in each year the customers will only pay 

for the costs that are offset by fuel savings. As such, the costs of the CR3 Uprate 

project will not result in a surcharge, because customer bills will decrease or, in the 

worst case, remain the same as they would have been without the project. So PEF’s 

proposal is in fact not a surcharge at all and thus could not violate the rate case 

settlement agreement in any event. 
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VI. NEED FOR CR3 UPRATE PROJECT 

Mr. Pollock argues that the Uprate Project costs will be paid for by additional 

customer revenue PEF generates with the project. Do you agree with this 

testimony? 

No, I do not. Mr. Pollock ignores the fact that the CR3 Uprate was proposed to 

meet an economic need and not a reliability need. This is clear from Order No. 

PSC-07-01 19-FOF-EIY the order approving the Company’s need for the CR3 

Uprate. Docket No. 060642-E1 (Feb. 8, 2007). There, the Commission clearly 

stated that the Uprate Project was not needed for reliability, but that the project 

would generate fuel savings and increase fuel diversity. In other words, the Uprate 

Project was not needed to maintain its reserve margins to keep up with increasing 

customer load on the system. Therefore, the Uprate Project costs will not be paid 

for by revenues from increased customer growth or energy use. Instead, fuel 

savings will pay for the Uprate Project costs and there will be fuel savings left over 

for the benefit of PEF’s customers. 

Does Mr. Pollock make any other arguments regarding PEF’s need for the 

project? 

Yes, at page 10, lines 5-10 of his testimony, Mi-. Pollock argues that the sole need 

for the CR3 Uprate could not have been the fuel savings, because PEF included the 

expected megawatt additions into its 2007 Ten Year Site Plan (“TYSP”). 
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A. 

Do you agree with this argument? 

No, I do not. Mr. Pollock’s argument again misses the point of the need for the 

CR3 Project. Order PSC-07-0119-FOF-E1 .clearly states that the need was an 

economic need, i.e. to generate expected fuel savings. Indeed, PEF’s 2006 TYSP, 

filed in April 2006 before PEF’s CR3 need and fuel cost recovery petition was 

initially filed, did not include the CR3 Uprate project among the future planned 

generating units. It was only after the need for the CR3 Uprate was granted, in 

February 2007, that PEF included the additional megawatts from the CR3 Uprate in 

the April 2007 TYSP. The additional megawatts from the CR3 Uprate were 

included in the April 2007 TYSP because PEF cannot ignore megawatts that will be 

added to the system once they have been approved by the Commission. But the 

economic need for the Uprate Project remains the same, and Mr. Pollock is simply 

wrong to assume that the Uprate Project costs are offset by customer sales. 

There is an additional benefit to the CR3 Uprate, however, which can be seen 

by its inclusion in the April 2007 TYSP. T h s  project will have the added benefit of 

deferring other, fossil fuel generation planned in prior TYSPs. 

VII. COST ALLOCATION ISSUES 

2. Mr. Pollock argues that the costs of the Uprate Project should be allocated on 

the basis of demand rather than energy. Can you address this argument? 
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A. Mr. Pollock’s argument that the CR3 Uprate costs should be treated as a production 

demand-related cost is based on the erroneous assumption that the capacity of the 

uprate is needed for PEF to meet its projected peak demands. As I explained, the 

need for this project was an economic need, not a reliability need. The Uprate 

Project has nothing to do with how much demand PEF’s customers are placing on 

the system. The genesis of the Uprate Project is the fuel savings that will be 

generated by displacing more expensive fossil fuels and purchased power with 

additional nuclear generation. 

Furthermore, Order 14546 does not include any requirement that cost 

allocation between demand and energy customers be considered. Item 10 sets forth 

a test to consider a utility’s request for Fuel Clause recovery, and once the test is 

satisfied, those costs can be recovered through the Fuel Clause. This is consistent 

with how the fuel savings will be calculated - the fuel savings will be applied to 

customers on the basis of energy, not demand. The costs should be similarly 

allocated, otherwise certain of PEF’s customers will be receiving more fuel savings 

benefits while other customers are paying proportionately more of the costs. 

The Commission’s prior orders involving requests for cost recovery pursuant 

to Item 10, Order 14546, also confirm that the Commission has never considered 

cost allocation issues in connection with these types of requests. Indeed, the 

Commission approved a similar uprate for FPL’s nuclear plant, with no distinction 

between demand and energy allocation. The issue in these prior proceedings was 

whether the project was appropriate for fuel clause recovery pursuant to Order 

14546. 
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Q.  

A. 

Please comment on Mr. Pollock’s arguments regarding recovery of these costs 

through the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause (“CCRC”). 

Simply put, there is no justification for recovery of the CR3 Uprate costs through 

the CCRC. The only justification for clause recovery is through the Fuel Clause, 

pursuant to item 10 of Order 14546. The test set forth in Item 10 of that Order does 

not address or contemplate CCRC recovery. 

On page 18 of his testimony, Mr. Pollock sets forth two reasons to support 

CCRC recovery. First, he points to the fact that the Commission allowed post-9/11 

security measures to be recovered through the CCRC. According to Mr. Pollock, 

these security costs are allocated in the same manner as all other production base 

rate costs (through the CCRC), and therefore the Uprate Project costs should be 

allocated the same way. It makes little sense to compare PEF’s CR3 Uprate project 

to the post-9/11 security costs. Mr. Pollock has given no reason why the 

Commission’s treatment of the security costs is at all relevant to PEF’s Petition. 

Additionally, this argument incorrectly assumes that the Uprate Project costs are 

base rate costs and should be allocated accordingly. As explained in the Company’s 

Petition and testimony, however, the Uprate Project qualifies for Fuel Clause 

recovery pursuant to item 10 of Order 14546. How nuclear costs are allocated in 

base rates, then, is irrelevant to how they are allocated when approved for Fuel 

Clause recovery. 

Second, Mi.  Pollock relies on the Commission’s recent nuclear cost recovery 

rule for new nuclear plants as justification for recovery of the Uprate Costs through 
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Q. 

A. 

the CCRC. This rule has no application to PEF’s request in this proceeding. The 

CR3 Uprate is not a new nuclear plant so the rule does not apply. Furthermore, as 

Mr. Pollock points out, the rule was not even in effect until April 2007, well after 

PEF filed its petition in this proceeding. Mr. Pollock’s argument that the CR3 

Uprate costs should be recovered through the CCRC must therefore fail. 

Can you comment on Mr. Pollock’s argument that fuel savings do not justify 

fuel clause recovery for nuclear costs? 

Yes, on page 19 of his testimony, Mr. Pollock argues that the Uprate Project costs 

cannot be allocated on the basis of fuel savings because FPL and the Commission 

rejected such allocations in prior proceedings. Both proceedings relied upon by Mr. 

Pollock, however, were base rate proceedings that addressed costs, such as the 

original construction of CR3, incurred to meet a peak demand need which this 

Commission has already determined is not the case with the Uprate Project. Thus, 

they are not relevant to PEF’s request for recovery of the Uprate Project costs 

through the Fuel Clause under a specific Commission policy in item 10 of Order 

14546. If PEF meets the test set forth in that order, which it does, PEF is entitled to 

recover the Uprate Project costs through the Fuel Clause. 

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS ISSUES 
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On pages 20-21 of his testimony, Mr. Pollock states that PEF’s cost recovery 

should be reduced to reflect the joint ownership in CR3. Do you have any 

comments on this testimony? 

Yes. PEF’s request for cost recovery will not include any costs which CR3’s joint 

owners have agreed to pay. Similarly, the fuel savings will be allocated 

proportionately among the joint owners based on the percentage of costs each owner 

bears. 

On pages 8-9 of her testimony, Ms. Merchant argues that all special cost 

recovery clauses have limited purposes and must be limited to prevent double 

recovery. Can you comment? 

Yes. Ms. Merchant’s argument highlights the fact that her main objection to PEF’s 

request is not with the actual request itself but rather with the policy underlying 

clause recovery in general. She attacks all cost recovery clauses, not just PEF’s 

specific request for fuel clause recovery. These general policy arguments have no 

place in PEF’s specific request for fuel clause recovery pursuant to Item 10 of Order 

14546. If Ms. Merchant and the other intervener witnesses wish for the 

Commission to address the clause recovery mechanisms in a more general policy 

setting, then a separate generic docket should be established for that purpose. But 

this proceeding is for the purpose of determining whether PEF’s Uprate Project 

costs are eligible for recovery through the Fuel Clause pursuant to existing 

Commission policy in item 10 of Order 14546. 
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Witness Lawton indicates that ratepayers will suffer a detrimental impact in 

the form of deferred income taxes, is this true? 

There may be a deferred income tax impact on the ratepayer. This impact could be 

favorable, detrimental, or nonexistent. It will depend on the amount of time it takes 

to recover the costs associated with the Uprate Project under PEF’s proposal. If 

PEF recovers all costs associated with the Uprate Project over ten years because the 

cumulative fuel savings exceed the cumulative project costs, there will be a 

mismatch between the tax and book life of the assets. This will always occur when 

recovery is accomplished over a period shorter or longer than the tax life. As such, 

there has been an impact in every other cost recovered through the Fuel Clause over 

a shortened time frame. This is nothing new and it is not a surprise to PEF, the 

Commission, or interveners. The Commission has consistently recognized that 

there is a benefit to encouraging projects that are designed to minimize fuel costs to 

the ratepayer. This is why the Commission has consistently approved recovery of 

such projects through the Fuel Clause on an abbreviated amortization schedule even 

though there will be deferred tax implications. 

Witness Merchant and Lawton seem confused as to what PEF is proposing to 

recover through the Fuel Clause associated with this Uprate Project. Can you 

make it clear what costs you seek Fuel Clause recovery of? 

Consistent with past Commission precedent and policy, PEF should be authorized to 

recover through the Fuel Clause the amortization of capital costs and a return on 

capital at their current pretax weighted average cost of capital (WACC) of the 
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exceed the amortization and pretax WACC return of the Uprate Project. 
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Q. Are you proposing to recover additional O&M costs, deferred taxes, or 

property taxes through the Fuel Clause? 

A. No. 

Q. 

A. Yes, it does. 

Does this conclude your testimony? 
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BY MR. WALLS: 

Q. Do you have a summary of your prefiled 

rebuttal testimony? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Will you please summarize your prefiled 

rebuttal for the Commission, please? 

A. Good afternoon, Commissioners. What 

intervenor witnesses have tried to do with this simple 

two-part test in Order 14546 is to add terms and 

definitions that nowhere appear in the order or in any 

later order applying that policy. They want to change 

the Commission's policy and not apply it to the uprate 

project before you. 

Some intervenor witnesses argue that if some 

of the project costs can be absorbed into the utility's 

base rates without affecting its return on equity, then 

those costs should be recovered through base rates. 

There is no earnings test in the policy established by 

Order 14546. Had there been, this Commission would have 

applied it in all past cases that had come before it. 

The Commission did not use an earnings test in 

1 4 5 4 6 ,  because it would have turned a request for fuel 

clause recovery into a complex base rate inquiry, 

defeating the Commission's purpose of establishing a 

straightforward test to encourage projects like the CR3 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



594 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

uprate. 

Intervenors also argue that PEF can ask for 

the cost of most of the uprate costs in future base rate 

proceedings, so recovery through the fuel clause should 

not be allowed. Again, there is no requirement that the 

utility show when its next base rate case will be -- 

sorry. There's no requirement that the utility show 

when its next rate case will be taken into consideration 

under Item 10. In fact, that same argument would apply 

to all the past decisions that the Commission has made. 

The utility always has the right to put costs 

through base rates. The Commission knew this when it 

adopted the policy, and the Commission knew this in 

every case that came before it. It knew that such a 

requirement would mean that no projects would ever be 

recovered through the fuel clause, no matter what the 

net fuel savings were. 

Intervenor witnesses further challenge PEF's 

request because it uses the current weighted average 

cost of capital. The current weighted average cost of 

capital has been consistently used by this Commission in 

pass-through clause proceedings. Typically it's 

established in a base rate proceeding, and that same 

rate is approved to be used in all other pass-through 

dockets. 
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They argue that there is no risk with fuel 

clause recovery, so PEF should not be allowed to recover 

a return on equity, only a cost of debt. PEF's request, 

though, is consistent with the Commission's application 

of Item 10, allowing utilities to recover their 

then-current weighted cost of capital, and that current 

weighted cost of capital would be the rate applied 

during the period of recovery. 

presented with a base rate case where they reviewed 

evidence and determined that the weighted cost of 

capital would change, they would in that order also make 

the change to pass-through clauses. So this current 

weighted average cost is not a guarantee for the entire 

recovery period, and I wanted to make that point clear. 

If the Commission was 

Intervenor witnesses challenge the recovery 

period for capital costs. Again, PEF's request is 

consistent with the Commission's prior order applying 

this policy. PEF will recover the costs only to the 

extent that there are savings to pay for them. This 

does not harm customers, because the project will pay 

for itself through fuel savings, and the Commission has 

been willing to accept some delay in net savings to 

customers to encourage projects that benefit customers 

with substantial overall savings. 

consistent with every petition that has been presented 

This again is 
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to the Commission. In each and every one of those 

cases, the costs were recovered over a significantly 

shorter period than the overall savings to be accrued. 

In sum, FPC has met the straightforward test 

set forth by Item 10 of Order 14546, and the fuel clause 

recovery for the CR3 uprate project costs is therefore 

appropriate. Thank you. 

MR. WALLS: We tender Mr. Portuondo for cross. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Thank you. Mr. McWhirter, 

any questions? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q. Mr. Portuondo, your company sought an uprate 

for CR3 in 2002; is that correct? 

A. I'm not familiar with that one, Mr. McWhirter. 

Q. You were examining Mr. Pollock's testimony, 

and Exhibit JP-2 to his testimony was the 100 or so 

cases where utilities have sought an uprate, and item 

number 90 was a CR3 uprate that resulted in 24 megawatts 

of thermal power increase. Do you have no knowledge of 

that? 

A. In the context of the applicability of that 

uprate to Item 10, it's my recollection that that uprate 

did not meet the savings test, which is part 2, that the 

overall costs could be -- or the overall savings could 
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be measured and quantified in order to demonstrate that 

the savings were sufficient to offset the costs. 

Q. And as a result, you absorbed it in base 

rates? 

A. Yes, sir, because it would not have complied 

with Item 10. 

MR. McWHIRTER: I have no further questions. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Mr. Brew, any questions? No 

questions. Thank you. 

Mr. Twomey? 

MR. TWOMEY: Can we -- (gesturing). 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: We can do that. 

Mr. McGlothlin. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. McGLOTHLIN: 

Q. Mr. Portuondo, I was trying to listen to your 

summary, and during one part of the summary, you said 

the 11.75 percent is not a guarantee because, as I 

understand it, it's possible that the Commission may 

authorize a different overall cost of capital at some 

point subsequent to that; is that correct? 

A. That is correct, just like what happened in 

2005 when the last rate case was approved by the 

Commission and the 11.75 was authorized. It too was 

authorized to be put in place for all pass-through 
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clauses. 

Q. I was trying to find the point in your 

rebuttal testimony where you make that point. Can you 

direct me to it? 

A.  I don't believe I made it explicitly. 

Q. Did you make it implicitly? 

A .  I believe it was implied in the fact that it 

would be run through a clause recovery mechanism. 

Q. You understand, of course, that Mr. Lawton's 

point about a guaranteed return related not to the view 

that the 11.75 would not change, but rather to the fact 

that in the fuel cost recovery mechanism, there's a 

feature that we call a true-up mechanism and that he 

called a reconciliation; is that correct? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. And your point about the overall average cost 

of capital perhaps being changed by another overall 

average cost of capital is really a separate point, is 

it not? 

A. It's the point to address the appropriateness 

of the weighted average cost of capital. 

Q. And the weighted average cost of capital 

includes a return on equity that is higher than the 

risk-free cost of debt that he assumed for purposes of 

his testimony; correct? 
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A.  He assumed an all-debt financing, which is not 

realistic for a project of this nature. And it is not 

consistent with the other capital projects being 

recovered through other clauses, which earn the current 

weighted average cost of capital. 

Q. You say he assumed an all-debt cost of 

capital, but didn't he assume a return on equity that 

reflected the reduced risk that flows from the 

availability of a true-up proceeding to ensure that the 

targeted return would be realized? 

A .  He applied a debt rate as an equity cost rate, 

which I personally don't believe is realistic. 

Q. But that's very different than saying that the 

company would finance with 100 percent debt, is it not? 

A. It is different. But ultimately, the ability 

to secure equity capital at that cost rate would 

probably be unlikely. 

Q. Would you agree that as compared to 

depreciation over the normal useful life of an asset, 

accelerated depreciation such as the ten-year period 

that is being requested by the company has the effect of 

generating increased cash flow? 

A .  Absolutely, and that is one of the shareholder 

benefits or incentives created by Item 10. 

Q. As I understand it, with the exception of 
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the -- and I don't know if it's more correct to say 

M-U-R or MUR. I don't know how one pronounces the 

acronym. But with the exception of the first phase, the 

balance of the project will be constructed prior to and 

during the refueling outage of 2009; is that correct? 

A. With respect to -- 

Q. I'm sorry. Let me correct that. Phase 2 

through 2009 and Phase 3 through 2011. 

A.  Correct. We've allocated time in those tw 

outages that were already scheduled to accomplish the 

second and third phases of the project. 

Q. So between this point in time and the point in 

time -- let me just ask another question first. Do I 

understand correctly that the company will recognize the 

incurrence of the costs associated with the projects at 

the point in time when they enter commercial service? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. And prior to that time, the amounts spent will 

be accumulated and capitalized and reflected in the 

plant account at the appropriate time? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. Do I also understand correctly that 

necessarily then the company will finance the 

construction of those assets prior to the point in time 

when they enter commercial service? 
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A. That is correct. 

Q. And is it true that the calculation of the 

costs of the project that is being used in the 

comparison of costs versus fuel savings reflects or 

assumes the same capital structure that results in the 

overall average cost of capital that is being employed, 

in other words, both debt and equity? 

A. If your question is does our calculation use 

the weighted average cost of capital throughout the 

recovery period that exists today, the answer is yes. 

Q. So does that reflect the assumption that both 

equity and debt will be used to finance the construction 

of the project? 

A. Yes. We would attempt to use all sources of 

capital to finance this project, like we do other 

capital projects. 

Q. And bearing in mind that the recognition of 

the costs and the recovery of those costs will not occur 

until the point of commercial service, whether the 

Commission says do it through fuel recovery or whether 

it says do it through base rates, the company would have 

to finance the construction of that project in either 

event? 

A. Correct. If the company elects to pursue the 

project, yes, we would have to finance it in any event. 
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MR. McGLOTHLIN: Those are all my questions. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Mr. Wright. 

MR. WRIGHT: No questions, Madam Chairman. 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Mr. Twomey. 

MR. TWOMEY: Yes, Madam Chair. Thank you. 

Just a couple. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. TWOMEY: 

Q. Good afternoon, sir. 

A.  Good afternoon. 

Q. On page 3 of your rebuttal testimony, you 

again discuss the $2.6 billion of benefits to be 

achieved to the benefit of your customers; right? 

A .  Correct. 

Q. And you say the project will result in fuel 

savings and lower costs; correct? 

A.  Could you point me to where you are? 

Q. I think it's on page 4, or maybe you just say 

the policy of Item 10 is to result in fuel savings and 

lower costs; is that correct? 

A.  Again, where are you pointing? Where are you? 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Mr. Twomey, is it 

line lo? 

MR. TWOMEY: Pardon? 
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COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: I think it may be 

lines 9 and 10 on page 4. 

MR. TWOMEY: Commissioner, it sure is. 

wrote it down in my notes, and I didn't have it 

underlined. 

BY MR. TWOMEY: 

Q. She's right. Will you look at lines 9 

A. Yes, I see it. 

Q. Is that your testimony? 

A. Yes, it is. That is the intent of the 

I just 

and lo? 

policy, 

is that those fuel savings will result in lower costs to 

customers. 

Q. And I understand the thrust of your testimony 

in this case is that this project is consistent with the 

intent of the policy; right? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. If you go ahead and undertake it? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Would you say that if you undertake the 

project and you achieve fuel savings and lower costs, 

that you are providing your customers with more 

efficient service than if you didn't undertake the 

project and had higher fuel costs and higher costs 

operating costs? Does this -- 

A. I don't look at this project as efficiency. 
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It's more in terms of, you know, lowest cost to our 

customer. I see efficiency more, you know, are the 

lights flickering, or am I interrupting the customer 

frequently. I see that as the efficiency of our 

operations to provide service to the customer. I guess 

I have a different view of efficiency. 

Q. You would just say -- because you recognize, 

don't you, that you have an obligation to provide your 

customers with efficient service, don't you? 

A.  Efficient, reliable service, yes, I agree with 

that. 

Q. So you're saying that you see efficient as 

making the lights not flicker and avoiding operation -- 

discontinuation of service? 

A.  Yes, sir. 

Q. But you don't want to include achieving lower 

costs and fuel savings in the definition of efficient? 

A .  I don't personally look at it that way. I see 

our role as a regulated utility to provide safe, 

reliable, efficient service to our customer at the least 

cost possible. The least cost is -- this component that 

we're talking about here today is how can I be 

innovative and do something, whatever that may be, to 

find an opportunity to lower costs to our customers. 

Q. So you're saying you do recognize that you 
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have an obligation to provide least cost service? 

A. Oh, absolutely. I think in every single 

petition that has come before the Commission, that 

fundamental premise has existed. 

Q. Okay. Now, I want to be clear on your answer 

to this. Again, my understanding of your testimony is 

that the lower fuel costs -- the fuel savings and the 

lower costs would still be attainable to the benefit of 

the customers as long as you undertook and completed 

this uprate project, irrespective of the method of 

capital and cost recovery; is that correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. So to the extent that anybody in this room was 

concerned that the fuel savings and the lower costs 

ascribed to the project can't happen except if you get 

your petition approved, that's not necessarily true, is 

it? 

A.  No. I don't think we've ever said that that 

wasn't true. I think what we've said is that this order 

provided the incentive for the companies to bring before 

the Commission projects that would create fuel savings, 

but allow a timely recovery of their costs absent the 

need for a base rate proceeding. 

In your example where the project is done in 

base rates, the economics of the project, the total net 
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savings may not be as large over the life of the project 

as it is presented in our petition. The reason for that 

is, just like with a home loan or a mortgage, if you pay 

it off in 30 years, that's going to cost you more than 

paying it off in 15 years or in 10 years. So that same 

concept would have to be applied, and the net fuel 

savings would be different. That's not to say that 

they're going to go away, but they are different. 

Q. Well, using that argument -- so you're saying 

that thesis benefits customers. Did I hear you 

correctly? 

A .  It benefits customers, and it benefits the 

company through increased cash flow in order to redeploy 

resources to meet other projects. 

Q. Your company here in Florida has announced 

that it intends to build at least one, perhaps two new 

nuclear generating units in Levy County; correct? 

A.  Correct. 

Q. Those plants are projected to cost what, 5, 

6 billion apiece? 

A. I don't have those numbers. 

Q. Do you have a ballpark figure? 

A. No. 

Q. Let's say they cost only $4 billion. y y ~ u  d it 

be your thesis that customers would be better off paying 
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off the capital costs of the plant in ten years as 

opposed to the expected operating lives of the plants 

because they would pay less interest? That would be 

consistent with what you just said here; right? 

A.  That's correct. If you shorten the recovery 

period, you reduce the amount of carrying costs that the 

customer pays. 

Q. But you don't expect that if you build that 

plant and put it in rates that it's going to be 

recovered under any other scenario but over the 

projected operating life of the plant, do you? 

A. Oh, correct. No, I would never propose such a 

thing for a base load capacity need, absolutely not. 

Q. Okay. With the limitations, I think, of what 

Mr. McGlothlin asked you about a second ago, the fact of 

the matter is, to the advantage of the company, that if 

you get your petition approved, you will essentially 

have a guaranteed return at some level, presumably 

starting at 11.75; isn't that correct? 

A .  To the extent that the costs are deemed 

prudent by this Commission, that is correct. 

Q. And isn't it true as well that that guarantee, 

at whatever level, is superior, in terms of providing 

shareholder value, to having the mere opportunity of 

earning whatever your authorized rate of return is 
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through base rate recovery? Do you understand the 

question? 

A .  I guess I wouldn't say it's superior because, 

again, given the range of reasonableness, base rates 

also provides me the opportunity to earn more than the 

11.75. 

Q. What is your most recent reported return on 

equity in your last surveillance report? 

A .  The December was 11 percent. The latest was, 

I think, 10.8. I think 10.8. I don't have it committed 

to memory. I do have the December committed to memory. 

Q. That's a good enough answer. Thank you. 

I want to skip for a minute and go to the page 

32 area. You don't need to refer to it. I think you'll 

understand. It's the part of your testimony that deals 

with cost allocation issues, and you were asked some 

questions on this yesterday. But it's clear from your 

statement there that since you ascribe the construction 

and planning of this plant uprate to fuel savings, you 

believe equitably it should be -- the costs should be 

recovered through the fuel clause as well, not the 

capacity clause; correct? 

A. Right. I think that's an appropriate matching 

of the cost assignment to the clause which is giving 

rise to the savings. 
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Q. And I think I heard you say that that 

methodology of recovery through the fuel clause would be 

more equitable to residential customers of yours, 

including most of my clients, than going through the 

capacity clause; correct? Or isn't that the result? 

A. I guess the way I would phrase it is that the 

opposite would be inequitable, because the savings are 

accruing based on energy, and it would be inequitable to 

charge the costs on a different basis which would put a 

larger burden on your residential customers. 

Q. Fair enough. Let me go back to the -- help me 

have a clearer understanding of the distinctions between 

how the customers are treated and the company is treated 

as between the fuel clause treatment sought in your 

petition versus rate base recovery. The fuel savings, 

if your petition is approved, when do the net fuel 

savings again start accruing to the benefit of your 

customers? 

A.  You said the net fuel savings? 

Q. Yes. I ask that because -- help me on this. 

My understanding is that the fuel savings would be used 

to pay down -- to the extent they exist, they would be 

used to pay down the capital costs of the project. 

A .  Correct. And I think the first year in which 

customers actually see a benefit is in 2008, with the 
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installation of the MUR. I believe that the savings in 

that year surpass the $6 million worth of costs, so it 

would be -- in 2008 would be the first year. 

Q. And when would they -- when would the fuel 

savings first occur to the benefit of the customers if 

the recovery was through base rates? 

A. 2008. 

Q. Okay. And if you know, what would the 

relative magnitude of the savings be for the two? 

A. It would be the -- well, they would get 

100 percent of the savings through fuel in 2008, and the 

costs would be absorbed into current base rates. 

Q. Base rates? 

A. Correct. 

MR. TWOMEY: Okay. Thank you. That's all I 

have. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Commissioners. Commissioner 

Carter. 

COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you, Madam 

Chairman. 

Mr. Portuondo, I'm trying to get my head 

around this issue here. You heard my questions this 

morning regarding Paragraph 10. 

asked a line of questioning by Commissioner Argenziano, 

and also this morning you heard the line of questions by 

Yesterday you were 
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Commissioner Skop in the context of -- and if I got it 

wrong, I'm sure you'll let me know. In Phase 1, I think 

you said there would be like 12 megawatts, and in 

Phase 2 there would be like 40 megawatts. 

In light of Exhibit 28 which was presented to 

you yesterday, wouldn't that be more in line with the 

actual applications, the prior applications of Item 10 

more so than what you're presenting now? Wouldn't it 

fall within that -- I mean, you're talking about 

40 megawatts, plus you're talking about substantially 

less than $400 million; correct? 

THE WITNESS: Yes and no. Yes and no, sir. 

If you're simply comparing costs, yes, the first phase 

is more in line with the costs that were presented in 

previous proceedings, 6 million. The savings are based 

on smaller megawatts, so again, probably very 

comparable. 

Again, but I think all of the phases that 

we're presenting in this proceeding are identical to the 

fundamental principles that were used to approve those 

smaller cost, smaller savings type projects, since the 

goal is, are you in essence holding the customer 

harmless because you're able to fund the recovery of the 

project costs with achieved fuel savings. And the 

Commission is allowing the recovery over whatever period 
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those savings are sufficient to cover the costs so that 

it's collected as quickly as possible and the full 

100 percent of the savings can accrue to customers as 

quickly as possible. 

COMMISSIONER CARTER: Madam Chair. 

But we're talking about a significantly less 

amount of money in this process here, though; right? 

I'm kind of zeroing in on this Phase 1 and 2 in terms of 

the megawatts that would be provided and the savings. 

Do you understand what I'm trying to get here? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER CARTER: It seems inconsistent -- 

excuse me for a moment. Let me just kind of finish my 

thought pattern here. It seems more consistent with -- 

particularly as we look at Exhibit 28, it seems more 

consistent with the projects that were within the 

confines from prior orders or the prior applications of 

this Item 10 than the proposal as it's currently 

iterated. 

THE WITNESS: Well, I don't agree. I think 

that -- let's look at the circumstances in each of those 

cases as compared to ours. It was a capital investment 

that was being made in a generating facility. It was a 

capital investment that had a useful life far longer 

than the recovery period awarded. It was a capital 
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investment whose -- it was a capital investment that, if 

undertaken, would create savings, fossil fuel savings 

far superior to -- far greater than the costs that would 

be necessary to achieve those savings. 

In each of those previous cases, the utilities 

were being monitored from an earnings surveillance 

perspective, so the Commission, the staff, and the 

intervenors all knew what the range of reasonableness 

was. So that's the same. 

The utilities would have known that these 

projects were being contemplated and would have to 

schedule them accordingly, especially St. Lucie. You 

would have to plan for an outage. So in that case, they 

could have planned for a base rate proceeding if that 

was the intent of the Commission. 

So every single one of those factors that 

existed for every one of those cases exists here today 

with this case. 

COMMISSIONER CARTER: Are you saying this is 

identical to the other cases? Because I don't read it 

that way. 

THE WITNESS: I certainly do. 

COMMISSIONER CARTER: No further questions. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Commissioner McMurrian, and 

then Commissioner Skop. 
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COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Thank you. 

Mr. Portuondo, in your opening statement or your 

summary, you mentioned that you wanted to make clear 

something about the weighted average cost of capital, 

and the way I have it is that the current average cost 

is not a guarantee over the entire recovery period. And 

I didn't quite get all of that, so could you elaborate 

on that for me? 

THE WITNESS: I sure can. Typically what's 

done is, the Commission will take testimony in a base 

rate proceeding, and they will establish the common 

equity cost rate. 

proceeding is then applied prospectively to any 

pass-through clause where capital investments are being 

recovered. So it becomes applicable to your 

environmental clause, your energy efficiency cost 

recovery clause, and the fuel clause or capacity clause 

to the extent you have a return that's being recovered 

in those clauses. 

And the cost rate authorized in that 

The next time the Commission changes the 

reasonable weighted average cost of capital in the next 

base rate proceeding or show cause proceeding, then I 

would expect the same thing to occur, given history. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Okay. Thank you. I 

did have a couple others. In cross by Mr. Twomey, there 
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was discussion about when customers see benefits with 

respect to your project, and I remember that earlier 

when we were talking to Mr. Lawton, there was a 

discussion about that the customers would get the 

benefits after the first ten years. And I may be 

confusing something, but I wonder if you can help me 

sort of get that straight. 

THE WITNESS: Sure. Because we are 

accomplishing this total uprate in three phases because 

of the three outages that are already scheduled, the 

first outage is this fall in 2007, where the MUR project 

will go in. So that asset will become commercial, as 

Mr. Twomey indicated, in the November-December time 

frame of '07. So the benefits of those 12 megawatts 

begin to accrue in 2008 and beyond. 

The costs to recover that MUR, given the small 

nature, as Commissioner Carter indicated, is not greater 

than the expected savings in that one year from the 

12 megawatts. So customers will see a reduction in 

their -- all other things being equal, in their factor 

for fuel in 2008 because there are more savings than 

there are costs being recovered. 

COMMISSIONER TEW: I know I should have 

probably asked this of Mr. Lawton, and we're through 

with Mr. Lawton, but can you help me remember why he 
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might say that after the first ten years is when the 

customers would see the benefit? 

THE WITNESS: Sure, and I can. It has to do 

with Phase 2 and Phase 3. The savings for Phase 2 and 

Phase 3 are not sufficient to pay for the costs and 

still leave savings available to customers until the -- 

what we hope to be the ten-year period. Once that 

ten-year period is complete, then they get 100 percent 

of the savings. 

Now, having said that, even within that 

ten-year period, there could be two, three, four years 

where you get some savings, but not huge like you will 

get following that ten-year period. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: And that would depend 

on the actual amount of costs that are put through the 

clause in any given year, and then the savings on the 

fuel side? 

THE WITNESS: Exactly. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: So is it correct to 

say that in 2008 there might be savings, but then there 

may be a gap of possibly up to ten years where there 

wouldn't be savings to customers in those given years, 

and then the savings would pick up again? Is that where 

the ten years -- 

THE WITNESS: Correct. That could be an 
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outcome. Another outcome could be that they get a small 

amount of savings in every year. It will all depend on 

the projected savings, the cost of oil, the cost of gas. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: And I did have one 

more, Chairman. Earlier when Mr. McWhirter was asking 

you a question about Table 2 under Mr. Pollock's 

Exhibit, JP-2, and he asked you about the Crystal River 

3 uprate, I guess in 2002, and you said that it didn't 

comply with Item 10. And I just wanted to ask you why 

didn't it apply with Item 10. 

THE WITNESS: Well, one of the things that the 

Commission requires under Item 10 is that you prove up 

the fuel savings. As I was asked yesterday in direct, 

we will present to the Commission a schedule, an exhibit 

and testimony showing the savings, and we will be 

running the models to quantify those savings. 

My recollection of the type of modification 

that was being made in that particular uprate was not 

conducive to being able to present that kind of evidence 

to the Commission. So my recommendation to management 

was that it did not meet the tests under Item 10, 

because I could not demonstrate the savings to offset 

the costs. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Commissioner Skop. 
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COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you, Madam Chair. 

Again, I have some questions along the lines that 

Mr. McWhirter brought on cross-examination. Again, he 

raised a point that escaped my attention, and 

Commissioner McMurrian also brought that point home a 

little bit. But I would like to draw your attention 

also to the prior uprate that was done on CR3. 

just want to make sure for my own knowledge -- and 

again, I'm having trouble at times hearing all the way 

down here on the end. 

2003; is that correct? 

And I 

But that uprate was performed in 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: And I noticed that in that 

table, page 7 of JP-2 -- and I don't know if you have 

that before you. 

THE WITNESS: This is of my rebuttal 

testimony? 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: No, it's JP-2. It's 

another table that was referenced in Mr. Pollock's. And 

I can speak to the point without reference to the 

exhibit, because it was for a different witness's 

testimony. 

identified as a stretch uprate, and it was basically 

.9 percent with 24 megawatts of increased generation. 

But that uprate in that exhibit was 

And I'm curious for two points, one of which 
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was raised by Mr. McWhirter, and the other one raised by 

Commissioner McMurrian. Having been identified as a 

stretch uprate, which is basically what the Turkey Point 

one was, it just seems -- I don't know what went into 

that uprate. But again, out of all the uprates on those 

three pages, for a stretch or a MUR, that's the lowest 

percent uprate of any of those, so I'm kind of wondering 

what made it a stretch uprate, given the fact that the 

percentage was the smallest of any that I see on that 

paper. Do you have any explanation as to that, of what 

was done with that uprate? 

THE WITNESS: No, sir, I do not. I don't know 

how the NR -- I'm assuming this is an NRC document. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Yes, sir. 

THE WITNESS: And how they evaluate something 

being stretch versus not a stretch, no. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. Moving on to that 

point where you mentioned that this project was 

recovered through the base rates, you mentioned in 

response to Commissioner McMurrian it was because you 

didn't feel that it qualified under Item 10 to the 

extent that you could not quantify the fuel cost savings 

associated with that. Is that correct? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: But I think you admit that 
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any additional nuclear generation would displace fuel 

savings; correct? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, but I have to be able to 

bring that evidence to the Commission. I just -- take 

my word for it, I don't think it's going to fly. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: So how in the instant case 

are you able to identify that when in the past you 

weren't able to do that for an uprate, which is an 

uprate, which is an uprate? 

THE WITNESS: The -- my understanding was that 

the modeling for that 24 megawatts, we were not able for 

some reason -- and again, I take what's presented to me. 

My first question to them is, "Prove it up to me." And 

what I was being told was that there was a problem with 

being able to model those savings, and therefore I 

rejected it. 

Here in the instant case, I was presented by 

Mr. Waters the analysis, the runs of the PROSYM model 

that supports this savings calculation. So in this case 

I said, "Okay. I do have evidence. I can show the 

models. I' 

For some reason, running of the models was not 

capturing that uprate differential. I don't know why. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP:  So as a follow-up, you 

can't quantify the avoided cost of fuel savings based on 
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24 additional megawatts of nuclear under an uprate as 

opposed to what you would have to otherwise generate via 

a fossil fuel? 

THE WITNESS: You know, I wish I knew all the 

particulars, but I don't. You know, we're able to 

quantify the MUR, which is 12 megawatts. They presented 

that to us. This particular case, you know, I regret I 

don't have the particulars of why they couldn't do it. 

I just know that if they can't bring it to me, I reject 

it. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. And finally, with 

respect to that uprate that was performed -- again, I 

think we've belabored the point between how can you 

quantify an MUR of 12 megawatts and come forward versus 

having 24 megawatts previously and not being able to do 

the same thing, but I won't belabor that point. 

With respect to the uprate that was performed 

in 2002, which again escaped my diligent reading until 

it was brought forth, is any part of that stretch uprate 

-- and I assume they only have one reactor there. It's 

not like Turkey Point where they have two, and it's not 

like Port St. Lucie where they have two or three, or 

actually two. Is any part of that uprate redundant to 

what's being proposed now in terms of what has been 

granted under the need determination? 
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THE WITNESS: No, sir. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: And did that uprate of the 

24 megawatts, is that reflected in the 900 megawatts 

that's shown for the premodification of the existing 

reactor plant? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Commissioners, any other 

questions at this time? No. Are there questions from 

staff? 

MS. BENNETT: Yes, Madam Chair. Thank you. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. BENNETT: 

Q. Mr. Portuondo, we discussed earlier that the 

project, the useful life of the project will be until 

2036, but the savings, the costs will be collected from 

the customers in the first ten years, approximately; is 

that correct? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. I need to talk a little bit about the federal 

tax period and deferred taxes. The federal tax period 

for recovery of all the assets associated with the CR3 

uprate project is 15 years; is that correct? 

A .  Yes, it is. 

Q. So PEF's proposed recovery period of ten years 
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or less for the investment in the CR3 uprate project is 

less than the tax life of these assets; is that correct? 

A.  That is correct, and it is consistent with all 

past approved projects under Item 10. 

Q. Mr. Young is going to hand you a document 

entitled "Deferred Tax Impact of Different Recovery 

Periods," which was Late-filed Exhibit Number 2, and 

that would be identified as Hearing I.D. No. 24. 

(Exhibit 24 was marked for identification.) 

BY MS. BENNETT: 

Q. And do you recognize this schedule? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Did you or someone under your supervision 

prepare this schedule in response to a question during 

your July 24th deposition? 

A.  Yes. 

Q. To your knowledge, is this schedule true and 

accurate? 

A .  Yes. 

Q. Are there any changes that you're aware of 

that need to be made to this schedule? 

A .  Not that I'm aware of. 

Q. To the extent that the recoverable life of an 

asset is less than the tax life of the asset, would you 

agree that there would be a detrimental impact on 
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deferred taxes? 

A. Detrimental impact on the weighted average 

cost of capital, yes. 

Q. Okay. Yes. And did PEF attempt to quantify 

the impact on deferred taxes if its proposal for 

recovery periods is accepted by the Commission? 

A. No, we did not. 

Q. If PEF's recovery of the investment in the CR3 

uprate project is spread over the expected useful life 

of the uprate assets, such treatment would preserve the 

value of the deferred taxes for the benefit of the 

ratepayers; is this correct? 

A. If I could restate that, if the recoverable 

life is greater than the tax life, it would create a 

benefit to rate base through a lower weighted average 

cost of capital. 

Q. Okay. And if PEF's recovery of the investment 

in the CR3 uprate project is spread over the expected 

useful life of the uprate assets, that will leave more 

savings that will lower the fuel factor to customers; is 

that correct? 

A. Could you repeat that? 

Q. Sure. If PEF's recovery of the investment in 

the CR3 uprate project is spread over the expected 

useful life of the uprate assets, that will leave more 
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savings that will lower the fuel factor to customers; is 

this correct? 

A. That is correct. On an annual basis, that is 

correct. Over the long term or over the useful life, 

because of the carrying charges on the uncollected 

balance, it would be no different than in base rates. 

They would end up paying more than what we've presented 

here today. 

Q. Yesterday you were in the room when Mr. Waters 

testified, and he deferred some questions to you; is 

that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I remember those questions. Do you recall 

Mr. Waters talking about the recovery method of the 

Bartow repowering project? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Would you agree that the recovery of the 

investment in the Bartow repowering will be through base 

rates? 

A. Absolutely. 

Q. Hines Unit 4 is expected to come online in 

December of this year; is that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When Hines Unit 4 comes online later this 

year, would you agree that recovery of the investment in 
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Hines Unit 4 will be through base rates? 

A .  That is correct. Both of those power plants 

were constructed to meet a capacity need, and the 

difference between those and the project before you 

today is that the fuel savings that those projects may 

provide to the system in no way are greater than the 

cost of those projects, so that's test 2 of Item 10, do 

the fuel savings -- are the fuel savings greater than 

the costs expended to achieve. 

Q. Okay. Would you turn to page 29 of your 

rebuttal testimony? And I want to refer you to lines 3 

through 6. 

A .  Yes, ma'am. 

Q. On lines 3 through 6, you discuss the cost 

estimate of the CR3 uprate project with and without 

AFUDC; is that correct? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. And AFUDC stands for? 

A.  Allowance for funds used during construction. 

Q. Also in this passage, you mention a Late-filed 

Deposition Exhibit 3; is this correct? 

A.  Yes. 

Q. And Late-filed Deposition Exhibit 3 was filed 

in response to an OPC inquiry during your May 23rd 

deposition; is that correct? 
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A. Correct. 

MS. BENNETT: I'm having an exhibit Mr. Young 

is passing out that is the late-filed exhibit. And, 

Madam Chairman, could we have that marked as Exhibit 29? 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: We will mark as Exhibit 29, 

and can you give me a description? 

MS. BENNETT: Besides the long sheet, it is 

the Excel spreadsheet showing AFUDC, Late-filed Exhibit 

3 .  And as a note, Madam Chair, this exhibit will take 

care of the problem I talked with you about at the 

break. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: All right. That will work. 

(Exhibit 29 was marked for identification.) 

BY MS. BENNETT: 

Q. Mr. Portuondo, do you recognize this schedule? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Would you turn to the second page? 

A.  Yes. 

Q. Does this schedule show the amount of return 

PEF projects it will earn on the CR3 uprate project if 

it is allowed to recover the investment through the fuel 

cost recovery clause? 

A. It does. There's a section called "Return, I' 

and it shows the annual return expected through the 

recovery period. 
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Q. And what is the total amount of the return PEF 

projects to earn on the CR3 uprate project if it's 

allowed to recover the investment through the fuel cost 

recovery clause? 

A. I've got to add it up. 

The total return, debt and equity, is 

291 million. 

Q. Thank you. And then one final line of 

questioning. 

is releasing its second quarter earnings results today; 

is that correct? 

It's my understanding that Progress Energy 

A. Today is the 9th. Yes. 

Q. And Bob McGehee is the chairman and chief 

executive officer of Progress Energy; is that correct? 

A. Yes, he is. 

Q. And when Mr. McGehee mentions core businesses 

with respect to Progress Energy, he is referring to its 

utilities, Progress Energy Florida and Progress Energy 

Carolinas; is that correct? 

A. That is correct. 

MS. BENNETT: Mr. Young is passing out an 

exhibit. I would like that marked as Exhibit 30, and 

let's call it Progress Energy Second Quarter Results. 

(Exhibit 30 was marked for identification.) 

BY MS. BENNETT: 
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Q. Mr. Portuondo, are you aware that Progress 

Energy posts company-related press releases on its 

webs it e ? 

A .  Yes, I am. 

Q. Okay. And have you seen this press release 

regarding Progress Energy's second quarter earnings? 

A .  Not this one. 

Q. The page that was just handed to you was 

printed from Progress Energy's website this morning. 

you see the third paragraph on this page that begins, 

the quote, "Our core businesses continue to perform 

we 1 1 I' ? 

A. Yes, I do. 

62 9 

Do 

Q. Would you read that paragraph aloud into the 

record? 

A.  "'Our core businesses continued to perform 

well in the second quarter,' said Bob McGehee, chairman 

and chief executive officer of Progress Energy. 'With 

the sale of our energy contracts with the Georgia 

cooperatives we have completed the last major step in 

our plan to focus our capital and our attention on 

meeting the needs of our two growing utilities. We have 

completed this transition ahead of schedule. More 

important, the results of this initiative have produced 

a stronger balance sheet, enhanced credit ratings, and 
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have contributed to strong ongoing earnings growth. We 

believe these actions firmly support our investment 

objective of offering a reasonable total return with low 

volatility. ' I' 

Q. Thank you. When Mr. McGehee states that the 

company has completed the last major step in our plan, 

he's referring to Progress Energy's initiative to divest 

its nonregulated businesses; is that correct? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. Would you agree with Mr. McGehee's remarks 

that after having successfully divested its nonregulated 

businesses, Progress Energy is now a better position to 

fund capital projects of its regulated utilities, 

including Progress Energy Florida? 

A .  Yes. It has helped in funding the upcoming 

capital initiatives of the two utilities. 

MS. BENNETT: Thank you. I have no further 

questions. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Mr. Walls, redirect? 

MR. WALLS: Yes, very briefly. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. WALLS: 

Q. Mr. Portuondo, if you would turn back to JP 

Exhibit -- this JP being Jeff Pollock, not Javier 

Portuondo. And that's JP Exhibit 2. 
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A. JP-2, page -- 

Q. Yes. If you look at page 7 of 8, where the 

Crystal River 3 uprate was identified in item 90. 

A .  Yes, sir. 

Q. And you see in the second column it had 24? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And if you look back to page 4 of 8, that 

second column is entitled "MWT." Do you see that? 

A .  I do. 

Q. If you go to the first page of the document, 

page 1 of 8, the second sentence says, "The NRC has 

completed 102 such reviews to date, resulting in a gain 

of approximately 12,615 MWT (megawatts thermal) or 4,216 

MWE (megawatts electric) at existing plants." Do you 

see that? 

A .  I do. 

Q. So if we look back at the uprate for CR3 on 

page 8 at 90, item 90, where it says 24 MWT, how many 

megawatts electric is that? 

A.  Rounded, 8 megawatts. 

MR. WALLS: Thank you. No further questions. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Okay. Let's take up the 

exhibits. I have 24, 29, and 30 offered by staff. 

MS. BENNETT: Yes, Chairman. We would offer 

24, 29, and 30 into the record. 
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CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Any objections? 

MR. WALLS: No objections. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: No objections? Seeing none, 

we will enter Exhibits 24, 29, and 30. 

(Exhibits 24, 29, and 30 were admitted into 

the record.) 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Any other matters for this 

witness? Seeing none, the witness is excused. Thank 

you, Mr. Portuondo. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Okay. As noted earlier, 

Mr. Portuondo is our last witness. Are there any other 

matters that we should address while we are all gathered 

here together before we adjourn? 

Ms. Bennett. 

MS. BENNETT: I would note for the record that 

the critical dates for the remainder of this docket are 

that the hearing transcript will be due August 14th, the 

briefs August the 28th. And the briefs, according to 

the Prehearing Order, are not to exceed 40 pages, 

summaries not to exceed 100 words for each position. 

The recommendation by staff will be September 27th, and 

the post-hearing agenda October the 9th. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Any questions about the dates 

that Ms. Bennett has relayed to us? No questions. 
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Okay. Any other matters? 

Seeing none, Ms. Bennett, let me confirm, on 

my exhibit list, Exhibit 25. 

MS. BENNETT: Exhibit 25 we did not enter into 

the record, nor did we enter Exhibit 23 into the record. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Okay. That's what I had, but 

I wanted to make sure. 

Okay. Commissioner Argenziano. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I don't know if this 

is appropriate, but I found out during our meeting that 

President Ken Pruitt's son died last night, and I just 

wanted to express my condolences, and maybe that we all 

just think about his family today. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Absolutely. Thank you, 

Commissioner. All of our, I know, thoughts go out to 

Senator Pruitt, President Pruitt and his family and 

friends. Thank you. 

And with that, we are adjourned. 

(Proceedings concluded at 1:15 p.m.) 
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STATE OF FLORIDA: 
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I, MARY ALLEN NEEL, Registered Professional 

Reporter, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

proceedings were taken before me at the time and place 

therein designated; that my shorthand notes were 

thereafter translated under my supervision; and the 

foregoing pages numbered 550 through 633 are a true and 
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Office of Public Counsel - Senior Legislative Analyst 

In my current position, I perform financial and accounting analysis and reviews, and provide 
testimony, as required, involving utility filings before the Florida Public Service Commission on 
behalf of the Citizens of the State of Florida. 

1981 to February, 2005 - Florida Public Service Commission 

2000 to February, 2005 

Public Utilities Supervisor - File and Suspend Rate Case Section, Bureau of Rate Filings, 
Division of Economic Regulation 

In this capacity I supervised 5 to 8 regulatory professionals. This section performed financial, 
accounting, engineering and rate review and evaluation of rate proceedings for large water and 
wastewater utilities, as well as electric and gas utilities regulated by the Commission. The types 
of cases included file and suspend rate cases, limited proceedings, overearning investigations, 
annual report reviews, service availability and tariff filings, rulemaking, and customer 
complaints. The section reviewed utility filings, requested and reviewed Commission staff 
audits, and generated and analyzed discovery requests. I coordinated and prepared staff 
recommendations to the Commission for agenda conferences. I reviewed the analyses and 
written documentation of all analysts in this section for proper regulatory theory, grammar and 
accuracy. I also made presentations to customer groups at Commission staff customer meetings 
for the rate proceedings to which I was assigned. We presented recommendations at agenda 
conferences, providing responses to comments and questions by other parties and 
Commissioners. I also prepared and presented testimony, and assisted in the preparation of 
cross-examination questions for depositions and formal hearings. Additionally, I provided 
training in regulatory theory for new staff and provided training on regulatory and accounting 
issues for other analysts at the Commission. 
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1989 - 2000 

Regulatory Analyst Supervisor, Accounting Section, Bureau of Economic Regulation, Division 
of Water and Wastewater 

I supervised 5-7 regulatory accounting analysts. This section performed the same job activities 
as above specifically for the larger Commission regulated Class A and B water and wastewater 
companies. 

1983 - 1989 
Regulatory Analyst - Accounting Bureau, Division of Water and Wastewater 

As an accounting analyst, I performed the same job activities as described above for water and 
wastewater companies in a non-supervisory role. 

1981 - 1983 

Public Utilities Auditor, Division of Auditing and Financial Analysis 

As an auditor in the Tallahassee district of the Commission, I performed financial and 
accounting audits of electric, gas, telephone, water and wastewater utilities under the 
Commission’s jurisdiction. 

Education and Professional Licenses 

1981 Bachelor of Science with a major in accounting from Florida State University 

1983 Received a Certified Public Accountant license in Florida 

List of Cases in which Testimony was Submitted 

Dockets Before the Florida Public Service Commission: 

0601 62-E1 - Petition by Progress Energy Florida, Inc. to recover modular cooling tower costs 
through the Environmental Cost recovery clause. (filed testimony stipulated into record) 

050958-E1 - Petition for approval of new environmental program for cost recovery through 
Environmental Cost Recovery Clause by Tampa Electric Company. (testified at hearing) 

060658-E1 - Petition on Behalf of Citizens of the State of Florida to require Progress Energy 
Florida, Inc. to Refund Customers $143 million. (filed testimony stipulated into record) 

060362-E1 - Petition to Recover Natural Gas Storage Project Costs through Fuel Cost Recovery 
Clause, by Florida Power & Light Company. (testified at hearing) 
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050045-E1 - Petition for Rate Increase by Florida Power & Light Company. (filed testimony, 
deposed, case settled prior to hearing) 

991643-SU - Application for Increase in Wastewater Rates in Seven Springs System in Pasco 
County by Aloha Utilities, Inc. (testified at hearing) 

971663-WS - Application of Florida Cities Water Company, Inc. for a limited proceeding to 
recover environmental litigation costs. (all testimony and exhibits stipulated into record without 
hearing) 

940847-WS - Application of Ortega Utility Company for increased water and wastewater rates. 
(testified at hearing) 

91 1082-WS - Water and Wastewater Rule Revisions to Chapter 25-30, Florida Administrative 
Code. (testified at hearing) 

88 1030-WU - Investigation of Sunshine Utilities of Central Florida rates for possible over 
earnings. (testified at hearing) 

8501 5 1 -WS - Application of Marco Island Utilities, Inc. for increased water and wastewater 
rates. (testified at hearing) 

85003 1 -WS - Application of Orange/Osceola Utilities, Inc. for increased water and wastewater 
rates in Osceola County (testified at hearing) 

840047-WS - Application of Poinciana Utilities, Inc. for increased water and wastewater rates 
(testified at hearing) 

Cases Before the Division of Administrative Hearings: 

97-2485RU - Aloha Utilities, Inc., and Florida Waterworks Association, Inc., Petitioners, vs. 
Public Service Commission, Respondents, and Citizens of the State of Florida, Office of Public 
Counsel, Intervenors (deposed and testified at hearing) 
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DANIEL J. LAWTON 
PRI N CI PAL, D WE RS I FI ED UTI LlTY C 0 N S U LTANTS , I N C . 

B.A. ECONOMICS, MERRIMACK COLLEGE 
M.A.  ECONOMICS, TUFTS UNIVERSITY 

Prior to  beginning his own consulting practice, Diversified Utility 
Consultants, Inc., in 1986, Mr. Lawton had been in the utility consulting 
business with a national engineering and consulting firm. In addition, Mr. 
Lawton has been employed as a senior analyst and statistical analyst with the 
Department of Public Service of Minnesota. Prior to  Mr. Lawton's involvement 
in utility regulation and consulting he taught economics, econometrics, statistics 
and computer science at Doane College. 

Mr. Lawton has conducted numerous financial and cost of capital studies 
on electric, gas and telephone utilities for various interveners before local, state 
and federal regulatory bodies. In addition, Mr. Lawton has provided studies, 
analyses, and expert testimony on statistics, econometrics, accounting, fore- 
casting, and cost of service issues. Other projects in which Mr. Lawton has 
been involved include rate design and analyses for electric, gas and telephone 
utilities. Mr. Lawton has developed software systems, databases and manage- 
ment systems for cost of service analyses. 

In addition, Mr. Lawton has developed and reviewed numerous forecasts 
of energy and demand used for utility generation expansion studies as well as 
municipal financing. Mr. Lawton has represented numerous municipalities as a 
negotiator in utility related matters. Such negotiations ranged from the settle- 
ment of electric rate cases to  the negotiation of provisions in purchase power 
contracts. 

A list of cases in which Mr. Lawton has provided testimony is attached. 
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EL83-24-000 Cost Allocation, Rate Design 

UTILITY RATE PROCEEDINGS IN WHICH 
TESTIMONY HAS BEEN PRESENTED BY DANIEL J. LAWTON 

Florida Power & Light 

Southern California Edison 

JURIS DI CTION/COM PANY I DOCKET NO. I TESTIMONY TOPIC 

ER84-379-000 

ER82-427-000 Forecastina 

Cost o f  Capital, Rate Design, Cost of Service 

ALASKA REGULATORY COMMISSION 

I I 

Louisiana Power & Light 

Louisiana Power & Light 

I 1 Beluga Pipe Line Company I P-04-81 I Cost of Capital 

U - I  5 6 8 4  

U - I  651 8 

Cost o f  Capital, Depreciation 

Interim Rate Relief 

I I 

FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION 

I I 

Interstate Power Co. 

Montana Dakota Utilities 

New ULM Telephone Company 

Norman Countv TeleDhone 

Alabama Power Company I ER83-369-000 I Cost o f  Capital 
I I 

EO01 /GR-81-345 Financial 

G009/GR-81-448 Financial, Cost of Capital 

P419/GR81767 Financial 

P420/GR-81-230 Rate Desian. Cost of  Cati tal 

Arizona Public Service Company I ER84-450-000 I Cost of  Capital 
I I .I 

Northwestern Bell P421/GR80911 Rate Design, Forecasting 

_ _ _ _ _  _ _  - -~ - 
LOUISIANA 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
I I 

Continental Telephone I P407/GR-81-700 I Cost of Capital 
I I 

I N o r l h e r n t e s  Power I G002/GR80556 I Statistical Forecastina, Cost of CaDital I 
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NORTH CAROLINA - 
UTILITIES COMMISSION 

I I 
I North Carolina Natural Gas I G-21, Sub 235  I Forecasting, Cost of Capital, Cost of  Service 

OKLAHOMA 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

I I 
Arkansas Oklahoma Gas Corporation 200300088 Cost of Capital 

200600285 Cost of  Capital 
Public Service Company of Oklahoma 

I I 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF 
INDIANA 

I I 
I Knknmo Gas & Fuel ComDanv I 38096 I Cost of  CaDital 

I ,  _ _ - - -  - - ~  

PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF 
' NEVADA 

I I 

Nevada Bell 99-901 7 Cost of  Capital 

Nevada Power Company 99-4005 Cost of  Capital 

Sierra Pacific Power ComDanv 99-4002 Cost of  Capital . .  
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF 

UTAH 
r I I 

I Pacif icom I 04-035-42 I Cost of  Capital 
SOUTH CAROLINA 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

I Piedmont MuniciDal Power I 82-352-E I Forecasting 
I I - 

PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF 
TEXAS 

I I 
Central Power & Light Company 

Central Power & Light Company 

6375  

9561 

Central Power & Light Company 

Central Power & Light Company 

Central Power & Light Company 

7 5 6 0  

8646 

1 2 8 2 0  

Central Power & Light Company 14965  

Central Power & Light Company 21  528  

I 9945 
El Paso Electric Company 

Cost of  Carital. Financial lntearitv 

Cost of  Capital, Revenue Requirements 

Deferred Accounting 

Rate Design, Excess Capacity 

STP Adj. Cost of Capital, Post Test-year 
adjustments, Rate Case Expenses 

Salary & Wage Exp., Self-Ins. Reserve, Plant 
Held for Future use, Post Test Year Adjustments, 
Demand Side Manaaement, Rate Case EXD. 

Securitization of  Regulatory Assets 

Cost o f  Capital, Revenue Requirements, 
Decommissioning Funding 

El Paso Electric Company 1 2 7 0 0  Cost of  Capital, Rate Moderation Plan, CWIP, 
Rate Case ExDenses 
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Cost of Service, Rate Base, Revenues, Cost of 
Capital, Quality of Service 

Cost Allocation 

Entergy Gulf States Incorporated 
16705 

21111 Entergy Gulf States Incorporated 

Entergy Gulf States Incorporated 21 984 Unbundling 

22344 Capital Structure Entergy Gulf States Incorporated 

22356 Unbundling Entergy Gulf States Incorporated 

Entergy Gulf States Incorporated 

Gulf States Utilities Company 

Gulf States Utilities Company 

Gulf States Utilities Company 

Gulf States Utilities Company 

24336 Price t o  Beat 

5560 Cost o f  Service 

6525 

6755/7195 

8702 

Cost o f  Capital, Financial Integrity 

Cost o f  Service, Cost o f  Capital, Excess Capacity 

Deferred Accounting, Cost o f  Capital, Cost of 
Service 

Af f i I ia t e Transact ion 

Section 63, Affiliate Transaction 

Deferred acctng., self-Ins. reserve, contra 
AFUDC adj., River Bend Plant specifically 
assignable t o  Louisiana, River Bend Decomm., 
Cost o f  Capital, Financial Integrity, Cost of 
Service, Rate Case Expenses 

Rate Case Expenses 

Forecasting 

Stranded costs 

Debt Service Coverage, Rate Design 

Cost o f  Service 

Gulf States Utilities Company 

Gulf States Utilities Company 

Gulf States Utilities Company 

10894 

11 793 

12852 

GTE Southwest, Inc. 15332 

6765 Houston Lighting & Power 

Houston Lighting & Power 

Lower Colorado River Authoritv 

18465 

8 4 0 0  

5301 Southwestern Electric Power 
ComDanv 

Southwestern Electric Power 
Company 

Southwestern Electric Power 
Company 

Southwestern Bell Telephone 
Company 

Southwestern Bell Telephone 

4628 Rate Design, Financial Forecasting 

24449 Price t o  Beat Fuel Factor 

8585 Yellow Pages 

18509 Rate G r o w  Re-Classification 



Company 

Southwestern Public Service Company 13456 

Southwestern Public Service Company 11  520 

Southwestern Public Service Company 141  7 4  

Southwestern Public Service Company 14499 

Southwestern Public Service ComDanv I 1951 2 

Texas-New Mexico Power Company 9491 

Texas-New Mexico Power Company 1 0 2 0 0  

Texas-New Mexico Power Company 17751 

Texas-New Mexico Power Company 

Texas Utilities Electric Company 9 3 0 0  

Texas Utilities Electric Company 11 735  

TXU Electric Company 21 527 

21 112  

West Texas Utilities Company I 7 5 1 0  
I 

West Texas Utilities Company I 13369 
RAILROAD COMMl 

TEXAS 
I 

Energas Company I 5793 
I 

Energas Company 

Energas Company 9002-9  135 

Lone Star Gas Company 

Lone Star Gas Company-Transmission 8 9 3 5  

Southern Union Gas Company 6 9 6 8  

Southern Union Gas Company 8 8 7 8  

Texas Gas Service ComDanv 9 4 6 5  

TXU Lone Star Pipeline I 8 9 7 6  

TXU-Gas Distribution 9145-91 51 

TXU-Gas Distribution 1 9 4 0 0  
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InterruDtible Rates I 

TUCO Acquisition 

Fuel Reconciliation 

Cost of Capital, Revenue Requirements, 
Prudence 

Prudence 

Rate Case Expenses 

Acquisition r iskdmerger benefits 

Cost of Service, Cost of Capital 

Revenue Reauirements 

Securitization of Regulatory Assets I 
Cost of Capital, Cost of  Service 

Rate Design - 
ION OF 

Cost of Canital I 

Cost of Canital I 

Cost of Capital, Revenues, Allocation 

Rate Design, Cost of Capital, Accumulated Depr. 

Implementation of Billing Cycle Adjustment 

Rate Relief 

Test Year Revenues, Joint and Common Costs 

Cost of Capital, Cost of Service, Allocation 

Cost of Capital, Capital Structure 

Cost of Capital, Transport Fee, Cost Allocation, 

Cost of Service, Allocation, Rate Base, Cost of 
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1 Westar Transmission Company 1 489215168 I Cost of Capital, Cost of Service 
I I 

1 K N Fnnrnv Ina. I I Cost of Capital I 
I.. ... -..- .=,, . -. I I 

HOUSTON . -  

CITY COUNCIL 
I I 

Southern Union Gas 

I City of San Benito, et. al. vs. PGE Gas I 96-12-7404 I Fairness Hearing I 

I City of Wharton, et al vs. Houston I 96-016613 I Franchise fees I 

GV 304,700 Mandamus City of Round Rock, et al vs. Railroad 
Commission of Texas et  al 





- Year 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
201 0 
201 1 
201 2 
201 3 
2014 
201 5 
2016 
201 7 
201 8 
201 9 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
203 1 
2032 
2033 
2034 
2035 
2036 

Total 

NPV 
Difference 
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OPC'S QUANTIFICATION OF 
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES AND 
REVENUE REQUIREMENTS OF 

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 
DUE TO CORRECTION OF 

DEPRECIATION TIMING THROUGH 2036 
(Millions of Dollars) 

PEF 
Proposed . Corrected 

Deferred Tax Deferred Tax 
(a) 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$2.39 
-$I -66 
-$0.04 
43.54 
$2.68 
$4.03 
$5.24 
$6.22 
$7.02 
$7.51 
$7.73 
$7.49 
$4.35 
$2.05 
39.44 
-$9.36 
-$8.28 
-$7.27 
-$4.98 
-$2.70 
-$2.70 
-$2.70 
-$2.70 
-$I .35 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$9.68 

(b) 
$0.00 
$0.00 
-$0.04 
-$I -76 
42.11 
-$6.99 
-$7.70 
-$6.35 
45-14 
-$4.16 
-$3.36 
-$2.87 
-$2.65 
-$2.61 
-$2.61 
-$2.61 
-$2.61 
-$2.54 
-$I .45 
-$0.44 
$1.85 
$4.13 
$4.13 
$4.13 
$4.13 
$5.48 
$6.83 
$6.83 
$6.83 
$6.83 
$6.83 
$0.00 

-$I 9.83 
-$29.50 

(c) 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.32 
40.22 
-$0.01 
-$0.47 
$0.35 
$0.53 
$0.69 
$0.82 
$0.93 
$0.99 
$1 -02 
$0.99 
$0.57 
$0.27 
-$I .24 
-$I .24 
-$I .09 
-$0.96 
-$0.66 
-$0.36 
-$0.36 
-$0.36 
-$0.36 
-$O. 18 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$1.28 

PEF 
Proposed Corrected 

Revenue Req. Revenue Req. 
(d) 

$0.00 
$0.00 
-$0.01 
-$0.23 
-$0.28 
-$0.92 
-$I .02 
-$0.84 
-$0.68 
-$0.55 
-$0.44 
-$0.38 
-$0.35 
-$0.34 
-$0.34 
-$0.34 
-$0.34 
-$0.33 
-$O. 19 
-$0.06 
$0.24 
$0.55 
$0.55 
$0.55 
$0.55 
$0.72 
$0.90 
$0.90 
$0.90 
$0.90 
$0.90 
$0.00 

42.62 
-$3.89 

SOURCES AND REFERENCES 
Column (a) 
Columns (b, d) : OPC's corrected depreciation through 2036. 
Column (c) 
NPV 

: PEF's response to OPC Interrogatory 12 spreadsheet line 95. 

: PEF's response to OPC Interrogatory 12 spreadsheet line 96. 
: NPV based on 8.1% as proposed by PEF. 





Year 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
201 0 
201 1 
201 2 
201 3 
2014 
201 5 
201 6 
201 7 
201 8 
201 9 
2020 
202 1 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
2031 
2032 
2033 
2034 
2035 
2036 

- 

Total 
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OPC'S QUANTIFICATION OF IMPACT ON NET SAVINGS 
DUE TO A REDUCED 7.5% OVERALL COST OF CAPITAL 

(Millions of Dollars) 

PEF's Proposed 
Fuel Revenue Net 

Savings Requirements Savings 
(a) 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$7.91 
$6.31 

$20.24 
$25.87 
$96.63 
$85.47 
$88.54 
$84.26 
$96.31 
$93.78 
$96.86 
$98.99 

$114.15 
$1 04.87 
$108.42 
$1 02.26 
$1 13.07 
$1 14.07 
$1 08.31 
$1 08.92 
$1 09.49 
$1 10.02 
$1 10.53 
$1 11.01 
$1 11.47 
$1 11.90 
$1 12.32 
$1 12.72 
$1 13.10 

$2,677.80 
Difference - Nominal 

NPV Total $706.23 
Difference - NPV 

(b) 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$7.20 
$1 -47 

$1 9.68 
$31.60 
$97.85 
$92.11 
$86.44 
$80.82 
$75.10 
$69.43 
$63.65 
$57.21 
$43.69 
$33.29 
$0.29 
$0.30 
$0.52 
$0.79 
$1 -04 
$1.39 
$1.76 
$1.48 
$1.53 
$1.76 
$1.98 
$2.03 
$2.08 
$2.13 
$2.18 

$780.79 

$353.61 

(c) 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.71 
$4.84 
$0.56 
45.73 
-$I  .22 
-$6.64 
$2.10 
$3.44 

$21.21 
$24.35 
$33.22 
$41.78 
$70.46 
$71.58 

$108.1 3 
$1 01.96 
$1 12.55 
$1 13.28 
$1 07.27 
$1 07.53 
$1 07.73 
$1 08.54 
$1 09.00 
$1 09.25 
$1 09.48 
$1 09.87 
$1 10.24 
$1 10.59 
$1 10.92 

$1,897.00 

$352.62 

Based On 7.5% ROR 
Revenue Net 

Requirements Savings 
(d) 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$6.87 
$1.15 

$1 9.68 
$31.81 
$75.21 
$71.90 
$68.68 
$65.51 
$62.26 
$59.07 
$55.79 
$51.86 
$40.76 
$32.34 
$0.83 
$0.84 
$0.99 
$1.20 
$1.33 
$1.55 
$1.59 
$1.64 
$1.69 
$1.83 
$1.98 
$2.03 
$2.08 
$2.13 
$2.18 

$666.78 

$298.68 

(e) 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$1.03 
$5.16 
$0.55 
45.94 
$21 -42 
$13.57 
$19.86 
$1 8.75 
$34.05 
$34.70 
$41 -07 
$47.13 
$73.39 
$72.53 

$107.59 
$101.43 
$1 12.08 
$1 12.86 
$106.98 
$107.37 
$107.89 
$108.38 
$108.84 
$109.1 8 
$1 09.48 
$109.87 
$1 10.24 
$1 10.59 
$1 10.92 

$2,011.02 
-$I  14.01 

$407.55 
454.93 

SOURCE AND REFERENCES 
Columns (a-c) 
Column (d & e) 

NPV 

: PEF's response to OPC Interrogatory 12 spreadsheet. 
: PEF's response to OPC Interrogatory 12 spreadsheet 
modified to reflect a 7.5% rate of return. 

: NPV based on 8.1% as proposed by PEF. 
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Revenue 
- Year Requirement 

2008 $7.20 
2009 $1 -47 
201 0 $19.68 
201 1 $31.60 
2012 $97.85 
2013 $92.1 1 
2014 $86.44 
201 5 $80.82 
201 6 $75.10 

(a) 

CUSTOMEWSHAREHOLDER CASH FLOW 
BENEFITS OF UPRATE PROPOSAL 
FOR THE PERIOD THROUGH 2016 

Fuel Customer Cumulative 
Savinqs Net Savings Net Savings 

$7.91 $0.71 $0.71 
$6.31 $4.84 $5.55 

$20.24 $0.56 $6.1 1 
$25.87 -$5.73 $0.38 

(b) (c) (d) 

$96.63 -$I  .22 -$0.84 
$85.47 -$6.64 -$7.48 
$88.54 $2.10 -$5.38 
$84.26 $3.44 -$I  .94 
$96.31 $21.21 $1 9.27 

Equity 
Return 

(e) 
$0.22 
$0.49 
$5.62 
$8.97 

$26.88 
$23.87 
$20.87 
$1 7.87 
$14.87 

Cumulative 
Equitv Return 

(f) 
$0.22 
$0.72 
$6.34 

$1 5.31 
$42.19 
$66.07 
$86.94 

$1 04.81 
$1 19.68 

SOURCE AND REFERENCES 
Columns (a-c) 
Column (d) 
Column (e) 

: PEF's response to OPC Interrogatory 12 spreadsheet. 
: Accumulation of Column (c). 
: PEF's response to Interrogatory 8 in Docket No. 060642-El. 
speadsheet "Debt-Equity Returns" cost of equity divided by 
grossed up return of 13.19% times average investment in 
PEF's response to OPC Interrogatory 12 spreadsheet in this case. 
OPC Interrogatory 12 spreadsheet in this case. 

Column ( f )  : Accumulation of Column (e). 
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150.00 

100.00 

50.00 

0 .oo 

(50.00) 

PEF'S PROPOSED TIMING OVER LIFE 

I 
I / 

I 1(9 
0 

2006 2009 2012 2015 2018 2021 2024 2027 2030 2033 2036 

Year 

--)- Fuel Savings Rev. Req. --A- Net Savings 



... ..... .................. . ....... ... ........ - .................. ...... _ - _ _  ...... .... ....... 



Docket No. 070052-El 
PEF Rate of Return ReDort 



I 

I 

I 

4 
I 

(I 

I 

I 
I 

I 



I 

I 

I 





I 

1 

I 
I 

'I 

I 

I 

I' 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I 

i 
I 

1 



I 



I 

1 

I 

I 

I 





1 

I 

I 
I 

I 

f 

I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

1 







, . ). ,....,.,.........,.,._...,,-.... ---,-.--I---- 







Docket No. 070052-El 
USNRC Power Uprates 

Page 1 of 8 
Exhibit NO. - (JP-2) 

Backgrounder 
Office of Public Affairs I 

II Telephone: 301/415-8200 E-mail: opa@nrc.gov 

Power Uprates for Nuclear Plants 
Background 

Utilities have been using power uprates since the 1970s as a way to increase the power output of 
their nuclearplants. The NRC has completed 102 such reviews to date, resultiig in a gain of 
approximately 12,650 MWt (megawatts thermal) or 4,216 MWe (megawatts electric) at existing 
plants (see Table 1). Collectively, an equivalent of about four nuclear power plant units has been 
gained through implementation of power uprates at existing plants. NRC licensees have 

another 2,841 MWt (947 W e )  to the nation's generating capacity. 
indicated they plan t o  ank fnr power iiprnten Over the next fniir yearn, that if qiprved, woiild add 

Discussion 

To increase the power output of a reactor, typically a more highly enriched uranium fuel is 
added. This enables the reactor to produce more thermal energy and therefore more steam, 
driving a turbine generator to produce electricity. In order to accomplish this, Eomponents such 
as pipes, valves, pumps, heat exchangers, electrical transformers and generators, must be able to 
accommodate the conditions that would exist at the higher power level. For example, a higher 
power level usually involves higher steam and water flow through the systems used in 
converting tte thermal power into electric power. These systems must be capable of 
accommodatmg the higher flows. 

In some instmces, licensees will modify and/or replace components in order to accommodate a 
higher power level. Depending on the desired increase in power level and original equipment 
design, this can involve major and costly modifications to the plant such as the replacement of 
main turbines. All of these factors must be analyzed by the licensee as part of B request for a 
power uprate, which is accomplished by amending the plant's operating license. The analyses 
must demonstrate that the proposed new configuration remains safe and that measures continue 
to be in place to protect the health and safety of the public. These analyses are reviewed by the 
NRC before a request for a power uprate is approved. 

Power uprates can be classified in three categories: (1) measurement uncertaitty recapture power 
uprates, (2) stretch power uprates, and (3) extended power uprates. 
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1) Measurement uncertainty recapture power uprates are power increases less than two 
percent and are achieved by using enhanced techniques for calculating reactor power. This 
involves the use of state-of-the-art devices to more precisely measure feedwater flow which is 
used to calculate reactor power. More precise measurements reduce the degree of uncertainty in 
the power level which is used by analysts to predict the ability of the reactor to be safely shut 
down under some accident conditions. 

2) Stretch power uprates are typically on the order of up to seven percent and usually involve 
changes to instrumentation settings. Stretch power uprates generally do not involve major plant 
modifications. This is especially true for boiling-water reactor plants. In some limited cases 
where plant equipment was operated near capacity prior to the power uprate, more substantial 
changes may be required. 

3) Extended power uprates are usually greater than stretch power uprates and have been 
approved for increases as high as 20 percent. Extended power uprates usually require significant 
modifications to major pieces of plant equipment such as the high pressure turbines, condensate 
pumps and motors, main generators, andor transformers. 

Review Process 

Power uprates are submitted to NRC as license amendment requests. The applications and 
reviews are complex and involve many areas of NRC including various technical divisions of the 
Office of Nudear Reactor Regulation and the Office of the General Counsel. Some reviews may 
also involve the Office of Nuclear Regulatory Research and the Advisory Committee on Reactor 
Safeguards. In evaluating a power uprate request, NRC reviews data and accicent analyses 
submitted by a licensee to confirm that the plant can operate safely at the highsr power level. 
Reviews of power uprate requests are a high priority and are therefore, being conducted on 
accelerated shedul es . 

Regulatory Issue Summary ( R I S )  2002-03, "Guidance on the Content of Measurement 
Uncertainty Recapture Power Uprate Applications," dated January 3 1,2002, covers analyses of 
the effect of the power uprate on things such as electrical equipment, major plant systems, and 
emergency operating procedures. The IUS outlines the staffs information needs for reviewing 
measurement uncertainty recapture power uprate applications and is intended to result in a more 
eficient and effective review process. Standardization of licensee's submittals, improvements in 
the quality of submittals, and more focused reviews by the staff could improve the timeliness of 
power uprate reviews. 

Based on results of its industry survey, NRC expects to receive only one stretch power uprate 
over the next five years. Therefore, NRC's efforts for improving the power uprate application 
and review processes initially focused on measurement uncertainty and extenced power upratcs. 
Efficiencies gained there will be applied to improve the stretch power uprate review process. 
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Reviews of extended power uprate applications were initially estimated to take up to 18 months, 
but have been completed more quickly. The Duane h o l d ,  Dresden 2 and 3, end Quad Cities 1 
and 2 extended power uprates were completed in just under 12 months. This included 
coordination and review with the NRC’s Advisory Committee for Reactor Safeguards -- an 
independent panel of technical experts from diverse fields that advises the Commission. 

The NRC issued a review standard for extended power uprates, RS-001, in December 2003. The 
standard is a first-of-a-kind document that provides a comprehensive process and technical 
guidance for reviews by the NRC staff, and also provides useful information to licensees 
considering applying for an extended uprate. The NRC’s Advisory Committee on Reactor 
Safeguards endorsed RS-001 as an “excellent review standard.” The staff is currently using this 
standard to review the proposed uprates for Vermont Yankee (20 %), Waterford (8 % ), Browns 
Ferry Unit 1 (20 %) , Browns Ferry Units 2 and 3 (15 %), and Beaver Valley Units 1 and 2 ( 8 
%). The staff will closely monitor these uprate reviews to identify any issues related to using 
RS-00 1. 

To keep the public informed of its activities, NRC publishes a notice in the FederaZ Register (1) 
when it receives a request from a licensee for a power uprate, giving the public the opportunity 
to request a hearing; (2) after a finding of no significant environmental impact is made, if 
applicable; aid (3)if a power uprate is approved. A press release is also issued if a power uprate 
is approved. 

Plant-Specific Applications Under Review 

The NRC usually has several applications for power uprates under review at a2y given time. An 
updated list of applications under review can be found on the NRC’s Web site at this address: 
http://www.nrc.gov/reactors/oueratingflicensine/Dower-uprates/pendina-applications. html . 

Steam Dryer Issues Following Uprates 

Since 2002, steam dryer cracking and flow-induced vibration damage on components and 
supports for the main steam and feedwater lines have been observed at the Dresden and Quad 
Cities nuclear power plants, both of which use boiling water reactors, following implementation 
of extended power uprates. NRC staff have determined these issues do not pme an immediate 
safety concem, given the plants’ current operating conditions. However, steam dryers and other 
intemal main steam and feedwater components must maintain structural integrity to avoid 
generating loose parts that could impact safety system or reactor plant operation. The NRC has 
corresponded with and met with nuclear industry groups concerning these issues since the first 
occurrences, and continues to examine its regulatory options based on industry actions and the 
information available. 

Future Actions 
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Vogtle 1 4.5 154 1993 S 
Vogtle2 4.5 154 1993 S 
Wolf Creek 4.5 154 1993 S 

Licensees have told NRC they plan to submit 18 power uprate applications in the next four years 
as follows: 
0 10 extended power uprates 
0 1 stretch power uprate 
0 7 measurement uncertainty recapture power uprates 

Based on the information provided, planned power uprates are expected to result in an increase 
of about 2,841 Mwt. An updated list of anticipated future applications can be found on the 
NRC’s Web site at this address: 
http://www.nrc,nov/reactors/operatine/licensin~uower-uprates/exoected-applications. html . 

Tables 

0 

0 

Table 1 - Approved Power UDrates as of November 2004 
Table 2 - Power Uprates Currently Under Review as of November 2004 
Table 3 - Exuected Future Submittals for Power Uurates as of October 2004 

Table 1 - Approved Power Uprates 

(TYPE -- S = Stretch; E = Extended; MU = Measurement Uncertamty Kecapture) 
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LaSalle2 5 166 2000 S 
49 Perry 5 178 

c 

2000 -- S 
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RiverBend 5 145 2000 S 
Diablo Canyon 1 2 73 2000 S 
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91 D.C.Cook 1 1.66 __ 54 2002 Mu 
92 RiverBend 1.7 52 2003 Mu 

93 D.C.Cook2 1.66 57 2003 Mu 

94 Pilgrim 1.5  30 2003 Mu 

95 India? Point 2 1.4 43 2003 Mu 

96 Kewaunee 1.4 23 2003 Mu 

97 Hatch 1 1.5 41 2003 Mu 

98 Hatch2 1.5 41 2003 Mu 
~ 

99 PaloVerde2 2.9 114 2003 S 

00 Kewmnee 6.0 99 2004 S 

01 Palisades 1.4 35 2004 M u  

021 IndianPoint2 1 3.2 1 101.6 1 2004 I S 

Table 2 - Power Uprates Under Review 
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(TYPE -- S = Stretch; E = Extended; MU = Measurement Uncertainty Recapture) 
~~ ~~~ 

Plant % MWt Submittal Projected Type 
Uprate Date Completion , 

Date 
VermontYankee 20 319 0911 0103 TBD E 

I 

Waferford 8 275 ' 11/13/03 April2005 E 

3 

4 

Sehrook 5.2 176 ~ 03/17/04 Feb. 2005 S 

IndianPoint3 4.85 148 06/03/04 March2005 S 
I i I . __.- 

5 

6 

i 
BrownsFeny2 15 494 1 06/25/04 TBD E 

BrownsFeny 3 15 494 06/25/04 TBD E 

7 

8 

I 9 I PaloVmde3 I 2.94 I 114 1 07/09/04 I March 2005 I S 

BrownsFerry 1 20 659 ' 06/28/04 TBD E 
t 

PaloVerde 1 2.94 114 07/09/04 March 2005 S 

. i  
I10 I BeaverValley 1 1 8 I 211 ~ 10/04/04 I TBD ' I E 

11 Beaver Valley2 8 1 211 10/04/04 I TBD E 

Table 3 - Expected Future Submittals for Power Uprates 

Fiscal 
Year 

2005 
2006 

Total Measurement Stretch Extended 
Uprates Uncertainty Power Power 

Expected Recapture UDrates UDrates 
UDrates 

8 4 0 - 4 
3 3 0 0 

2007 I 6 0 1 5 
522 

947 

2008 

TOTAL 

June 2005 

1 0 0 1 

18 7 1 10 



Docket No. 070052-El 
Impact of Sales Growth 
Exhibit No. - (JP-3) 
Page I of 1 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 
ImDact of Sales Growth on Base Rate Recoverv 

Base Rates Year One Year Two 
- Line Description Set Load Growth Load Growth 

(1 1 (2) (3) 

Base Rate Costs $50,000 

Electricity Sales (MWh) 1,000 1,030 

Average Base Rate Cost ($/MWh) $50 $50 

Base Rate Revenue $51,500 

Additional Base Rate Cost Recovery $1,500 

1,061 

$50 

$53,045 

$3,045 

, ,,. , I 

. . : .  . . <  
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.Rale Class 

R&dentIaJ 
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0.658 3.247 0.56 0.9783000 ' 3.319 058 D 38 0.008% 0.008% 0.ooBx 
3.38)% 3.35096 3.353% 

1.DOO 62.483 8.42 0.9344227 88.272 1O.W 10.08 0.203% 0.132% 0.13m 

Geheral Servlcg 
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I 

1.083 
1.003 .. 0 

356,088 
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37.40 o.aea3Mx) 
0.00 o.emooo 

0.W 
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5.850 
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38.82 
0.00 
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,0.864% 0.507% 0.634% 
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83,181 

0 
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3340 oa783ow 
0.00 0.8883000 

7.63 0.9883000 

128,044 
1.935.545 

2,21~7 
487.327 

83,830 
0.00 

89,886 
51.021 

0,027 
0.927 
0.927 
0327 
0,927 
0,749. 
0.749 
0.749 

15.62 
238.35 

Oi27 
80.01 
10.32 
0.00 

13.70 
7.70 

14.3s a 290% 0.201% 02Wh 
220.95 4.451% 3.127% 3.329% 

0.25 0.005% 0.004% 0 004% 

0 00 O.PM)% 0.000% 0.000% 
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5583 1.$21% 0.767% 0.813% 
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(2) 
(3) 
(4) 
(5) 

(8) 
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(I PROGRESS ENERGY FLORmA 

SCHEDULE 2.1 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND 

a 
a 

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS BY CUSTOMER CLASS 

2,80 I ,  I05 
2,837,802 
2,895,266 
2,959,509 
3,M7,293 
3,044,449 
3,141,867 
3,207,66 I 

2003 3,286,782 
200.1 3,348.630 

2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 I 
2012 
2013 
2014 

3,397566 
3,451,7 I 2 
3.5 17,107 
358  1,336 
3,645,405 
3,702,998 
3,757,423 
3,809,526 
3,853,M I 
3,891,403 

2.491 
2.494 
2.495 
2 502 
2.51 I 
2.467 
2.465 
2.465 
2.468 
2.4.54 

2.449 
2.447 
2.445 
2.446 
2.448 
2.446 
2.44 1 
2.436 
2.426 
2413 

14,938 
15,481 
15,080 
16,526 
16245 
17,116 
17,604 
18.754 
19,429 
19,347 

20,069 
20,602 
21,139 
21,669 
22,201 
22,742 
23,288 
23,837 
24,794 
24,959 

I ,  124,679 
1 .14~67 I 
1,160,61 I 
I , ]  82.786 
1,213,470 
1,234,286 
1,274,672 
1,301.f I5 
1,33 1.9 14 
1,364,677 

13,282 
13,560 
12,993 
13,972 
13.387 
I 3.867 
13,810 
14,409 
14,587 
14,177 
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1.5 14,200 
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1,612,925 

14,464 
14,581 
14,695 
14,803 
14,909 
15,019 
15,131 
15,243 
15,358 
15,475 

(7) ( 8) (9) 4 
Q 
1 

a 
4 

4 
9,257 69,s 8 

a 

COMMERCIAL 
---------.--.---__--__________L_________----------- 

AVERAGE AVERAGE KWh 4 

a 
8.612 126,189 68.247 
8,848 68,356 

9.999 73,3 
10.327 73,295 
10,813 143,475 75,368 4 
11,061 146,983 75,251 a 
1 1.420 150,577 75,842 
I 1,553 154.294 74,876 4 
I 1,734 158,780 73,898 a 

a 
a 

(I 
14,736 176,945 83,28 I 1 

4 

4 
4 
4 
(I 
4 
4 

12.521 161.148 77,70 I 
12,998 164,319 79,101 
1 3,440 167,509 80.235 
13.861 I 70,672 81,212 
14,296 173,820 82,244 

15,196 180,043 84,4oJ 4 
15,663 183.1 19 85,533 
16,135 186,180 86,662 
16,613 189,232 87,790 4 
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b PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 2.2 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND 

XUMBER OF CUSTOMERS BY CUSTOMER CLASS 

B TNDIJSTR I A  I .  
_____*__------------_______________I____------------- 

AVERAGE KWh 
CONSUMPTION 
PER CUSTOMER 

b 
P 

---- ------____ 

1,479,859 
1998 4,375 1,616.1 80 

1,648,536 
1,676.1 34 
1,517,836 

2002 3,835 2,535 1,512,821 
B 2003 4,001 2,643 1,513,810 

4.069 2,733 1,488,840 B 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014 

4,403 2,813 
4,485 2,813 
4,561 2,813 
4,600 2,8 13 
4,638 2,813 
4,670 2.8 I3 
4,701 2,813 
4.73 I 2,813 
4,757 2,813 
4.780 2,813 

1,565,205 
I ,594,218 
1,621,534 
1,635,285 
1,648,721 
1,660,209 
1,671,100 
1,681,991 
I ,691,157 
1,699,167 

(7) 

STREET & OTHER SALES TOTAL SALES 
RAILROADS HIGHWAY TO PUBL 

AND RAILWAYS LIGHTING AU 

GWh G Wh 
_______l__-_l__l- ---------_- ___-___-_____ 

0 2 
0 2 
0 27 
0 27 
0 27 2,509 33,442 
0 28 2,626 34.832 
0 28 2,698 35,263 
0 28 2,822 36,859 

0 28 3,016 38,193 
0 29 2,946 37,957 

0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 

3,264 40,286 
3,384 41,497 
3,505 42,673 
3,617 43,775 
3,729 44,892 
3,843 46,020 

4,095 48,354 
4,221 49,535 

3,966 47,180 

4,344 50,124 

2-5 



YEAR 
--------- 

1995 
I996 
1997 
I998 
I999 
2000 
200 1 
2002 
2003 
2004 

2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 2.3 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND 

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS BY CUSTOMER CLASS 

1,846 
2,089 
1,758 
2,340 
3,267 
3,732 
3,839 
3,173 
3,359 
4,301 

2,322 
1,842 
1,996 
2,037 
2,45 1 

2,678 
1,830 
2,534 
2,595 
2,773 

33,667 
34,7 15 
34,605 
37,763 
39,160 
41,242 
40,933 
42,567 
43,9 I 1 

45,268 

17,774 
18,035 
18,562 
19,013 
19,601 
20,004 
20,752 
21,156 
2 1,665 
22,437 

4,572 2,773 47,630 22,922 
3,518 2,885 47,900 23,499 
3,753 2,945 49,372 24,079 
3,748 3,044 50,567 24,660 
3,674 3,082 5 1,648 2524 1 

4,275 3,246 53,541 25,822 
4,427 3,275 54,882 26,403 
4,554 3,354 56,263 26,984 
3.706 3,435 57,676 27,565 
5.242 3,555 59.520 28,144 

2-6 

- 
a 
a 
0 
a 

4 
0 

( 6 )  a 
0 

a 

a 

TOTAL 

1,27 1,785 
1,292,073 
1,3 14307 
1,340,851 
1,376,597 
1,400,299 
1,444,958 
1,475,783 
I S 1  0,5 16 
1,548,627 

a 

a 
(I 
lill 
a 
(I 
a 

a 

a 
a 

1,574,447 a 
1,603,600 4 
1,632,925 d 
1,662,016 I 

a 
(I 

1,804,949 rl 
1,833,114 a 

a 
a 
I 
(1 
4 
4 
(I 
4 
I 

a 1.690,993 
1,7 19,780 
1,748,339 
1,776,709 

1 



PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3.1.1 
HlSTORY AllD FORECAST OF SUMMER PEAK DEMAND (MW) 

BASE CASE 

(1) ( 2 )  (3) (4) ( 5 )  (6) (7) i8) (91 ( O W  (101 
D 
U 
D 
D 

RESLDENTLAL COMM. / IND OTHER 
LOAD COMM. I IND. LOAD RESIDENTIAL 

YEAR TOTAL WHOLESALE RETAIL INTERRUPFIBLE MANAGEMENT CONSERVATION MANAGEMENT CONSERVATION R 

1995 7.523 
1926 7.470 
1997 7.786 

iwa mv 
1999 9,039 
zoo0 8,9l I 
200l 8,811 
2002 9,421 
2003 8,886 

2001 9.551 

2005 9,547 
2006 9,808 
2oW 10.085 
2008 10.298 
2009 10,452 
2010 10.802 
2011 11,007 
2012 11,218 B 2013 11.436 

D 
2014 11.651 

959 6 3 4  

828 6.642 

874 6.912 
943 7.121 

1.326 7.713 
1.319 7,592 
1.117 7,721 
1,203 8,218 
887 7.999 

1071 8.487 

948 8.599 
993 8.815 

I M 3  9.022 
I .c93 9.205 
I063  9,388 
1,213 9.589 
1.217 9,790 

1.730 9.988 
1.251 10.185 
I269 10.3R2 

269 
309 
288 
19 I 

292 
277 
283 
305 
300 
5.7 I 

633 
120 
417 
413 
409 
30 
401 

402 
303 
104 

503 
565 

55s 
138 
SO5 
45s 
414 
390 
347 
2x1 

258 
228 
2a2 
I79 
158 
I40 
I 24 

109 
97 
R6 

40 
69 41 
78 41 

97 12 
113 45 

127 18 
139 54 
I53 43 
172 ++ 
I RR 37 

203 38 
211 39 
223 4u 
232 41 
241 12  
250 43 

259 45 
269 16 
279 47 
289 48 

106 
120 
131 
I42 
153 
155 
I56 
IS9 
16.4 
1% 

I 67 
169 
171 
I72 
174 
I76 
I77 
179 

1 SD 
I R2 

6.381 
6,199 
6,523 
7,175 
7.747 

1.114 

75 8,296 
7,785 
8.274 

75 8.172 
75 8.663 
75 8.957 

75 9.186 
75 9353 
75 9,719 
75 9,926 
75 10.138 
75 10,355 
75 10,567 

7.720 

Historical Values (1YY5 - ?OM): 
Col (2) E recorded penk + irnplemenred load control + residential and commercial/industnaI comervation and customer-owned self-service cogenerailon 
Cols. (5) - (9) =cumulative conserviltion and toad control capabililies a l p k  Col. (8) includes cummercial load management and srondby generation 
Col (OTH) = Residenrral Heal Woks load contol. voltage reduction and customer-owmd self-service cogeneration 

Projected Values (ZOOS. 2011): 
Cols. (2) ~ ( I )  = forwasred peak ~ i t h o u t  load control, conselyat~an. and cusromer-owned self-service cogeneration 
Cols (5 )  - (9) =cumulative consenation and load control copabhrles at peak Col (8) includes commercial load m g e m e n t  and standby generation. 
Col (OTH) e customer-owned se l f -mice  cogeneration 

COI ( I O )  = (2) - ( 5 ) .  (6) - (7) - (8) - (9) - i0TH). 

COI i IO)= ( 2 )  ( 5 )  - (6) (7) - (8) - (9) - (OTHI 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3.3. I 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ANNUAL NET ENERGY FOR LOAD (GWh) 

BASE CASE 

0) (2) (3) (4) ( O W  (51 (6) (7) (8) (9) 

OTHER LOAD 

YEAR TOTAL CONSERVATION CONSERVATlON REDUCTIONS* W A l L  WHOLESUE & LOSSES K)R LOAD (Sa) ** 
RESIDENTLAL COMM. I WD. ENERGY UTILITY USE NET ENERGY FACTOR 

1995 34.696 234 246 549 29,499 1,846 2322 33,667 49.8 
1996 35.812 249 2 85 5 62 30,785 2,089 1,841 34.715 44.9 

1998 38,950 289 333 565 2,036 37,763 53.9 
1999 40.376 312 339 565 2,452 39,160 50.0 

2001 42,200 354 349 564 35,263 3,839 1.831 40,933 47.5 
2002 43,860 377 352 564 36,859 3,173 2535 42,567 50.0 

45,232 400 357 564 37,957 3,359 2595 43.91 I 47.7 
46.6 I7 424 3M S6.5 38,193 I 2.774 45,268 56.5 

1997 35.753 268 317 563 30,850 1,758 1,997 34,605 49.0 

2000 42,486 334 345 565 2,678 4 1,242 50.5 

2005 49.002 445 3 63 564 40286 4,620 2,724 47,630 61.0 
2006 19289 45 9 365 564 41,497 3,565 2,838 47.900 59.4 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 I 
2012 
2013 
2014 

;L 

* e  

50,778 
5 1,992 
53,090 
55,OO 1 
56,362 
57,763 
59,194 
6 1,057 

474 
4 89 
504 
519 
536 
552 
568 
585 

368 
37 1 
374 
377 
380 
383 
386 
389 

564 
565 
564 
564 
564 
565 
564 
564 

42,673 3,761 2,938 
3.044 

44.892 3,674 3,082 
46,020 4,275 3246 
47,180 4,427 3,275 
48,354 4,554 3,355 
49535 4,706 3,435 
50.724 5,242 3554 

49.372 58.1 
50.567 58.1 
51,648 58.2 
53.54 I 58. I 
54,882 58.3 
56,263 58.4 
57,676 58.8 
59,520 59.5 

Column (OTH) includes Conservation Energy For Lighting and Public Authority Customers, Customer-Owned Self-service Cogeneration 
and Load Control Programs. 

Load Factors for historical years are calculated using the actual winter peak demand except the 1998 and 2004 hisroricd load factors 
which are based on the actual summer peak demand. 
Load Factors for future years are calculated using the net fin winter peak demand (Schedule 3.2.1) 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCIHEDTJIX 4 
PREVIOUS YEAR ACTUAL AND TWO-YEAR FORECAST OF PEAK DEMAND 

AND NET ENERGY FOR LOAD BY MONTH 

MONTH 
JANUARY 

FEBRUARY 
MARCH 

EL 
MAY 
JUNE 
JULY 

AUGUST 
SEPTEMBER 

OCTOBER 
NOVEMBER 
DECEMBER 

TOTAL 

(2) (3) 
A C T U A L  

2004 
PEAKDEMAND NEL 

Mw GWh 
8,748 3,504 
7,791 3,090 

3,171 
3,176 

8,446 3,960 
9,125 4,48 1 
9,058 4,62 1 
8,842 4,432 
8,628 4,064 
8,324 3,900 
7,3 1 3 3,237 
8.303 3.632 

45,268 

(4) (5) ( 6 )  (7) 
F O R E C A S T  F O R E C A S T  

2005 2006 
PEAKDEMAND NEL PEAKDEMAND NEL 

MW M w  
8,914 9,200 
7,115 7,335 
6,008 6,216 
6,691 6,956 
7,659 7,965 
8,021 8,494 
8,147 8,64 1 
8,172 8,663 
7,689 8,136 
7,146 7,561 
5,792 6,149 
7,356 7,899 

47.630 

NOTE: "Actual" = "Total" - "lnteruptible" - "Res. LM" - "CII LM" - "Voltage Reduction & Standby Generation" 
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GWh 
3,695 
3,303 
3,553 
3,409 
4,142 
4,490 
4,884 
4,918 
4.444 
3,945 
3,422 
3,695 

47,900 



CHAPTER 3 

FORECAST OF FACILITIES REQUIREMENTS 

RESOURCE PLANNING FORECAST 

OVERVIEW OF CURRENT FORECAST 

Supply-Skle Resources 

PEF has a summer total capacity resource of 9,769 MW, as shown in Table 3.1. This capacity 

resource includes utility purchased power (474 MW), non-utility purchased power (820 Mw), 

combustion turbine (2,619 Mw, 143 M W  of which is owned by Georgia Power for the months June 

through September), nuclear (769 MW), fossil steam (3,882 M W )  and combinedcycle plants 

(1,205 M W ) .  Table 3.2 shows PEF’s contracts for firm capacity provided by Qualifying Facilities 

(QFS). 

Demand-Side Programs 

Total DSM resources are shown in Schedules 3.1. I and 3.2.1 of Chapter 2. These programs include 

Non-Dispatchable DSM, Interruptible Load, and Dispatchable Load Control resources. PEF’s 2005 

Ten-Year Site Plan Demand-Side Management projections are consistent with the DSM Goals 

established by the Commission in Docket No. 040031-EG. 

Capacity and Demand Forecast 

PEF’s forecasts of capacity and demand for the projected summer and winter peaks are shown in 

Schedules 7.1 and 7.2, respectively. PEF’s forecasts of capacity and demand are based on serving 

expected growth in retail requirements in its regulated service area and meeting commitments to 

wholesale power customers who have entered into supply contracts with PEF. In its planning 

process, PEF balances its supply plan for the needs of retail and wholesale customers and endeavors 

to ensure that cost-effective resources are available to meet the needs across the customer base. 

Over the years, as wholesale markets have grown more competitive, PEF has remained active in the 

competitive solicitations while planning in a manner that maintains an appropriate balance of 

commitments and resources within the overall regulated supply framework. 
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Base Expansion Plan 

PEF’s planned supply resource additions and changes are shown in Schedule 8 and are referred to as 

PEF‘s Base Expansion Plan. This Plan includes 3,357 MW (summer rating) of proposed new 

capacity additions through the summer of 2014. As identified in Schedule 8, PEF’s next planned 

need is the Hines 3 Unit, a 516 MW (summer) power block with a December 2005 in-service 

W 

0 
a 

e 

(I 
a 

I 

a 

4 
I 
a 
4 
(I 

a 

a 

a 
a 
4 
(I 
a 
4 
d 
a 

a 
a 
a 
4 

a 

date. PEF’s self-build option for Hines Unit 3 was determined to be the most cost-effective 

alternative (FPSC Docket NO. 020953-EI, Order No. PSC-O3-0175-FOF-E1, issued February 4, 

2003).  After Hines 3, the next planned unit is Hines 4,461 MW (summer) power block with a 
December 2007 in-service date. f ines  Unit 4 was granted its Need Certificate by the FPSC in 

November 2004 (Docket No. 040817-E1, Order No. PSC-04- 1 168-FOF-ET). 

PEE‘S Base Expansion Plan projects requirements for additional combined-cycle units with 

proposed in-service dates of 2009, 2010, 2012, 2013 and 2014. These high efficiency gas-fired 

combined-cycle units, together with the Central Power & Lime Purchase from December 2005 

through December 2015, the Shady Hills Purchase from December 2006 through April 2014, and 

the Southern Company Purchase from June 2010 through December 2015 help the PEF system 

meet the growing energy requirements of its customer base and also contribute to meeting the 

requirements of the 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments. Fuel switching, SO2 emission allowance 

purchases, re-dispatching of system generation and technology improvements are additional options 

available to PEF to ensure compliance with these important environmental requirements. Status 

reports and specifications for new generation facilities are included in Schedule 9. As shown in 

Schedule 10, there are no new transmission Lines associated with the Hines 3 combined-cycle unit, 

and only one new line (Hines-West Lake Wales 230 kV) required for the Hines 4 combinedcycle 

unit. 

4 
a 
d 
4 
4 

Current planning studies identify gas-fired units as the most economic alternatives for system 

expansion over the ten-year planning term. New coal units may become a competitive option 

beyond the ten-year timeframe should forecasted gas prices continue to increase versus coal over 

that term. The uncertainties associated with fuel price forecasts and the long lead times required to 

site, permit, license, engineer, and construct a coal unit will require additional study of coal options 

in the next planning cycle. 

(I 
4 
I 
4 
4 
4 
1 
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The recently issued Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAR) may impact PEFs need for new capacity. 

While a compliance plan has not yet been finalized, some alternatives may impact the capacity of 

existing andor  future generation resources, resulting in a need for additional capacity. Once the 

compliance plan has been finalized, PEF will quantify the impacts on generating resources and 

determine if any additional capacity is needed. 
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TABLE 3.1 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

TOTAL CAPACITY RESOURCES OF 
POWER PLANTS AND PURCHASED POWER CONTRACTS 

PLANTS 

AS OF DECEMBER 31,2004 

NUMBER 
OF UNITS 

SUMMER 
NETDEPENDABLE 

CAPABILITY 
( M W  

Nuclear Steam 

Total Nuclear Steam 
- 769 ( I )  Crystal River 1 

I 769 

Fossil Steam 
Crystal River 
Anclote 
Paul L. Bartow 
Suwannee River 

Total Fossil Steam 

Corn bined-cycle 
Hines Energy Complex 
Tiger Bay 

Total Combined-cycle 

Combustion Turbine 
DeBary 
Intercession City 
Bayboro 
Bartow 
Suwannee 
Turner 
Higgins 
Avon Park 
University of Florida 
Rio Pinar 

Total Combustion Turbine 

Total Units 
Total Net Generating Capability 

4 
2 
3 
2 

12 

2 
1 
3 
- 

10 
14 
4 
4 
3 
4 
4 
2 
1 
1 

47 
- 

2,302 
993 
444 - 143 

3,882 

998 

667 

I84 
I87 
164 
154 
122 
52 
35 
13 

2.6E 

1,041 (21 

63 
%A75 

( I )  Adjusted for sale of appro.rimarely 8.2% oftotal capaciy 
(2) Includes 143 MW owned by Georgia Power Company (Jun-Sep) 

Purchased Power 
Qualifying Facility Contracts 
Investor Owned Utilities 

TOTAL CAPACITY RESOURCES 

19 
2 

3 -4 

820 
474 

9,769 

.I 

0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
(I 
a 

a 

a 
0 
a 
a 

a 
a 
a 

a 

a 

a 

a 
a 

a 

a 
a 

a 

a 
a 
a 
a 
a 
a 
a 
4 
4 
(I 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
1 



PROCRE%S ENERGY FI.C)RlDA 

YEAR 

2005 

2035 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

201 I 

2012 

2013 

2014 

- 

SCHEDULE 7.1 

FORECAST OF CAPACITY, DEMAND A S D  SCHEDULED MALVTENANCE 

AT TIME OF SUMMER PEAK 

0 
e 
0 
a 
a 

(2) (3) (4) ( 5 )  (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) a 

0 

8.332 799 0 820 9,951 8.173 1,718 229 0 I ,778 22% 

0 
a 

9.785 1.098 0 787 11.670 9.719 1,951 20% 0 1.95 I 20% 0 
10,261 1.028 0 787 12.076 9,926 2, I50 22% 0 2.150 22% a 

a 

M W  MW MW M W  MW MW %OFPEAK MW MW %OFPEAK a 

TOTAL FIRM FIRM TOTAL SYSTEMFIRM 

INSTALLED CAPACITY CAPACITY CAPACKY SUMMER PEAK RESERVE MARGIN SCHEDULED RESERVE MARGIN 

CAPACITY PAPORT EXPORT QF AVAILABLE DEMAND BEFORE MAINTENANCE MAINTENANCE AFTER MAINTENANCE 

MW --- 

8.848 767 * n 820 10.435 8.663 1.772 20% 0 1.772 zn9 

8.848 1.087 0 802 10.737 8.958 1,779 209 0 1.779 20% 

9.309 1,087 0 787 11.183 9. I87 1.996 22% 0 1,996 228 

9.309 1.087 0 787 11.183 9.3.53 1.830 20% 0 1.830 20% a 

a 
I 1.689 550 0 4W 12.729 10.567 2. I62 20% n 2.162 211'31: 0 

a 
0 
0 

10.737 1,028 0 787 12.552 10.138 2.414 24% 0 2.414 24% 

10.737 1.028 0 617 1?.-!4'2 103.55 2.087 20% 0 2.087 20% 

* Progress Energy is pursuing seasonal purchases of approximately 300 MW i n  200.5 and 150 MW in 2006. She deals are nor yet consummated as of the time of he Teen- 
Year Site Plan filing. Since the purchase is expected Io be from peaking capacily. no energy impact has ken included in the plan at rhis rime. 

a 

a 
R e  recently issued Clw,  Air Interslate Rule (CAR)  m y  impact PEFs need for new capacity. While a complionce plan has not yet been finallzed, some nltemaiives 
may impact the capacity of existing and/or future generation resources, resulting in a need for additional capacity. Once the compliance plan has been tiinalized. PEF 
wil l  quantify the impocrs on generating resources and determine if any additional capacity is needed. 

(I 

a 
a 
a 
a 
4 
a 
4 
I 
a 
a 
@ 
4 
a 
4 
a 
a 
1 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FI.ORIDA 

.c 

0 

a 
0 
0 
a 
0 

0 

a 

SCHEDULE 8 
PLANhED AND PROSPECnVE GENERATIhG FACILITY ADDITIONS AhD CHANGES 

ASOFJANUARY 1.2003THROUGH DECEMBER.3I.ZOI4 

( 1 )  (2) (3) ( 4 )  ( 5 )  (6)  (7) (8) (9) (10) ( 1 1 )  (12) 

0 

HINESENERGYCOMPLEX 3 POLK CC NG DFO PL TK 9CW3 lXW5 516 sa? v a 
0 

176 5J8 P a 

476 548 P a 

CONST. COWL IN- EXPECTED CEN. MAX. NET CAPABILITY 

P L A M  a 
L N T  LOCATION UNIT FUEL FUFI TRANSWRT START SERVfCE RETIREMENT NAMEPLATE St ihMER Wl- 

MW STATUSNOTES - KW NAME - NO. I C O U M Y l  TYPE PRI. ALT, EBL U MO./YR MO. /YB MO./YR 

461 517 T FIISESENERGY COMPLEX 1 POLK CC NG DFO PL TK I?/2W5 12RW7 

HINESENERGY COMPLEX 5 POLK CC NG DFO PL TK 5/2037 12/2039 

HINESENERGYCOMPLEX 6 POLK CC NG DFO PL TK .5!2W8 1X010 

COMBINEDCYCLE I USKNOWN CC NG DFO PL CN 1042009 V-012 

COMBINEDCYCLE 1 UNKNOWN CC NG DH3 PL UN 92011 12/?013 

COMBINED-CYCLE 3 UXKNOWN CC NG DFO PL UN 10/?011 5/101J 

116 518 P 

a 476 548 P 

476 ,548 P 
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a 
(I 
a 
a 

a 
a 

a 
a 

4 

(I 

a 
a 
a 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
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FIGURE 1.2 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

Electric System Map 
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HNES ENERGY COMPLEX 3 POLK CC P;G DFO PL TK I 1/05 
TIOER BAY 1 POLK CC KG PL o a m  

COMBLST!OK TU- 

AVON PARK 
AVOS PARK 

BARTOW 
BARTOW 
BARTOW 

BAYBORO 

DEBARY 

DEBARY 
DEBARY 

HIGGNS 

HIGGNS 
LKTERCESSIOK CITY 

KTERCESSIOK CITY 
NTERCESSION CITY 
NTERCESSIOS CIi?' 

KO PrNAR 

SL7VkkXEE EWER 

S L T A W E E  RIVER 

TLRKER 

7LRNER 
T " Z R  
L I P .  OF ?LA. 

PI 

P2 

PI. P3 
P2 
P4 

PI-P4 

PI-P6 

P7-F-3 
PI0 

PI -P2 

P3-PJ 

PI-P6 
P7.PIO 
PI1 '. 

P12.PI4 

PI 

P I ,  P3 

P2 

PI.P2 

P; 

P4 

P I  

HIGHLANDS 
HIGHLANDS 

PCJELIAS 

PINELLAS 
PINELLAS 

PINELLAS 
VOLUSlA 

VOLUSL4 

VOLUSL4 

PXELLAS 
PKELLAS 

OSCEOLA 
OSCEOLA 

OSCEOLA 

OSCEOLA 

OR&VGE 
S U W A W E  

S U WAW E 

VOLUSL4 

VOLUSL4 

VOLUSU 

ALACHUA 

G I  
GT 

GT 
GT 
GT 

GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 

GT 
GT 

GT 
OT 

GT 

GT 
GT 

GT 

GI 

OT 

GT 

GT 

GT 

KO 
DFO 

DFO 
NO 
NG 

DFO 

DFO 
NG 

DFO 

YO 

YO 

DFO 
KG 

DFO 
SG 

DFO 
NO 

DFO 

DFO 

DFO 

DFO 
NC 

DFO 

DFO 
DFO 

DFO 

DFO 

DFO 

DFO 

3iO 

DFO 

PL 
i-< 
WA 
PL 
PL 

WA 
TK 

PL 
TK 
PL 
PL 

PL.TK 
PL 

PL.TK 
Pi 
TK 
PL 

TK 
I"< 
r< 
7-K 

PL 

TK 

WA 

WA 

l% 

TK 
TX 

PL. TK 

PL.K 

TK 

3w. 

8 

8 

8 

I 

5 

5 

9"' 

12i68 

I2,68 
05;72,06i12 

06172 
06172 

04/73 
12/75-04'76 

I Oi9i 

1019i 

03~69. 04'69 
12170, 01!71 

05/74 

10.9; 

Oli97 

I LOO 
l1,70 

IO 80. 1':SO 

I0i80 

lOl70 

08i74 

o a m  
01'94 

1-5 

i l j )  {I41 i l l 1  (1:) 

EXPSCTED GEF;. MAX. YET C A P A B l L m  
RETIREMENT SAMEPLATE SIMMER WNTER 

s \ I w  V0:YEAR E 

556300 

556.200 

l i7 .SM) 

127,500 

239,360 

440,550 

523.800 
890.460 

739.260 

739.2bO 

34.500 
3 7 . m  

: W O O  

498 52.2 

495 522 

121 I23 

119 121 

204 208 

379 383 
486 491 
759 788 

720 735 
717 132 
32 33 
31 32 

Bp u 
4,651 4,771 

~ 6 . 5 5 0  482 529 

598.000 516 582 
589.900 501 576 

278.223 a 
1,706 1,910 

33,790 

33.790 
I 11,400 
55.700 

55,700 

226.800 

401220 

345.000 
l15,004 

67,580 

85.850 
340,204 
460.000 
165.0oc7 

345,000 
19.290 

:22,400 

61200 

38,580 
7I.ZM) 

71.200 

43.000 

26 32 

26 32 

92 IC4 

46 53 
49 60 

184 232 
324 390 

258 279 

85 93 

54 64 
4a 70 

294 366 
352 376 
143 170 

252 294 

I3 16 

110 134 

54 67 

26 32 

65 82 

43 a0 

2 - 41 

2,619 3,069 

TOTAL RESOURCES (MIV 8.976 9,750 



a 
4 
0 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 2.1 
HISTORY .Ah9 FORECAST OF ENERGY CONSUhlPTION AND 

X b i B E R  OF CUSTOhIEFG BY CUSTOMER CLASS 

E A R  

I996 
I997 
I998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

PEF 
POPUL4TION 

2.847.802 
2,895.266 
2,959.509 
3,047.293 
3,044,449 
3,13 1,867 
3.207.661 
3.286.782 
3 348 630 
3.425.783 

3,473 481 
3.530.429 
3,585.407 
3,639 074 
3,690.763 
3.740,415 
3,788.512 
3,835,918 
3.8a3.825 
3,932.139 

MEhfBERS PER 
HOUSEHOLD 

---------.._..__.-__ 

2.494 
2.495 
2.502 
2.51 1 

2.467 
2.465 
2.465 
2.468 
2.454 
2.452 

2.447 
2.441 
2.435 
2.42R 
2.420 
2.412 
2.404 
2.396 
2.389 
2.382 

AVETR4GE 
KO. OF 

CUSTOMERS 

AVER4GE Ickl 
CONSUMPTION 
PER CUSTOMER 

1 5*48 1 
15,080 
16,526 
16245 
17.116 
17,604 
18,754 
19,429 
19,347 

19,894 

20.187 
20,731 
21244 
2 1,789 
22.316 
22,839 
23.353 
23,882 
24.41 1 

24,949 

I ,  l4l,67 1 

1,160.61 1 
1,182.786 
1.213.470 

1,234.286 
1274.672 
1,3015 15 

1,33 1.914 
1,364.677 
1,397.012 

I .4 19.449 
1.446.239 
1.472.551 

1,498.885 
1,524.944 
1,550,477 
1,575,780 
1.600.906 
1.625.899 
1,050,873 

2 -4 

13.S60 

12.993 
13.972 
13.387 
13.867 
13.810 
14.409 
14.587 
14,177 
14.240 

14222 
14.334 
14,427 
t4,537 

14.634 
14.730 
14,820 
14.918 
15,014 
15.113 

(7) 

8.848 
9.257 
9.999 
0.327 
0.813 
1.061 
1.420 
1,553 
1,734 
1,945 

11,899 
12.292 
12.725 
13.155 
13.559 
13.966 
14,370 
14.785 
15.204 
15.629 

AVERAGE AVERAGE KWh 

NO. OF CONSUMPTIOK 
CUSTOMERS PER CUSTOMER 
-----.-__.-___-..___ ----..-._._____.______ 

129.440 
132.504 
136.345 
140.897 
143,475 
146.983 
150.577 
154,294 
158.780 
161.001 

163.107 

166,477 
169.784 
173,090 
176.360 
179.6 I I 

182.78 I 
185.927 
189.055 
192.181 

68.356 

69.862 
73.336 
i3.295 
i5.368 
75.251 
75.842 
74,876 
73.898 
74.190 

72.952 
73.836 
74.947 
75.998 
76.880 
77,759 

78.618 
79.519 
80.419 
8 1.323 



1996 
1991 
1998 
I999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 I 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDLLE 2.2 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF Eh’ERGY CONSUblPTION AND 

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS BY CUSTOMER CLASS 

4.224 
4.188 
4.375 
4,334 
4.249 
3,872 
3,835 
4,OOL 

4.069 
4.140 

4,152 
4.213 
4,383 
4.416 
4.453 
4.491 
4,539 
4,579 
4,622 
4,662 

2.927 
2,830 
2.707 
2,629 
2,535 
2.55 I 
2.535 
2.643 
2.733 
2,703 

2,687 
2.687 
2.687 
2,687 

2,687 

2,687 

2,687 

2,687 

2,687 
2,687 

1,443.1 I 6  
1,479,859 
1,616,180 
1.648.536 
1.676,134 
1.517.836 
1,512,82 I 
1,513.810 
1,488,840 
I .53 1,632 

I , 5 4 5 ~  I a 
1,567.920 
1,631,187 
1,643.469 
I .657.239 
1,671.381 
1,689,245 
1,704. I3 1 

1,720.134 
1.735,020 

2-5 

0 

0 
0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
I 

26 
27 
27 
27 
28 
28 
28 
29 
28 
27 

28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 

2,205 
2,299 
2,459 
2.509 
2,626 
2,698 
2,822 
2,946 
3,016 
3,171 

3,209 
3,327 
3,436 
3,547 
3,651 
3.756 
3,861 
3,968 
4,076 
4,186 

30.784 
30.851 
33,386 
33,442 
34.832 
35,263 
36.859 
37,957 
58,193 
39,178 

39.475 
40.591 
41,816 
42.935 
44,006 
45,081 
46,150 
47.24 1 

48,341 
49.456 



( 1 )  

YEAR 
_--------. 

1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
201 3 

2014 

2015 

(2) 

SALES FOR 

RESALE 
GWh 

__-_-_----__--_- 

2,089 
1,758 
2,340 
3,267 
3,732 
3.839 
3,173 
3,359 
4,301 
5,195 

4,038 
4,430 
4,410 
4,323 

4,958 
5,083 
5,159 
5,263 

5,343 
5,419 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 2.3 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ENERGY CONSUMPTIOK Ah’D 

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS BY CUSTOMER CLASS 

(3) 

UTILITY USE 
& LOSSES 

GWh 
..--.-.-.------_- 

1,842 
1,996 
2,037 
2,451 
2,678 
1,83 1 

2,534 
2,595 
2,773 
2,505 

2,654 

2,739 
2,850 
2,890 
3,042 
3,055 
3,125 
3,199 

3,265 
3,337 

(4) 

NET ENERGY 
FOR LOAD 

GWlh 
---------.--------_ 

34,715 
34,605 
37,763 
39,160 
41,242 
40,933 
42,567 
43,911 
45,268 
46,878 

46,167 
47,759 
49,076 
50,148 
52,006 
53,219 
54,434 

55,704 

56,948 
58,211 

2-6 

18,035 
18,562 
19,013 
19,60 1 
20,004 
20,752 
21,155 
21,665 
22,437 
22,701 

23,160 
23,719 
24,279 
24,837 

25,388 
25,933 
26,474 

27,008 
27,537 

28,059 

(6) 

TOTAL 
NO. OF 

CUSTOMERS 

1,292,073 
1,3 14,507 
1,340,85 1 
1,376,597 
1,400,299 
1,444,958 
1,475,783 
1,5 10,516 
1,548,627 
1,583,417 

1,608,403 
1,639,122 
1,669,301 

1,699,499 
1,729,379 
1,758.708 

1,787,722 
I ,816,528 

1,845,178 

1,873,800 



141 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3...1 
HISTORY AXD FORECAST OF SLIMMER PEAK DEhlAhD I M W )  

BASE CASE 

RESIDENTIAL COMM., K D .  OTHER 
L O . 0  RESIDEYTIAL LOAD C0M.lh.I. ' K D .  DEMAND 

YEAR TOTAL WHOLESALE RETAIL KTERRUFTIBLE MANAGEMENT CONSERVATIOT M A N A G E M m T  CONSERVATIOS REDUCTIONS 
.----..---.---_ ~ _ _ _ _  __.-__ ~ ____ 

1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
200 I 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 

2015 

7.470 
7.786 
8.367 
9.039 
8.91 I 
8.841 

9.42 I 
8.886 
9.554 
10.316 

9,915 
10226 
10.487 
10.676 
11,039 
11.260 
11.487 
11.699 
11.921 
12,139 

828 
ai4 
943 
1.326 
1.319 
1.1 17 

1.203 
887 

1,071 

1.118 

1,105 
1,181 

1.223 
1.201 
1.357 
1.372 
1.396 
1.406 
1,429 
1 . A 4  

6.642 
6.912 
1.424 

7.713 
7.592 
1.124 
8.218 

7.999 
8.483 
9.198 

8.810 
9.w 
9.264 
9.475 
9.681 
9,888 
10.091 
10.293 
10.492 
10.693 

309 
288 
29 I 
292 
277 
283 
305 
300 
53 I 
393 

419 
43 I 
437 
433 
424 

425 
426 
427 
428 
429 

565 
555 

438 
505 

455 
414 
390 
347 
283 
250 

228 
202 
179 
158 

140 

124 
I09 
97 
86 
7 6  

69 
7 8  
97 
113 

117 

139 
153 
172 
188 
203 

214 
223 
232 
24 I 
250 
259 
269 
279 
289 
293 

? I  
41 

42 

45 

48 

54 
43 
44 
37 
38 

39 
40 

4 1  

42 
43 
45 
46 
47 
48 
48 

120 
131 
142 
153 
155 

156 

159 
16-4 

166 
167 

169 
171 
172 
174 
176 
17' 
119 
180 
182 
183 

Hisroricsl Valum (1996 - 2005): 

Col. (2) = recorded peak + unplementad load c o n f l o l ~  residential and commerc~aI~industriaI consewation and cunomer-owned self-service cogeneration 
Cols. (5) ~ (91 =cumulative conservation and load connol capabilities at peak Cot (8) mcludes commercial load management and standby generation. 
Col. (OTH) = vallage reducrion and Nstomer-owned self-service cogeneradon. 
Col. (IO) =(21- ( 5 )  ' (6) - (71. (8) - (91 -(Om). 
Projected Values (2006 - 2015): 
Cols. (2j - (4) = forecasted peak without load conml. conwar ion .  and customer-owned self-sewice cogeneration. 
Cols. (5). (9) = ~umulatire consen'afion and load control capabilities a i  peak. Col. (8) mcludes commercial load management and standby generailon. 
Col. (OTH) - customer-owned s e l f - s m k e  cogeneration. 
Col. (10)=(2)-(5).(4)-[7)-(8).(9)-(OTH). 

2-7 

147 
170 

1 e2 
183 
75 
75 

73 
75 
75 
75 

75 
75 

75 
75 
75 
75 
75 
i s  
75 
75 



PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3.3.1 
HISTORY kXD FORECAST OF ANNUAL NET ENERGY FOR LOAD (CM)) 

BASE CASE 

( I 1  (2) 

OTHER LOAD 
RESLDENTIAL CO.MMM. I N D .  ENERGY UTILITY USE NET ENERGY FACTOR 

YEAR TOTAL CONSERVATION CONSERVATION REDUCTIONS* RETAIL WHOLESALE 8: LOSSES FOR LOAD (%) * *  
__.___.__ _____.----- -------.---.-_----.-- --I----.___-_ ---._____ _--.--._._.-.---. _-___.____._____ ___.__...-____._._.._________ 

1996 
I997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
200 I 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 I 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

35,8 I2 
35.753 
38.950 
40,376 
42,486 
42.200 
33.860 
45,232 
46,617 
48,250 

47,556 
49,165 
50.501 
51,590 
53,466 
54.699 
55,934 

58.485 
59,749 

57,222 

249 
268 
289 
312 
334 
354 
377 
400 
424 
445 

459 
414 
489 
504 
519 
536 
552 
568 
585 
585 

285 
317 
333 
339 
345 
349 
352 
357 
364 
3 63 

365 
368 
371 
3 74 
311 
380 
383 
386 
389 
389 

562 
563 
565 
565 
565 
564 
564 
564 
565 
564 

564 
564 
563 
564 
5 6 4  

564 
565 
564 
564 
564 

30.785 
30,850 
33,387 
33,441 
34,832 
35,263 
36.859 
37,937 
38.193 
39, I77 

39,475 
40,591 
41,816 
42,935 
44,006 
45.081 
46,150 
47,242 
48,341 
49.455 

2.089 
1.758 
2,340 
3.267 
3.732 
3,839 
3,173 
3.359 
4.301 
5.195 

4,038 
4,430 
4,4 IO 
4,323 
4,958 
5,083 
5.159 
5.263 
5,343 
5,419 

1.841 
1,997 

2.036 
2,152 
2,678 
1,831 
2.535 
2.595 
2,774 
2,506 

2,654 
2,738 
2.850 
2,890 
3,042 
3,055 
3.125 
3,199 
3,264 
3,337 

34.715 
34.605 
37.763 
39,160 
4 I242 
40.933 
42,567 
43.911 
45.268 
46,878 

46.167 
47.159 
49.076 
50,148 
52,006 
53,219 
54,434 
55,704 
56,948 
58,211 

44.9 
49.0 
53.9 
50.0 
50.5 
47.5 
50.0 
47.7 
56.5 
52.3 

58.3 
56.9 
57.1 

56.5 
56.4 
56.6 
56.5 
56.8 
56.9 
57.1 

* C o l m  (OTH) includes C~nsen~a t ion  Energy For Lighting and Public Authority Customers. Customer-Owned Self-remce Cogeneration 
and Load Control Programs. 

* *  Load Factors for historical years are calculated using the actual winter peak demand except the 1998 and 2004 historical load factors 
which are based on the actual summer peak demand 
Load Factors for future years are calculated using the net firm winter peak demand (Schedule 3.2.1) 

2-13 



PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 4 
PREVIOUS YEAR ACTUAL AND TWO-YEAR FORECAST OF PEAK DEMAND 

AND NET ENERGY FOR LOAD BY MONTH 

MONTH 
JANUARY 

FEBRUARY 
MARCH 
APRIL 
iMAY 
Jl-" 
JULY 

AUGUST 
SEPTEMBER 

OCTOBER 
NOVEMBER 
DECEiMBER 

A C T U A L  
2005 

PEAK 
DEMAND NEL 

Mw GWh 

7,398 3,106 
7,609 3,592 
7,011 3,283 
8,478 3,923 
8,927 4,215 

9,681 5,03 I 
9,090 4,461 
8,301 3,968 
6,424 3,215 
7,772 3,555 

10,226 3,582 

9,671 4,947 

I) 
0 
0 
0 

a 
0 
0 
a 
0 
a 
a 
a 

a 
a 
a 
a 
II 
a 
a 
a 

a 

a 

a 
a 
a 

a 
a 

4 
4 
4 
a 
a 
4 
a 
4 
4 
a 
4 
1 
4 
4 
a 

TOTAL 46,878 

(4) ( 5 )  
F O R E C A S T  

2006 
PEAK 

DE,MAND NEL 
1MW GWh 

6,992 3,133 

6,970 3,284 
8,025 4,04 1 

8,754 4,73 1 
8,771 4,748 
8,184 4,308 
7,692 3,837 
6,282 3,267 
7,767 3,578 

46,167 

9,047 3,566 

6,008 3,337 

8,595 4,337 

(6) (7) 
F O R E C A S T  

2007 
PEAK 

DEMAND m L  

MW GWh 
9,584 3,724 
7,455 3,273 
6,501 3,552 
7,467 3,438 
8,511 4,190 
8,9 14 4,450 
9,044 4,863 
9,084 4,885 
8,488 4,433 
7,963 3,952 
6,573 3,347 
7,860 3,652 

47,759 

2-16 



CHAPTER 3 

FORECAST OF FACILITIES REQUIREMENTS 

RESOURCE PLASNING FORECAST 

OVERVIEW OF CURREKT FORECAST 

Supply-side Resa u rces 

PEF has a summer total capacity resource of 10,413 MW, as shown in Table 3.1. This capacity 

resource includes nuclear (769 MW), fossil steam (3,882 M W ) ,  combined cycle plants (1,706 MW), 

combustion turbine (2,619 MW, 143 MW of which is owned by Georgia Power for the months June 

through September), utility purchased power (61 7 MW), and non-utility purchased power (820 

W). Table 3.2 shows PEF’s contracts for firm capacity provided by Qualifjmg Facilities (QF’s). 

Deman d-Side Programs 

Total DSM resources are shown in Schedules 3.1.1 and 3.2.1 of Chapter 2. These programs include 

Non-Dispatchable DSM, Interruptible Load, and Dispatchable Load Control resources. PEF’s 2006 

Ten-Year Site Plan Demand-Side Management projections are consistent with the DSM Goals 

established by the Commission in Docket No. 04003 1 -EG. 

Capacity and Demand Forecast 

PEF’s forecasts of capacity and demand for the projected summer and winter peaks are shown in 

Schedules 7.1 and 7.2, respectively. PEF’s forecasts of capacity and demand are based on serving 

expected growth in retail requirements in its regulated service area and meeting commitments to 

wholesale power customers who have entered into supply contracts with PEF. In its planning 

process, PEF balances its supply plan for the needs of retail and wholesale customers and endeavors 

to ensure that cost-effective resources are available to meet the needs across the customer base. 

Over the years, as wholesale markets have grown more competitive, PEF has remained active in the 

competitive solicitations while planning in a manner that maintains an appropriate balance of 

commitments and resources within the overall regulated supply framework. 

3-1 



Base Expansion Plan 

PEF’s planned supply resource additions and changes are shown in Schedule 8 and are referred to as 

PEF’s Base Expansion Plan. This Plan includes 3,910 net MW (summer rating) of proposed new 

capacity additions through the summer of 2015. As identified in Schedule 8, PEF’s next planned 

need is the Hines 4 Unit, a 461 MW (summer) power block with a December 2007 in-service 

date. PEF’s self-build option for Hines Unit 4 was determined to be the most cost-effective 

altemative, followed by the Bartow Repowering Project to be completed by June 2009. 

PEF’s Base Expansion Plan projects requirements for additional units with proposed in-service 

dates of 2007 through 2015. These units, together with the Central Power & Lime Purchase 

(December 2005 through December 2010), the TEA purchase (from June through September 

2006, December 2006 through February 2007, and June through September 2007), the Shady 

Hills Purchase (April 2007 through April 2014), and the Southern Company Purchase (June 2010 

through December 2015), help the PEF system meet the growing energy requirements of its 

customer base. Some of the identified unit additions may be impacted by PEF’s ability to extend 

or replace existing purchase power contracts, as well as contracts with cogenerators and QF’s. 

Status reports and specifications for new generation facilities are included in Schedule 9. Shown 

in Schedule 10 are the new transmission lines associated with Hines #4 and the Bartow Repowering 

Project. 

Current planning studies identify gas-fired units as the most economic alternatives for system 

expansion in the near term. The forecast of natural gas prices has risen to the point where new 

pulverized coal units appear to be a cost effective altemative. Uncertainties over future fuel price 

relationships, environmental regulations, and the ability to site new coal units in Florida will require 

ongoing re-evaluations of the coal option. New nuclear technologies appear to offer favorable long- 

term economics, and provide favorable environmental characteristics, measured against possible 

emission limits imposed by the recently issued Clean Air Jnterstate Rule (CAIR). PEF is currently 

evaluating the nuclear option with the intent to pursue preliminary licensing activities should 

suitable sites for new nuclear units be available. Currently, the expected lead time to site, license, 

engineer, and construct a new nuclear unit place its in-service date outside the ten-year planning 

horizon presented in ths  document. 
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PLANTS 

TABLE 3.1 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

TOTAL CAPACITY RESOURCES OF 
POWER PLANTS AND PURCHASED POWER CONTRACTS 

AS OF DECEMBER 31,2005 

SUMMER 
NUMBER NET DEPENDABLE 
OF UNITS CAPABILITY .~ 

(M w) 
Nuclear Steam 

Crystal River 
Total Nuclear Steam 1 769 

- I - 769 ( I )  

Fossil Steam 
Crystal River 
Anclote 
Bartow 
Suwannee River 

Total Fossil Steam 

Combined Cycle 
Hines Energy Complex 
Tiger Bay 

Total Combined cycle 

Combustion Turbine 
DeBary 
Intercession City 
Bayboro 
Bartow 
Suwannee 
Turner 
Higgins 
Avon Park 
University of Florida 
Rio Pinar 

Total Combustion Turbine 

Total Units 
Total Net Generating Capability 

4 
2 
3 
- 3 

12 

3 

4 
1 

10 
14 
4 
4 
3 
4 
4 
2 
I 
1 

47 

2,302 
993 
444 
- 143 

3,882 

1,499 
- 207 

1,706 

667 

184 
164 187 

I54 
122 
52 
35 

1,041 (2) 

2,619 13 

64 
8,976 

(I) Adus fed for sale of approxrmatelv 8 2% of /oral capacity 
(2) Includes 143 MW owned by Georgia Power Company (Jun-Sep) 

Purchased Power 
Qualifying Facility Contracts 
Investor Owned Utilities 

TOTAL CAPACITY RESOURCES 

19 
2 

3-3 

820 
617 

10,413 



AS OF DECEMBER 31,2005 

Firm 

Facility Name 
Bay County Resource Recovery 

Capacity 
(MW) 

11.0 

Cargill 

Dade County Resource Recovery 

El Dorado 

TABLE 3.2 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

15.0 

43.0 

114.2 

QUALIFYING FACILITY GENERATION CONTRACTS 

a 
e 
e 
e 
0 
0 
e 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
e 
0 
0 
e 
a 
a 
a 
0 
@ 
(I 
(I 
(I 
a 
a 
a 
(I 
a 
a 
a 
(I 
0 
0 
(I 

(I 
a 

a 

a 
a 
d 
a 
(I 

4." 

TOTAL 820.2 
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0 
0 
a 
0 
e 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
a 

0 
0 
0 
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SCXEDIJLE 8 
PLANKED \'D PSOSPECT'IVE CENER.ATMC FACILITY AODITIOKS AVO CHASGES 

AS OF J.LYU.-ZRY I. 2W6 THROCGH DECEMBER 31 2015 

ALL 

TK 

TK 

L V A  

TK 

TK 

TK 

;K 

KOTES 

-. 

D 
D 
D 
B 
D 
B 
B 
B 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
B 
D 
B 
D 
D 
D 
# 
B 
D 
D 
D 
D 
B 
D 
m 

B 
B 
B 
B 

B 
I, 
I, 
D 

HIKES EXERGY COMPLEX 

BARTOW C T  

CRYSTAL RIVER 

BARTOM' CC 

BARTOW 

CRYSTAL RIVER 

COMBUSTIOX TURBIKE 

COMBIKED CYCLE 

COMBUSTION TURBlh'E 

P-COAL. Supcruirlcal 

P.COAL. Supercrl~lcal 

COMBINED CYCLE 

ye LCLunmEBL 
4 POLK CC XG 

5 .  6 ?IKELLAS CT SG 

5 CITRUS ST BIT 

1 PIXELLAS CC SG 

1.3 .CIKELL,-ZS ST RFO 
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1 LKKKOWN cc NC 

2 UKKKOWK CT NC 

I CKKKOWN ST BIT 

2 ChXXOWK ST BIT 

2 LT\xp;OWS CC NG 

ALL 
DFO 

DPO 

DFO 

DFO 

DFO 

DFO 

DFO 

eBL 
PL 

PL 

WA 

PL 

WA 

W.A 

PL 

PL 

PL 

RR 

RR 

PL 

12,2005 

1212006 

12m06 

06,'2009 

01:2M9 

0612011 

06i2008 

06:2C'M 

01:2013 

(13) (141 (151 (15) I101 ( I l l  113 

C0M'LI.U. EXPECTED CEF; MAY. 

SERVICE RETIREMENT S4MEPLATE SCMMER WINTER 

l212M7 

12/20(38 

04!2004 
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06i2010 

06/2011 
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122) 

837 
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478 
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(22) 
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550 
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T50 
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Derauonr due IO FCG scruboer Inriallatior6 (2: 



DOCKET NO. 0 7 0 0 5 2 -  E1 
EXTRACT FROM PEF 2 0 0 7  TYSP 
FIPUG EXHIBIT 

ID # 2 2  

Progress Energy Florida 
Ten-Year Site Plan 

April 2007 

2007=2016 

Submitted to: 
Florida Public Service Commission 

tr P gressEnergy 



E1 4x7 NAME 

rU*CLOTE 
Ah'CMTE 
BMtTu" 
BARTOW 
BARTOW 
CRYSTAL W R  
CRYSTALRMR 
CRYSTAL R M R  
CRYSTAL R M R  
CRYSTAL R M R  
SUWAhNEE RlVER 
SWANNEE RNER 
SUWAhNEE WVER 

s I w 4  

HhTS ENERGY COMPLEX 
HNESENERGY COMPLEX 
HIMIi EXERGY COMPLEX 
TIGER BAY - 
AVON PARK 
AVONPARK 
B ART0 W 
BARTOW 
BARTOW 
BAYBORO 
DEBARY 
DEBMY 
DEBARY 
"S 
MCGlp;S 

INTERCESSION CITY 
Ih7ERCESSION C l T l  
LNTERCESSICN CITY 
hTERCESSION CrrY 
R10 PWAR 
SUWAhWE R M R  
SLWAhME RNER 
TURMR 
IURXER 
VJURMR 
~ T V ' .  OF .FLk 

(2) 

LN IT 
M 

1 

2 
I 
2 
3 
1 
2 
3 '  
4 
5 
I 
2 
3 

1 
2 
3 
I 

PI 
PZ 

P1,P3 
P2 
P4 

PI.P4 

PbP6 
P7-F9 
PI0 

PI-PI 
P3-P4 
?I.P6 
P7.PIO 
P l i  ** 
P 12-PI 4 

PI 
PI.?) 
P2 

PI.P2 
P3 
P4 

PI 

PROGRESS ESERGY FLORIDA 

SCWEDKE 1 
M1S"G GENEPATNG FACILmES 

As OF DECEMBER 31.ZW6 
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I997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
200 1 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 I 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDbIE 2.1 
HISTORY rL\D FORECAST OF E X R G Y  CONSLMPTION AND 

hTh4BER OF CUSTOMERS BY CUSTOMER CLASS 

PEF MEMBERS PER 
POPULATION HOUSEHOLD 

2,878,315 2.480 
2,941,589 2.487 
3,028,821 2.496 
3,026,469 2.452 
3,122,946 2.450 
3,191,315 2.452 
3,267,185 2.453 
3,348,917 2.454 
3,429,664 2.455 
3,5 12,066 2.453 

3,565,718 2.455 
3,629,609 2.450 
3,694,808 2.447 
3,762,611 2.446 
3,828,922 2.444 

3,895,566 2.442 
3,959,232 2.438 
4,025,804 2.436 
4,091,505 2.434 
4,155,712 2.432 

GWh 

AVERAGE 
NO. OF 

CUSTOMERS 

AVERAGE KWh 

COh’SLMPTlON 
PER CUSTOMER 

15,080 
16,526 
16,245 
17.116 
17,604 
18,754 
19,429 

19,347 

20,021 

20,891 
21,457 
22,026 
22,605 
23,192 
23,792 
24,404 
25,027 
25,693 
26,363 

19,894 

1,160,611 
1, I 82,786 
1,213,470 
1,234,286 
1,274,672 
1,301,515 
1.33 1,914 
1,364,677 
1,397,O I2 
1,43 1,743 

1,452,431 
1,48 1,473 
1,509,934 
1,538,271 
1,566,662 
1,595,236 
1,623,967 
1,652,629 
1,680,980 
1,708,763 

2 -4 

GWh 

AVERAGE 
NO. OF 

CUSTOMERS 

AVER4GE KN’h 

COKSLMPTION 
PER CUSTOMER 

12,993 
I 3,972 
13,387 

13,867 
13,811 
14,409 
14,587 
14,177 
14,240 
13,984 

14,383 
14,484 
14,587 
14,695 
14,803 
14,914 
15,027 
15,144 
15,285 
15,428 

9,257 
9,999 

10,327 

10,813 
11,061 
11,420 
I 1,553 
I 1,734 
I 1,945 
11,975 

12,340 
12,674 
13,009 
13,361 
13,708 
14,056 
14,417 
14,796 
15,202 
15,622 

132,504 
136,345 
140,897 
143,475 
146,983 
150,577 
154,294 

158,780 
161,001 
162,774 

167,150 
170,889 
174,552 
178,195 
I8 1,846 
185,520 
189,2 I3 
192,896 
196,539 

200,111 

69,862 
73,336 
73,295 
75,365 
75254 
75,842 
74,817 
73,901 
74,192 
73,568 

73,826 
74, I65 
74,528 
74,980 
75,382 
75,165 
76,195 
76,705 
77,349 
73,067 

0 
e 
0 
e 
0 
e 
a 
e 
e 

a 
e 
e 
e 
0 
a 
0 
0 
a 
a 
0 
0 

0 
a 
a 
a 
a 
a 
0 

e 

a 

a 

a 

a 
a 
a 
a 
a 
a 
1 



YEAR 
_-_ 

1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 

201 1 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
201 6 
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SCHEDLIE 2.2 
HISTORY AhQ FORECAST OF ENERGY CONSLMPTION A\D 

m B E R  OF CUSTOMERS BY CUSTOMER C U S S  

WDUSTXIAL 

STREET & OTHER SALES TOTAL SALES 
A E M G E  AVERAGE KWh RAILROADS HIGHWAY TO PUBLIC TO ULTIMATE 

NO. OF CONStMPTfON AKD RALWAYS LIGHTING ALTHORITIES CONSUMERS 
GVih CUSTOMERS PER CUSTOMER GWh GWh G W l  GWh 

4,188 
4,375 
4,334 
4,249 
3,872 
3,835 
4,001 
4,069 
4,140 
4, I60 

2,830 
2,707 
2,629 
2,535 
2.55 1 

2,535 
2,643 
2.733 
2.703 
2,697 

1,479,059 
1,616,180 
1,648,536 
1,676,134 
1,517,836 
1,512,82 I 
1 ,513,8 IO 
1,488,840 
1.53 1,632 
1,542,455 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

27 
27 
27 
28 
28 
28 
29 
28 
27 
27 

2,299 
2,459 
2,509 
2,626 
2,698 
2,822 
2.946 
3,016 
3,171 
3,249 

30,851 
33,386 
33,442 
34,832 
35,263 
36,859 
37,958 
38,194 
39,177 
39,432 

4,155 
4,393 
4,423 
1,451 
4,518 
4,544 
4,571 
4,599 
4,587 
4,587 

2.701 
2,701 
2,701 
2,70 1 

2,701 
2,701 
2,701 
2.701 
2,701 
2,701 

l,538,3 19 
1,626,435 
1,517,542 
1,647,908 
1,672,714 
1,682,340 
1,692,336 
1,702,703 
1,698,260 
1,698,260 

0 

0 
0 
5 
0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 

28 

28 

28 

28 

3,353 
3,457 
3,570 
3,682 
3,798 
3.916 
4,038 
4,164 
4,293 
4,427 

40,767 
42,009 
43,056 
44,127 
45,244 
46,336 
47,458 
48,614 
49,803 
51,027 
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SCHEDLZE 2.3 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND 

NLJMBER OF CUSTOMERS BY CUSTOMER CLASS 

(1 1 

YEAR 
--.-.----- 

1997 

1998 

1999 

2000 
200 1 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

201 1 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

(2) 

SALES FOR 
RESALE 

GWh 
--------------- 

1,758 

2,340 

3,267 

3,732 

3,839 
3,173 

3,359 
4,301 

5,195 
4,220 

4,524 

4,501 

4,527 

5,238 

5,363 

5,437 

5,542 

5,673 

5,795 

5,873 

(3) 

UTILITY USE 
& LOSSES 

GWh 
----___-_______ 

1,996 

2,037 
2,45 1 

2,678 

1,831 

2,535 
2,594 

2,773 

2,506 

2,389 

2,905 

2,958 

3,026 

3,151 

3,169 
3,244 

3,321 

3,445 

3,476 

3,560 

(4) 

NET ENERGY 
FOR LOAD 

GWh 
I--.---________ 

34,605 

37,763 

39,160 
41,242 

40,933 
42,567 

43,911 

45,268 

46,878 

46,041 

48,194 

49,468 
50,609 

52,516 

53,776 

55,017 

56,321 

57,732 

59,074 

60,460 

2-6 

(5) 

18,562 

19,013 
19,601 

20,003 

20,752 
21,156 

21,665 
22,437 

22,701 
23,182 

23,687 

24,280 
24,877 

25,474 

26,071 

26,669 

27,266 

27,864 

28,460 

29,058 

TOTAL 
NO. OF 

CUSTOMERS 

1,314,507 

1,340,851 
1,376,597 

1,400,299 
1,444,958 

1,475,783 
1,510,516 

1,548,627 

1,583,417 

1,620,396 

1,645,969 

1,679,343 

1,712,064 
1,744,641 

1,777,280 

1,810,126 

1,843,147 

1,876,090 

1,908,680 

1,940,633 

- 

0 
e 
e 
e 
e 

e 
a 
e 
0 

e 
0 
e 
a 
e 
a 
a 
a 
0 
0 
0 
0 
a 

a 

(I 

a 
a 
a 
4 
(I 

a 
a 
a 
a 
a 
a 
a 

1 
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SCHEDLLE 3 :.l 
HISTORY AVD FORECAST OF SUMMER PEAK D E h U X D  (MW) 

BASE CASE 

RESIDEh7Lb.L COMhi 'IND. OTHER 
COMU I E D  DEMAND D A D  WIDEATiAL LOAD 

YEAR TOTAL WHOLESALE RETAR INTERRUPTIBLE MAKAGEMENT COXSERVAXOY M * A G f M E h 7  CONSERVATION REDUCTIONS 
.-..... - -- -- ~ --.----- ______.---_____.__ _____-_. 

1997 

I998 

1999 
?WO 

2051 
2 w 2  

2W3 

2W4 

2055 

2006 

7,186 

8367 

9,039 

8,902 

8,832 

9,412 

8,877 

9,578 

10,345 
10,186 

874 

943 

1,326 

1319 

1,117 

1203 

887 

1,071 

1,118 

1.257 

6.912 

7,424 

7,713 

7,583 

7,715 

8209 

7,990 
8.507 

9227 

8.929 

288 

29 I 
292 

277 

283 

305 
3m 
531 

448 

329 

555 

438 
505 

455 

414 

359 
193 
355 

343 

319 

78 

97 

113 
127 

139 

153 
112 
188 
206 

216 

41 

42 

45 

48 

48 
43 

44 
39 

38 

37 

124 

134 

143 

146 
147 

150 

154 

155 
158 
161 

170 

182 
I 83 

75 
15 
71 

75 
110 

110 
110 

2W7 

2W8 
2009 
2010 

201 I 
2012 
2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

10.658 

10.927 

11.010 
11.318 

11.569 

I1.807 
l1.062 

12.437 

12.671 

12,906 

1.321 

1.337 
1,191 

I ,2 69 

1287 

1.2% 
1,320 
1,469 

1.483 
1.499 

9.337 

9 . m  
9,818 

10,049 

10.282 

10.511 
10.742 

10.968 

11.188 

I 1,407 

449 

4'3 

474 
479 

484 

485 
486 

483 

478 

477 

319 

332 

351 

372 
393 

414 
427 

438 
441 
441 

243 

259 

275 

292 

308 
325 

342 

360 
367 

367 

43 

52 

E l  
70 

80 
89 

98 
107 

110 
110 

168 
177 

1811 
194 

203 

211 
220 

229 
232 

232 

110 

110 

110 

110 

110 
I 10 

110 

110 

110 
I I O  

Hlrtoriol Values (1997.2006): 
Col. (2) - rscordcd peak + implcmcntcd load conml+ res~dmrial and commncialiindwnial conservation and cusromn-ound =if-smite cogmcmnon. 
Cols. [ 5 ) .  (9) = Reprevnr lofal cumulalivc capabitincr al pak Col. (8) imludcr commercial load manage" and simbay gcneranon. 
Cot. (OTH) -Cutomn-owncd self-wmcc ccgacraria.  

ProJrcted V n l w  (1007 -2016): 

Cols. (2). (4) = forecarted peak wirhoui load conml,  wnarvaiion, and cwtomcr.oumcd self-wmcc c o p m m o n .  
Colt. ( 5 ) .  (9) - cumularivc coasnvarioo and load conaol capabilitiw m pcdr Col. (8) lncludcr commcnial load managemmi and standby gmrratioh 

Col. (OTK) - cwromff-ount.3 5eE-serricc cogeneration. 
Cot (10)-(2)-(5).(6)-(7).(8)-(9).(OTH). 

c0i. (10) - (2) - ( 5 ) .  (q. (7) ~ ( 8 1 .  (9). (OTW. 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 
I) 
I) 
I) 
0 

0 
0 
0 
e 
I) 
0 
I) 
e 
I) 
I) 
0 
I) 

0 
0 
0 
0 
e 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 
8 
0 
e 
I) 

e 

.L 
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KET FIRhl 
DEMAVD 

6.531 

7.183 

7,756 

7,774 

7.726 

8,296 

7.738 

8.200 
9,0441 

9.003 

9.327 

9.525 
9.553 

9,992 

10,173 
10,379 

10,711 
10.932 

11.169 

9.801 



PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3.3.1 
HISTORY A N 3  FORECAST OF ANNUAL NET ENERGY FOR LOAD ( G m )  

BASE CASE 

1997 
1998 

I999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

I, 

e 
e 
e 
e 
0 

0 
m 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
I) 
0 
@ 
I) 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

0 
e 
0 
I) 
I) 
B 
D 

I) 

D 
I 
I) 
I) 

m 

Ir 

35,752 
38,949 
40,375 
42,486 
42,200 
43,860 
45J32 
46,835 
48,479 
47,680 

49,878 
51,201 
52,389 
54,344 
55,652 
56,942 
58,293 
59,752 
6 1,094 
62,481 

268 
289 
312 
334 
354 
317 
400 
427 
460 

495 

522 
552 
582 
612 
642 
672 
702 
732 
732 
132 

317 
333 
339 
345 
349 
352 
357 
360 
3 63 
365 

383 
40 1 

419 
437 
455 
473 
49 1 
509 
509 
509 

562 
564 
564 
565 
564 
564 
564 
780 
779 
779 

779 
780 

779 
779 
779 
780 
779 
779 
779 
780 

30,850 
33,387 
33,441 
34,832 
35,263 
36,859 
37957 
38,193 
39,177 
39,432 

40,166 
42,009 
43,055 
44,127 
45943 
46,337 
47,457 
48,614 
49,802 
5 1,027 

1.758 
2,340 
3,267 
3,732 
3,839 
3,173 
3,359 
4,301 
5.195 
4,220 

4,524 
4,501 
4,527 
5,238 
5,363 
5,437 
5,542 
5,673 
5,795 
5,873 

1.997 
2,036 

2,452 
2,678 
1,831 

2,535 
2,595 
2,774 
2.506 
2,389 

2,904 
2,958 
3,027 
3,151 
3,170 
3,243 
3,322 
3,445 
3,477 
3,560 

34,605 
37,763 
39,160 
4 1,242 
40,933 
42,567 
43,911 
45,268 
46,878 

46,041 

48.194 
49,468 
50,609 
52,516 
53,776 
55,017 
56,321 
57,732 
59,074 
60,460 

49.0 
53.9 
50.0 
50.5 
47.5 
50.0 
47.7 
56.5 
52.3 
52. I 

56.7 
56.6 

57.6 
57.3 
57.5 
57.0 
57.0 
57.3 
57.4 
57.2 

* Column (OTH) includes Conservation Energy For Lighting and Public Authority Customers, Customer-Owned Self-service Cogeneration 
and Load Control Programs. 

** Load Facrors for historical yean are cal~~lated using the actual winter peak demand except &e 1998 and 2004 historical load fanors 
which are based on the actual summer peak demand 
Load Factors for future yeas are calculated using the net firm winter peak demand (Schedule 3.2. I) 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 4 
PREVIOUS YEAR ACTUAL AND TWO-YEAR FORECAST OF PEAK DEMAND 

AND NET ENERGY FOR LOAD BY MONTH 

MONTH 
JANUARY 

FEBRUARY 
MARCH 
APRIL 
MAY 
JUNE 
.JULY 

AUGUST 
SEPTEMBER 

OCTOBER 
NOVEMBER 
DECEkBER 

(2) (3) 
A C T U A L  

2006 
PEAKDEMAND NEL 

1MW GWh 
7,870 3,390 
10,095 3,191 
6,44 1 3,286 
7,837 3,582 
8,382 4,020 
9,349 4,401 
9,462 4,699 
9,689 4,920 
8,794 4,270 
8,286 3,763 
6,415 3,192 
6,792 3,327 

(4) (5) 
F O R E C A S T  

2007 
PEAKDEMAND NEL 

Mw GWh 
9,705 3,712 
7,862 3,257 
6,692 3,509 
7,387 3,498 
8,482 4,271 
8,905 4,478 
9,156 4,867 
9,327 4,919 

7,975 3,982 
6,463 3,426 
7,529 3,781 

8,553 4,434 

* 
e 
e 
e 
e 
e 

e 
e 

e 
e 

e 
e 
e 

a 

a 

e 
0 

a 
0 
I) 

0 
0 
0 
a 
0 
0 

a 
a 
1 
a 
a 
(I 
(I 
(I 

a 
4 

a 

a 

a 
a I 

a 
a 

TOTAL 
- 
46,041 48,194 

(6) (7) 
F O R E C A S T  

2008 
PEAKDEMAND NEL 

MW GWh 
9,943 -3,914 
8,014 3,383 
6,863 3,63 1 
7,540 3,576 
8,672 4,361 
9,071 4,574 
9,337 4,985 
9,525 5,047 

8,202 4,076 
6,569 3,502 
7,717 3,882 

49,468 

8,729 4,537 

NOTE: "Actual" = "Total" - "Intermptible" - "Res. LM" - "C/I LM" - "Voltage Reduction & Standby Generation" 
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CHAPTER 3 
FORECAST OF FACILITIES REQUIREMENTS 

RESOURCE PLANNING FORECAST 

OVERVIEW OF CURRENT FORECAST 

Supply-side Resources 
PEF has a summer total capacity resource of 10,752 MW, as shown in Table 3.1. This capacity 

resource includes nuclear (769 MW), fossil steam (3,903MW), combined cycle plants (1,659 MW), 

combustion turbine (2,513 M W ,  143 MW of which is owned by Georgia Power for the months June 

through September), utility purchased power (484 MW), independent power purchases (61 1 MW), 

and non-utility purchased power (813 MW). Table 3.2 shows PEF’s contracts for firm capacity 

provided by Qualifyng Facilities (QF’s). 

Demandaide Programs 
Total DSM resources are shown in Schedules 3.1.1 and 3.2.1 of Chapter 2. These programs include 

Non-Dispatchable DSM, Interruptible Load, and Dispatchable Load Control resources. PEF’s 2007 

Ten-Year Site Plan Demand-Side Management projections are consistent with the DSM Goals 

established by the Commission in Docket No. 04003 1 -EG. 

Capaci& and Demand Forecast 
PEF’s forecasts of capacity and demand for the projected summer and winter peaks are shown in 

Schedules 7.1 and 7.2, respectively. PEF’s forecasts of capacity and demand are based on serving 

expected growth in retail requirements in its regulated service area and meeting commitments to 

wholesale power customers who have entered into supply contracts with PEF. In its planning 
process, PEF balances its supply plan for the needs of retail and wholesale customers and endeavors 

to ensure that cost-effective resources are available to meet the needs across the customer base. 

Over the years, as wholesale markets have grown more competitive, PEF has remained active in the 

competitive solicitations while planning in a manner that maintains an appropriate balance of 

commitments and resources within the overall regulated supply framework. 

3-1 



PEF’s Base Expansion Plan projects the need for additional units with proposed in-service dates 

from 2007 through 2016. These units, together with the OUC purchase (December 2006 - 

February 2007), the Central Power & Lime purchase (December 2005 - December 2010), the 

Reliant/OsceoIa purchase (January 2007 - February 2009), the TEA purchase (from January 
2007 - February 2007, and June 2007 - September 2007), purchases currently under negotiation 

for the summers of 2007 and 2008, the Shady Hills Purchase (April 2007 - April 2024), and the 

Southern Company Purchase (June 2010 - December 2017) help the PEF system meet the 
growing energy requirements of its customer base. Additionally, some undesignated seasonal 

purchases for 2007 and 2008 are projected as well to meet requirements. Some of the identified 

unit additions may be impacted by PEF’s ability to extend or replace existing purchase power 

contracts, as well as contracts with cogenerators and QF’s. Status reports and specifications for 

new generation facilities are included in Schedule 9. Shown in Schedule 10 are the new 

transmission lines associated with Hines #4 and the Bartow Repowering Project, 

Current planning studies identify gas-fired units as the most economic altematives for system 

expansion in the near term. New nuclear technologies appear to offer more favorable long-term 

economics, and provide favorable environmental characteristics, measured against possible 

emission limits imposed by the recently issued Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAR). PEF is currently 

evaluating the nuclear option with the intent of pursuing preliminary licensing activities for the 

addition of new nuclear capacity in 2016. In the years prior to the addition of new nuclear capacity, 

PEF also is investigating the possibility of coal gasification as a fuel source for one of the combined 

cycle facilities listed in the resource plan. 

3 -2 

Base Expansion Plan 

PEF’s planned supply resource additions and changes are shown in Schedule 8 and are referred to as 

PEF’s Base Expansion Plan. This Plan includes a net gain in summer capacity of 3,575 M W s  
through the summer of 2016. As identified in Schedule 8, PEF’s next planned unit is the Hines 4 

Unit, a 461 MW (summer) power block with a December 2007 in-service date. PEF’s self-build 

option for Hines Unit 4 was determined to be the most cost-effective alternative, followed by the 

Bartow Repowering Project to be completed by June 2009. 
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TABLE 3.1 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

TOTAL CAPACITY RESOURCES OF 
POWER PLANTS AND PURCHASED POWER CONTRACTS 

AS OF DECEMBER 31,2006 

SUMMER 
NUMBER NET DEPENDABLE 
OF UNITS CAPABILITY PLANTS 

Nuclear Steam 

Total Nuclear Steam 

(MW) 

1 769 
- 1 22 (1) crystal River 

Fossil Steam 

Anclote 
Barrow 
Suwannee River 

Total Fossil Steam 

crystal River 

Combined Cycle 
Hines Energy Complex 
Tiger Bay 

Total Combined cycle 

Combustion Turbine 
DeBary 
Intercession City 
Bayboro 
Bartow 
Suwannee 
Turner 
Higgins 
Avon Park 
University of Florida 
Rio Pinar 

Total Combustion Turbine 

Total Units 
Total Net Generating Capability 

4 
2 
3 
3. 

12 

3 
1 
4 
- 

10 
14 
4 
4 
3 
4 
4 
2 
1 
1 

47 

2,313 
1,005 

444 - 141 
3,903 

1,456 

1,659 
m 

643 
992 (2) 
177 
176 
157 
150 
110 
50 
45 
13 

2,513 

64 
8,844 

(1) Adjusted for sale of approximatei) 8.2% of Iota1 capacity 
(2) Includes 143 W o w n e d  by Georgia Power Company (Jun-Sep) 

Purchased Power 
Qualifying Facility Contracts 
Investor O w e d  Utilities 
Independent Power Producers 

TOTAL CAPACITY RESOURCES 
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19 
2 
2 

813 
484 
61 1 

10,752 



IKSTA-LED CAPACITY CAPACITY 

CAPACITY IMWRT EXPORT 

Mw Mw w 
8.7Dl 1.661 . a 
--- 

9.175 1.503 . 
9.Bdl 1.085 0 

9.891 1,253 0 

S.926 1,370 0 

10.011 1.530 0 

lO.614 I .5m 0 

11.151 I.00 0 

11.151 1.330 0 

12.276 1.459 0 

( 5 )  Is] n 18) (91 (14 
TOTAL SYSTEMFIRU 

CAPACrrY SUMMER PEAK RESERVE M A X G N  SCHEDULED 

QF AVAILABLE DEMAND BEFORE h4AI.YTFSANCE MAINTENANCE 

W M W  Mw -- MW %OFPEAK w 
8(13 11.16s 9,327 1 838 20% 0 

7% 11.477 9.325 1.812 zc% 0 

-_I_ 

11.635 9,553 2.w2 22% 

11.919 8,801 2.118 22% 

658 

775 
0 

0 

775 12,071 8.992 2.078 21% D 

775 12.m 10.173 1.209 22% 0 

665 12.808 10.379 2.430 23% 0 

tn 13.118 io.rii 2.418 23% 0 

478 13.159 10.933 2.226 m 0 

14.213 13,188 3.M4 27% 478 
0 

YEAR 

2001 
.__ 

2m 

2039 

2010 

MI1 

2011 

2013 

2014 

10l3 

2016 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 7.1 

FORECAST OF CAPACITY. DEMAND AND SCHEDULED MAMEYLVCE 

AT TIME OF SLMMER Pw( 

RESERVE MARGlJ  

MW %OFPEAK 
1,818 2m 
-- 

1.952 2U% 

2082  22% 

2,118 22% 

2 me 21% 

2.m 22% 

3.M4 27% 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 8 
PLANKED Ah3 PROSPECTIVE GEA'EUT'LNC FACILITI ADDInOliS k"lD CHAKCES 

AS OFJANCARY I. 2006 THROUGH DECEUBER 31. 2016 

LNT LOCATIOh UYIT E!& START 

L L A I a u S  m I I Z m m 9 L L  
h7.W I POLX cc 

HlNES 4 POLK CC NG DFO 

HINES 

TIGER BAY 

CRYSTAL RIVER 

CRYSTAL NVER 

CRYSTAL IUVER 

BARTOW 

BARTOW 

CRYSTAL RIVER 

CRYSTAL RIVER 

HNES 

CRYSTAL W'ER 

CRYSTAL RIVER 

U ? I C O W T T E D  

UNCOMMITTED 

UNCOMMITTED 

1 

I 

4 

5 

5 

1-3 

1 

3 

4 

1 

3 

1 

I 

2 

3 

POLK cc 
POLK CC 

CITRUS ST 

Cri'RUS ST 

CITRUS ST 

P L W L A S  ST 

PNELLAS CC NC DFO 

CITRUS ST 

ClTRUS ST 

P a x  cc 
C m t C S  ST 

CITRUS ST 

LYKXOWK cc NC DFO 

UNKUOM CC KC DFO 

LNKNOWh' NP NUC -. 

ESL 

Pl 

PL 

PL 

PL 

RR 

Au; 

TK 

WA 

TK 

TX 

uu.xB 

I Y2005 

I UZOB 

MI2010 

Mi201 1 

01/2010 

SERVICE RETIREclEhT NAhlEPLXTE SUMMER W I N k R  

W L u  
12I2Wl 

lU2W7 

Q512LQ8 

OJlZLQ8 

11/2a)8 

0412MB 

0512009 

0612009 

1uzm 

04l2010 

06/2011 

lU2011 

0312012 

0612013 

0612014 

0612018 

1 

517 

2 

10 

10 

1x1 

10 

(4641 

1279 

40 

I301 

0 

I10 

11 

618 

618 

1125 

A 

V 

A 

A 

A 

D 

A 

Rp 

Rp 

A 

D 

A 

x 

A 

P 

P 

P 

K O W  
(I) Commirred new unit 

(0 
(3) P l m d  upraru. 
(4) Repowerfig 

P I 4  deralions due lo FCD scrubber lnnallariom 
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EXHIBIT NO. 

DOCKET NO: 

WITNESS: 

PARTY: 

DESCRIPTION: 

DOCUMENTS: 

070052-E1 

VARIOUS 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA, INC. 

STAFF’S EXHIBIT 

Progress Energy Florida’s response to Staff Interrogatory (No. 5) in Docket Number 060642, Crystal 
River. 

PROFFERED BY: STAFF 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



5. Please provide a detailed breakdown of the $2,664,166,852 fuel savings value contained 
in Exhibit SSW-2 to Witness Waters’ September 22, 2006, prefiled direct testimony as 
follows: 
a. 

b. 

a. 

b. 

Differential energy generated for each capacity type (steam-coal, steam-oillgas, 
steam-combined cycle, combustion turbine, nuclear, cogen, purchased power, and any 
others); and 
Differential dollar value and energy generated for each individual generating unit. 

Please see Attachment 1. The data presented in Attachment 1 is through 2025 
only @lease see the answer to Interrogatory No. 4). The annual savings shown in 
Attachment 1 sum to the total $1,444,373,714. 

Please see Attachment 2. 



Progress Energy Florida 
Docket No. 060642-E1 
Response to Staff Interrogatory No. S 
Attachment 1 

w 
!&rate mlnus Bate 

SlatlonQmup 

Copen 

CT 

OSM 

Nudear 

Staam-CC 

Steam-Coal 

Sleam-Oll 

Purc(Emn+FimwE.N S) 

TmnEcnn-Sale + Dum0 

229.3 

(1.1) 

10.11 

0.0 

11.2 

(10.6) 

1.3 

1.5 

(2.2) 

(0.0) 

lsle 
0.0 

(8.21 

(0.21 

339.9 

(231.6) 

(36.8) 

(32 2)  

(32.9) 

(0.0) 

Zm 
(0.91 

(7.7) 

(0.2) 

415.9 

(310.61 

(32 7) 

119.7) 

(4 6) 

0.5 

1p12 

(2.8) 

(41.0) 

10.5) 

1533.8 

(929.8) 

(19; 4) 

(201 9) 

(163 7) 

(1.5) 

all2 
0.5 

(20.8) 

(0.8) 

14164 

(923.6) 

(240 8)  

(86 4) 

(1438) 

0.5 

2e1l 

(1.8) 

(10.5) 

(0.SI 

1529.6 

(910.1) 

(358.6) 

(125.8) 

(QQ 0) 

(3 6) 

Z Q E  

11.6) 

(36.2) 

(1.4) 

1416.6 

(8d7.8) 

(y1 0) 

(80.6) 

(104 7) 

(0 6) 

2pil 

12.81 

(20.2) 

10.31 

1533.8 

(960.0) 

(376 0) 

I76 4) 

(103.7) 

(2 4) 

feiL 
(1.4) 

(i9.a) 

(1.31 

1402.2 

1811.3) 

(370 5) 

(91 0) 

(86.5) 

(1 3) 

zpie 

(8.61 

(18.5) 

10.0) 

1493.3 

(884.71 

(505.1) 

(82.5) 

(8.8) 

(r.4) 

B2.Q 

(10.1) 

(32 1) 

11.7) 

1506.3 

1927.8) 

1417.1) 

c19 9) 

(20.2) 

(17.71 

m 
(10.2l 

(43.1) 

0.0 

1387.0 

(703.1) 

(467 4) 

(124.6) 

(21.6) 

(17.7) 

2!?22 

(14.0) 

112.6) 

0.0 

1457.7 

(890.6) 

(458.4) 

(51 0) 

111.0) 

(20.3) 

m 
(18.7) 

(20.2) 

(0.4) 

1345.8 

(818.2) 

(403.8) 

(46 5 )  

(14.4) 

(25 8 )  

aeu 
(15.5) 

120.6) 

0.0 

1459.3 

(846.6) 

(472 9) 

isa 81 

I15 5)  

(27 5)  

f15.0) 

121.9) 

(0.01 

1389.8 

(873.2) 

(385 3) 

(66 9) 

(20.4) 

n 1) 
P9 UDrale . Julu OFF Bass 

StsHonCmup 

Cogen 

CT 

OSM 

Nudear 

sta.mCc 

Seam-Cod 

Sle.mOll 

PuryEcon+FWE.N S) 

TrsnEmn-Sale Dum0 

fppl 

4.551.4 

1.870.5 

5.6 

5.089.1 

15.223.5 

15.200.8 

3,611.7 

5.~17.2 

(389.6) 

reip 

5.312.2 

1.5964 

4,4 

6,636 4 

15.820.7 

16.188 3 

2.040.7 

4.688.2 

(386.3) 

1911 
5.314.6 

1,674.7 

4.7 

8,143.5 

18.609.3 

18.620.9 

3,021.7 

2,775.7 

(387.5) 

m 
5.332.9 

1.61 1.7 

0.5 

6.854.5 

20.158.4 

15401.8 

3.099.0 

2.776.2 

(385.8) 

El4 

5.311.6 

1.588.5 

0.7 

6.038.4 

17,7456 

21,400.0 

2.895.3 

2.371.8 

(390.9) 

2 u  

5.309.4 

1.BB5.1 

3.3 

6.143.9 

18.355 5 

22.395.4 

2.857.8 

2.510.5 

(391.1) 

2p12 

5.32l.O 

1.550.5 

0.3 

6.8545 

16,255.4 

28.363.4 

2.740.1 

1.705.2 

(389.7) 

2El.T 

5,312.4 

1.691.5 

3.8 

6.735.7 

17.358.2 

25.975.8 

2.924.3 

1.875.4 

(388.1) 

zpie 

5.2S0.0 

1,580.3 

0.0 

14.7wl.3 

13,389.4 

24.892.4 

2.685.7 

798.8 

(403.8) 

rpLe 

5.295.9 

1.580.5 

0.0 

14.304.9 

15.057.4 

24.no.e 

2,781.1 

814.6 

(403.0) 

2su 
5.308 2 

1.641.6 

8.9 

14,842 5 

15.478 8 

24,902 4 

2.853 7 

855 0 

(402 4) 

m 
5.206.8 

1.861.5 

3.7 

14.056.2 

16.200.0 

25.268.8 

2.958.3 

867.0 

(410.6) 

2e22 

5.282.6 

1.534.8 

a922 

5,275.0 

1.542 4 

0 8  

22.307.5 

13.888 3 

23.548 8 

2.887 9 

804.7 

(431 0) 

m.4 
5.280.5 

1,564.6 

0.7 

22243.7 

14.086 3 

23,888.4 

2.628.4 

812.5 

(443.0) 

aeu 
5.276.8 

1.631.9 

2.7 

22.341.6 

15.487.9 

23.911 7 

2.827 6 

835.7 

(442.0) 

5.3142 

1.580.3 

2.8 

6,143.1 

19,112.3 

19.418.7 

2.678.0 

2.518.0 

(388.2) 

22.754.3 

12.830.4 

22.857.7 

2.523.4 

793.2 

(453 3) 

m t r  ~ CR3 1eOMWs Study 

SIsllonQmup 

Cogen 

CT 

DSM 

Nuchr  

stem-cc 

Steam-Cod 

Slesmoll 

Pm(Eun*Fh+E.N.S) 

TmnEmn-Sale + Dump 

a9.2 
4.550.3 

1.070.4 

5.6 

S.100.3 

15.212.9 

15.281.D 

3.613.2 

5,ns.o 

(380.r) 

2p1p 

5.312.2 

1,590.2 

4.2 

6.970.3 

15.589.1 

16.131.5 

2.908.4 

4.655.3 

(386.4) 

rpLi 

5.313.7 

1.687.0 

4.4 

8.559.4 

18.298.7 

16.588.2 

3.002.0 

2.731.1 

(387.1) 

1piz 

5.330.1 

1.570.6 

0.0 

8.188.3 

19228.4 

15.000.4 

2.897.0 

2,812.5 

(387.3) 

ai2 

5.314.7 

1.559.7 

2.1 

?.559.7 

18,188.7 

19,177.0 

2.589.6 

2.373.3 

( S 5 . r )  

Z!w 

5.300 8 

1.538.0 

0.2 

8,luE.O 

16.835.5 

21,041.4 

2,788.8 

2272.9 

(304.5) 

2x6  

5.307.9 

1,629.9 

1.9 

1.5do.5 

17.507.9 

z2.050.4 

2.777.2 

2.405.8 

(391.7) 

t91p 

5.325.2 

1,530.3 

0.1 

8.108.3 

15.305.4 

25.985.4 

2.863.7 

1.001.4 

(392.1) 

3912 

5.310.0 

1.652.4 

2.5 

8.137.9 

18.544.8 

25.605.3 

2,8 3 3.3 

1.788.9 

(380.4) 

t9ip 

5.287.4 

1.581.8 

0.0 

16.219.8 

12.504.7 

24,1873 

2.823.1 

792.2 

(411.0) 

w 
5.280.9 

1.538.6 

z!w 
5,298.1 

1,609.5 

7.2 

16,348.8 

14.551.1 

24,485.2 

2.778 8 

8248 

(420.1) 

asti 
5.288 8 

1.6185 

3,7 

16.344 1 

15,497 6 

24,709.5 

2.833.5 

M5.5 

(426.3) 

?pzf 

5.248.5 

1.522.3 

24.212.0 

11.939.9 

22.399.4 

2.472.4 

782.2 

(473.6) 

m.3 

5.257.2 

1.522.1 

0.5 

23.653.3 

12,850.1 

23,144.7 

2.641.4 

790.3 

(4sS.8) 

29-44 

5.265.0 

1.544 1 

0.7 

24,303.0 

13.240.8 

23.423.5 

2.580 6 

797.0 

(470.4) 

&-!E! 

5,262.7 

1,600.1 

2.1 

23,701.7 

14.859.7 

23,574 1 

2.760.7 

812.9 

(469.3) 

15.694.7 

14.184.1 

24.385.3 

2.604.1 

794.2 

(410.1) 
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PEF CR3 Uprate 
Uprate minus Base 
GWh 

ANNUAL 

CRNUC 3 
2009 

1 1  
- 201 0 

340 
- 201 1 

416 
- 201 2 

1,534 

0 
0 

- 

1.534 
- 0 

-5 1 
-52 
-40 
-49 
0 
0 
- -1 92 

201 3 
1,417 
- - 201 5 

1.417 
2016 
1,534 

0 
0 

- 

!,534 

-45 
0 

-59 
-82 
-83 
-51 
-57 
- -378 

-23 
-45 
0 
0 
0 
-2 
-6 
-1 

0 

201 7 
1,404 
- 201 9 

1,41 
7 

-27 
0 

!,39 - 0 
0 

4 9  
-66 
-67 
-75 
-82 
- -385 

0 
-35 
-28 
0 
0 
0 
-1 
0 
-3 - -67 
0 

- 

-46 

- 

-218 

-1 58 
-29 
-81 
-137 
-201 
-50 
-873 - 
- -22 
- -20 
- -1 5 
-7 
0 

2020 
1,534 

-2 7 
0 

- 

!.sos 

0 
-52 
-53 
-7 5 
-76 
-82 
-79 

-41 7 
0 

-28 
0 
0 
0 
-1 
-1 
0 - -80 
0 

- 

- 
-49 

-226 

-194 
-54 
-142 
-97 
-144 
-70 

- 2021 
1,417 
- - - -  2022 2023 2024 2025 
1,530 1,417 1,534 1,417 

0 
0 

11 

0 
1 
0 
0 
1 
0 
0 
I 

0 
2 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

- 
- 

- - 0 

0 
0 
- 340 

0 
-9 
-15 
-7 
-6 
0 
0 
- -37 
- 0 

- 

-14 
-16 
0 
0 
0 

-1 
0 

-1 

0 
0 

416 
0 

-9 
-10 
-7 
-6 
0 
0 
- -33 

- 

NUC Future 1 
NUC Future 2 

Nuclear, Total 

Steam-Coal 
Crystal 1 
Crystal 2 
Crystal 4 
Crystal 5 
PVCOAL 1 
PVCOAL 2 
Steam-Coal, Total 

Steam-Oil 
Anclote 1 
Anclote 2 
BARTOW 1 
BARTOW 2 
BARTOW 3 
SUWANNEE 1 
SUWANNEE 2 
SUWANNEE 3 

0 
0 

?,417 

0 
4 4  
-73 
-62 
-54 
-8 
0 

- 

0 
0 

_1,530 

0 
0 

j,417 

-2 
0 

1,402 

-46 
0 

-56 
-85 
-89 
-46 
-48 
-370 

0 
-34 
-45 
0 
0 
0 
-1 
-3 
-7 

- 
- 

-36 
0 

1.493 

0 
-53 
-67 
-96 
-95 
-92 

-1 02 
- -505 

0 

-1 5 
0 
0 
0 
0 
-1 
-2 

-45 

-25 
-4 

?.388 

-28 -32 -33 -25 
-44 -39 -41 -3 1 

1.458?,346=?,360 

0 
-59 

- 0 
-57 

0 
-49 

- 0 0 - 0 0 
-50 -48 -47 -42 

-7 1 
-83 
-85 
-60 
0 

-359 
0 

-51 
-53 
0 
0 
0 
-6 
4 

-1 2 

- 
- 

-76 
-8 1 
-76 
49 
-7 
- -345 

0 

-31 
0 
0 
0 
-5 
-2 
-3 

-45 

-53 
-98 
-95 
-8 1 
-92 - -467 
0 

-68 
0 
0 
0 
-2 
-1 
-7 

-1 25 
0 

4 6  

- 
-223 

-62 -51 -60 -46 
-82 -74 -87 -70 
-81 -76 -83 -64 
-93 -78 -90 -72 
-9 1 -77 -105 -75 - -241 

- 0 
-27 

458 404 -473 -369 - - - -  
0 - 0 - 0 0 - 

-32 -26 -33 -31 
- 0 

-1 1 
0 

-94 
- 

-94 0 

0 
0 
-3 
-2 

-1 0 

-34 
0 
0 
0 

-4 
-3 
-20 
- -88 
0 

-346 

-143 
-32 

-1 56 
-141 
-52 
-53 
- -924 
- -21 

-23 -9 -28 -30 
0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 
1 -3 1 -1 
0 -4 -2 -1 
-2 2 2 -2 - -51 - -46 -59 -67 
0 0 0 0 

-207 -259 -243 -184 

2 
- 0 

-2 1 

- - -32 
0 

-24 

- -20 

-1 16 
0 
- -202 

- 0 
-1 26 

0 
-32: 

- - -81 
0 

-374 

- -76 
0 

-266 

-91 
0 

-230 

- - -63 
0 

-237 -496 

-119 
-77 
-89 
-9 1 
-66 
8 

-930 
4 1  
- 
- 

-1 64 

-1 
0 

0 

- - -3 

- 

1 
CCF 1 
HINES 1 
HINES 2 
HINES 3 
HINES 4 
TIGERBAY 1 

Steam-CC, Total 
CT. Total 

Tran-Purc. Total 
Coaen. Total 

Sales 
DSM 

Total Load 

-1 92 
-48 
-100 
-1 55 
-1 90 

-4 
-890 
-1 3 
-1 1 
-14 
-20 
0 

- 
- 
- 
- 

-1 03 
-88 

-1 30 
-1 09 
-1 14 
-1 2 
-816 - 
- -20 
-1 4 
-1 9 
-26 

0 

- 
- 

-1 76 
-51 
-90 
-141 
-122 
-26 
_I -849 
-21 
-1 6 
-1 5 
-27 
0 

- 
- 
- 

-171 
-96 
-98 

-1 12 
-146 
-20 
-828 - 
- -32 
-23 
-14 
-27 
-1 

- 
- 

-66 
17 

-a0 
-26 
-7 1 
25 

-1 34 
-38 
-112 
-1 33 
-1 38 
-33 
- -91 0 
- -30 
- -99 
- -2 
-4 
0 

- 0 

-1 48 
-52 
-94 
-92 

-1 04 

- -848 

-1 05 
-1 
-1 
-1 

16 

- -35 
- 
- 

-2 44 
-38 
-63 
-145 
-232 
-67 - -950 
-20 

-1 04 

-2 
0 

- 
- 
-3 - 

- 0 

-1 56 
-5 1 

-1 97 
-101 
-26 
-50 
-81 1 
-39 
- -8 6 
-1 - 
-1 
-1 

- 
- 

-1 89 
-1 7 
-148 
-103 
-98 
-92 

-126 
-34 
-77 

-1 18 
-1 00 
-34 

0 
-2 
-4 
-5 
18 
3 

0 
-1 5 
-1 9 
-32 
-117 
-24 
- -232 
-6 

0 
0 
0 

- 
-33 - 
- 

-885 
-1 8 
- 
- 

_. -928 
- -32 

-1 0 
-1 8 

- -20 
- 

-703 

-22 
-1 0 
-1 8 

- - -43 
- 
- 

-1 1 
0 
- 
- 

- -31 1 
-8 
-45 
- 

-144 
0 
- 

- 
- -7 
-9 
-7 
0 

- 
-2 - 
-1 
0 
0 

- -1 
0 
0 

- 0 

- 
1 
-1 

0 - 

-2 

- 0 
0 

- 0 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - - 0 0 - 0 - - 0 0 - 0 - 
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PEF CRl Uprate 
July 2006 Generation L Fuel Forec8st. 
GWh 

Florida 

ANNUAL 
2009 

CRNUC 3 5.089 
NUC Future 1 
NUC Future 2 

- 

Nuclear, Total 5,089 

2010 

6,636 

- " 2 0 1 3  

6,143 6,655 6,143 

10.14 2015 2016 2017 2018 20.19 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 

6,636 6,144 6,655 6,089 6,636 6,143 6,655 6,144 6.636 6.143 6,655 6,143 
646 8,160 8,162 8.188 8.169 8,095 8,116 8.133 8.130 

643 8.023 8,048 8.056 8,068 
6.636 6.144 6.655 6.736 .14.796 14.305 14.842 14.956 12.754 22,308 22.844 22,342 6,636 

Steam-Coat 
Crystal 1 
Crystal 2 
Crystal 4 
Crystal 5 
PVCOAL 1 
PVCOAL 2 

Steam-Coal, Total 

Steam-Oil 
Anclote 1 
Anclote 2 
BARTOW 1 
BARTOW 2 
BARTOW 3 
SUWANNEE 1 
SUWANNEE 2 
SUWANNEE 3 

Steam-OIL Total 

Steam-CC 
BARTOW CC REP 
1 
CCF 1 
HlNES 1 
HINES 2 
HINES 3 
HlNES 4 
TIGERBAY 1 

Steam-CC. Total 

G I  
AVONPK 1 
AVONPK 2 
BARTOW 1 
BARTOW 2 
BARTOW 3 
BARTOW 4 
BAYBORO 1 
BAYBORO 2 
BAYBORO 3 
BAYBORO 4 
CTBar 1 
CTBat 2 
CTFG 1 
CTFG 2 

2,500 
2.870 
5,309 
4,581 

2,395 
3,069 
5,553 
5,151 

2,679 2,404 2,257 
2.892 2,709 3,117 
5,398 5,386 5,310 
5,652 5,303 5,237 

3,498 

"19.419 

2,461 2,364 2,240 2,404 2,031 2.110 2,210 2,133 1.789 2,101 1.984 2,071 
2.851 2.863 2,810 2,758 2,446 2.624 2,535 2,369 2,417 2,379 2,366 2,563 
5,125 5,449 4,894 4,643 4,723 4,549 4.597 4.873 4,236 4,365 4,604 4,413 
5,053 5,370 4.811 4,570 4,639 4,472 4,515 4.800 4,184 4,261 4,527 4.325 
5,910 5.883 5.846 5,829 5,461 5.551 5,571 5,603 5.166 5.271 5,257 5.338 

467 5,763 5,771 5,393 5,465 5,474 5,489 5,066 5,171 5,158 5.232 
2!,400 22.395 26,363 25,976 a 24.771 24.902 25.267 22.858 23,549 23,896 23.943 

1,451 
1,084 
195 
179 
327 
88 
102 
184 

3.612 

1,503 
1,114 

1,574 1,569 1,289 
1,095 1,169 1,035 

1,457 1,454 1,381 1,456 1,368 1,391 1.466 1,479 1.237 1,368 1,348 1,423 
1,091 1,051 1,040 1,118 1,003 1,040 1,046 1,137 974 1,007 939 1,074 

81 
93 
150 

2.941 

89 85 82 
101 98 96 
164 178 176 

w 3 . 0 9 9 2 . 6 7 8  

86 82 76 80 76 81 82 82 77 77 78 79 
96 98 94 100 89 90 98 95 88 86 96 92 
166 173 149 170 149 159 165 165 148 149 168 160 

2 . 8 9 5 2 . 8 5 8 2 . 7 4 0 2 . 9 2 4 6 8 6 2 . 7 6 1 8 5 7 ? . 9 5 8 2 . 5 2 3 ? & w $ 2 8 2 . 8 2 8  

3.441 5.094 6,077 6,195 5,413 

1.576 2,724 2,621 
2,886 3,094 3,244 
2,424 2,369 2,300 
2.151 2,039 2,139 
2,542 2,528 2.149 
954 1,210 1,247 m u w  

4,864 5,017 4.184 4,556 3,006 3,569 3,643 3.899 2,827 3.080 3,236 3,551 

2,369 2,414 2,077 2,276 1,641 1.878 1,971 2,023 1,530 1,611 1,693 1.873 
3.080 3,075 2,968 3,232 2.794 2,913 2,816 2,891 2,764 2,833 2,959 3,020 
2,105 2,309 2,114 2,220 1,837 1,866 2,132 2,173 1,738 1,850 1,946 2.147 
2,179 2,196 1,945 2,134 1,641 1,976 1,972 2,090 1,580 1,725 1.841 2,026 
2,131 2,178 1,945 2,130 1,488 1,863 1,836 2,070 1,519 1,588 1,590 1,859 
1,016 1,166 1,022 808 981 992 1.108 1,054 872 980 833 1.013 
17.746 18.355 16.255 13,389 15,057 1$.41s 12.830 14.098 15.488 

2,851 
2,644 
2,399 
2,699 
1,190 
15.223 

3.142 
2,251 
2,137 
2,144 
1,052 
15.821 

12 12 12 13 12 12 13 12 12 12 12 13 
3 3 3 4 3 3 4 3 3 3 3 3 
0 1 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 

1 4 2 1 3 2 1 1 1 3 1 3 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 
1 5 2 1 3 3 2 1 1 2 2 

10 1 1  10 12 10 10 11 11 10 10 
11 12 11 12 11 10 12 11 
12 13 12 14 12 12 14 12 
12 13 12 14 12 12 13 13 12 12 

3 
1 1  10 

10 11 1 1  
12 12 13 

12 13 
l 1  12 

13 12 13 
4 3 3 
1 0 1 
4 2 2 
1 0 1 
5 2 3 
12 11 10 
12 11 11 
14 13 12 
14 13 13 

13 
3 
2 
9 
2 
7 

11 
11 
13 
13 
39 
31 

12 
4 
1 
3 
1 
4 

11 
12 
13 
13 

25 34 10 39 19 19 34 30 10 12 16 29 
14 28 12 28 16 12 28 29 9 1 1  15 23 19 

14 
39 35 20 
27 25 16 
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CTFG 3 
CTFG 4 
DEBARY 1 
DEBARY 2 
DEBARY 3 
DEBARY 4 
QEBARY 5 
DEBARY 6 
DEBARY 7 
QEBARY 8 
DEBARY 9 
DEBARY 10 
HlGGlNS 1 
HlGGlNS 2 
HlGGlNS 3 
HlGGlNS 4 
INTCITY 1 
INTCITY 2 
INTCITY 3 
INTCITY 4 
INTCITY 5 
INTCITY 6 
INTCITY 7 
INTClTY 8 
INTCITY 9 
INT CITY 10 
INT CITY 11 
INT C(Ty 12 
INT CITY 13 
INT CITY 14 
RIOPINAR 1 
SUWANNEE 1 
SUWANNEE 2 
SUWANNEE 3 
TURNER 1 
TURNER 2 
TURNER 3 
TURNER 4 
UOFFL 1 

CT. Total 

C P 8 Lime 
Econpurc offp 
Econpurc peak 
Osceola 158 Purc 
OUC 150 Purc 
Shady Hills 
SoCo Franklin 
SoCo Scherer 
Southern UPS 
TEA 50 Purc 

2009 - 

10 
8 
9 
9 
8 
7 

90 
91 
88 
29 

8 
8 

15 
11 
9 

12 
12 
13 
14 
10 
65 
70 
63 
65 
30 
91 
90 
95 
2 

35 
20 
43 

1 
I 

13 
10 

363 
1.671 

988 
332 
422 

3 

89 

3,567 

- 2010 

9 

10 
8 
9 
9 
8 
7 

90 
90 
86 
30 
8 
8 

14 
11 
9 

12 
12 
13 
14 
10 
63 
70 
59 
64 
30 
90 
90 
91 
2 

33 
20 
40 

1 
1 

13 
11 

346 
1.596 

989 
332 
422 

120 
742 
330 

1,456 

- 201 1 

23 

10 
9 
9 
9 
8 
8 

91 
94 
88 
30 
8 
8 

14 
11 
9 

12 
12 
14 
15 
10 
65 
72 
63 
67 
32 
90 
90 
93 
2 

34 
22 
39 

1 
1 

15 
12 

339 
1.675 

332 
422 

121 
1,294 

557 

- 2012 

I? 
3 
9 
8 
8 
8 
7 
7 

88 
90 
86 
29 
8 
8 

14 
11 
8 

12 
12 
13 
14 
10 
62 
68 
59 
64 
30 
90 
87 
90 
2 

35 
20 
43 
1 
I 
13 
10 
340 

!,612 

332 
421 

153 

- 2013 

10 
9 
9 
8 
8 
8 
8 
7 

89 
90 
86 
29 
8 
8 

14 
11 
8 

12 
12 
13 
14 
9 

63 
69 
58 
63 
30 
88 
85 
89 
2 

33 
19 
40 

1 
1 

12 
10 

347 
.1.580 

332 
421 

84 ~. 

1,315 . 1,134 
554 545 

- 2014 

13 
9 
9 
8 
8 
8 
7 
7 

90 
86 
29 

8 
8 

14 
11 
8 

11 
11 
13 
13 
9 

62 
68 
58 
63 
30 
86 
87 
89 
2 

33 
19 
38 
1 
1 

12 
10 

a9 

338 

332 
421 

70 
1,OM 

529 

2015 

21 
14 
9 
8 
9 
8 
8 
7 

90 
91 
88 
29 
8 
0 

14 
11 
8 

11 
12 
13 
14 
10 
63 
69 
60 
64 
29 
89 
88 
90 
2 

34 
20 
43 
1 
1 

13 
10 

364 

- 

1.665 

332 
421 

139 
1.088 

530 

2016 

9 
7 
9 
8 
8 
8 
7 
7 

89 
90 
78 
29 

8 
8 

14 
11 
8 

11 
11 
13 
13 
9 

62 
68 
59 
64 
29 
88 
86 
90 
2 

32 
20 
39 

1 
1 

12 
10 

348 
i.550 

- 

332 
421 

56 
896 

20 
14 
10 
9 
9 
9 
8 
8 

92 
91 
87 
30 

8 
8 

14 
11 
9 

12 
13 
14 
15 
11 
64 
67 
61 
66 
31 
89 
89 
91 
2 

34 
21 
39 

1 
1 

13 
11 

364 
1.691 

332 
421 

133 
988 

2018 

9 
9 
9 
8 
8 
8 
8 
7 

88 
90 
85 
29 

8 
8 

14 
11 
8 

11 
11 
13 
13 
9 

62 
68 
57 
63 
29 
87 
87 
89 
2 

30 
19 
36 

1 
1 

13 
10 

36 1 

- 

!.580 

332 
421 

45 

- 2019 

10 
5 
9 
7 
8 
8 
7 
7 

88 
89 
85 
29 

8 
8 

14 
10 
8 

11 
11 
13 
13 
9 

58 
67 
57 
63 
28 
87 
86 
89 
2 

31 
19 
37 

1 
1 

12 
10 

362 
1.561 

332 
421 

61 

2020 

20 
8 

10 
9 

10 
9 
9 
9 

88 
91 
86 
30 

8 
8 

15 
11 
9 

12 
13 
13 
15 
10 
64 
70 
60 
65 
32 
90 
88 
91 

2 
32 
21 
37 

1 
1 

14 
11 

336 
1.642 

332 
423 

99 

2021 

20 
14 
9 
8 
8 
8 
8 
7 

90 
91 
86 
29 
8 
8 

14 
11 
8 

11 
12 
13 
14 
10 
63 
70 
60 
64 
30 
90 
89 
90 
2 

33 
20 
41 

1 
1 

13 
10 

36 1 

- 

1.662 

332 
421 

113 

2022 

6 
6 
9 
7 
8 
8 
7 
7 

83 
88 
85 
29 

8 
8 

14 
10 
8 

11 
11 
13 
13 
9 

62 
68 
58 
63 
29, 
87 
86 
80 
2 

29 
19 
33 

1 
1 

12 
9 

357 

- 

1.535 

332 
421 

40 

2023 

9 
6 
9 
8 
8 
8 
7 
7 

89 
90 
84 
29 
8 
6 

14 
10 
8 

I1 
11 
13 
13 
9 

62 
67 
58 
63 
29 
87 
07 
89 
2 

32 
19 
37 

1 
1 

12 
9 

34 1 
1,542 

332 
421 

51 

2024 

9 
7 
9 
8 
8 
8 
7 
7 

88 
89 
85 
29 

E 
0 

14 
11 
8 

11 
I1 
13 
13 
9 

61 
67 
57 
63 
29 
87 
86 
89 
2 

31 
19 
36 

1 
1 

12 
10 

358 
1.565 

332 
421 

59 

2025 

18 
14 
10 
8 
9 
9 
8 
7 

89 
90 
85 
29 
8 
8 

14 
11 
8 

12 
12 
13 
14 
10 
63 
69 
60 
64 
30 
89 
87 
89 
2 

33 
20 
39 

1 
1 

13 
10 

358 

- 

l.ti32 

332 
421 

82 



PEF CR3 Uprate 
July 2006 Generatlon & Fuel Forecast - Florida 
GWh 

ANNUAL 

TecoPurc . 
Tran-Purc. Total 

As Avail 
Aubum(As Avail) 
Bay County 
Biomass Energy 
Cargill 
Dade County 
DTE Biomass 
El Dorado (APP) 
G2 Energy 
Lake Cogen 
Lake County 
LFC (APP) 
Mulberry 
Orange Cogen 
Orlando Cogen 
Pasm Cogen 
Pasco County 
Pinellas County 
Ridge Gen St 
Royster 

Coaen. Total 

Sales 
DSM 

Total Load ! :  

2009 

376 

- 

5.777 

27 
37 

68 

312 
21 

475 
77 

433 
80 
82 

383 
378 
647 
629 
173 
336 
246 
149 

4.551 

-390 
6 

5o.800 

- 2010 

4.688 
295 

27 
38 

828 

313 
21 

474 
77 

433 
80 
81 

383 
378 
647 
628 
173 
336 
246 
149 

5.312 

-386 
4 

52.781 

201 I 

50 

- 
zJ?lJ 

27 
37 

830 

313 
21 

473 
77 

433 
80 
82 

383 
37 8 
647 
629 
173 
336 
246 
149 

$.315 

-388 
5 

53.777 . .  

- 2012 

?.778 

27 
38 

832 

314 
22 

477 
78 

436 
80 
82 

384 
379 
649 
631 
174 
337 
247 
149 

$.333 

-386 
0 

55.049 

2013 - 
?,517 

27 
38 

829 

313 
21 

475 
77 

433 
80 
81 

383 
31  8 
647 
628 
173 
336 
246 
149 

5.314 

-386 
3 

56.380 

2014 - 

2.372 

27 
38 

828 

312 
21 

473 
77 

433 
80 
81 

383 
378 
647 
629 
173 
336 
246 
149 

5.312 

-391 
1 

57.539 

2015 

27 
38 

828 

312 
21 

473 
77 

433 
80 
81 

383 
378 
647 
629 
173 
336 
245 
149 

-391 
3 

58.850 

2016 

1.705 
27 
38 

831 

314 
21 

476 
77 

433 
80 

304 
379 
649 
631 
173 
337 
248 
149 

a2 

$.328 

-390 
0 

60.208 

2017 - 

1.875 
27 
38 

828 

312 
21 

474 
77 

434 
80 
81 

383 
378 
647 
629 
173 
336 
245 
149 

5.312 

-388 
4 

6!,487 

2018 

799 

27 
37 

821 

3 i  1 
21 

474 
76 

433 
79 
82 

383 
378 
647 
628 
172 
334 
244 
149 

5.296 

4 0 4  
0 

62.835 

2019 - 
815 

27 
38 

820 

31 1 
21 

474 
77 

433 
79 
82 

383 
378 
647 
629 
171 
334 
244 
149 

- 

5.296 

4 0 3  
0 

64.162 

- 2020 

- 855 

27 
38 

821 

312 
21 

476 
76 

434 
80 
82 

384 
379 
649 
630 
172 
334 
244 
149 

5.308 

-402 
9 

65.492 
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2021 - 
- 867 

27 
37 

822 

31 1 
21 

475 
76 

433 
79 
81 

383 
378 
647 
629 
171 
334 
244 
149 

5.297 

41 1 
4 

66.801 . .  

- 2022 

- 793 

27 
38 

807 

307 
21 

474 
75 

432 
79 
81 

378 
647 
629 
168 
327 
241 
149 

383 

$.263 

4 5 3  
0 

68.103 

- 2023 

- 805 

27 
37 

a12 

308 
21 

474 
76 

433 
79 
81 

383 
378 
647 
628 
169 
330 
242 
149 

$.276 

4 3 1  
1 

69.403 

- 2024 

- 812 

27 
37 

810 

308 
21 

476 
76 

435 
79 
82 

384 
379 
649 
630 
169 
328 
242 
149 

5.281 

4 4 3  
1 

70.682 

- 2025 

836 

27 
37 

814 

308 
21 

474 
76 

434 
79 
81 

383 
378 
647 
628 
169 
330 
242 
149 

- 

4 4 2  
3 

71.905 
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PEF CR3 Uprate 
CR3 Uprate (180MW full ownership, July 06 GFF base) - Florida 
GWh 

ANNUAL 
- 2009 

5,100 

201 0 

6.976 

- 201 1 

6.559 

- 201 2 

8,188 

- - 2014 

8,166 

201 5 - 2 0 1 6 2 0 1 7  

8,188 7,494 
644 

8,1888,138 

201 9 

7,560 
8.135 

- 2021 

7,561 
8,144 
639 

- 

16,344 

- 2022 

8,166 
8,067 
7,979 

24.212 

- 2023 

7,560 
8,084 
8,009 

23.653 

201 8 

8,166 
8,124 

16,290 

- 2020 

8,188 
8,160 

16,349 

- 2024 

8,188 
8,100 
8,015 
24,303 

- 2025 

7.560 
8,105 
8,036 
23,702 

- 
CRNUC 3 
NUC Future 1 
NUC Future 2 

Nuclear. Total 

Steam-Coal 
Crystal 1 
Crystal 2 
Crystal 4 
Crystal 5 
PVCOAL 1 
PVCOAL 2 

Steam-Coal, Total 

Steam-Oil 
Anclote 1 
Anclote 2 
BARTOW 1 
BARTOW 2 
BARTOW 3 
SUWANNEE 1 
SUWANNEE 2 
SUWANNEE 3 

Steam-Oil. Total 

7,560 7,560 

5,100 6,976 6,559 8,188 8.166 15,695 

2,501 
2,870 
5,309 
4,582 

2,386 
3,054 
5,547 
5,145 

2,670 
2,881 
5,390 
5,646 

2,353 
2,656 
5 ~ 346 
5,254 

2,402 
2,780 
5,041 
4,968 
5.849 

2,213 
3,044 
5,248 
5.183 
3,490 

19,178 

2,307 
2,788 
5,368 
5,294 
5,835 
459 

22,050 

2,195 2,358 
2,751 2,702 
4,812 4,558 
4,728 4,481 
5,794 5,783 
5,705 5,723 

2$.985 25.605 

2,029 
2,517 
4,343 
4,261 
5,267 
5,157 

23,574 

1,978 
2,379 
4,627 
4,543 
5,369 
5,291 
24,187 

2,065 
2,575 
4,482 
4,405 
5,475 
5,383 
24,385 

2,158 
2,482 
4,522 
4.439 
5,489 
5,395 
24,485 

2,084 
2,315 
4,776 
4,706 
5,522 
5,397 
24,799 

1,739 
2,355 
4,155 
4,103 
5,073 
4,975 
22,399 

2,052 
2,329 
4,291 
4,185 
5,193 
5,094 
23,145 

1,937 
2,305 
451 7 
4,445 
5,167 
5,053 
23,423 16.131 16.588 15.609 21 -041 

1,450 1,488 
1,086 1,099 
195 
179 
327 
88 80 
102 92 
184 150 

3,613- 

1,563 
1,090 

1,475 
1,075 

1,261 1,407 1,414 1,358 1,422 1,323 1,356 ' 1,417 1,433 1,211 
1,001 1,038 1,021 995 1,072 988 1,012 1,018 1,069 950 

1,336 1,317 1,390 
998 911 1,044 

88 
101 
158 

3,002 

82 
96 
169 

2,897 

79 80 77 74 79 76 80 81 80 77 
92 92 96 88 97 88 89 96 94 88 
157 154 170 148 163 148 157 165 158 146 

2 . 5 9 0 " 2 , 6 6 4 2 , 8 3 3 2 , 6 2 3 ? , 6 9 4 2 , 7 7 7 8 3 4 2 , 4 7 2  

74 79 78 
82 94 91 

169 157 151 
- 2 , 5 7 0 2 , 7 6 1  

Steam-CC 
BARTOW CC REP 4,543 

2,235 
3,043 
1,993 
2,046 
1,993 
983 

Is.sss 

3,923 

1,933 
2,930 
2,051 
1,800 
1,713 
955 

15.305 

3.686 2.627 3,421 5,070 5,967 5,699 

2,605 
3,017 
2,280 
1,947 
2,462 
1,218 
19.228 

2,821 2,993 3,366 

1,508 1,517 1,702 
2,745 2,908 2,924 
1,719 1,856 2,049 
1,616 1,701 1,913 
1,474 1,468 1,713 
968 807 992 

12,850 13,250 14,660 

3,351 

1,720 
2,884 
1,785 
1,839 
1,662 
943 

14.184 

3,418 

1.777 
2,762 
1,990 
1,875 
1,692 
1,038 
14.551 

5,067 

2,477 
3,212 
2,144 
1,998 
2,097 
1,193 
18.189 

2,769 

1.453 
2,777 
1,689 
1,538 
1,390 
889 

12.505 

4,643 

2,267 
3,023 
2,214 
2,104 
2,075 
1,182 
17.508 

4,326 

2,120 
3,181 
2,023 
2,033 
2,104 
758 

16,545 

1 
CCF 1 
HlNES 1 
HINES 2 
HINES 3 
HINES 4 
TIGERBAY 1 

Steam-CC. Total 

CT - 
AVONPK 1 
AVONPK 2 
BARTOW 1 
BARTOW 2 
BARTOW 3 
BARTOW 4 

1,338 
2,716 
1,638 
1,424 
1,329 
868 

11.940 

1,897 
2,857 
2,096 
1,972 
1,970 
1,020 
15.498 

1,510 
2,903 
2,344 
2,125 
2,471 
979 

18,299 

2,849 3,127 
2,640 2,232 
2,394 2,106 
2,717 2,027 
1,193 1,028 
15.213 15.589 

12 12 13 
3 3 3 
0 0 0 
1 1 2 
0 0 0 
0 1 2 

12 12 12 12 12 12 12 13 12 12 
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 3 3 
0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 
2 1 3 1 3 1 1 2 2 1 
0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 
2 1 2 1 5 2 1 3 2 1 

13 12 
3 4 
2 1 
9 3 
2 1 
7 3 

13 
4 
1 
4 
1 
5 

12 
3 
0 
1 
0 
1 
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PEF CR3 Uprate 
CR3 Uprate (180MW full ownership, July 06 GFF base) - 
G Wh 

. Florida 

ANNUAL 
- 2009 

11 
11 
13 
13 
39 
31 

2010 2011 

11 12 
12 12 
13 14 
13 14 

- -  201 2 

10 
11 
12 
12 

- 201 5 

11 
11 
13 
13 

- 2016 2017 

10 12 
10 12 
12 14 
12 14 

- -  - 201 8 

10 
11 
12 
12 

201 9 

10 
10 
12 
12 

- - 2020 

11 
11 
13 
13 

2021 

11 
11 
12 
13 

- 2023 

I O  
10 
12 
12 

- - 2024 

10 
11 
12 
12 

2025 

10 
11 
12 
13 

- 
BAYBORO 1 
BAYBORO 2 
BAYBORO 3 
BAYBORO 4 
CTBar 1 
CTBar 2 
CTFG 1 
CTFG 2 
CTFG 3 
CTFG 4 
DEBARY I 
DEBARY 2 
DEBARY 3 
DEBARY 4 
DEBARY 5 
DEBARY 6 
DEBARY 7 
DEBARY 8 
DEBARY 9 
DEBARY 10 
HlGGlNS 1 
HlGGlNS 2 
HlGGlNS 3 
HlGGlNS 4 
INTCITY 1 
INTCITY 2 
INTCITY 3 
INTCITY 4 
INTCITY 5 
INTCITY 6 
INTCITY 7 
INTCITY 8 
INTCITY 9 
INT CITY 10 
INT C I N  11 
INT CITY 12 
INT C I N  13 
INT CITY 14 
RIOPINAR 1 
SUWANNEE 1 
SUWANNEE 2 
SUWANNEE 3 
TURNER 1 
TURNER 2 

10 10 
11 10 
12 12 
12 12 

10 
11 
12 
12 

18 36 
12 25 
8 22 

24 
19 
11 
2 
9 
8 
8 
8 
7 
7 

88 
90 
85 
29 
8 
8 

14 
10 
8 

11 
12 
13 
13 
10 
62 
68 
58 
63 
30 
89 
88 
90 
2 

16 19 
11 10 
9 10 
7 7 
9 9 
8 8 
8 8 
8 8 
8 7 
7 7 

89 88 
89 89 
85 85 
29 29 

8 8 
8 8 

14 14 
11 11 
8 8 

11 11 
12 11 
13 13 
13 13 
9 9 

62 62 
68 67 
58 58 
63 63 
30 30 
88 84 
85 86 
89 88 
2 2 

31 31 
19 19 
39 37 

1 1 
1 1 

27 
21 
17 
11 
9 
8 
8 
8 
7 
7 

89 
91 
87 
29 
8 
8 

14 
11 
8 

11 
11 
13 
14 
9 

63 
69 
59 
64 
28 
89 
88 
91 
2 

33 
20 
41 

1 
1 

7 33 
9 22 
8 15 
6 12 
9 10 
7 8 
8 8 
8 9 
7 8 
7 8 

89 91 
89 91 
77 86 
29 29 
8 8 
8 8 

14 14 
11 11 
7 9 

11 12 
11 12 
12 14 
13 14 
9 10 

62 64 
68 66 
58 60 
64 65 
29 30 
88 88 
86 88 
89 90 
2 2 

31 34 
19 21 
37 38 

1 1 
1 1 

16 
13 
7 
6 
9 
8 
8 
8 
7 
7 

88 
90 
85 
29 
8 
8 

14 
11 
8 

11 
11 
13 
13 
9 

62 
68 
57 
63 
29 
87 
86 
89 
2 

30 
19 
35 

1 
1 

15 
9 
8 
3 
9 
7 
8 
8 
7 
7 

88 
89 
84 
29 
8 
8 

14 
10 
7 

11 
11 
13 
13 
9 

59 
66 
56 
63 
28 
87 
86 
88 
2 

30 
18 
35 

1 
1 

28 
23 
16 
7 

10 
9 
9 
9 
8 
8 

87 
91 
85 
30 
8 
8 

14 
11 
9 

12 
12 
13 
14 
10 
63 
69 
59 
65 
31 
89 
88 
90 
2 

26 
22 
16 
12 
9 

8 
8 
8 
7 

89 
90 
86 
29 

8 

14 
11 
8 

11 
12 
13 
14 
9 

63 
69 
58 
63 
30 
89 
88 
89 
2 

32 
20 
38 

1 
1 

a 

a 

9 
8 
5 
5 
9 
7 
8 
8 
7 
7 

83 
88 
85 
29 
8 
8 

14 
10 
8 

11 
11 
13 
13 
9 

61 
67 
56 
63 
29 
87 
86 
88 
2 

29 
19 
32 

1 
1 

11 
9 
7 
5 
9 
7 
8 
8 
7 
7 

88 
89 
84 
29 
8 
8 

14 
10 

11 
11 
13 
13 
9 

61 
67 
56 
63 
29 
87 
86 
88 
2 

31 
18 
37 

1 
1 

a 

11 
12 
6 
6 
9 
8 
8 
8 
7 
7 

88 
89 
84 
29 
8 
8 

14 
11  
8 

11 
11 
13 
13 
9 

61 
67 
57 
62 
29 
87 
86 
88 
2 

30 
19 
34 

1 
1 

23 

14 
11 
9 
8 
9 
8 
8 
7 

89 
90 
85 
29 
8 
8 

14 
11 
8 

11 
12 
13 
13 
9 

63 
68 
59 
63 
30 
88 
86 
89 
2 

32 
20 

1 
1 

i a  

3a 

10 
8 
9 
9 
8 
7 

90 
91 
88 
29 
8 
8 

15 
11 
9 

12 
12 
13 
14 
10 
65 
70 
63 
65 
30 
91 
90 
95 

2 
35 
20 
43 

1 
1 

10 10 
8 9 
9 9 
9 9 
8 8 
7 8 

89 91 
90 93 
86 88 
30 30 
8 8 
8 8 

14 15 
11 11 
9 9 

12 12 
12 12 
13 14 
14 15 
10 10 
63 65 
70 72 
59 63 
64 67 
30 32 
90 90 
89 89 
91 94 
2 2 

33 35 32 
21 

33 
19 20 22 

40 39 35 
1 
1 

40 
1 
1 

1 1 
1 1 
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PEF CR3 Uprate 
CR3 Uprate (180MW full ownership, July 06 GFF base) - Florida 
G Wb 
ANNUAL 

TURNER 3 
TURNER 4 
U O F F L  I 

CT. Total 

C P 8 Lime 
Econpurc offp 
Econpurc peak 
Osceola 158 Purc 
OUC 150 Purc 
Shady Hills 
SoCo Franklin 
SoCo Scherer 
Southern UPS 
TEA 50 Purc 
Teco Purc 

Tran-Purc, Total 

As Avail 
Aubum(As Avail) 
Bay County 
Biomass Energy 
Cargill 
Dade County 
DTE Biomass 
El Dorado (APP) 
G2 Energy 
Lake Cogen 
Lake County 
LFC (APP) 
Mulberry 
Orange Cogen 
Orlando Cogen 
Pasco Cogen 
Pasco County 
Pinellas County 
Ridge Gen St 
Royster 

Coqen. Total 

Sales 
DSM 

Total Load 

2009 
13 
10 

362 

- 

!,670 

988 
332 
422 

3 

89 

3,566 

375 
5,775 

27 
37 

68 

31 2 
21 

475 
77 

433 
80 
82 

383 
378 
647 
629 
173 
336 
245 
149 

4.550 

-390 
6 

50,800 

2010 
13 
11 

346 

- 

1.590 
989 
332 
422 

110 
723 
330 

1,457 

4.655 

27 
38 

828 

313 
21 

474 
77 

433 
80 
81 

383 
378 
647 
628 
172 
336 
246 
149 

292 

5.312 

-386 
4 

52,781 

201 1 
14 
12 

338 

- 

!.667 

332 
422 

112 
1,258 

557 

50 

27 
37 

829 

31 3 
21 

473 
77 

433 
80 
82 

383 
378 
647 
629 
173 
336 
246 
149 

5,314 

-387 
4 

53.777 

- 201 2 
12 
10 

339 
1.571 

332 
42 1 

106 
1,204 

549 

2.613 

27 
38 

83 1 

313 
21 

477 
77 

435 
80 
81 

384 
379 
649 
631 
173 
337 
246 
149 

5.330 

-387 
0 

55.049 

201 3 
12 
- 

10 
347 

1,560 

332 
421 

58 
1,024 

538 

2,373 

27 
38 

830 

313 
21 

475 
77 

433 
80 
81 

383 
378 
647 
628 
173 
336 
246 
149 

$.315 

-386 
2 

56.380 

" " o l 8 " ~ ~ " ~  

"?,5301.6521.5621,5391,6091.618?,5221.5221,5441,600 

13 13 12 14 13 12 12 12 13 

337 363 347 363 359 360 334 359 355 339 357 356 

12 13 12 
10 I O  9 10 10 10 11 10 9 9 10 10 

332 332 332 332 332 332 332 332 332 332 332 332 
42 1 42 1 421 421 421 421 421 421 421 423 421 421 

39 41 80 92 29 37 44 60 43 108 42 110 
956 1,023 806 926 
521 521 

2.2732.4061,6011.789792"845782- 790 797 813 

27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 
38 38 38 38 37 38 38 37 38 37 37 37 

827 827 831 828 818 813 818 817 801 806 804 "808 

312 
21 

473 
77 

433 
80 
81 

383 
378 
647 
629 
173 
336 
245 
149 

5.310 

313 
21 

473 
77 

432 
80 
81 

383 
378 
647 
629 
173 
336 
245 
149 

5.308 

31 3 
21 

476 
77 

433 
80 
82 

384 
379 
649 
63 1 
173 
337 
246 
149 

5,325 

312 309 
21 21 

474 474 
77 76 

434 433 
80 79 
81 81 

383 383 
378 378 
647 647 
629 628 
172 171 
336 333 
245 243 
149 149 

5.3115.287 

309 
21 

474 
76 

433 
79 
82 

383 
378 
647 
629 
170 
331 
243 
149 

5.281 

310 
21 

476 
76 

434 
80 
82 

384 
379 
649 
630 
171 
332 
243 
149 

5.298 

310 304 
21 21 

475 474 
76 74 

432 431 
79 79 
81 81 

383 383 
378 378 
647 647 
629 629 
170 167 
333 325 
242 240 
149 149 

5.2875.249 

305 
21 

474 
75 

433 
79 
81 

383 
378 
647 
628 
167 
325 
240 
149 

5.257 

306 306 
21 21 

476 474 
75 75 

434 433 
79 79 
82 81 

384 383 
379 378 
649 647 
630 628 
167 168 
325 327 
240 241 
149 149 

- 5 , 2 6 3  

-395 -392 -392 -389 -411 -410 -420 -428 4 7 4  -457 -470 -469 0 0 7 4 0 0 1 2 0 2 0 3 

57.539 58,850 60.208 61,487 62,835 64.162 65.492 66,801 68.103 69,403 70.682 71,905 



Progress Energy Florida 
Docket No. 060642-El 
Response to Staff Interrogatory No. 5 
Attachment 2 
Page 8 of 14 

PEF CR3 Uprare 
Uprate minus Base 
$000 

E!H!N& 

CRNUC 3 
NUC Future 
1 
NUC Fulure 
2 

Nuclear. 
Total 

SteamCoa( 
Crystal 1 
Crystal 2 
Crystal 4 
Crystal 5 
PVCOAL 1 
PVCOAL 2 
SteamCoal. 

Total 

SteamGI\ 
Pnclote 1 
Anclote 2 
BARTOW 1 
BARTOW 2 
BARTOW 3 
SUWANNEE 
1 
SUWANNEE 
2 
SUWANNEE 
3 

SteamGll, 
Total 

StaamcC 
BARTOW 
CCREP 1 
CCF 1 
HINES 1 
HINES 2 
HINES 3 
HINES 4 
TIGERBAY 
1 

Stesm-CC, 

CT. Total 
Tran-Purt. 

Total 
Coqen. 
Total 

CW 
!ax%? 

Total Coat 

zoos 
59 
0 

0 

59 - 

0 
17 
-5 
8 
16 
0 
0 
36 - 

2 
89 
115 
0 
0 
0 

-1 3 

0 

0 

- 191 

0 
-1,716 

0 
-112 
-344 
480 
1.615 
329 

-708 

-4 

- 
- 

3 2  

-77 - 

0 
0 

(587.3) 

a 
1.813 

0 

0 

1.81J 

0 

4 7  
-162 
-136 

0 
0 

-281 

-1.046 

0 
-1.159 
-1,297 

0 
0 
0 

-108 

-47 

-44 

-2.655 

a 
-1,450 

0 
-802 

-1,150 
-2.264 
-7,646 
-1,612 

-14.923 

-734 
-2.451 
- 

- -226 

4 
-1 1 

p0.237.81 

2011 
2,250 

0 

0 

0 

-331 
-1 83 
-148 
0 
0 

-948 

-28: 

- 

0 
-1,027 
470 

0 
0 
0 

-41 

72 

-564 

-?.030 

0 
-7.007 

-3.920 
940 

-5.890 
-1,903 
4,804 
1,652 

-20.926 

-5.241 
-869 - 

-91 - 
-5 
-12 

(25.870.91 

zl?l 
8,561 

0 

0 

8.561 

a 
-1.683 
-1.744 
-1.040 
-1,265 

0 
0 

-5.735 

Q 
-8.403 
-8,458 

0 
0 
0 

-356 

-242 

-1,007 

-18.466 

0 
-32.76; 

-7,524 
-4.597 
4.098 
-7,007 
4.557 
963 

-61.588 

-12.946 

-1.121 

-31 
-85 

(98.630.0) 

ZOlJ 

7,949 
0 

0 

7.949 

a 
-1,478 
-2,364 
-1.638 
-1.432 
-186 

0 
-7.088 

0 
-2,596 
-3,216 

0 
0 
0 

454 

403 

-2.101 

m 

9 
-22.673 

-9,059 
-1.881 
-11.518 
-10.877 
-3,754 
-3,564 

-2.725 

-787 - 

4 3  
-120 

[85.470.81 

8,899 
0 

0 

e.ass 

0 
-2.054 
-2,425 
-2,262 
-2,308 
-1,407 

0 
-10.456 

0 

-4.821 
0 
0 
0 

-708 

-525 

-1,203 

4 . 5 0 i  

-11.760 

0 
-21.366 

-8.577 
-2.126 
-7.935 
-9,793 
-9,807 
-2,030 

-81.634 

-5.765 
-7.758 

-1.165 

-78 
-223 

f88.538.81 

2015 

8.287 
0 

0 

- 

8.287 

0 
-2.036 
-2,662 
-2.291 
-2,116 
-1,172 
-169 

-10.446 

0 

-3,013 
0 
0 
0 

-629 

-204 

-306 

-3.644 

-7.796 

0 
-25.545 

-9,877 
-3,153 
8.965 
-7,188 
-7,482 
1,431 

-58.778 

-4.646 
-8.614 

.1.981 

-73 
-213 

184.260.4) 

m 
9.302 

0 

0 

0 
-1.673 
-2,140 
-2.353 
-2.383 
-1.274 
-1,414 

-11.236 

0 
-2.214 
4,416 

0 
0 
0 

-298 

-746 

-117 

-7.781 

0 
-1 9,182 

-10,443 
-2,424 
-5.462 
-11,868 
-18,500 
4,910 

-72.789 

-2.881 
-8.490 

-1.948 

-95 
-278 

196.311.5) 

8,560 
-13 

0 

0 
-1.748 
-2.088 
-2.486 
-2,617 
-1,179 
-1,235 

-11.353 

0 
-3,677 
4,734 

0 
0 
0 

-204 

-422 

-891 

-9.928 

0 
-17,785 

-1 1.828 
3.456 
-17,109 
-9,099 
-1,689 
-4.076 

-65.042 

a 
.1.519 

-94 
-280 

193.775.41 

2018 

9,670 
-245 

0 

- 

0 

-2,541 
-2.875 
-2.884 
-2.385 
-2.524 

-15.235 

-2.025 

0 

-1.731 
0 
0 
0 

-81 

-120 

-204 

4.762 

e 

0 
-19.533 

-15.317 
-1.233 
-13,354 
-10,156 
-8.w3 
-7,952 

-78.387 

-2.770 
-I-@! 

-J.255 

-1 35 
407 

(ss.ssz,i) 

m.2 
9,004 
-182 

0 

&82J 

Q 
-1,834 
-1.841 
-2,063 
-2.071 
-2.039 
-2.181 

0 

-3,418 
0 
0 
0 

-1 32 

-51 

-372 

-8.023 

-4.049 

0 
-19.228 

-13.445 
-2.156 
-7.230 
-13,085 
-18.638 
4,438 

-3.088 

-2.523 

-103 
-315 

~98,991,Ol 

2020 

10,121 
-193 

0 

8.928 

- 

0 
-2.045 
-2.143 
-2.367 
-2.422 
-2,239 
-2.152 

-13.388 

0 

-3.616 
0 
0 
0 

-213 

-251 

53 

-5,845 

-9.869 

0 
-20.540 

-17.557 
4,471 
-14.384 
-10,665 
-14,416 
4.774 

-88.807 

d.591 

.2.452 

-111 
-345 

~114.151.3) 

9,401 
-176 

-28 

0 

-2.217 
-3,161 
-3.064 
-2.270 
-2.558 

-15.334 

0 
-5,828 
-8.453 

0 
0 
0 

-348 

-250 

-1,094 

-2,064 

-15.974 

0 
-20,391 

-1 1,576 
-2,755 
-7,591 
-12,921 
-10,083 
-3.144 

-68.461 

=1.025 
-3.660 

-3.069 

-131 
413 

(104,868.6) 

2012 

10,534 
-205 

-320 

- 

1o.009 

0 

-2.507 
-2,725 
-2.731 
-2,650 
-2.598 

-2.187 

-15.392 

0 
-3,323 
-3.041 

0 
0 
0 

153 

31 

-547 

-6.527 

0 
-19,260 

-18.386 
-4,149 
-10.629 
-16,572 
-19,351 

-21 1 

-2.080 
-1.779 

-3.568 

-125 
-400 

~108.419.6l 

2023 

9,809 
-232 

-286 

0 
-2.039 
-2,119 
-2,556 
-2.622 
-2.295 
-2,264 

-13,894 

0 
-4,316 
-1,389 

0 
0 
0 

-491 

-646 

301 

-6.540 

0 
-25.13; 

-4,570 
-7.895 
-13.738 
-12.041 
-12.368 

-885 

-3,839 
-2.568 

-2.812 

- 1 1 1  
-361 

u02.262.21 

2024 

11,019 
-254 

-312 

- 

0 
-2.103 
-2,722 
-3,071 
-2.908 
-2,745 
-3,179 

-16.727 

0 

-3.864 
0 
0 
0 

144 

-371 

281 

-4.445 

-8.250 

0 
-24,027 

-37*137 
-4,623 
-10,239 
-15,431 
-12,531 
-2,725 

-86.691 

-3.588 
-2.737 

-4.955 

-134 
-442 

Lj13.069.5) 

- 2025 

10,235 
-1 90 

-240 

a 

0 

-2.128 
-2.540 
-2.330 
-2,222 
-2.342 
13.531 

-1.96; 

-4.564 
-4.190 

0 
0 
0 

-212 

-266 

-351 

-8.580 

0 
-18,943 

-17,336 
-8,716 
-10,909 
-12.708 
-15.676 
-1.736 

-86.028 

-6,101 
-3.894 

-104 
-348 

1114,066.6) 
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PEF CR3 Uprale 
July 2006 Generation 

$000 

A"UAL 

8 Fuel Form :est Base - Floi 

2009 

24,003 

m 
35,402 

- 201 1 

32.966 

- 2012 

37,139 

2013 

34,469 

2014 

38,607 

a 
35,939 

2016 

40.353 

- m 
37,120 
4.352 

@ 

2019 

39,045 
55,361 

- 

@ 

- 2020 

57,399 

101.308 

43.908 

2022 

45,699 
59,059 

- 

58,534 
163.292 

2023 

42,539 
59,634 
59.144 

- 

161.517 

2025 

44,386 
62,184 
61,698 
168.267 

2021 

40,776 
57,663 
4,691 

- 2024 

47,806 
61,745 
61,157 

- 
CRNUC 3 
NUC Future 1 
NUC Future 2 

Nuclear, Total 

SteamCoal 
Crystal 1 
Crystal 2 
Crystal 4 
Crystal 5 
PVCOAL 1 
PVCOAL 2 
Sleam-Coal. Total 

Steam431 
Anclote 1 
Anclote 2 
BARTOW 1 
EARTOW 2 
BARTOW 3 
SUWANNEE 1 
SUWANNEE 2 
SUWANNEE 3 

Steam-Oil. Total 

41,948 
54,955 

55.939 

77,516 
87,026 
153.01 9 
134,640 

77,815 
97,102 
146,950 
136.847 

90.132 
94.882 
145.187 
152.171 

83,496 
92.048 
149,113 
147,210 

80.651 
108,438 
151,015 
149.115 
86.930 

576.149 

90.839 
102.526 
150,574 
148,793 
151.5% 

644.328 

89,904 87.883 
107,448 
152,643 
150,374 
158,379 
156,564 
813.292 

84,643 
99.370 
156,474 
154,038 
156.814 
154.957 
806.295 

90,171 
109,285 
154.274 
152,026 

96,694 
108,300 
159.765 
157,174 
167,480 
164,854 
854.267 

83.447 
109.441 
156.514 
154,912 
165.1 57 

100,032 
110,662 
165,396 
161.862 
172,905 
169.997 
880.854 

96.981 
1 1  2.956 
179,166 
176,556 
177.547 

96,842 
108.441 
148,709 
146,735 
162,094 
160,655 

95,497 
104,024 
173.326 
171.394 
172.662 
169.513 

103,781 
125,355 
176,236 
173.134 
184,563 
181.266 

106,131 
164.937 
162.995 
155,333 
12.346 
691.646 

162,925 
160,701 
829.381 

162.626 
852.097 

174,153 
917.558 482.373 471.867 

147,444 
130,926 
24,979 
23,274 
39,600 
14,606 
17,039 
26,633 

424.501 

125,402 
97.106 

137,235 
100.278 

144,256 
112.181 

118.220 
99.077 

131,972 
102,925 

136.859 
102.919 

138,509 
108.679 

155,068 
123,759 

154,308 
118,351 

166,308 
129,918 

184,436 
137,902 

190.229 
152,074 

162,270 
133.846 

183,356 
141.009 

184,514 
134 104 

198,070 
155.802 

9.199 
10,722 
15,010 

257.439 

10.548 
12.155 
17.081 

277.297 

10,551 
12.361 
19.452 

298.801 

10,269 
12,053 
19.178 

258.797 

10.599 
12,052 
?7,958 

275.507 

10,565 
12,733 
19,437 

282.512 

10,401 
13,043 
18,035 

288.667 

11,673 
14,631 
21,640 
326.771 

11.753 
13,908 
20,149 
318.469 

13,151 
14.816 
22,737 

346,929 

14,419 
16.848 
25,290 

398.859 

13.710 
15,964 
23,300 

349.090 

14,109 
15.922 
23.887 

378.282 

14,587 
18,140 
27,379 
378.724 

15,026 
17,837 
26.652 

413,387 

14.068 
16.984 
24.718 

SteamCC 
BARTOW CC REP 268.371 346.360 392,595 

209,030 
306,383 
262.955 
242.118 
218.269 

386.694 

196.078 
255,145 
213.160 
200,206 

447,874 

202.21 9 
214.400 
197,046 
169,986 
198.888 
90,601 

1.521.015 

393,247 

194,147 
222.728 
192,007 
174,972 
170,428 
92,974 

1.4.10,503 

421.543 

112,204 
192.838 
193,450 
170,030 
191.637 
69,650 

1.351.351 

355.857 

176,626 
210.844 
175,236 
135.833 
167.760 
76,161 

1.338.316 

378.454 

185.333 
217.874 
197,596 
183,941 
177,036 
89.673 

1.429.908 

282.785 

155,633 
236.853 
190.900 
165,866 
148,498 
91,307 

1,271 .E42 

332.944 

176,614 
279,097 
222.115 
200.686 
183,038 
106.340 

1.500.834 

354,291 

187,760 
296,003 
237,033 
21 7,122 
185.757 
92,925 

1,570,893 

340.089 

171,933 
223.636 
193.982 
173,060 
169.157 
84.207 

1,356,064 

344,622 

183.762 
258.058 
201.944 
205,673 
191,159 
96.798 

1.482.015 

367.644 

200.865 
262.726 
239.069 
216,436 
197,944 
113,239 

1,597,923 

398.8 16 

208.712 
273,841 
247,151 
232.605 
224.873 
109.358 

1.695.355 

303.592 

166.562 
268.568 
206.447 
182.103 
172,775 
93.841 

1.393.887 

1 
CCF 1 
HINES 1 
HINES 2 
HlNES 3 
HlNES 4 
TIGEREAY 1 

Steam-CC. Total 

CT - 
AVONPK 1 
AVONPK 2 
BARTOW 1 
BARTOW 2 
BARTOW 3 
BARTOW 4 
BAYBORO 1 
EAYEORO 2 
EAYEORO 3 
EAYEORO 4 
CTBar 1 
CTBar 2 
CTFG 1 
CTFG 2 
CTFG 3 
CTFG 4 
DEBARY 1 
DEBARY 2 
DEEARY 3 

168,943 
236.058 
224,449 
245,081 
100,912 
,243314 

178.635 
172,691 
163,07 5 
158.657 
73,341 

1,092.758 

193.846 
71,537 

1.516.665 
113,425 

1.744.775 1 

3,441 
1.256 
197 

1,164 
213 

1,320 
3,143 
3.251 
3.885 
3,903 

2.275 
814 
58 
815 
54 
823 

1,977 
2,121 
2.408 
2.486 

2.728 
985 
24 1 

1,349 
232 

1,539 
2.810 
2.888 
3.288 
3,329 

2.829 
1,002 
108 
876 
90 
894 

2,402 
2.643 
2.984 
3.076 

2.955 
1,044 

39 
825 
31 
822 

2,523 
2,690 
3,027 
3,129 

3,251 
1,180 

344 
1.146 
331 

1,269 
2,932 
3,155 
3,662 
3,627 

3,169 
1,167 
211 

1,090 
170 

1.132 
2,952 
3.027 
3,450 
3.595 

3,215 
1,129 
20 
866 
14 
999 

2,760 
2,985 
3,357 
3,463 

3,217 
1,183 

31 
897 
31 
860 

2.827 
2,985 
3,528 
3.538 

3,337 
1,209 

52 
845 
59 
882 

2.978 
3,167 
3.655 
3.706 

2,709 
1,237 
842 

2.432 
810 

1.987 
3,084 
3.181 
3,929 
3,903 
8.634 
7,721 

2,216 
784 
159 

1,053 
160 

1,089 
2.037 
2.095 
2.418 
2,449 

2.309 
789 
185 

1,173 
160 

1,333 
2.210 
2.245 
2,670 
2.686 

2,376 
808 
86 
960 
81 
965 

2,096 
2,220 
2,496 
2,566 

2.387 
809 
125 
875 
123 
968 

2.001 
2,136 
2,456 
2.512 

2,421 
862 
155 

1,151 
154 
964 

2.229 
2,440 
2,764 
2.818 

2,530 
894 
34 
809 
22 
774 

2,201 
2.330 
2,740 
2.771 

11,417 
10,318 
9.065 
8,335 
3.083 
2.584 
3,040 

7.803 
7,651 
7,259 
7,172 
3,026 
2.508 
3.049 

8.090 
7.910 
7,W2 
7,253 
3,111 
2,575 
3.094 

8.127 
8.546 
7,632 
7,440 
3,153 
2,691 
3,173 

10.506 
9,614 
8,908 
8.355 
3,407 
2,884 
3,369 

8,797 
7,740 
7,599 
7,243 
2.202 
1.822 
2.182 

9.789 
9,160 
8.470 
7,830 
2,357 
1.998 
2.326 

7,453 
7,613 
7,331 
7,100 
2,386 
1.988 
2.381 

10,696 
9.448 
8.613 
7.958 
2,767 
2,367 
2,680 

8.617 
8.246 
7,524 
7,425 
2,743 
2,276 
2.716 

8.718 

7.654 
7,002 
2,784 
2.292 
2,772 

7.938 
10,765 
10,053 
9,015 
7,393 
3,296 
2.868 
3.302 

5.387 
4.880 
4,436 

2,071 
1,797 
2.085 

9,924 
8,873 
8,510 

2.211 
1,939 
2,140 

9,752 
8.855 
8,031 
3,971 
2,121 
1.801 
2,137 

8.306 
7,916 
7,401 
7,262. 
2.187 
1.838 
2,170 

3.341 
2,781 
3,265 



PEF CR3 Uprate 
July 2006 Generailon 8 Fuel Forecase Base - Florida 
$000 

Annual 

DEBARY 4 
DEBARY 5 
DEBARY 6 
DEBARY 7 
DEBARY 8 
DEBARY 9 
DEBARY 10 
HIGGlNS 1 
HlGGlNS 2 
HlGGlNS 3 
HlGGlNS 4 
INTCITY 1 
INTCITY 2 
INTCITY 3 
INTCITY 4 
INTCITY 5 
INT CITY 6 
INTCITY 7 
INT CITY 8 
INTCITY 9 
INT C I N  10 
INT CITY 1 1  
INT CITY 12 
INT ClrY 13 
INT CITY 14 
RIOPINAR 1 
SUWANNEE 1 
SUWANNEE 2 
SUWANNEE 3 
TURNER 1 
TURNER 2 
TURNER 3 
TURNER 4 
UOFFL 1 

CT. Total 

C P & Lime 
Emnpurc offp 
Econpurc peak 
Osceola 158 Purc 
OUC 150 Purc 
Shady Hills 
SoCo Franklin 
SoCo Scherer 
Soulhem UPS 
TEA 50 Purc 
Teco Purc 

Tran-Purc. Total 

As Avail 
Aubum(As Avail) 
Bay County 
Biomass Energy 
Cargill 
Dade County 
DTE Biomass 

2009 

3.198 
2.906 
2.498 
14.525 
15,002 
14,460 
8,551 
1.806 
1,803 
3.006 
2,500 
2.779 
3.681 
3.789 
4,051 
4,409 
3,126 
8.929 
9,586 
8,850 
9,161 
7.628 
11,869 
10,867 
11,472 
599 

10.642 
6.01 1 
12.671 
273 
390 

3.765 
3,034 
19.048 

276.741 

48.882 
24,017 
49,009 
1,768 

42.468 

143,923 

27,904 

1 .w 
3.214 

4,201 

25.913 

2,018 
1,839 
1.521 
12,073 
12,335 
11.843 
5,293 
1,519 
1,524 
2,471 
1,988 
1,717 
2.333 
2,359 
2,513 
2.785 
2,019 
8.834 
9,714 
8.500 
9.246 
4,682 
12,074 
11,007 
11,333 

386 
5,991 
3,616 
6.998 
183 
254 

2,370 
1.958 
18,538 

218.947 

49.236 
24,017 
48.852 

42.483 
63,736 
16.115 
60,078 

23.615 
328.132 

1.510 
2.514 

52,186 

26.828 

2.089 
1,910 
1,758 
12,755 
13,230 
12,519 
5.650 
1,580 
1.581 
2,597 
2.053 
1,905 
2.553 
2.545 
2,790 
3,058 
2,072 
9,415 
10.343 
9,230 
9.928 
5,109 
12.522 
11,470 
11.978 
396 

6.445 
4.089 
7,114 

1 83 
263 

2.633 
2,163 
30,984 

256,269 

24,017 
48.872 

43,251 
113,946 
27.763 

3.954 
261.802 

1.625 
2.591 

51.185 

28,326 
1549 

2012 - 
2.080 
1,887 
1,596 
12.921 
13,351 
12.817 
5,678 
1,618 
1,614 
2,634 
2.099 
1,811 
2,511 
2.580 
2,757 
2.885 
2.070 
9.461 
10,309 
9,152 
9,913 

13,057 

12.149 
399 

6.869 
3.823 
8.201 
172 
255 

2.417 
1,916 
32,402 

4,997 

11,664 

261.388 

24,017 
48.453 

47,912 
119,241 
28.112 

287.736 

1.686 
2.704 

50,651 

29.566 
1.516 1,815 1,603 

El Dorado (APP) 52.835 55.548 57:940 60;674 

- 2013 

2.118 
1,946 
1,619 
12,895 
13,167 
12.698 
5.686 
1,615 
1,624 
2,615 
2.094 
1,749 
2,542 
2,554 
2,779 
2,939 
1,992 
9,430 
10,285 
8.974 
9,739 
5,052 
12,692 
11.282 
11.897 

415 
6,592 
3,795 
7.699 
180 
255 

2,419 
1.918 
32,767 

259.493 

24.017 
48.453 

39,670 
106,740 
28.189 

1,573 
2,653 

50,641 

29.673 
1.51 4 
63.193 

2014 

2.138 
1,914 
1,630 
12,770 
13.088 
12.550 
5,824 
1.589 
1.580 
2,578 
2.061 
1.696 
2,486 
2,467 
2,721 
2.824 
1,973 
9.258 
10.112 
8.931 
9.679 
5,075 
12.259 
11,469 
11.823 

401 
6,778 
3,766 
7,485 
173 
252 

2,406 
1.963 
31,714 

256.848 

24,017 
48.453 

41.822 
98.780 
28.101 

241,175 

1,594 
2,546 

50,731 

19,693 

2.254 
2,018 
1,794 
13,290 
13.689 
13.247 
6.070 
1,643 
1.652 
2.672 
2,178 
1.883 
2,602 
2.655 
2.862 
3,150 
2,215 
9,717 
10,607 
9,401 
10,113 
5,101 
13,179 
11,949 
12.381 

415 
7,264 
4,175 
8.667 
190 
282 

2.636 
2.096 
35,138 

277.072 

24,017 
48.453 

51,522 
105,947 
28,587 

258.526 

1,597 
2,737 

51.449 

20,252 

2016 

2,327 
2,093 
1,802 
13,999 
14,288 
12,524 
6.368 
1.711 
1.711 
2,796 
2,227 
1,880 
2,726 
2,744 
2,939 
3,177 
2,216 
10,192 
11,123 
9.865 
10.646 
5,557 
13.798 
12,415 
13,061 

442 
7.256 
4,261 
8,466 
191 
280 

2.609 
2,101 
35,649 

278.800 

24,017 
48 453 

42,394 
96,601 

211.465 

1,595 
2,754 

52.354 

20.252 
1.51 9 1.545 1,581 
37,658 38,575 39.391 

Ell 

2.648 
2.304 
2.102 
15,114 
15,283 
14,668 
6.880 
1.832 
1.832 
3,015 
2.418 
2.386 
3,140 
3,252 
3,460 
3,720 
2,675 
11.062 
11.490 
10,683 
11.537 
6,123 
14.686 
13.459 
13,930 
477 

8,084 
4,884 
8.861 
232 
312 

3.053 
2.526 
39,346 

311.394 

24,017 
48.527 

52.498 
107.61 0 

1.787 
3,038 

52.902 

20,986 
1,605 
40 709 

- 2018 

2.633 
2,402 
2,060 
15,442 
15.878 
15,198 
7,103 
1.886 
1,897 
3.125 
2,510 
2,131 
3.118 
2.986 
3.291 
3,540 
2.437 
11.311 
12.265 
10,657 
11,816 
6,090 
15,265 
13.869 
14.459 
492 

7,577 
4.671 
8.644 
22 1 
315 

3.094 
2,480 
41,161 

508.473 

24,017 
48.453 

41,357 

1,534 
2,770 

53,278 

19,677 
1,617 
39,978 

2019 

2,697 
2.430 
2.089 
16,219 
16,593 
15,847 
7,423 
1,962 
1,965 
3.248 
2,571 
2,146 
3,176 
3,143 
3,467 
3,649 
2,489 
11,167 
12.741 
11,131 
12,267 
6,157 
16,119 
14,560 
15,162 

509 
8.257 
4,737 
9,425 
215 
316 

2,975 
2,507 
43,398 

319.003 

- 

24,017 
48.453 

44,511 

116.981 

1,739 
3.091 

53,979 

20,551 
1,670 
41.263 
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2020 

3.161 
2,902 
2,632 
16.868 
17,700 
16,832 
8.111 
2.170 
2,169 
3,560 
2.849 
2.645 
3,622 
3,668 
3,679 
4,224 
2,977 
12,757 
13.851 
12,166 
13.225 
7,277 
17.254 
15,587 
16.254 

587 
8.863 
5,536 
9,658 
284 
397 

3,733 
3,046 
42.548 

24,017 
49,561 

50,432 

124.010 
1,803 
3.162 

54.646 

21.140 
1,846 
42.148 

2021 

2,951 
2,654 
2,245 
17,520 
18,037 
17,246 
8,046 
2,102 
2,038 
3,516 
2.793 
2.499 
3,376 
3,552 
3,835 
4.129 
2,901 
12.876 
14.258 
12.361 
13,460 
6,967 
17.667 
15,959 
16,455 

568 
9.364 
5.516 
10,901 

257 
372 

3.455 
2.810 
46,328 

24,017 
48.563 

53.233 

126.813 

1,902 
3,351 

55,452 

21,723 
1.897 
43,179 

202t 

2,946 
2,668 
2,286 
16,559 
17,750 
17,361 
8,124 
2.118 
2,127 
3.521 
2,791 
2.384 
3,499 
3,508 
3,806 
3,945 
2,794 
12,812 
13,992 
12.276 
13,342 
7,002 
17,472 
15,781 
16,374 

558 
8,491 
5,314 
9.068 
236 
350 

3,341 
2,678 
46,740 

341.290 

24,017 
48.453 

41.269 

113.739 

1,683 
3.019 

55,376 

20.515 
1,916 
42.328 

- 2023 

3,010 
2,753 
2,337 
18,029 
18.502 
17,413 
8,296 
2,168 
2,175 
3,587 
2.830 
2,474 
3,591 
3,532 
3.901 
4,137 
2.869 
13,171 
14,177 
12.495 
13.71 1 
7,119 
17,800 
16,270 
16.791 

577 
9,406 
5.435 
10.453 

252 
364 

3,396 
2,706 
45,621 

24,017 
48,453 

43,572 

116.042 

1.908 
3,248 

56,522 

21.459 
1,979 
44110 

2024 

3,084 
2.779 
2,421 
18,203 
18.634 
17,853 
8,491 
2,192 
2.199 
3.658 
2.885 
2.574 
3,703 
3,565 
4,000 
4.082 
2,975 
13,203 
14,354 
12.566 
13,792 
7,309 
18.125 
16,358 
17,099 

580 
9.432 
5,529 
10,345 
255 
370 

3,493 
2.861 
48,614 
358.845 

- 

24,017 
48,453 

45,249 

117.719 

1,900 
3,427 

57,225 

21.767 
2.025 
44,698 

2025 

3.320 
2,982 
2,599 
18.662 
19,138 
18.312 
8.715 
2,299 
2,260 
3.792 
2,995 
2.757 
3.862 
3,889 
4,153 
4,424 
3,089 
13.799 
14.953 
13.292 
14.284 
7,629 
18,737 
16,774 
17,436 

616 
10,120 
5,976 
11,529 
267 
393 

3,801 
3,093 
49,482 

- 

378,243 

24,017 
48,501 

49,319 

2,027 
3.574 

58.325 

22,787 
2.084 
46,319 
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PEF CR3 Uprate 
July 2006 Generattan 6 Fuel Forecase Base -Florida 
$000 

2 0 0 9 -  2010 

G2 Energy 3.843 3.871 3,898 
Lake Cogen 54.520 57,451 60,037 
Lake Counly 9.263 9.736 10,239 
LFC (APP) 9.803 10,304 10.838 

2009 201 0 - - 
Mulberry 
Orange Cogen 
Orlando Cogen 
Pasco Cogen 
P a s m  County 
Pinellas County 
Ridge Gen St 
Royster 

Coqen. Total 

47,724 
42.603 
52,929 
47,230 
17,449 
39,628 
18.883 
16,489 

50,246 52,582 
44,809 46,808 
55.018 57,356 
42,644 43.882 
18,304 19.228 
41.653 43.825 
19,437 19,770 
11.222 11.309 

5 0 4 . 8 8 4 w  

3.61 1 4.066 4,119 
1.098 10.389 10.959 

Jotal Cost 3.214.129 2.910.732 3.200.124 

m 
3,932 

62,953 
10,791 
11,417 

55.114 
46,113 
59,952 
44,399 
20,230 
46,172 
20,143 
11,509 

539.522 

3.940 
10,860 

3.412.262 

2blJ 

3.944 
52,462 
11,364 
12,031 

2013 

57,627 
48.121 
62,317 
43,730 
21,272 
48.648 
20,318 
11.406 

542.487 

- 

5,181 
14,462 

3,378,609 

2014 

3,968 
34,450 
8,646 
6.176 
2014 

60.354 
50,278 
64,791 
43,151 
22,339 
51,194 
20,5&2 

I 

I 

1 I ,288 
490,959 

5,948 
16,913 

3.3o8.600 

m 

35,453 
3,991 

5,329 
6,350 
201 5 

63.229 
52.586 
67,363 
44.291 
23,497 
53.927 
20,842 
11.582 

504,594 

- 

6.397 
18,492 

3.505.086 

2016 

4,032 
35.842 
5,339 
6,439 
2016 

66.213 
54,920 
70,023 
44,440 
24,730 
56.863 
21,127 
11,754 

518.850 

8.024 
23,392 

2537,707 

- 2017 

4,045 
37,219 
5.541 
6,643 - 2017 

69,293 

72,705 
46,165 
26.070 
60.01 1 
21.354 
12.158 

539.603 

7.894 

57,374 

23,390 

3.823.319 

2018 

4,041 
36.274 
5.251 
6,501 
2018 

72,492 
59,736 
75.504 
44,010 
27,376 
63.110 
21.531 
11.882 

546.562 

7.783 

- 

- 

23.429 

3.493.585 

2019 

4.086 
37,769 

5.493 
6,757 
gp 

- 

75.907 
62,496 
78.461 
45,898 
28,892 
66,732 
21,794 
12.333 

7,765 
23,712 

3.789.102 

- 2020 

4,109 
38.568 

5,591 
6.887 
2020 

79.484 
65,320 
81,575 
46,848 
30,531 
70,569 
22.053 
12,599 

- 

588.880 

7.855 
24,407 

4.027.139 

2021 

4,134 
39.352 

5,715 
7.061 

- 

2021 

83.157 
68.232 
84.630 
48,194 
32,212 
74,594 
22,262 
12,879 

609.925 

8,154 
25,739 

4.210.207 

- 2022 

4,117 
38.662 

5,505 
6,874 
- 2022 

87,028 
71,118 
88,094 
46.581 
33.822 
78,447 
22,455 
12,597 
620.138 

7,441 
23,828 

3.844.802 

20t3 

5.385 
40,171 

5,696 
7,168 
2023 

91,191 
74,496 
91,649 
48.261 

83.042 
22,804 
13,127 

- 

35,759 

647.974 

7.656 
24.894 

4.067.973 

2024 - 
5,445 

40,985 
5,821 
7,278 
2024 

75,277 
77,882 
44,531 
49.067 
37,792 
87.830 
18.757 
13,325 

- 

7,916 
26.158 

6143,351 

2025 

5,687 
42,412 

6,062 
7,572 
2025 

35,636 
81.532 
46.531 
51,137 
12.531 
25,475 
19,653 
13,858 

- 

7,876 
26.407 

4.2a8.333 



PEF CR3 Uprate 

CR3 Uprate (180MW full ownership, July 06 GFF base) - Florida 
$000 

ANNUAl, 

CRNUC 3 
NUC Future I 
NUC Future 2 

Nuclear. Total 

Steam-Coal 
Crystal 1 
Crystal 2 
Crystal 4 
Crystal 5 
PVCOAL 1 
PVCOAL 2 
Steam-Coal. Total 

Steam-Oil 
Anclote 1 
Anclote 2 
BARTOW I 
BARTOW 2 
BARTOW 3 
SUWANNEE I 
SUWANNEE 2 
SUWANNEE 3 

Steam-Oil. Total 

Steam-CC 
BARTOW CC REP 
1 
CCF I 
HINES 1 
HINES 2 
HINES 3 
HINES 4 
TIGERBAY 1 

Steam-CC. Total 

CT 
AVONPK 1 
AVON PI< 2 
BARTOW 1 
BARTOW 2 
BARTOW 3 
BARTOW 4 
BAYBORO 1 
BAYBORO 2 
BAYBORO 3 
BAYBORO 4 
CTBar 1 
CTBaf 2 
CTFG 1 
CTFG 2 
CTFG 3 
CTFG 4 
DEBARY 1 

2009 

24,063 

- 

77,533 
87,021 
153.027 
134.656 

452.257 

147.533 
131,041 
24.979 
23,274 
39.600 
14,593 
17,039 
26,633 

424.592 

266,655 

168,831 
235,713 
223.969 
246,696 
101,241 

1.243.106 

2,709 
1,237 
842 

2,432 
81 0 

1,987 
3,084 
3.181 
3,929 
3.903 
6.634 
7,721 

3,341 
2.781 

g g g  

37.215 

77,533 
96,636 
146,788 
136.711 

457.esa 

124,243 
95.809 

9,091 
10,675 
14,966 

254.784 

344,910 

177,834 
171,541 
160,811 
151,011 
71,729 

1.077.834 

2.211 
779 
155 

1,040 
149 

1.048 
2,043 
2,101 
2,403 
2.424 

5,316 
4.758 
4,402 

2.067 
1.778 

35.215 

89,846 
94.551 
145,005 
152,023 

481.425 

136.208 
99,808 

10,507 
12,227 
16,517 

414.542 

106.284 
193,777 
187,560 
168,128 
186.833 
71.301 

1,330.425 

2.314 
7 90 
152 

1,160 
157 

1.284 
2,234 
2,235 
2,676 
2.692 

9,716 
8.732 
8,415 

2,203 
1.917 

gg 

45.700 

4- 

81.813 
90,304 
148.073 
145,945 

466.134 

135.853 
103.?22 

10.195 
12.119 
18.445 

280.354 

41 5.107 

194,695 
209,803 
190,948 
162,979 
194,331 

1.459.427 
91,564 

2.366 
802 
59 
813 
40 
810 

2,027 
2.108 
2,403 
2.459 

8.709 
6,241 
7,519 
3,874 
2,114 
1,776 

- 2013 

42,417 

79,173 
106.074 
149.378 
147.683 
86.744 

569.051 

1 1  5,624 
95.861 

9.815 
11.650 
17.077 

250.028 

370,574 

185,089 
220.847 
180,489 
164,095 
166,673 
89.410 

1,377.177 

2.364 
816 
82 
850 
83 
935 

1.966 
2.099 
2.405 
2,457 

7,967 
7.506 
7,235 
7.087 
2,185 

- 2014 

47,506 

88.784 
100.102 
148,312 
146.485 
150,189 

633.872 

127,471 
98.104 

9,891 
11,526 
16,755 

263.747 

334.492 

168,048 
208.718 
167,301 
166.041 
157,953 
74,131 

1.276.682 

2.275 
81 1 
46 
726 
41 
712 

1,935 
2.100 
2,357 
2.451 

8,202 
7,384 
7,308 
7,105 
2,189 

Z9.G 

44,225 

87,868 
103,469 
162.646 
160.879 
154.161 
12,177 
681.200 

133.21 5 
99.906 

9,936 
12.528 
19,131 

274.716 

352.91 1 

175,456 
214.720 
190,631 
176,753 
169,554 
91,105 

1,371.1 30 

2.415 
874 
115 

1,051 
106 
835 

2.177 
2,353 
2,721 
2.757 

9,070 
8,519 
8,043 
7.535 
2,309 

- 2016 

49.654 

e 

86.21 1 
105.309 
150,290 
147,991 
157,105 
155.1 50 
802.056 

136,295 
104.263 

10.103 
12.297 
17.918 

280.876 

320.906 

161,491 
221.212 
188,520 
161,192 
150,657 
79,297 

1.283.275 

2,536 
894 
17 
731 
17 
752 

2.139 
2.282 
2,663 
2.710 

7,139 
7,384 
7,209 
6,992 
2.384 

DEBARY 2 1,802 1.816 1,929 1.- 
DEBARY 3 3:265 2,070 2.114 2,128 2,178 2,174 2.283 2,374 

- 2017 

45.680 
4,339 

5o-o&l 

95,094 
106.352 
146,223 
1M,118 
160,915 
159,420 
812.123 

151,391 
119,025 

11,469 
14,209 
20,749 

J16.843 

368.908 

184,250 
251.689 
196,051 
191,107 
192,157 
67.461 

1,451,623 

2.696 
982 
158 

1,207 
165 

1,373 
2.657 
2.722 
3.195 
3.244 

10,025 
8.664 
6,027 
7,755 
2,642 
2.258 
2.575 

tols 

51.618 
54.71 1 

106.329 

82.618 
96,828 
153.598 
151,154 
154.429 
152,433 
291.060 

149,544 
116,620 

1 1.672 
13.789 
19,944 
311.570 

263.253 

140,316 
235,621 
177,546 
15471 0 
139.655 
83.355 

1.195.455 

2.819 
992 
70 
827 
44 
919 

2.345 
2.598 
2,986 
3,035 

8.288 
7.888 
7,272 
7,122 
2,716 
2,254 
2.687 
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2024 - 2023 - - 2019 - 2020 - 2022 

48.049 54.029 50.177 56,233 52,348 58.825 54.621 
55.180 57,207 57.488 58.854 59,401 61.491 61,993 

4.663 56.214 58.858 60,846 61.458 
E2g111.2361!2.328173.301170.607181.162178.072 

88.337 94,649 93,433 81.266 97.993 94,878 101.813 
107,444 106,157 101.807 106.934 108.543 110,235 123.227 
152,211 157,398 170,165 153.789 162,840 176.095 173.696 
149,955 154.752 168.330 152.180 159.240 173,647 170,805 
160,885 165,241 170,391 162,507 170,610 174.802 182.340 
158.520 162.702 166.955 160.028 167.733 170.974 178.925 
~ ~ 8 7 1 . 0 8 2 ~ ~ 9 0 0 . 6 3 2 9 3 0 , 8 0 6  

162,259 178.594 184,400 158,947 179,040 180,074 193.509 
126.500 134,286 143,621 130.805 139.620 130,241 151.612 

13.019 13.854 14.071 13.863 13,619 14,731 14.814 
14,764 16,733 16.597 15.995 15.276 17,769 17.570 
22.365 24,771 24.196 22,953 24.188 27,659 26.301 
338.907~382.886342.563371.742370.474fJo-J 

325,394 347,104 378,425 284,332 307.815 330.264 373,650 

170,317 183,308 197,136 148.176 167,044 170,644 191,694 
255,902 258.256 271,086 264,419 271,202 291.381 297,667 
194,714 224,685 239.559 195.618 208,377 226,795 252.045 
192,588 205.771 219.684 165,531 188.645 201,691 229,410 
172,521 183.527 214,789 153,423 170.669 173,227 202,592 
92.360 106,465 106,214 93,629 105,455 90,200 111,689 

1.403.796 1.509.116 1,626,894 1,305,329 1.419.207 1,484,202 1,658.747 

2.955 3,246 3,168 
1.044 1,175 1.160 

13 268 181 
728 977 1,051 
13 282 158 

732 1.098 1,085 
2,487 2,791 2.870 
2,690 3,052 2,967 

3.089 3.618 3,507 
3,004 3,543 3,335 

3,215 
1,129 

20 
778 
14 
800 

2.760 
3,014 
3,337 
3,440 

3.217 3,337 
1.183 1,209 

31 30 
711 739 
31 39 
674 823 

2,764 2.922 
2.906 3.168 

3,492 3,657 
3,431 3 587 

3,441 
1,236 
130 
985 
135 

1,109 
3.037 
3.208 
3,730 
3.829 

8,200 10,001 9,848 7,661 7.924 8.018 9.708 
7,530 9,367 9,340 7,428 7,624 8,032 8,960 
7,374 8,517 8,510 7.096 7,383 7,269 6,421 
6,832 7,259 8,001 7,032 7.096 
2,769 3.226 3,059 3,026 3.093 3,153 3,361 
2,284 2,829 2.580 2,508 2.566 2,676 2.833 

3,340 3,212 3,037 3,049 3.094 3,155 2.764 

7,208 8.013 
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PEF CR3 Uprate 
CR3 Uprafe (IEOMW lull ownership, July 06 GFF base) - Florida 
so00 

ANNUAL, 

DEBARY 4 
DEBARY 5 
DEBARY 6 
DEBARY 7 
DEBARY 8 
DEBARY 9 
DEBARY 10 
HlGGlNS 1 
HlGGlNS 2 
HlGGlNS 3 
HlGGlNS 4 
INTCITY 1 
INTCITY 2 
INTCITY 3 
INT CITY 4 
INTCITY 5 
I N T C I M  6 
INTCITY 7 
INTCITY 8 
INTCrPl 9 
INT CITY 10 
INT CIM I1 
INT CITY 12 
INT CITY 13 
INT CITY 14 
RIO PlNAR 1 
SUWANNEE 1 
SUWANNEE 2 
SUWANNEE 3 
TURNER 1 
TURNER 2 
TURNER 3 
TURNER 4 
U OF FL 1 

CT. Total 

C P 8 Lime 
Econpurc offp 
Econpurc peak 
Osceola 158 Purc 
OUC 150 Purc 
Shady Hills 
SoCo Franklin 
SoCo Scherer 
Soulhem UPS 
TEA 50 Purc 
T e a  Purc 

Tran-Purc. Total 

As Avail 
Aubum(As Avail) 
Bay County 
Btomaas Energy 
Cargill 
Dade County 
DTE Biomass 
El Dorado (APP) 

2009 

3,198 
2,906 
2.498 

14,525 
15,002 
14,460 
8,551 
1,806 
1,803 
3,006 
2.500 
2,779 
3.681 
3.789 
4.051 
4,409 
3.126 
8.929 
9,586 
8,850 
9,161 
7,628 

11,869 
10.867 
11,472 

599 
10,642 
6.01 1 

12.671 
273 
390 

3,765 
3.034 

19.044 

48.873 
24,017 
49,009 

1,768 

42.468 

143,902 

27,849 
337.887 

1,843 
3,214 

4,180 

25.919 
1.814 

2010 

1,982 
1.835 
1,516 

12.023 
12.338 
11.823 
5.284 
1,515 
1,522 
2,494 
1,973 
1,704 
2,325 
2,345 
2,513 
2,771 
1.968 
8,824 
9,692 
8.499 
9,191 
4.682 

12,072 
10.965 
11,335 

386 
6.017 
3,582 
7.002 

178 
256 

2.368 
1.958 

18.533 
ua.zl* 

- 

49,223 
24,017 
48.852 

41.381 
62,572 
16,096 
60,089 

23.450 a 
1,497 
2.489 

52.192 

26.801 
1,603 

521835 55.548 

Zr! 
2,062 
1,908 
1.729 

12.758 
13,199 
12,560 
5.582 
1,571 
1,581 
2,614 
2,038 
1,891 
2,552 
2,552 
2.775 
3,048 
2.035 
9,453 

10,357 
9.246 
9,900 
5.082 

12,500 
11.386 
12,018 

399 
6,565 
4.066 
7,010 

I91 
259 

2.606 
2,144 

30,970 
255.401 

24,017 
48.822 

42.331 
11 1,675 
27,765 

3,951 
p-F& 

1,632 
2.583 

51.153 

28.313 
1,549 

57.940 

2.071 
1.878 
1,590 

12,931 
13,262 
12,762 
5.685 
1,604 
1,604 
2,612 
2,074 
1,700 
2,452 
2,499 
2.688 
2.856 
2,022 
9,386 

10.233 
9.032 
9.876 
4,957 

12,936 
11.678 
12.104 

391 
6,575 
3.748 
7,675 

170 
248 

2.391 
1,892 

32,335 
256.167 

24,017 
48.453 

42.523 
111.849 
27,947 

254.790 

2.566 
1,621 

50,595 

29.423 
1.513 

60 674 

ZOlJ 

2.116 
1.928 
1.619 

12.847 
13,057 
12,610 
5.686 
1.617 
1,612 
2,594 
2.077 
1,728 
2.514 
2,514 
2,757 
2.880 
1.969 
9,388 

10.241 
8.957 
9.766 
5,026 

12,680 
11,277 
11.897 

410 
6.321 
3.723 
7.479 

178 
252 

2.384 
1,883 

32.766 
256.767 

24,017 
48.453 

36,589 
99,496 
27,964 

236.520 

1.562 
2,581 

50.666 

29,519 
1.514 

63.193 

2,102 
1.886 
1,630 

12,672 
13,002 
12.447 
5,824 
1,581 
1,580 
2,569 
2.054 
1,650 
2.477 
2,442 
2,712 
2.814 
1.965 
9,237 
9,990 
8,883 
9,614 
5.064 

12.080 
11,307 
11.756 

398 
6.41 1 
3.674 
7.227 

167 
247 

2.394 
1,930 

31.666 
255.083 

24.017 
48,453 

38.559 
94,517 
27.870 

233.415 

1,539 
2,473 

50,700 

19,404 
1.515 

37.350 

- 2015 

2.226 
1,992 
1.754 

13.231 
13,663 
13,181 
6,070 
1,637 
1.642 
2.639 
2,147 
1,763 
2,578 
2,617 
2.812 
3.083 
2,141 
9,673 

10.612 
9,355 

10,054 
5.074 

13,145 
11.886 
12.403 

41 5 
7,046 
4.090 
8.227 

187 
275 

2,595 
2.038 

35.083 
272.426 

24,017 
48.453 

47,661 
101,477 
28,305 

1.557 
2,656 

51,399 

19,955 
1,540 

38,250 

2016 

2,318 
2,099 
1,800 

13,934 
14.206 
12,502 
6,368 
1,711 
1.711 
2,796 
2.227 

2,726 
2.699 
2,931 
3.128 
2,136 

10,190 
11,050 
9.671 

10,654 
5.528 

13.790 
12,381 
12.955 

441 
6.938 
4,177 
8.050 

184 
273 

2,614 
2,082 

35.565 
273.813 

- 

1.789 

24,017 
48.453 

40,365 
90,140 

1,551 
2,617 

52,304 

20,004 
1,577 

39,055 

2017 

2.546 
2.268 
2,057 

15,031 
15,247 
14.617 
6,818 
1,822 
1.830 
2.983 
2,386 
2.322 
3.078 
3,154 
3,362 
3,631 
2.618 

11,002 
11,349 
10.530 
11.458 
6.008 

14.586 
13,353 
13.783 

476 
7.952 
4,814 
8.576 

223 
312 

2,977 
2,405 

39.258 

- 

305.374 

24,017 
48,453 

49,275 
102,821 

224.666 

1,733 
2.963 

52,876 

20,745 
1,603 

40.520 

2,601 
2.318 
2,040 

15.435 
15.896 
15.168 
7,091 
1.872 
1,895 
3,105 
2,487 
2.096 
3.098 
2.981 
3.280 
3.480 
2.405 

11,257 
12.244 
10,666 
11,773 
6,090 

15.277 
13.791 
14,476 

483 
7,499 
4,625 
8,470 

205 
302 

3,036 
2.406 

40.935 
505.703 

24,017 
48.453 

40,159 

1,483 
2,670 

53.083 

19.332 
1,611 

39.347 

2019 

2.697 
2,430 
2.081 

16.162 
16,511 
15.811 
7.423 
1,962 
1.965 
3.241 
2.561 
2,079 
3,164 
3,123 
3.438 
3,629 
2,480 

11.238 
12.665 
11.040 
12,253 
6.157 

16.064 
14,470 
15,041 

509 
7,939 
4,651 
8.975 

215 
316 

2,971 
2.463 

43,259 a 

24.017 
48.453 

41,423 

113.893 

1,694 
3,057 

53,552 

20.219 
1,657 

40,938 

2020 

3.105 
2,834 
2.555 

16.814 
17,626 
16,761 
8,018 
2,130 
2.161 
3,545 
2.832 
2,500 
3.572 
3,619 
3.672 
4,192 
2.940 

12,675 
13.798 
11,993 
13.228 
7,191 

17,178 
15,528 
16.104 

598 
8.691 
5.454 
9,271 
. 282 

398 
3.667 
2,991 

42.416 
344.844 

- 

24.017 
49,200 

47.202 

1,756 
3.028 

54,441 

20,779 
1.839 

41,827 

2021 

2,956 
2,666 
2.245 

17.434 
17,869 
17,127 
8,009 
2,116 
2.052 
3,493 
2.788 
2,407 
3.379 
3.491 
3.824 
4.075 
2.809 

12.794 
14.063 
12.156 
13.266 
6,967 

17.547 
15.880 
16.284 

57 5 
9,003 
5.375 

10,324 
257 
369 

3,456 
2.756 

46,121 
348.792 

24,017 
48.453 

49,683 

122.153 

1.845 
3,203 

55.190 

21.324 
1.888 

42,752 

2022 

2,946 
2.668 
2.286 

16.559 
17.728 
17.310 
8.124 
2.118 
2.127 
3,521 
2,791 
2,379 
3,499 
3,498 
3.816 
3.974 
2,793 

12.743 
13.844 
12.013 
13,355 
7,002 

17,488 
15,733 
16,358 

558 
8,437 
5,214 
8.870 

236 
350 

3.341 
2.678 

46,544 

- 

24,017 
48,453 

39,491 

111.961 

1,633 
2,932 

55,064 

20,041 
1,905 

41,788 

2023 

3,010 
2,753 
2.328 

17.927 
18.369 
17,373 
8.296 
2.168 
2,175 
3.587 
2,828 
2,377 
3,559 
3.492 
3.861 
4.086 

13,000 
14,078 
12,179 
13,597 
7,100 

17.767 
16,040 
16,686 

577 
9.279 
5,241 

10.461 
252 
364 

3.396 
2.706 

45,341 

2.810 

346.282 

24,017 
48.453 

41,204 

1,851 
3,220 

56,151 

21,067 
1,962 

43.809 

2024 

3.084 
2,779 
2,421 

18,200 
18.621 
17,817 
8,481 
2,192 
2,194 
3,658 
2,884 
2,537 
3.682 
3,540 
3,980 
4,072 
2,985 

13,203 
14.354 
12.544 
13,776 
7,309 

18,125 
16,292 
17,001 

580 
9.150 
5.449 
9,916 

255 
370 

3.478 
2,839 

48.446 
3- 

24,017 
48.453 

42.51 1 

.114.981 

1,822 
3.317 

56,848 

21,332 
2,010 

44,183 

- 2025 

3,216 
2,946 
2,553 

18,637 
19,060 
18,257 
8.715 
2,268 
2.237 
3.783 
2.986 
2,641 
3.802 
3.807 
4,095 
4.383 
3,016 

13,723 
14,846 
13,075 
14.242 
7,584 

18,687 
16,730 
17,436 

610 
9.667 
5.809 

11,199 
273 
393 

3 724 
3.025 

49.224 
372.143 

24.017 
48.453 

45,474 

1,979 
3.480 

57,965 

22,480 
2,071 

45,938 



PEF CR3 Uprate 
CR3 Uprate (180MW full ownership. July 06 GFF base) - Florida 
$000 

G2 Energy 
Lake Cogen 
Lake County 
LFC (APP) 
Mulberry 
Orange Cogen 
Orlando Cogen 
Pasoo Cogen 
Pasw County 
Pinellas County 
Ridge Gen St 
Royster 

Coaen. Total 

- NH3 

€&.QJ 

2009 

3.840 
$4,516 
9,262 
9.803 

47,724 
42,603 
52,929 
47.203 
17.447 
39.623 
18,878 
16.476 

450.111 

3,612 

1.098 

3,870 
57.451 
9.738 

10,305 
50.247 
44.806 
55.018 
42.505 
18.303 
41.660 
19.438 
11.187 

504.659 

4.062 

10,378 

29.l.l 

3,899 
60,027 
10.237 
10.838 
52.582 
46.808 
57.356 
43,862 
19,223 
43.819 
19,769 
11,309 
522.897 

4,115 

10.947 

3,925 
62,943 
10,783 
11,418 
55.117 
46.103 
59,952 
43,887 
20,215 
46.150 
20,136 
11.378 

538.401 

3,909 

10.775 

Z l 2  

3,944 
52,395 
11,364 
12.031 
57.629 
48.113 
62,317 
43.300 
21,271 
48.646 
20,316 
11.338 

541.699 

5,139 

14.342 

2014 

3,962 
34,221 

8,591 
6,122 

60,352 
50,259 
64.791 
42.670 
22.322 
51.156 
20,570 
11,199 

489.195 

5.870 

16,691 

- 201 5 

3,986 
35,136 

5,263 
6.299 

63.228 
52.560 
67,363 
43,721 
23.485 
53,905 
20.832 
11,479 

502.613 

6,324 

18.279 

2017 - 2016 

4.025 4,041 
35,526 36,977 

5.271 5.467 
6.381 6.608 

66.207 69,283 
54,889 57,340 
70.023 72,705 
43.965 45,751 
24,710 26,053 
56.838 59,987 
21.110 21,346 
11,650 12,084 

517.703558.083 

- 

7,929 7.801 

23,114 23,110 

4,022 
35,733 

5.159 
6,395 

72,456 
59,633 
75.504 
43.309 
27,336 
63,040 
21,502 
11,692 

543.307 

7,648 

23.022 

2619 

4,063 
37,485 

5,415 
6.698 

75,892 
62,451 
78.461 
45,342 
28.852 
66,647 
21,732 
12,231 

566.387 

7,662 

23,397 
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4,092 
38,282 
5,501 
6,829 

79.466 
65,274 
81.575 
46.284 
30.482 
70,479 
22,005 
12,490 

586.428 

7,744 

24.062 

2021 

4.115 
38.905 

5,613 
6.982 

83,128 
68,156 
84.630 
47,502 
32,169 
74,524 
22,200 
12.729 

- 

8,023 

25.325 

Jotal Cost 3.213.541 2.890.494 3.174.253 3.315.6x 3.293.139 3.220.061 3.420.826 3,441,395 3.729.543 3.396.723 3,690.111 3.912.98Z 4.105.339 

2025 - 2024 - 2022 2023 - 
4,097 

38.215 
5.408 
6.775 

86.985 
71,006 
88,094 
45,742 
33,749 
78,317 
22.396 
12.423 

616.570 

5,299 
39,861 

5,617 
7,104 

91,150 
74,418 
91,649 
47,699 
35,696 
82,895 
22.701 
13.014 

5.342 
40,498 

5,719 
7.186 
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INTRODUCTION 

Section 186.801 of the Florida Statutes requires electric generating utilities to submit a Ten-Year 

Site Plan (TYSP) to the Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC). The TYSP includes 

historical and projected data pertaining to the utility’s load and resource needs as well as a 

review of those needs. It is compiled in accordance with FPSC Rules 25-22.070 through 25.072, 

Florida Administrative Code. 

Progress Energy Florida’s (PEF’s) TYSP is based on projections of long-term planning 

requirements that are dynamic in nature and subject to change. These planning documents 

should be used for general guidance concerning PEF’ s planning assumptions and projections, 

and should not be taken as an assurance that particular events discussed in the TYSP will 

materialize or that particular plans will be implemented. Information and projections pertinent to 

periods further out in time are inherently subject to greater uncertainty. 

The TYSP document contains four chapters as described below: 

CHAPTER 1 

DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING FACILITIES 

CHAPTER 2 

FORECAST OF ELECTRICAL POWER DEMAND AND ENERGY CONSUMPTION 

CHAPTER 3 
FORECAST OF FACILITIES REQUIREMENTS 

CHAPTER 4 

ENVIRONMENTAL AND LAND USE INFORMATION 

1 
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CHAPTER 1 

DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING FACILITIES 

EXISTING FACILITIES OVERVIEW 

OWNERSHIP 

PEF is a wholly owned subsidiary of Progress Energy, Inc. (Progress Energy). Congress enacted 

legislation in 2005 repealing the Public Utilities Holding Company Act of 1935 (PUCHA) 

effective February 8, 2006. Subsequent to that date, Progress Energy is no longer subject to 

regulation by the Securities and Exchange Commission as a public utility holding company, 

Progress Energy is the parent company of PEF and certain other subsidiaries. 

AREA OF SERVICE 

PEF provided electric service during 2005 to an average of 1.6 million customers in Florida. Its 

service area covers approximately 20,000 square miles and includes the densely populated areas 

around Orlando, as well as the cities of St. Petersburg and Cleajvvater. PEF is interconnected 

with 22 municipal and 9 rural electric cooperative systems. PEF is subject to the rules and 

regulations of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) and the FPSC. PEF’s Service 

Area is shown in Figure 1.1. 

TRANSMISSION/DISTRIBUTION 
The Company is part of a nationwide interconnected power network that enables power to be 

exchanged between utilities. The PEF transmission system includes approximately 5,000 circuit 

miles of transmission lines. The distribution system includes approximately 3 5,000 circuit miles, 

with approximately 13,000 of those miles underground. A map of the Electric System can be 

found in Figure 1.2. 

ENERGY MANAGEMENT 

PEF customers participating in the company’s residential Energy Management program help to 

manage future growth and costs. Approximately 345,000 customers participated in the Energy 

Management program at the end of 2005, contributing about 700,000 kW of winter peak-shaving 

capacity for use during high load periods. 
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TOTAL CAPACITY RESOURCE 

As of December 31, 2005, PEF had total summer capacity resources of approximately 10,413 

MW consisting of installed capacity of 8,976 MW (excluding Crystal River 3 joint ownership) 

and 1,437 MW of firm purchased power. Additional information on PEF’s existing generating 

resources is shown on Schedule 1 and Table 3 I 1. 
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FIGURE 1.1 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

Service Area Map 
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FIGURE 1.2 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

Electric System Map 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE I 

E X l S m G  GENERATING FACILITIES 
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CHAPTER 2 

FORECAST OF ELECTRIC POWER DEMAXD 

AND 

ENERGY CONSUMPTION 

OVERVIEW 
The following Schedules 2, 3 and 4 represent PEF’s history and forecast of customers, energy 

sales (GWh), and peak demand (MW). High and low scenarios are also presented for sensitivity 

purposes. 

The base case was developed using assumptions to predict a forecast with a 50/50 probability, or 

most likely scenario. The high and low scenarios, which have a 90/10 probability of occurrence 

or an 80 percent probability of an outcome falling between the high and low cases, employed a 

Monte Carlo simulation procedure that studied 1,000 possible outcomes of retail demand and 

energy. 

PEF’s customer growth is expected to average 1.7 percent between 2006 and 2015, less than the 

ten-year historical average of 2.3 percent. The ten-year historical growth rate falls to 2.0 percent 

when accounting for the creation of PEF’ s Seasonal Service Rate tariff, which artificially inflates 

customer growth figures. Slower population growth - based on the latest projection from the 

University of Florida’s Bureau of Economic and Business Research - and economic conditions 

less favorable for the housing/construction industry (higher interest rates) result in a lower base 

case customer projection when compared to the higher historical growth rate. This translates 

into lower projected energy and demand growth rates from historic rate levels. 

Net energy for load (NEL), which had grown at an average of 3.4 percent between 1996 and 

2005, is expected to increase by 2.6 percent per year from 2006-2015 in the base case, 2.8 

percent in the high case and 2.3 percent in the low case. A lower contribution from the 

wholesale jurisdiction, which grew an average of 10.7 percent between 1996 and 2005, results in 

lower expected system growth going forward than the historic rate. Retail NEL, which grew at a 
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2.7 percent average rate historically, is expected to grow 2.5 percent over the next ten years. 

Wholesale NEL is expected to average 3.3 percent between 2006 and 2015. 

Summer net firm demand is expected to grow an average of 2.6 percent per year during the next 

ten years. This compares to the 4.5% growth rate experienced throughout the last ten years, 

Again, lower contribution from the wholesale jurisdiction is expected going forward. High and 

low summer growth rates for net firm demand are 2.9 percent and 2.3 percent per year, 

respectively. Winter net firm demand is projected to grow at 2.8 percent per year after having 

increased by 0.3 percent per year from 1996 to 2005. The low historical growth figure is driven 

by an extreme weather peak day in 1996. High and low winter net firm demand growth rates are 

3.1 percent and 2.6 percent, respectively. 

Summer net firm retail demand is expected to grow an average of 2.5 percent per year during the 

next ten years; this compares to the 4.7 percent average annual growth rate experienced 

throughout the last ten years. The historical growth percentage is driven by an extremely hot 

2005 peak day condition. High and low summer growth rates for net firm retail demand are 2.8 

percent and 2.2 percent per year, respectively. Winter net firm retail demand is projected to 

grow at approximately 2.1 percent per year after having grown by 0.4% from 1996 to 2005. 

Again, an extremely cold 1996 peak day causes this anomaly. High and low winter net firm 
retail demand growth rates are 2.5 percent and 1.8 percent, respectively. 
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ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND DEMAND FORECAST SCHEDULES 

SCHEDULE 

2.1,2.2 and 2.3 

3.1.1,3.1.2and3.1.3 

3.2.1, 3.2.2 and 3.2.3 

3.3.1, 3.3.2 and 3.3.3 

4 

DESCRIPTION 

History and Forecast of Energy Consumption and Number of 

Customers by Customer Class 

History and Forecast of Base, High and Low Summer Peak 

Demand (MW) 

History and Forecast of Base, High, and Low Winter Peak 

Demand (MW) 

History and Forecast of Base, High and Low Annual Net Energy 

for Load (GWh) 

Previous Year Actual and Two-Year Forecast of Peak Demand and 

Net Energy for Load by Month 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

YEAR 
_...._--.- 

I996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

SCHEDULE 2.1 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF EkERGY CONSUMPTION AND 

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS BY CUSTOMER CLASS 

RURAL AND RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL 
____________________-----------.-----.~..----.-.-------.-----~--~---~------.-.--.-.-.---------------..-..---------.- --.-----------------------------------------.-------.---.------- 

AVERAGE AVERAGE KWh AVERAGE AVERAGE KWh 
PEF MEMBERS PER NO. OF CONSUMPTION NO. OF CONSUMPTION 

POPULATION HOUSEHOLD GWh CUSTOMERS PER CUSTOMER GWh CUSTOMERS PER CUSTOMER 

2,847,802 
2,895,266 
2,959,509 
3,047,293 
3.044,449 
3,141,867 
3,207.661 
3,286.782 
3.348.630 
3,425,783 

3,473,48 I 
3,530,429 
3,585,407 
3.639.074 
3.690.763 
3,740,415 
3,788.512 
3,835.9 I8 
3,883,825 
3,932,139 

2 494 
2 495 
2.502 
2.51 1 

2.467 
2.465 
2.465 
2.468 
2.454 
2.452 

2 447 
2.44 1 

2 435 
2 428 
2 420 
2 412 
2 404 
2 396 
2 389 
2 382 

13,481 
15,080 
16,526 
16,245 
17.1 16 
17,604 
I 8,754 
19,429 
19,347 
19,894 

20,187 
20.73 1 

21,244 
21.789 
22.3 16 
22,839 
23,353 
23.882 
24,4 I 1 
24,949 

1,141,671 
1,160,61 I 
1 , I  82,786 
1,213,470 
1,234,286 
1,214,672 
1,301,5 15 

I ,33 1,914 
1,364.677 
1,397,012 

1,419,449 
1,446.239 
I ,472,55 1 

1,498,885 
1,524,944 
I.550,477 
1.575.780 
1,600,906 
1,625,899 
1,650,873 

13,560 
12,993 
13,972 
13,387 
13,867 
13,810 
14,409 
14,587 
14.177 
14,240 

14,222 
14,334 
14,427 
14,537 
14,634 
14,730 
14,820 
14,918 
15,014 
15,l 13 

8,848 
9,257 
9,999 

10.327 
10,813 
11,061 
1 1,420 
11.553 
I 1,734 
1 1.945 

1 1,899 
12.292 
12.725 
13,155 
13,559 
13,966 
14,370 
14,785 
15,204 
15.629 

129,440 
132,504 
136,345 
140,897 
143,475 
146,983 
150,577 
154,294 
158,780 
161,001 

163,107 
166,477 
169,784 
173,090 
176,360 

179.6 I I 
182,781 
185,927 
189,055 
192, I81 

68,356 
69,862 
73,336 
73,295 
75.368 
7525 I 
75,842 
74,876 
73,898 
74,190 

72,952 ' 

73,836 
74,947 
75,998 
76,880 
77,759 
78.61 8 
79,5 19 
80,4 I9 
81.323 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

YEAR 
____.____- 

I996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
200 1 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 

2006 
2007 
2008 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

SCHEDULE 2.2 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND 

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS BY CUSTOMER CLASS 

INDUSTRIAL 
STREET & 

AVERAGE AVERAGE KWh RAILROADS HIGHWAY 
NO. OF CONSUMPTION AND RAILWAYS LIGHTING 

.______________---._------.------------------------------.--------------- 

GWh CUSTOMERS PER CUSTOMER GWh GWh 

4,224 
4, I 88 
4,375 
4,334 
4,249 
3,872 
3,835 
4,001 
4,069 
4,140 

4,152 
4,2 13 
4,383 
4,416 
4,453 
4,491 
4,539 
4,579 
4,622 
4,662 

2,927 
2,830 
2,707 
2,629 
2,535 
2,551 
2,535 
2,643 
2,733 
2,703 

2,687 
2,687 
2,687 
2,687 

2,687 
2,687 

2,687 

2,687 
2,687 
2,687 

1,443,116 
1,479,859 

1 , ~ 3 , 5 3 6  
1,616,180 

1,676.1 34 
I ,5 17,836 
I ,5 12,82 I 
1,513,810 
1,488,840 
1,531,632 

1,545,218 
1,567,920 
1,63 I ,  I87 
1,643,469 
1,657,239 
I , 6 7 1 3  I 
1,689,245 
1,704,13 1 

1,720,134 
1,735,020 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
1 

26 
27 
27 
27 
28 
28 
28 
29 
28 
27 

28 
28 

28 

28 

28 

28 

28 

28 

28 

28 

OTHER SALES TOTAL SALES 
TO PUBLIC TO ULTIMATE 

AUTHORITIES CONSUMERS 
GWh GWh 

2,205 
2,299 
2,459 
2,509 
2,626 
2,698 
2,822 
2,946 
3,016 
3.171 

3,209 
3,327 
3,436 
3,547 
3,65 1 

3,756 
3,861 
3,968 
4,076 
4,186 

30,784 
30,851 
33,386 
33,442 
34,832 
35,263 
36,859 
37,957 

39,178 
38.193 

39,475 
40,59 I 
41,816 
42,935 
44,006 
45,081 
46,150 
47,24 1 
48,341 
49,456 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SALES FOR 

RESALE 

YEAR GWh 

SCHEDULE 2.3 

HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND 

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS BY CUSTOMER CLASS 

1996 
1997 
1998 

1999 
2000 
200 1 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 

2010 
201 1 
2012 

2013 
2014 

2015 

2,089 
1,758 
2,340 

3,267 
3,732 

3,839 
3,173 
3,359 
4,301 

5,195 

4,038 

4,430 
4,4 10 

4,323 
4,958 

5,083 
5,159 

5,263 

5,343 
5,419 

1,842 
1,996 
2,037 

2,45 1 
2,678 
1,83 1 
2,534 
2,595 

2,773 
2,505 

2,654 

2,739 
2,850 

2,890 
3,042 

3,055 
3,125 

3,199 

3,265 
3,337 

(4) 

NET ENERGY 

FOR LOAD 
GWh 

34,715 

34,605 
37,763 
39,160 
4 1,242 

40,933 
42,567 
43,911 

45,268 
46,878 

46,167 
47,759 

49,076 
50,148 
52,006 

53,219 
54,434 

55,704 

56,948 
58,211 

OTHER TOTAL 

CUSTOMERS NO. OF 
(AVERAGE NO.) CUSTOMERS 

18,035 
18,562 

19,013 
19,60 1 
20,004 
20,752 
21,155 
2 1,665 

22,437 
22,70 1 

23,160 

23,719 
24,279 

24,837 

25,388 
25,933 
26,474 

27,008 

27,537 
28,059 

1,292,073 
1,314,507 

1,340,85 1 
1,376,597 
1,400,299 

1,444,958 
1,475,783 

1,5 10,s 16 
1,548,627 
1,583,417 

1,608,403 

1,639,122 
1,669,301 

1,699,499 
1,729,379 

1,758,708 

1,787,722 

1,816,528 
1,845,178 
1,873,800 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3 1 1 

HISTORY AND FORECAST OF SUMMER PEAK DEMAND (MW) 

BASE CASE 

1996 
1997 
1998 
I999 
2000 

200 I 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
20 I4 
2015 

7,470 
7.786 
8.367 
9,039 
8,911 
8,841 
9,421 
8,886 
9,554 
10,316 

9.915 
10,226 
10,487 
10,676 
11,039 
11,260 
11,487 

11,699 
11,921 
12,139 

828 
874 
943 

1,326 
1,319 

1,117 
1,203 
887 

1,071 

1,118 

1,105 
1,181 
1,223 
1.201 
1,357 
1,372 
1,396 
1,406 
1,429 
1.446 

6,642 

6,912 
7,424 
7,713 
7,592 
7,724 
8,218 
7,999 
8,483 
9,198 

8,810 
9,044 
9,264 

9,475 
9,681 

9.888 
I0,09 1 

10,293 
10,492 
10.693 

309 

288 
29 I 
292 
277 
283 
305 

300 
53 I 
393 

419 

43 1 

437 
433 
424 
425 
426 

427 
428 

429 

565 
555 
438 
505 
455 

414 
390 

347 
283 
250 

228 
202 
179 

I58 
140 

124 
109 
97 

86 
76 

69 
78 

97 
1 I3 

I27 
I39 

153 
172 
188 
203 

214 
223 
232 

24 I 
2 50 
259 

269 
179 
289 
293 

41 
41 
42 
45 

48 
54 
43 
44 
37 
38 

39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
45 
46 
47 
48 
48 

120 
131 

142 
153 

155 

156 
159 
I64 
I66 

167 

169 
171 
172 
174 
176 
177 
I79 
I80 
182 
183 

Historical Values (1996 -2005): 

Col. (2) = recorded p e d  + implemented load control + residential and commercid/industd conservation and customer-owned self-service cogcncration 
Cols. ( 5 )  - (9) =cumulative conservation and load control capabilities at peak Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation. 
Col. (OTH) = voltage reduction and customer-owned self-sewice cogeneration. 

Col. ( I O )  =(2)  - ( 5 )  - (6) - (7)-  (8)-  (9)- (OW) 
Projected Values (2006 - 2015): 

Cols. (2) - (4) =forecasted peak without load control, conservation, and customer-owned self-semice cogeneration. 

Cols. ( 5 )  - (9) = cumulative conservation and load control capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation. 
Col. (OTH) = customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 

Col. ( I O )  = (2) - (5) - (6) - (7). (8) - (9) - (OTH) 

167 
170 

182 
183 
75 
75 
75 
75 
75 
75 

75 
75 
75 
75 
75 
75 
75 
75 

75 
75 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3 1 2 
HISTORY AKD FORECASTOF SLMMER PEAK DEMAND (MW) 

HIGH LOAD FORECAST 

RESIDENTIAL COMM IIND. OTHER 
LOAD RESIDENTIAL LOAD COMM J N D  DEMAND 

YEAR TOTAL WHOLESALE RETAIL INTERRUPTIBLE MANAGEMENT CONSERVATION MANAGEMENT CONSERVATION REDUCTIONS 

1996 
I997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

7.470 
7,786 
8,367 
9,039 
8,91 I 
8,841 
9.42 I 
8.886 
9,554 
10,316 

10.083 
10,413 
10,699 
10,913 
I 1,294 
11,531 
11.798 
12,059 
12,320 
12,615 

828 
874 
943 
1,326 
1.319 
1,117 
1,203 
887 
1.071 
1.118 

1,105 
1,181 
1.223 
1,201 
1,357 

1.372 
1,396 
1.406 
1.429 
1,446 

6,642 
6.912 
7,424 
7,713 
7,592 
7,724 
8,2 I8 
7.999 
8,483 
9,198 

8,977 
9,232 
9,476 
9,7 I2 
9,937 
10,159 
10.402 
10,653 
10,891 
11,169 

309 
288 
291 
292 
277 
283 
305 
300 
531 
393 

419 
43 I 
437 
433 
424 
425 
426 
427 
428 
429 

565 
555 
438 
505 
455 
414 
390 
347 
283 
250 

228 
202 
179 
158 
I40 
I24 
I09 
97 
86 
76 

69 
78 
97 
1 I3 
127 
139 
153 
172 
188 

203 

214 
223 
232 
24 I 
250 
259 
269 
279 
289 
293 

41 
41 
42 
45 
48 
54 
43 
44 
37 
38 

39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
45 
46 
47 
48 
48 

i20 
131 

142 
153 

155 
156 
159 
164 
166 
167 

169 
171 
172 
174 
176 
177 
179 
180 

182 
183 

Historical Values (1996 - 2005): 
Col. (2) = recorded peak + implemented load control + residential and commercial/industrid conservation and customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Cols. ( 5 )  - (9) = cuinulative conservation and load control capabilities at peak Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation. 
Col. (OTH) =voltage reduction and customer-owned self-senice cogeneration. 

Projected Valuer (2006 - 2015): 

Cols. (2) - (4) = forecasted peak without load control, conservation, and customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Cols. (5). (9) = cumulative conservation and load control capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation. 

Col. (OTH) = customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 

COI. (IO) =(2) - ( 5 )  - (6)-(7)- (8) - (9)-(OTH). 

COI. (IO) =(2) - (5) -(6) -(7)- (8) - (9) - (OTH). 

167 
170 
182 
183 
75 
75 
75 
75 
75 
75 

75 
75 

75 

75 
75 
75 
75 
75 
75 
75 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDCLE 3 I 3 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF SUMMER PEAK DEMAND ( M W )  

LOW LOAD FORECAST 

OTHER COMM. / WD. RESIDENTIAL 
LOAD RESIDENTIAL LOAD COMM. / IND. DEMAND 

YEAR TOTAL WHOLESALE RETAIL INTERRUPTIBLE MANAGEMENT C0NSERV;ZTION MAYAGEMENT COXSERVATION REDL‘CTIONS 
______. ~ _._._._ ~ _____-.---.. ___..----.--_._ .-_-.... _.__ _._.__..__.. ~ _.___._. _. .-----...---.-..... -_ .... ..-..--------.--..---~- ._.-...____ _ _  _ _ _ _  _ _ _ _  

1996 

1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
200 1 

2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 

201 I 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

7.470 

7,786 
8.367 
9.039 
8,911 
8.841 

9,42 I 
8,886 
9,554 
10,316 

9,741 
10.056 
10,293 
10,473 
10.788 
10,975 
11,162 
11,332 
11,521 
I 1,670 

828 
874 

943 
1,326 
1,319 
1.117 

1.203 
887 

1.071 

1,118 

1,105 

1.181 
1,223 
1.20 I 
1,357 
1.372 
1,396 
1,406 
1,429 
1,446 

6,642 
6,912 

7,424 
7,713 
7.592 
7,724 
8,218 
7.999 
8,483 
9, I98 

8,641 

8.875 
9,070 

9.272 
9,43 I 
9,603 
9,766 
9,926 

10,092 
10,224 

309 

288 
291 
292 

277 
283 
305 
300 
53 I 
393 

419 
431 

437 
433 
424 

425 
426 
421 
428 
429 

565 
555 

438 
505 
455 

414 
3 90 
347 
283 
250 

228 
202 

179 

158 
140 
I24 
109 
97 
86 
76 

69 

78 
97 

I I3 
127 
139 
153 
172 
I88 
203 

214 
223 

232 
24 1 
250 
259 
269 

279 
289 

293 

41 
4 1  

42 

45 
48 
54 

43 
44 
37 
38 

39 
40 
41 
42 
43 

45 
46 
47 
48 
48 

120 

131 

142 
153 
I55 

156 
159 
164 
I66 
167 

I69 

171 
172 

I74 
I76 
I77 

179 
180 
182 
183 

Historical Values (1996 - 2005): 

Col. (2) =recorded peak + implemented load control +residential and commercialhdusmal conservation and customer-owned self-service cogeneration 
Cols ( 5 )  - (9) -cumulative consemation and load conhol capabilities at peak. Col. ( 8 )  includes comercia1 load management and standby generation. 
Col. (OTH) = voltage reduction and customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Col. ( I O )  = (2) . (5) - (6) - (7) - (8) - (9) - (OTH). 
Projected Values (2006 - 2015): 

Cols. (2) - (4) = forecasted peak without load control, conservation, and customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Cols. (5) - (9) =cumulative conservation and load control capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation. 
Col (OTH) = customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Col. (IO) =(2)  - (5) - (6 ) -  (7) - (8) - (9) - (OTH). 

167 
170 
182 
183 
75 

75 
75 
75 
75 
75 

75 
75 

75 
75 
75 
75 

75 
75 
15 
75 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3.2 I 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF WINTER PEAK DEMAKD (MH’) 

BASE CASE 

199996 10.562 
1996197 8.486 
1997198 7,752 
1998/99 10,473 
1999100 10,040 
2000101 11.450 
2001102 10.676 
2002/03 11,555 

2003104 9,290 
2004/05 10,798 

2005106 10,987 
2006/07 11,525 
2007/08 11,750 
2008109 12,l I3 
2009110 12,514 
2010/11 12,742 
2011/12 13,019 
2012113 13.278 
2013114 13,537 
2014115 13,776 

1,489 
1,235 
94 I 
1,741 
1.728 
1,984 
1,624 
1,538 
1,167 
1,602 

1,413 
1,740 
1,734 
1,894 
2,088 
2,112 
2,191 
2,253 
2,3 14 
2,358 

9,073 
7.25 I 
6.81 I 
8.732 
8,312 
9,466 
9.052 
10.017 
8,123 
9,196 

9,514 
9,786 
10.016 
10,220 
10,426 
10,629 
10,828 
11,025 
11,223 
11,418 

255 
290 
318 
305 
225 
2 55 
285 
271 
498 
350 

430 
426 
444 
440 
432 
434 
435 
436 
437 
438 

1,156 
917 
663 
874 
849 
809 
770 
768 
76 1 
725 

696 
67 I 

649 
63 I 
615 
603 
593 
586 
58 I 
577 

106 
I33 
164 
196 
229 
254 
278 
313 
343 
371 

405 
429 
453 
479 
506 
534 
566 
597 
628 
660 

15 
16 
17 
18 
20 
29 
24 
27 
24 
26 

28 
30 
31 
33 
35 
37 
38 
40 

42 
42 

Historical Values (1996 - 2005): 

Col. (2) = recorded peak + implemented load contTol + residential and commercialiindusmal conservation and customer-owned self-service cogeneration 
Cols. ( 5 )  - (9) = cumulative conservation and load control capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation. 
Col. (OTH) = voltage reduction and customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Col. (IO)=(2]-(5)-(6)-(7)-(8).(9)-iOTH). 
Projected Values (2006 - 2015): 

Cols. (2) - (4) = forecasted peak without load conrol, conservatioR and customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Cols. ( 5 )  - (9) = cumulatixe conservation and load control capabilihes at peak Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation. 
Col. (OTH) = voltage reduction and customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Col. (IO) = ( 2 )  - ( 5 )  - (6 )  - (7) . (8) - (9) - (OTH). 

95 
104 
112 

117 
119 
120 
I2 I 
124 
125 
125 

127 
128 
130 
132 
133 
135 
136 
138 
139 ’ 

141 

201 
190 

168 
187 
182 
194 
188 
20 1 
227 
247 

254 
258 
262 
265 

269 
272 
276 
279 
282 
285 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3 2 2 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF WINTER PEAK DEMAND (MW) 

HIGH LOAD FORECAST 

RESIDENTIAL COMM. I IND. OTHER 
COMM. 1 IND. DEMAND LOAD RESIDENTIAL LOAD 

YEAR TOTAL WHOLESALE RETAIL INTERRUPTIBLE MANAGEMENT CONSERVATION MANAGEMENT CONSERVATION REDUCTIONS 
_________... _.......-_____ ------ .--- ---------.---.-___...... ~ .--.-- __-._-..._. _.--..._._.--._._-._.~..~ -.-.-----.----.- .---.- ..___.._-..______._ _-. .___ __.___ _ _ _ _ _ _  _ _  
1995196 10,562 

1996/97 8,486 

1997/98 7,752 

1998199 10.473 

1999100 10,040 

2000/01 11.450 

2001/02 10.676 

2002/03 11,555 

2003/04 9,290 

2004105 10.798 

2005106 11.167 

2006107 11.725 

2007108 11,975 

2008109 12,364 

2009110 12.785 

20lOi l  I 13,026 

201 1/12 13,345 

2012113 13,656 

2013114 13,954 

2014115 14,272 

1,489 

1,235 

94 I 
1.741 

1,728 

1,984 

1.624 

1,538 

1.167 

1,602 

1.413 
1,740 

1,734 

1,894 

2,088 

2.112 

2.191 

2,253 

2,314 

2,358 

9,073 

7 3  I 

6,811 

8,732 

8,312 

9,466 

9,052 
10.017 

8,123 

9,196 

9,755 

9,986 

10,240 

10.470 

10.697 

10,913 

11,154 

11.403 

11.640 
11,914 

255 

290 

318 

305 

225 

255 

285 

271 

498 

350 

430 

426 

444 

440 

432 

434 

435 

436 

437 

438 

1,156 

917 

663 

874 

849 

809 

770 
768 

76 1 

725 

696 

67 I 
649 

63 I 
615 

603 

593 

586 

581 

577 

I06 

133 

I64 

I96 

229 

254 

278 
313 

343 
371 

405 

429 

453 

479 

506 

534 

566 

597 

628 

660 

I 5  
16 

17 

18 

20 

29 

24 

27 

24 

26 

28 

30 

31 

33 

35 

37 

38 

40 

42 

42 

Historical Values (1996 - 2005): 

Col. (2) = recorded peak + implemented load control + residential and cainmerciaVindushial conservation and customer-owned self-senice cogeneration. 
Cols. (5) - (9) = cumulative consewation and load control capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation, 
Col. (OTH) =voltage reduction and customcr-owed self-service cogeneration, 

Projected Values (2006 - 2015): 

Cols. (2) - (4) = forecasted peak without load conhol, conservation, and customn-owed self-service cogeneration. 
Cols. (5) - (9) =cumulative conservation and load control capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation, 
Col. (OTH) =voltage reduction and customer-omed self-senice cogeneration, 

Col. (IO) =(2)  - (5) -(6) - (7)- (8) -(9) - (OTH). 

Col. (IO) = (2) - (5) - (6) - (7) - (8) - (9). (OTH). 

95 

104 

112 

1 I 7  

I I 9  

120 

121 

124 

125 

125 

127 

128 

130 

132 
133 
135 

136 

138 

139 

141 

20 I 
190 

168 

187 

182 

194 

188 
20 I 

227 

247 

254 
258 

262 

265 

269 
272 

276 
279 

282 

285 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDLZE 3 2.3 

HISTORY ,AND FORECAST OF WINTER PEAK DEMAND (MW) 
LOW LOAD FORECAST 

OTHER RESIDEhTIAL COMM. I IND. 
LOAD RESIDENTIAL LOAD COMM. I IND. DEMMAND 

YEAR TOTAL WHOLESALE RETAIL INTERRUPTIBLE MANAGEMEN' CONSERVATION MANAGEMENT CONSERVATION REDUCTIONS _ _ _ _  _^...______.__ ____--___---.---..- -.-_____._..____..__--.. -.--. - .--.......--- _-. ---. -- .--..... _-_..- ..... --- ....- -_...____......-.--.____._ --.._._._____.._____. 

1995196 
1996197 

1997198 
1998199 
1999100 
2000/0 I 
2001/02 
2002103 
2003104 
2004105 

2005106 

2006107 
2007108 
2008109 
2009110 
2010/11 
2011/12 
20121 13 
2013114 
20 l4/ I 5  

10,562 

8,486 
7,752 
10,473 
10,040 
11.450 
10,676 
11,555 
9,290 
10,798 

10,806 
11,344 
11,542 
11,897 
12.249 
12,441 
12,677 
12.894 
13,120 
13.290 

1.489 
1,235 
94 I 

1,741 
1.728 
1,984 
1,624 
1,538 

1,167 
1,602 

1,413 
1.740 
1,734 
1,894 
2,088 
2, I I2 
2,191 
2,253 
2,3 14 
2.358 

9,073 
7,25 I 
6,811 
8.732 
8,312 
9,466 
9,052 
10,017 
8,123 
9,196 

9,394 
9,605 
9,807 
10,003 
10,161 

10,328 
10,486 
10.641 
10.806 
10,932 

255 
290 
318 
305 

225 
255 
285 
27 I 
498 
350 

430 
426 
444 
440 
432 
434 
435 
436 
437 
438 

1,156 
917 
663 
874 
849 
809 
770 
76 8 
76 1 

725 

696 
671 
649 
63 I 
615 
603 
593 
586 
58 1 
577 

106 
133 
164 
196 
229 

254 
278 
313 
343 
371 

405 
429 
453 
479 
506 
534 
566 
597 
628 
660 

15 

16 
17 
I8 
20 
29 
24 
27 
24 
26 

28 
30 
31 
33 
35 
37 
38 
40 

42 
42 

Historical Values (I996 - 2005): 
Col. (2) = recorded peak + implemented load control + residential and commerciaL'industrial consemation and customer-owned self-service cogeneration 
Cols. (5) - (9) = cuinulative conservation and load control capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load mmagement and standby generation. 
Col. (OTH) = voltage reduction and customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 

COI. (IO) = (2) - ( 5 )  (6) - (7) - ( 8 )  - (9) - ( O ' W  
Projected Values (2006 - 2015): 

Cols. (2). (4) = forecasted peak without load control, consewation, and customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Cols. ( 5 )  - (9) = cumulative conservation and load control capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load tnanagement and standby generation. 

Col. (OTH) = voltage reduction and customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Col. ( I O )  =(2)  - (5) - (6) - (7) - ( 8 )  - (9) - (OTH). 

95 

104 

112 
117 
119 
120 
121 

124 
125 
125 

127 
128 

130 
132 
I33 
135 
I36 
138 

139 
141 

20 1 
190 

168 

187 
182 
1 94 
188 
20 1 

227 
247 

254 
258 
262 
265 
269 
272 
276 
279 
282 
285 

2-12 
Hearing Exhibit - 000031 



PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3.3 1 

HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ANNUAL NET ENERGY FOR LOAD (GWh) 
BASE CASE 

1996 
1997 
I998 

1999 
2000 
200 1 

2002 
2003 

2004 
2005 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 

2012 
2013 
2014 

2015 

35,812 

35,753 
38,950 
40,376 
42,486 
42,200 
43,860 
45,232 
46.6 I7 
48,250 

47,556 

49,165 
50.501 
5 1,590 
53,466 

54,699 

55,934 
57,222 

58,485 

59,749 

249 
268 
289 
312 
334 
354 

317 
400 

424 
44 5 

459 
474 
489 
504 

519 
536 

552 
568 
585 

585 

285 
317 
333 

339 
345 
349 

352 
357 

360 
363 

365 
368 
371 

3 74 
377 
3 80 

3 83 
386 
389 

3 89 

562 
563 
565 

565 
565 
564 

564 
564 
565 

564 

564 
564 
565 

564 
564 
564 

565 
564 
564 

564 

30,785 

30,850 
33,387 
33,441 
34,832 
35,263 

36,859 
37,957 
38,193 
39.177 

39,475 

40.591 
41,816 
42,935 
44,006 
45,081 
46,150 
47,242 
48,34 I 
49,455 

2,089 
1.758 

2,340 
3,267 

3.732 
3,839 

3,173 
3,359 

4,301 

5,195 

4,038 
4.430 
4,410 
4,323 
4,958 

5,083 
5, I59 

5,343 
5.419 

5,263 

1,841 

1,997 
2,036 

2,452 
2,678 
1,83 I 
2,535 
2,595 
2.774 
2,506 

2,654 

2,738 
2,850 
2,890 
3,042 
3,055 
3.125 
3,199 
3.264 
3,337 

34,715 
34,605 
37,763 
39,160 
41,242 

40,933 
42,567 
43,911 

45,268 
46,878 

46,167 
47,759 
49,076 
50,148 
52,006 

53,219 
54,434 
55,704 
56.948 

58,211 

* Column (OTH) includes Conservation Energy For Lighting and Public Authority Customers, Customer-Owned Self-service Cogeneration 
and Load Control ProbTams 

* *  Load Factors for historical years are calculated using the actual winter peak demand except the 1998 and 2004 historical load factors 
which are based on the actual summer peak demand. 
Load Factors for future years are calculated using the net firm winter peak demand (Schedule 3.2. I)  

44.9 
49.0 
53.9 

50.0 

50.5 
47.5 

50.0 
47.7 

56.5 
52.3 

58.3 
56.9 
57.1 

56.5 
56.4 
56.6 

56.5 
56.8 
56.9 

57. I 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3 3 2 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ANNUAL NET ENERGY FOR LOAD (GWh) 

HIGH LOAD FORECAST 

1996 35,812 
1997 35,753 
1998 38,950 
1999 40,376 
2000 42,486 
2001 42,200 
2002 43,860 
2003 45,232 
2004 46,617 
2005 48,250 

2006 48,533 
2007 50,099 
2008 51,560 
2009 52,777 
2010 54,760 
2011 56,076 
2012 57,522 
2013 59,068 
2014 60,550 
2015 62,217 

249 
268 
289 
312 
334 
354 
377 
400 
424 
445 

459 
474 
489 
504 
519 
536 
552 
568 
585 
585 

285 
317 
333 
339 
345 
349 
352 
357 
360 
363 

365 
368 
371 
3 74 
377 
380 
383 
386 
389 
389 

562 
563 
565 
565 
565 
564 
564 
564 
565 
564 

564 
564 
565 
564 
564 
564 
565 
564 
564 
564 

30,785 
30,850 
33,387 
33,441 
34.832 
35,263 
36,859 
37,957 
38,193 
39,177 

40,256 
4 1,464 
42,807 
44,047 
45,220 
46,369 
47,633 
48.970 
50,266 
5 1,768 

2,089 
1,758 
2,340 
3,267 
3,732 
3,839 
3,173 
3,359 
4,301 
5,195 

4.038 
4,430 
4,410 
4,323 
4,958 
5,083 
5,159 
5,263 
5,343 
5,419 

1.84 1 

1,997 
2,036 
2,452 
2,678 
1,831 
2,535 
2,595 
2,774 
2,506 

2,850 
2.799 
2.918 
2,965 
3,122 
3,144 
3.230 
3,317 
3,404 
3,492 

34,715 
34,605 
37,763 
39,160 
4 1,242 
40,933 
42,567 
43,911 
45,268 
46,878 

47,144 
48,693 
50,135 
51,335 
53,300 
54,596 
56,022 
57,550 
59.01 3 
60,679 

* Column (OW) includes Conservation Energy For Lighting and Public Authority Customers, Customer-Owned Self-service Cogeneration 

and Load Control Programs. 

* *  Load Factors for historical years are calculated using the actual winter peak demand except the 1998 and 2004 historical load Factors 

which are based on the actual summer peak demand. 
Load Factors for future years are calculated using the net firm winter peak demand (Schedule 3.2.2) 

44 9 
49 0 
53 9 
50 0 
50 5 

47 5 
50 0 
47 7 
56 5 
52 3 

58 3 
56 a 
57 1 

56 4 
56 4 
56 6 
56 4 
56 7 
56 9 
57 I 

2-14 

Hearing Exhibit - 000033 



PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

(3) 

SCHEDULE 3 3 3 

HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ANNUAL NET ENERGY FOR LOAD (GWh) 
LOW LOAD FORECAST 

(4) (7) 

1996 
I997 

1998 
1999 
2000 
200 I 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 

2010 
201 1 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

35.812 
35,753 
38,950 
40,376 
42,486 
42,200 
43,860 

45,232 
46.6 17 
48,250 

46,765 
48,293 
49,196 
50.528 
52,169 
53,220 
54,242 
55.309 
56,389 
57,307 

249 
268 
289 
312 
334 
354 
377 
400 
424 
445 

459 
474 
489 
504 
519 
536 
552 
568 
585 
585 

285 
317 
333 
339 
345 
349 
352 
357 
360 
363 

365 
368 
371 
3 74 
377 
3 80 
3 83 
3 86 
3 89 

3 89 

562 
563 
565 
565 
565 
564 
564 
564 
565 
564 

564 
564 
565 
564 
564 
564 
565 
564 
564 

564 

30,785 
30,850 
33,387 
33,441 
34.832 
35,263 
36,859 
37,957 
38,193 
39,177 

38,666 
39,776 
40,873 
4 1,946 
42.793 
43,699 
44,566 
45,450 
46,383 
47, I60 

2,089 
1,758 

2,340 
3,267 
3,732 
3,839 
3,173 
3,359 
4,301 
5,195 

4,038 
4,430 
4.4 IO 
4,323 
4,958 
5,083 
5,159 
5,263 
5,343 

5,419 

1,841 
1,997 
2,036 
2,452 
2,678 
1,831 
2,535 
2,595 
2,774 
2,506 

2,672 
2,681 
2,788 
2,8 I7 
2,958 

2,958 
3,0 I7 
3,078 
3,126 
3,190 

34.7 15 
34,605 

37,763 
39,160 
4 1,242 
40,933 
42,567 
43,91 I 
45,268 
46,878 

45,376 
46,887 
48,071 
49,086 

50,709 
S 1,740 
52,742 
53,79 1 

54,852 
55,769 

* Column (OTH) includes Conservation Energy For Lighting and Public Authority Customers, Customer-Owned Self-service Cogeneration 
and Load Control Programs. 

* *  Load Factors for historical years are calculated using the actual winter peak demand except the 1998 and 2004 historical load factors 
which are based on the actual summer peak demand. 
Load Factors for future years are calculated using the net firm winter peak demand (Schedule 3.2.3) 

44.9 
49.0 
53.9 
50.0 
50.5 
47.5 
50.0 
47.7 
56.5 
52.3 

58.4 
56 9 
57 2 
56 5 
56 4 
56 6 
56 5 
56.8 
56 9 

57 1 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 4 

PREVIOUS YEAR ACTUAL AND TWO-YEAR FORECAST OF PEAK DEMAND 
AND NET ENERGY FOR LOAD BY MONTH 

MONTH 
JANUARY 

FEBRUARY 
MARCH 
APRIL 
MAY 
JUNE 
JULY 

AUGUST 
SEPTEMBER 

OCTOBER 
NOVEMBER 
DECEMBER 

TOTAL 

(2) (3) 
A C T U A L  

2005 
PEAK 

DEMAND WL 

MW 
10,226 
7,398 
7,609 
7,011 
8,478 
8,927 
9,671 
9,68 1 
9,090 
8,301 
6,424 
7,772 

GWh 
3,582 
3,106 
3,592 
3,283 
3,923 
4,2 15 
4,947 
5,03 1 
4,46 1 
3,968 
3,215 
3,555 

46,878 

(4) (5) 
F O R E C A S T  

2006 
PEAK 

DEMAND NEL 
MW 

9,047 
6,992 
6,008 
6,970 
8,025 
8,595 
8,754 
8,771 
8,184 
7,692 
6,282 
7,767 

GWh 
3,566 
3,133 
3,337 
3,284 
4,041 
4,337 
4,73 1 
4,748 
4,308 
3,837 
3,267 
3,578 

46,167 

(6) (7) 
F O R E C A S T  

2007 
PEAK 

DEMAND NEL 
MW 

9,584 
7,455 
6,501 
7,467 
8,5 1 1 
8,914 
9,044 
9,084 
8,488 
7,963 
6,573 
7.860 

GWh 
3,724 
3,273 
3,552 
3,438 
4,190 
4,450 
4,863 
4,885 
4,433 
3,952 
3,347 
3,652 

47,759 
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FUEL REOUIREMENTS AND ENERGY SOURCES 

PEF’s two-year actual and ten-year projected nuclear, coal, oil, and gas requirements (by fuel 

units) are shown on Schedule 5 .  PEF’s two-year actual and ten-year projected energy sources, in 

GWh and percent, are shown by fuel type on Schedules 6.1 and 6.2, respectively. PEF’s fuel 

requirements and energy sources reflect a diverse fuel supply system that is not dependent on 

any one-fuel source. In the near term, natural gas consumption is projected to increase as plants 

and purchases with tolling agreements are added to meet hture load growth. The proportion of 

energy provided by natural gas will decrease with the addition of new coal resources toward the 

latter years of the ten-year planning horizon. 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 5 

FUEL REQUIREMENTS 

NUCLEAR 

COAL 

RESIDUAL 

DISTILLATE 

NATURAL GAS 

TOTAL 

STEAM 

cc 
CT 

DIESEL 

TOTAL 

STEAM 

cc 
CT 

DIESEL 

TOTAL 

STEAM 

cc 
CT 

OTHER (SPECIFV 

(17) OTHER, DISTILLATE ANNUAL FIRM INTERCHANGE 

(18) OTHER, NATURAL GA ANNUAL FIRM INTERCHANGE, 

(18) OTHER, NATURAL GA ANNUAL FIRM INTERCHANCE, 

1,000 TON 

1,WO BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1 ,WO BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 MCF 

1,000 MCF 

1,000 MCF 

1,000 MCF 

1,000 BBL 

1.000 MCF 

5,915 6,249 5.877 6,083 5,872 6,045 6,690 6,766 6,648 7.882 9.588 10.374 

10,864 10.324 7,658 8,219 8,055 5,379 2,935 2.951 3,101 2,677 2,605 2.443 

10,864 10,324 7,658 8.219 8,055 5,379 2,935 2,951 3.101 2,677 2.605 2.443 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

1.019 1,098 1,255 1,204 1,144 1,116 1,063 1,078 1,056 1,027 1,003 1.040 

152 97 50 43 47 41 48 50 56 59 57 65 

2 3 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 

865 998 1,205 1,161 1,098 1,074 1.016 1,028 1,000 969 946 974 

0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

62,674 68.447 86,145 91.824 103,618 132,457 145,075 170,627 177,247 170,540 152,332 151.001 

1,071 732 0 0 0 0 10.335 10,290 10,921 9.127 9,091 8.801 

45,816 52,590 67.698 73.841 85.931 114.696 118,175 143.499 149,403 145.137 127.210 126.012 

15,787 15,125 18.447 17,983 17,687 17,760 16.566 16.838 16,923 16,276 16,031 16,187 

N/A N/A 0 0 1 12 4 1 5  0 0 0 0 

N/A NIA 0 0 0 0 4,953 7.856 7.716 6,931 5,502 4,999 

1 , 0 0 0 M C F  N/A N/A 672 3.061 1,923 1.314 1,396 1,697 2,049 1,290 915 538 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 6 . 1  

Eh'ERCY SOURCES (CWh) 

(1) (21 (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) (13) (14) (15) (16) 

.ACTUAL- 

Y SOURCE3 I L ? U I s m  2pp5 2M6 2epz 2M8 2M9 1pLp ZQU 2QLz Z O u  .zou xu.5 
(1) ANNUAL FIRM INTERCHANGE l/ GWh 417 2,220 1,371 1,690 1,563 1,495 2,596 1,958 1,899 1.694 1.418 1,303 

(2) NUCLEAR GU'h 6,703 5,829 6.307 6,052 6,655 5,089 6.636 6,143 6,655 6,143 6,636 6,144 

(3) COAL GWh 15,063 15,834 15,058 15,602 15,024 15,353 16.583 16,792 16,495 19,904 24,645 26,816 

(4) RESIDUAL TOTAL GU% 6,981 6.618 4,696 5,081 4,956 3,291 1.794 1.802 1,902 1.623 1.583 1,483 

(5) STEAM GWh 6,981 6,618 4,696 5.081 4,956 3.291 1,794 1.802 1.902 1,623 1,583 1,483 

(6) C C G U ' h O  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(7) C T C M ' h O  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(8) D I E S E L G W h O  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(9) DISTTLLATE TOTAL GWh 361 414 430 415 390 385 362 368 356 345 336 345 

(10) S T E A M G W h O  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(1 1) C C G W h 2  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(12) C T  GM'h 359 414 430 415 390 385 362 368 356 345 336 345 

(13) D I E S E L G W h O  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(14) NATURAL GAS TOTAL GWh 7,516 8,236 10.123 10,867 12,471 16.515 18,077 21,662 22,621 21,711 19,180 19,008 

(15) STEAM CWh 106 74 0 0 0 0 1,023 1,019 1.085 898 895 861 

(16) CC GWh 6,227 7.025 8,786 9.565 11,182 15,188 15.827 19.394 20,267 19,603 17,094 16,937 

(17) C T  GWh 1.183 1,137 1,337 1,302 1,290 1,327 1,227 1,249 1,269 1,210 1.191 1,209 

(181 OTHER 21 

QF PURCHASES CWh 4.685 4,211 4,650 4.528 4,496 4,485 4.492 4.494 4.506 4,284 3,151 3,112 

IMPORT FROM OUT OF STATE GWh 3,862 3,599 3,532 3,525 3.521 3,535 1,466 0 0 0 0 0 

EXPORT TO OUT OF STATE CWh -320 -83 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(19) NET ENERGY FOR LOAD GM.1I 45,268 46,878 46.167 47.759 49,076 50,148 52.006 53,219 54,434 55,704 56,948 58.211 

l /  NET ENERGY PURCHASED ( + )  OR SOLD (-) WITHIN THE FRCC REGION 

21 NET ENERGY PURCHASED (+) OR SOLD (-). 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 6 . 2  

ENERGY SOURCES (PERCENT) 

ENERGY SOURC ES 

(1) ANNUAL FIRM INTERCHANGE 

NUCLEAR 

COAL 

RESIDUAL 

DISTILLATE 

NATURAL GAS 

OTHER 21 

QF PURCHASES 

IMPORT FROM OUT OF STATE 

EXPORT TO OUT OF STATE 

(19) NET ENERGY FOR LOAD 

% 14.8% 12.4% 13.7% 12.7% 13.6% 10.1% 12.8% 11.5% 12.2% 11.0% 11.7% 10.6% 

% 33.3% 33.8% 32.6% 32.7% 30.6% 30.6% 31.9% 31.6% 30.3% 35.7% 43.3% 46 1% 

TOTAL % 15.4% 14.1% 10.2% 10.6% 10.1% 6.6% 3.5% 3.4% 3.5% 2.9% 2.8% 2.5% 

STEAM % 15.4% 14.1% 10.2% 10.6% 10.1% 6.6% 3.5% 3.4% 3.5% 2.9% 2.8% 2.5% 

cc % 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

CT % 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

DIESEL % 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

TOTAL % 0.8% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 0.8% 0.8% 0.7% 0.7% 0.7% 0.6% 0.6% 0.6% 

STEAM % 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

cc % 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

CT % 0.8% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 0.8% 0.8% 0.7% 0.7% 0.7% 0.6% 0.6% 0.6% 

DIESEL % 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

TOTAL % 16.6% 17.6% 21.9% 22.8% 25.4% 32.9% 34.8% 40.7% 41.6% 39.0% 33.7% 32.7% 

STEAM % 0.2% 0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 2.0% 1.9% 2.0% 1.6% 1.6% 1.5% 

CC % 13.8% 15.0% 19.0% 20.0% 22.8% 30.3% 30.4% 36.4% 37.2% 35.2% 30.0% 29.1% 

CT % 2.6% 2.4% 2.9% 2.7% 2.6% 2.6% 2.4% 2.3% 2 . 3 %  2.2% 2.1% 2.1% 

% 10.3% 9.0% 10.1% 9.5% 9.2% 8.9% 8.6% 8.4% 8.3% 7.7% 5.5% 5.3% 

% 8 . 5 %  7.7% 7.7% 7.4% 7.2% 7.0% 2.8% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

% -0.7% -0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

1 /  NET ENERGY PURCHASED (+) OR SOLD (-) WITHIN THE FRCC REGION. 

21 NET ENERGY PURCHASED (A) OR SOLD (-). 
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FORECASTING METHODS AWD PROCEDURES 

INTRODUCTION 

Accurate forecasts of long-range electric energy consumption, customer growth and peak demand 

are essential elements in electric utility planning. Accurate projections of a utility’s future load 

growth require a forecasting methodology with the ability to account for a variety of factors 

influencing electric energy usage over the planning horizon. PEF’s forecasting framework utilizes a 

set of econometric models to achieve this end. This chapter will describe the underlying 

methodology of the customer, energy, and peak demand forecasts including any assumptions 

incorporated within each. Also included is a description of how Demand-Side Management (DSM) 

impacts the forecast, the development of high and low forecast scenarios and a review of DSM 

programs. 

Figure 2,1, entitled “Customer, Energy and Demand Forecast”, gives a general description of PEF‘s 

forecasting process. Highlighted in the diagram is a disaggregated modeling approach that blends 

the impacts of average class usage as well as customer growth based on a specific set of 

assumptions for each class. Also accounted for is some direct contact with large customers. These 

inputs provide the tools needed to frame the most likely scenario of the company’s future demand. 

FORECAST ASSUMPTIONS 

The first step in any forecasting effort is the development of assumptions upon which the forecast is 

based, The Corporate Planning Department develops these assumptions based on discussions with 

a number of departments within PEF, as well as through the research efforts of a number of external 

sources. These assumptions specify major factors that influence the level of customers, energy 

sales, or peak demand over the forecast horizon. The following set of assumptions forms the basis 

for the forecast presented in this document. 
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FIGURE 2.1 

Customer, Energy, and Demand Forecast 
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GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS 

1. Normal weather conditions are assumed over the forecast horizon using a sales-weighted 

average of conditions at the St. Petersburg, Orlando and Tallahassee weather stations. For 

kilowatt-hour sales projections, normal weather is based on a historical thirty-year average of 

service area weighted billing month degree-days. Seasonal peak demand projections are based 

on a thirty-year historical average of system-weighted temperatures at time of seasonal peak. 

2. The population projections produced by the Bureau of Economic and Business Research 

(BEBR) at the University of Florida as published in "Florida Population Studies Bulletin No. 

141 (February 2005) provide the basis for development of the customer forecast. State and 

national economic assumptions produced by Economy.Com in their national and Florida 

forecasts (February 2005) are also incorporated. 

3. Within the PEF service area the phosphate mining industry is the dominant sector in the 

industrial sales class. Four major customers accounted for nearly 31% of the industrial class 

MWh sales in 2005. These energy intensive customers mine and process phosphate-based 

fertilizer products for the global marketplace. Both supply and demand conditions for their 

products are dictated by global conditions that include, but are not limited to, foreign 

competition, nationavintemational agricultural industry conditions, exchange-rate fluctuations, 

and international trade pacts. Load and energy consumption at the PEF-served mining or 

chemical processing sites depend heavily on plant operations, which are heavily influenced by 

the state of these global conditions as well as local conditions. After years of excess mining 

capacity and weak product pricing power, the industry has consolidated down to fewer players 

in time to take advantage of better market conditions. A weaker U S  currency value on the 

foreign exchange is expected to help the industry in two ways. First, American farm 

commodities will be more competitive overseas and lead to higher crop production at home. 

This will result in greater demand for fertilizer products. Second, a weak U S .  dollar results in 

U. S. fertilizer producers becoming more price competitive relative to foreign producers. Going 

fonvard, energy consumption is expected to increase - as we have recently experienced - to the 

levels just below that experienced in the late 1990 boom period. A significant risk to this 

projection lies in the continued high price of natural gas, which is a major cost of production, 
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Operations at several sites in the U.S. have already scaled back or shutdown due to profitability 

concerns caused by high energy prices. The energy projection for this industry assumes no 

major reductions or shutdowns of operations in the service territory. 

4. PEF supplies load and energy service to wholesale customers on a "full", "partial" and 

"supplemental" requirement basis. Full requirements (FR) customers' demand and energy is 

assumed to grow at a rate that approximates their historical trend. Contracts for this service 

include the cities of Bartow, Chattahoochee, Mt. Dora, Quincy, Williston and Winter Park. 

Partial requirements (PR) customer load is assumed to reflect the current contractual 

obligations received by PEF as of May 3 1, 2005. The forecast of energy and demand to PR 

customers reflects the nature of the stratified load they have contracted for, plus their ability 

to receive dispatched energy from power marketers any time it is more economical for them 

to do so. Contracts for PR service included in this forecast are with the Florida Municipal 

Power Agency (FMPA), New Smyrna Beach, Tallahassee, Homestead, Reedy Creek 

Utilities, TECO Energy (Market Mitigation Sale) and Seminole Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

(SECI). PEF's contractual arrangement with SECI includes a "supplemental" service contract 

(1983 contract) for service over and above stated levels they commit to supply themselves. 

The firm PR contract with SECI includes 150 MW of stratified intermediate service (October 

1995 contract) which is projected to continue through the forecast horizon. The firm PR 

contract with SECI also includes amendments to provide an additional 150 MW of stratified 

intermediate service beginning June 2006, and another 150 MW beginning December 2006. 

Agreements to provide interruptible service at three individual SECI metering sites have also 

been included in this projection. Finally, a FR contract to serve SECI load will commence in 

20 10 and last through the forecast horizon. 

5 .  This forecast assumes that PEF will successfully renew all future franchise agreements. 

6. This forecast incorporates demand and energy reductions from PEF's dispatchable and non- 

dispatchable DSM programs required to meet the approved goals set by the FPSC. 
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Expected energy and demand reductions from self-service cogeneration are also included in this 

forecast. PEF will supply the supplemental load of self-service cogeneration customers. While 

PEF offers “standby” service to all cogeneration customers, the forecast does not assume an 

unplanned need for standby power. 

This forecast assumes that the regulatory environment and the obligation to serve our retail 

customers will continue throughout the forecast horizon. Regarding wholesale customers, the 

company does not plan for generation resources unless a long-term contract is in place. Current 

FR customers are assumed to renew their contracts with PEF except those who have given 

notice to terminate. Current PR contracts are projected to terminate as terms reach their 

expiration date. Deviation from these assumptions can occur based on information provided by 

the Regulated Commercial Operations Department. 

SHORT-TERM ECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS 

The economic outlook for this forecast was developed in 2005 as energy prices were hitting record 

highs around the world. The general consensus was that the US. economy, which was growing at a 

reasonable rate, would not slip into recession due to the higher cost of energy. A described “soft 

patch” in economic activity apparent at the time of this forecast development as high gasoline prices 

had been reducing consumer confidence levels. Short term interest rates, controlled mostly by 

Federal Reserve Board (FED) policy decisions, have increased significantly in the last 12 months as 

hints of inflation have filtered through the reported price indexes. The days of 45-plus year lows in 

interest rates have ended. The FED had moved to increase rates ten times at this point - no longer 

seeing the need to stimulate the national economy from the post September 11* weakness that 

occurred. The national economy had bounced back significantly (except for job growth statistics), 

Economists were not in complete agreement about where monetary policy would go from here. 

Most thought that the FED was much closer to ending its “tightening” policy of gradually raising 

interest rates than those who believed that inflationary fears would require many more rate increases. 

Consensus opinion believes that the economic stimulus supplied by the three federal tax cuts and the 

refinancing boom have pretty much run their course. Additional stimulus from these two phenomena 

is not expected going forward. One item believed to become a positive factor for future economic 
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momentum is the weaker U.S. currency. Up to this point it had not supplied the punch assumed in 

the last forecast. This is due to several major U S .  trading partners, mainly China, having their 

currencies pegged to the U.S. Dollar. The Mexican Peso has actually weakened against the Dollar. 

This has kept the typical advantages of a weaker currency from helping U S .  manufacturers. Also, 

European economies have not been robust enough to fuel added imports of U.S. products. Going 

forward, it is expected that economic and political pressures will force the Chinese to de-link their 

currency and allow it to appreciate in value. This likely will make American-produced products 

more competitive with imported Chinese goods around the globe. 

The housing sector has continued on an unprecedented pace. Most signs, however, point to an 

industry that likely will not maintain this level of growth. Long term interest rates (and mortgage 

rates) have not increased at the same pace as short term rates allowing the momentum to continue. 

At some point the demand for housing pushed by new household formations will, in all likelihood, 

weaken. The demand for second homes could fall as interest rates finally rise. 

The Florida economy has faired much better than the nation, especially in terms of job growth. The 

tourism industry, which has bounced back from the terrorism fears of 2001, will now have to juggle 

the impact of high oil prices on the travel industry. 

Growth in energy consumption is directly tied to the levels of economic activity in the State, nation 

and around the world, but demographic forces play a major role as well. Factors that influence in- 

migration rates to Florida impact residential customer growth, especially since the difference 

between births and deaths contribute little to Florida’s growing population. Many factors influence 

the pace of in-migration to Florida but there is one broad, demographically created influence one can 

expect during the next few years. The University of Florida’s latest population projection (February 

2005) shows a retum to more normal levels of growth in Florida population as we move into the 

mid-decade, This is due to economy-related conditions as well as demographic conditions that 

measure population by age brackets. There will be a significant jump in the retirement-age 

population later this decade. 
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LONG-TERM ECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS 

The long-term economic outlook assumes that changes in economic and demographic conditions 

will follow a trended behavior pattem. The main focus involves identifying these trends. No 

attempt is made to predict business cycle fluctuations during this period. 

Population Growth Trends 

This forecast assumes Florida will experience slower in-migration and population growth over 

parts of the long term, as reflected in the BEBR projections. Florida's climate and low cost of 

living have historically attracted a major share of the retirement population from the eastern half 

of the United States. This will continue to occur, but at less than historic rates for several 

reasons. First, Americans entering retirement age during the late 1990s and early twenty-first 

century were born during the Great Depression era of the 1930s. This decade experienced a low 

birth rate due to the economic conditions at that time. Now that this generation is retiring, there 

exists a smaller pool of retirees capable of migrating to Florida. As we enter into the second 

decade of the new century and the baby-boom generation enters retirement age, the reverse effect 

can be expected. 

Second, the enormous growth in population and corresponding development of the 1980s, 1990s 

and early 2000s made portions of Florida less desirable and less affordable for retirement living. 

This diminished the quality of retiree life, and along with increasing competition from 

neighboring states, is expected to cause a slight decline in Florida's share of these prospective 

new residents over the long term. 

Another reason for a population growth slowdown appears to be the fear and expense of 

Hurricanes. The summers of 2004 and 2005 may force some in-migrants to rethink their 

retirement location as the inconvenience caused by recent destruction and ever-increasing cost of 

hazard insurance makes Florida a less desirable place to live. 

Economic Growth Trends 

Florida has been recently experiencing a 1980s-style population explosion and service sector job 

creation. The State has benefited greatly from generational lows in interest rates, which along 
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with investors' unfriendly attitude toward the equity markets, set the stage for a tremendous 

explosion in home construction. The national level of homebuilding in 2005, which rose to more 

than 3 1% higher than in 2000, set an all time record. This growth produced strong gains in both 

the construction industry and service-producing sectors of the Florida economy. 

While most agree that this pace of growth is not sustainable, the economic environment that 

produced this construction boom has begun to wane. Interest rates are returning to more "long 

term" norms. More 

importantly, affordability rates have dropped as housing prices in many parts of Florida have 

out-paced many areas of the country. This could have a major impact on retiree decisions to 

move into the area. Making matters worse is the availability and affordability of homeowners 

insurance, which has become a concern of increasing importance since the Hurricane seasons of 

2004 and 2005. 

Investment in equity markets appears to have bounced back of late. 

Florida's rapid population growth of late has created a period of strong job creation, especially in 

the service sector industries. While the service-oriented economy expanded to support an 

increasing population level, there were also a number of corporations migrating to Florida 

capitalizing on the low cost, low tax business environment. This being the case, increased job 

opportunities in Florida created greater in-migration among the nation's working age population, 

Florida's ability to attract businesses from other states because of its "comparative advantage" is 

expected to continue throughout the forecast period but at a less significant level. Florida's 

successful effort to attract a large biotech firm, Scripps Research, has the potential to draw a 

whole new growth industry to the State, the same way Disney and NASA once did. 

The forecast assumes negative growth in real electricity price. That is, the change in the nominal 

price of electricity over time is expected to be less than the overall rate of inflation. This also 

implies that fuel price escalation will track at or below the general rate of inflation throughout 

the forecast horizon. 

Real personal incomes are assumed to increase throughout the forecast period thereby boosting 

the average customer's ability to purchase electricity -- especially since the price of electricity is 
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expected to increase at a rate below general inflation. As incomes grow faster than the price of 

electricity, consumers, on average, will remain inclined to purchase additional electric appliances 

and increase their utilization of existing end-uses. 

FORECAST METHODOLOGY 

The PEF forecast of customers, energy sales and peak demand is developed using customer 

class-specific econometric models. These models are expressly designed to capture class- 

specific variation over time. By modeling customer growth and average energy usage 

individually, subtle changes in existing customer usage are better captured as well as growth 

from new customers. Peak demand models are projected on a disaggregated basis as well. This 

allows for appropriate handling of individual assumptions in the areas of wholesale contracts, 

load management and interruptible service. 

ENERGY AND CUSTOMER FORECAST 

In the retail jurisdiction, customer class models have been specified showing a historical 

relationship to weather and economic/demographic indicators using monthly data for sales models 

and annual data for customer models. Sales are regressed against "driver" variables that best 

explain monthly fluctuations over the historical sample period. Forecasts of these input variables 

are either derived internally or come from a review of the latest projections made by several 

independent forecasting concerns, The external sources of data include Moody's Economy.Com 

and the University of Florida's Bureau of Economic and Business Research. Internal company 

forecasts are used for projections of electricity price, weather conditions and the length of the billing 

month. Normal weather, which is assumed throughout the forecast horizon, is based on the 30-year 

average of heating and cooling degree-days by month as measured at the St Petersburg, Orlando and 

Tallahassee weather stations. Projections of PEF's demand-side management (conservation 

programs) are also incorporated as reductions to the forecast. Specific sectors are modeled as 

follows: 

Residential Sector 

Residential kWh usage per customer is modeled as a function of real Florida personal income, 

cooling degree-days, heating degree-days, the real price of electricity to the residential class and the 
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average number of billing days in each sales month. This equation captures significant variation in 

residential usage caused by economic cycles, weather fluctuations, electric price movements and 

sales month duration. Projections of kWh usage per customer combined with the customer forecast 

provide the forecast of total residential energy sales. The residential customer forecast is developed 

by correlating annual customer growth with PEF service area population growth and mortgage rates. 

County level population projections for the 29 counties, in which PEF serves residential customers, 

are provided by the BEBR. 

Commercial Sector 
Commercial kWh use per customer is forecast based on commercial (non-agricultural, non- 

manufacturing and non-governmental) employment, the real price of electricity to the commercial 

class, the average number of billing days in each sales month and heating and cooling degree-days. 

The measure of cooling degree-days utilized here differs slightly from that used in the residential 

sector reflecting the unique behavior pattern of this class with respect to its cooling needs. 

Commercial customers are projected as a function of the number of residential customers served. 

Industrial Sector 
Energy sales to this sector are separated into two sub-sectors. A significant portion of industrial 

energy use is consumed by the phosphate mining industry. Because this one industry comprises 

nearly a 30% share of the total industrial class, it is separated and modeled apart from the rest of the 

class, The term "non-phosphate industrial" is used to refer to those customers who comprise the 

remaining portion of total industrial class sales. Both groups are impacted significantly by changes 

in economic activity. However, adequately explaining sales levels requires separate explanatory 

variables. Non-phosphate industrial energy sales are modeled using Florida manufacturing 

employment and a Florida industrial production index developed by Economy.Com, the real price 

of electricity to the industrial class, and the average number of sales month billing days. 

The industrial phosphate mining industry is modeled using cusromer-specific information with 

respect to expected market conditions. Since this sub-sector is comprised of only four customers, 

the forecast is dependent 

customer representatives 

upon information 

provide specific 

received from direct customer contact. PEF industrial 

phosphate customer information regarding customer 
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production schedules, inventory levels, area mine-out and start-up predictions, and changes in self- 

generation or energy supply situations over the forecast horizon. 

Street Lighting 

Electricity sales to the street and highway lighting class are projected to increase due to growth in 

the service area population base. Because this class comprised less than 0.01% of PEF’s 2005 

electric sales and just 0.1% of total customers, a simple time trend was used to project energy 

consumption and customer growth in this class. 

Public Authorities 
Energy sales to public authorities (SPA), comprised mostly of government operated services, is also 

projected to grow with the size of the service area. The level of government services, and thus 

energy use per customer, can be tied to the population base, as well as to the state of the economy. 

Factors affecting population growth will affect the need for additional governmental services (i.e., 

schools, city services, etc.) thereby increasing SPA energy usage per customer. Government 

employment has been determined to be the best indicator of the level of government services 

provided. This variable, along with heating and cooling degree-days, the real price of electricity and 

the average number of sales month billing days, results in a significant level of explained variation 

over the historical sample period. Intercept shift variables are also included in this model to account 

for the large change in school-related energy use in the billing months of January, July and August, 

SPA customers are projected linearly as a fimction of a time-trend. 

Sales for Resale Sector 
The Sales for Resale sector encompasses all firm sales to other electric power entities. This 

includes sales to other utilities (municipal or investor-owned) as well as power agencies (Rural 

Electric Authority or Municipal). 

SECI is a wholesale, or sales for resale, customer of PEF on both a supplemental contract basis 

and contract demand basis. Under the supplemental contract, PEF provides service for those 

energy requirements above the level of generation capacity served by either SECI’s own 

facilities or its firm purchase obligations. Monthly supplemental energy is developed using an 

2-3 I 

Hearing Exhibit - 000050 



average of several years’ historical load shape of total load in the PEF control area, subtracting 

out the level of SECI “committed” capacity from each hour. Beyond supplemental service, PEF 

has an agreement with SECI to serve stratified intermediate and peaking energy. This 

agreement involves serving 150 MW of stratified intermediate demand that is assumed to remain 

a requirement on the PEF system throughout the forecast horizon. This contract has been 

amended to provide an additional 300 MW stratified intermediate product beginning in 2006. 

Energy usage under this contract is projected using typical intermediate strata load factors. 

Agreements to provide non-firm or interruptible service are currently in effect between PEF and 

SECI at three separate metering points amounting to an estimated 50 MW. Another contract, 

signed in 2004 to supply full requirements service for 150 MW, will begin in 20 10, 

The municipal sales for resale class includes a number of customers, divergent not only in scope of 

service, (Le., fbll or partial requirement), but also in composition of ultimate consumers. Each 

customer is modeled separately in order to accurately reflect its individual profile. Several of the 

customers in this class are municipalities whose full energy requirements are met by PEF. The full 

requirement customers are modeled individually using local weather station data and population 

growth trends, Since the ultimate consumers of electricity in this sector are, to a large degree, 

residential and commercial customers, it is assumed that their use patterns will follow those of the 

PEF retail-based residential and commercial customer classes. PEF serves partial requirement 

service (PR) to municipalities such as New Smyrna Beach (NSB), Homestead and Tallahassee, and 

other power providers like FMPA. In each case, these customers contract with PEF for a specific 

level and type of demand needed to provide their particular electrical system with an appropriate 

level of reliability. The terms of the FMPA and NSB contracts are subject to change each year via a 

letter of “declared” MW nomination. More specifically, this means that the level and type of 

demand and energy under contract can increase or decrease for each year a value is nominated, The 

energy forecast for each contract is derived using its historical load factors where enough history 

exists, or typical load factors for a given type of contracted stratified load. The energy projections 

for FMPA also include a “losses service contract’’ for energy PEF supplies to FMPA for 

transmission losses incurred when “wheeling“ power to their ultimate customers in PEF’s 

transmission area. This projection is based on the projected requirements of the aggregated needs of 

the cities of Ocala, Leesburg, Bushnell, Havana and Newberry. 
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PEAK DEMAND FORECAST 

The forecast of peak demand also employs a disaggregated econometric methodology. For seasonal 

(winter and summer) peak demands, as well as each month of the year, PEF's coincident system 

peak is dissected into five major components. These components consist of potential firm retail 

load, conservation and load management program capability, wholesale demand, company use 

demand and interruptible demand. 

Potential firm retail load refers to projections of PEF retail hourly seasonal net peak demand 

(excluding the non-firm interruptible/curtailable/standby services) before the cumulative effects of 

any conservation activity or the activation of PEF's Load Management program. The historical 

values of this series are constructed to show the size of PEF's firm retail net peak demand assuming 

no utility-induced conservation or load control had taken place. The value of constructing such a 

"clean" series enables the forecaster to observe and correlate the underlying trend in retail peak 

demand to total system customer levels and coincident weather conditions at the time of the peak 

without the impacts of year-to-year variation in conservation activity or load control reductions. 

Seasonal peaks are projected using historical seasonal peak data regardless of which month the peak 

occurred. The projections become the potential retail demand projection for the month of January 

(winter) and August (summer) since this is typically when the seasonal peaks occur. The non- 

seasonal peak months are projected the same as the seasonal peaks, but the analysis is limited to the 

specific month being projected. Since the historical data used in modeling this series includes 

service to the City of Winter Park, which municipalized its distribution system, the final forecast of 

this series is reduced by the projection of MW demand required to serve Winter Park as a wholesale 

customer. 

Energy conservation and direct load control estimates are consistent with PEF's DSM goals that 

have been approved by the FPSC. These estimates are incorporated into the MW forecast, 

Projections of dispatchable and cumulative non-dispatchable DSM are subtracted from the 

projection of potential firm retail demand resulting in a projected series of retail demand figures one 

would expect to occur. 
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Sales for Resale demand projections represent load supplied by PEF to other electric utilities such as 

SECI, FMPA, and other electric distribution companies. The SECI supplemental demand 

projection is based on a trend of their historical demand within the PEF control area. The level of 

MW to be served by PEF is dependent upon the amount of generation resources SECI supplies itself 

or contracts from others. An assumption has been made that beyond the last year of committed 

capacity declaration (five years out), SECI will shift their level of self-serve resources to meet their 

base and intermediate load needs. For FMPA and NSB demand projections, historical ratios of 

coincident-to-contract levels of demand are applied to future MW contract levels. Demand 

requirements continue at the MW level indicated by the final year in their respective contract 

declaration letter. The full requirements municipal demand forecast is estimated for individual 

cities using linear econometric equations modeling both weather and economic impacts specific to 

each locale. The seasonal (winter and summer) projections become the January and August peak 

values, respectively. The non-seasonal peak months are calculated using monthly allocation factors 

derived from applying the historical relationship between each winter month (November to March) 

relative to the winter peak, and each summer month (April to October) in relation to the summer 

peak demand. 

PEF "company use" at the time of system peak is estimated using load research metering studies 

and is assumed to remain stable over the forecast horizon. The interruptible and curtailable service 

(IS and CS) load component is developed from historic trends, as well as the incorporation of 

specific information obtained from PEF's large industrial accounts by field representatives, 

Each of the peak demand components described above is a positive value except for the DSM 

program MW impacts and IS and CS load. These impacts represent a reduction in peak demand 

and are assigned a negative value. Total system peak demand is then calculated as the arithmetic 

sum of the five components. 

HIGH AND LOW FORECAST SCENARIOS 

The high and low bandwidth scenarios around the base MWh energy sales forecast are developed 

using a Monte Carlo simulation applied to a multivariate regression model that closely replicates the 

base retail MWh energy forecast in aggregate. This model accounts for variation in Gross Domestic 
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Product, retail customers and electricity price. The base forecasts for these variables were 

developed based on input from Economy.Com and intemal company price projections. Variation 

around the base forecast predictor variables used in the Monte Carlo simulation was based on an 80 

percent confidence interval calculated around variation in each variable’s historic growth rate. 

While the total number of degree-days (weather) was also incorporated into the model specification, 

the high and low scenarios do not attempt to capture extreme weather conditions. Normal weather 

conditions were assumed in all three scenarios. 

The Monte Carlo simulation was produced through the estimation of 1,000 scenarios for each 

year of the forecast horizon. These simulations allowed for random normal variation in the 

growth trajectories of the economic input variables (while accounting for cross-correlation 

amongst these variables), as well as simultaneous variation in the equation (model error) and 

coefficient estimates. These scenarios were then sorted and rank ordered from one to a thousand, 

while the simulated scenario with no variation was adjusted to equal the base forecast. 

The low retail scenario was chosen from among the ranked scenarios resulting in a bandwidth 

forecast reflecting an approximate probability of occurrence of 0.10. The high retail scenario 

similarly represents a bandwidth forecast with an approximate probability of occurrence of 0.90. In 

both scenarios the high and low peak demand bandwidth forecasts are projected ffom the energy 

forecasts using the load factor implicit in the base forecast scenario. 

CONSERVATION 
PEF’s DSM performance is shown in the following tables, which compare the conservation 

savings actually achieved through PEF’s DSM programs for the reporting year of 2005 with the 

Commission-approved conservations goals. 

On August 9, 2004, the FPSC issued a PAA Order approving new conservation goals for PEF 

that span the ten-year period from 2005 through 2014 (in Docket 040031-EG, Order No. PSC- 

04-0769-PAA-EG). In that same PAA Order, the Commission also approved a new DSM Plan 

for PEF that was specifically designed to meet the new conservation goals. The PAA Order was 
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subsequently made effective and final in a Consummating Order (PSC-04-0852-CO-EG) issued 

by the Commission on September 1,2004. 

r 

Summer MW Winter MW Annual GWh Energy 

Year Goal J Achieved Goal I Achieved Goal 1 Achieved 

2005 13 18 43 48 21 29 

Commercial Conservation Savings Goals and Achievements 

Year 

2005 

I I I Annual GWh Energy Summer MW Winter MW 

Goal Achieved Goal Achieved Goal Achieved 

4 8 3 6 3 3 

The forecasts contained in this Ten-Year Site Plan document are based on PEF's new DSM Plan 

and, therefore, appropriately reflect the level of DSM savings required to meet the Commission- 

established conservation goals. PEF's DSM Plan consists of five residential programs, seven 

commercial and industrial programs, and one research and development program. The programs 

are subject to periodic monitoring and evaluation for the purpose of ensuring that all DSM 

resources are acquired in a cost-effective manner and that the program savings are durable. 

Following is a brief description of these programs. 

RESIDENTIAL PROGRAMS 

Home Energy Check Program 

This energy audit program provides customers with an analysis of their current energy use and 

recommendations on how they can save on their electricity bills through low-cost or no-cost 

energy-saving practices and measures. The Home Energy Check program offers PEF customers 

the following types of audits: Type 1: Free Walk-Through Audit (Home Energy Check); Type 2: 

Customer-completed Mail In Audit (Do It Yourself Home Energy Check); Type 3: Online Home 

Energy Check (Internet Option)-a customer-completed audit; Type 4: Phone Assisted Audit -A 

customer assisted survey of structure and appliance use; Type 5: Computer Assisted Audit; Type 
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6: Home Energy Rating Audit (Class I, 11, HI), The Home Energy Check Program serves as the 

foundation of the Home Energy Improvement Program in that the audit is a prerequisite for 

participation in the energy saving measures offered in the Home Energy Improvement Program, 

Home Energy Improvement Program 

This is the umbrella program to increase energy efficiency for existing residential homes. It 

combines efficiency improvements to the thermal envelope with upgraded electric appliances. 

The program provides incentives for attic insulation upgrades, duct testing and repair, and high 

efficiency electric heat pumps. 

Residential New Construction Program 

This program promotes energy efficient new home construction in order to provide customers 

with more eficient dwellings combined with improved environmental comfort. The program 

provides education and information to the design and building community on energy efficient 

equipment and construction. It also facilitates the design and construction of energy efficient 

homes by working directly with the builders to comply with program requirements. The 

program provides incentives to the builder for high efficiency electric heat pumps and high 

performance windows. The highest level of the program incorporates the Environmental 

Protection Agency’s Energy Star Homes Program and qualifies participants for cooperative 

advertising. 

Low Income Weatherization Assistance Program 

This umbrella program seeks to improve energy efficiency for low-income customers in existing 

residential dwellings. It combines efficiency improvements to the thermal envelope with 

upgraded electric appliances. The program provides incentives for attic insulation upgrades, duct 

testing and repair, reduced air infiltration, water heater wrap, HVAC maintenance, high 

efficiency heat pumps, heat recovery units, and dedicated heat pump water heaters. 

Residential Energy Management Program 

This is a voluntary customer program that allows PEF to reduce peak demand and thus defer 

generation construction. Peak demand is reduced by interrupting service to selected electrical 
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equipment with radio controlled switches installed on the customer‘s premises. These 

interruptions are at PEF’s option, during specified time periods, and coincident with hours of 

peak demand. Participating customers receive a monthly credit on their electricity bills prorated 

above 600 kWh/month. 

COMMERCIALflNDUSTRIAL (C/I) PROGRAMS 

Business Energy Check Program 

This energy audit program provides commercial and industrial customers with an assessment of 

the current energy usage at their facilities, recommendations on how they can improve the 

environmental conditions of their facilities while saving on their electricity bills, and information 

on low-cost energy efficiency measures. The Business Energy Check consists of the following 

types of audits: A free walk-through audit, and a paid walk-through audit. Small business 

customers also have the option to complete a Business Energy Check online at Progress Energy’s 

website. In most cases, this program is a prerequisite for participation in the other C/I programs. 

Better Business Program 

This is the umbrella efficiency program for existing commercial and industrial customers. The 

program provides customers with information, education, and advice on energy-related issues 

and incentives on efficiency measures that are cost-effective to PEF and its customers. The 

Better Business Program promotes energy efficient heating, ventilation, air conditioning 

(HVAC), and some building retrofit measures (in particular, ceiling insulation upgrade, duct 

leakage test and repair, energy-recovery ventilation and Energy Star cool roof coating products.) 

CommerciahTndustrial New Construction Program 

The primary goal of this program is to foster the design and construction of energy efficient 

buildings. The new construction program: 1) provides education and information to the design 

community on all aspects of energy efficient building design; 2) requires that the building 

design, at a minimum, surpass the state energy code; 3) provides financial incentives for specific 

energy efficient equipment; and 4) provides energy design awards to building design teams. 

Incentives will be provided for high efficiency HVAC equipment, energy recovery ventilation 

and Energy Star cool roof coating products. 
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Innovation Incentive Program 

This program promotes a reduction in demand and energy by subsidizing energy conservation 

projects for customers in PEF’s service territory. The intent of the program is to encourage 

legitimate energy efficiency measures that reduce kW demand andor kWh energy, but are not 

addressed by other programs. Energy efficiency opportunities are identified by PEF 

representatives during a Business Energy Check audit. If a candidate project meets program 

specifications, it will be eligible for an incentive payment, subject to PEF approval. 

Commercial Energy Management Program (Rate Schedule GSLM-I) 

This direct load control program reduces PEF’s demand during peak or emergency conditions. 

As described in PEF’s DSM Plan, this program is currently closed to new participants. It is 

applicable to existing program participants who have electric space cooling equipment suitable 

for interruptible operation and are eligible for service under the Rate Schedule GS-1, GST-1, 

GSD- 1, or GSDT- I .  The program is also applicable to existing participants who have any of the 

following electrical equipment installed on permanent residential structures and utilized for 

domestic (household) purposes: 1) water heater(s), 2) central electric heating systems(s), 3) 

central electric cooling system(s), andor 4) swimming pool pump(s). Customers receive a 

monthly credit on their bills depending on the type of equipment in the program and the 

interruption schedule. 

Standby Generation Program 

This demand control program reduces PEF’s demand based upon the indirect control of customer 

generation equipment. This is a voluntary program available to all commercial, industrial, and 

agricultural customers who have on-site generation capability and are willing to reduce their PEF 

demand when PEF deems it necessary. The customers participating in the Standby Generation 

program receive a monthly credit on their electricity bills according to the demonstrated ability 

of the customer to reduce demand at PEF’s request. 

Interruptible Service Program 

This direct load control program reduces PEF‘s demand at times of capacity shortage during 

peak or emergency conditions. The program is available to qualified non-residential customers 
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with an average billing demand of 500 kW or more, who are willing to have their power 

interrupted. PEF will have remote control of the circuit breaker or disconnect switch supplying 

the customer’s equipment. In retum for this ability to interrupt load, customers participating in 

the Interruptible Service program receive a monthly interruptible demand credit applied to their 

electric bills. 

Curtailable Service 
This direct load control program reduces PEF’s demand at times of peak or emergency 

conditions. The program is available to qualified non-residential customers with an average 

billing demand of 500 kW or more, who are willing to curtail 25 percent of their average 

monthly billing demand. Customers participating in the Curtailable Service program receive a 

monthly curtailable demand credit applied to their electric bills. 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS 

Technology Development Program 
The primary purpose of this program is to establish a system to “Aggressively pursue research, 

development and demonstration projects jointly with others as well as individual projects” (Rule 

25- 17.001, { 5}(f), Florida Administration Code). PEF will undertake certain development, 

educational and demonstration projects that have promise to become cost-effective demand 

reduction and energy efficiency programs. In most cases, each demand reduction and energy 

efficiency project that is proposed and investigated under this program requires field testing with 

actual customers. 
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CHAPTER 3 

FORECAST OF FACILITIES REQUIREMENTS 

RESOURCE PLANNING FORECAST 

OVERVIEW OF CURRENT FORECAST 

Supply-side Resources 

PEF has a summer total capacity resource of 10,413 MW, as shown in Table 3.1. This capacity 

resource includes nuclear (769 MW), fossil steam (3,882 MW), combined cycle plants (1,706 MW), 

combustion turbine (2,619 MW, 143 MW of which is owned by Georgia Power for the months June 

through September), utility purchased power (61 7 MW), and non-utility purchased power (820 

MW). Table 3.2 shows PEF’s contracts for firm capacity provided by Qualifjring Facilities (QF’s). 

Demand-Side Program 

Total DSM resources are shown in Schedules 3.1.1 and 3.2.1 of Chapter 2. These programs include 

Non-Dispatchable DSM, Interruptible Load, and Dispatchable Load Control resources. PEF’s 2006 

Ten-Year Site Plan Demand-Side Management projections are consistent with the DSM Goals 

established by the Commission in Docket No. 04003 1 -EG. 

Capacity and Demand Forecast 

PEF’s forecasts of capacity and demand for the projected summer and winter peaks are shown in 

Schedules 7.1 and 7.2, respectively, PEF’s forecasts of capacity and demand are based on serving 

expected growth in retail requirements in its regulated service area and meeting commitments to 

wholesale power customers who have entered into supply contracts with PEF. In its planning 

process, PEF balances its supply plan for the needs of retail and wholesale customers and endeavors 

to ensure that cost-effective resources are available to meet the needs across the customer base, 

Over the years, as wholesale markets have grown more competitive, PEF has remained active in the 

competitive solicitations while planning in a manner that maintains an appropriate balance of 

commitments and resources within the overall regulated supply framework. 
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Base Expansion Plan 

PEF’s planned supply resource additions and changes are shown in Schedule 8 and are referred to as 

PEF’s Base Expansion Plan. This Plan includes 3,910 net MW (summer rating) of proposed new 

capacity additions through the summer of 2015. As identified in Schedule 8, PEF’s next planned 

need is the Hines 4 Unit, a 461 MW (summer) power block with a December 2007 in-service 

date. PEF’s self-build option for Hines Unit 4 was determined to be the most cost-effective 

alternative, followed by the Bartow Repowering Project to be completed by June 2009. 

PEF’s Base Expansion Plan projects requirements for additional units with proposed in-service 

dates of 2007 through 2015. These units, together with the Central Power & Lime Purchase 

(December 2005 through December 2010), the TEA purchase (from June through September 

2006, December 2006 through February 2007, and June through September 2007), the Shady 

Hills Purchase (April 2007 through April 2014), and the Southern Company Purchase (June 2010 

through December 2015)’ help the PEF system meet the growing energy requirements of its 

customer base. Some of the identified unit additions may be impacted by PEF’s ability to extend 

or replace existing purchase power contracts, as well as contracts with cogenerators and QF’s. 

Status reports and specifications for new generation facilities are included in Schedule 9. Shown 

in Schedule 10 are the new transmission lines associated with Hines #4 and the Bartow Repowering 

Project. 

Current planning studies identify gas-fired units as the most economic alternatives for system 

expansion in the near term. The forecast of natural gas prices has risen to the point where new 

pulverized coal units appear to be a cost effective alternative. Uncertainties over fiiture fuel price 

relationships, environmental regulations, and the ability to site new coal units in Florida will require 

ongoing re-evaluations of the coal option. New nuclear technologies appear to offer favorable long- 

term economics, and provide favorable environmental characteristics, measured against possible 

emission limits imposed by the recently issued Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR). PEF is currently 

evaluating the nuclear option with the intent to pursue preliminary licensing activities should 

suitable sites for new nuclear units be available. Currently, the expected lead time to site, license, 

engineer, and construct a new nuclear unit place its in-service date outside the ten-year planning 

horizon presented in this document. 
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TABLE 3.1 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

PLANTS 

TOTAL CAPACITY RESOURCES OF 
POWER PLANTS AND PURCHASED POWER CONTRACTS 

AS OF DECEMBER 31,2005 

SUMMER 
NUMBER NET DEPENDABLE 
OF UNITS CAPABILITY 

(MW) 
Nuclear Steam 

Total Nuclear Steam 1 769 
Crystal River - 1 - 769 (1) 

Fossil Steam 
Crystal River 
Anclote 
Bartow 

Suwannee River 
Total Fossil Steam 

Combined Cycle 
Hines Energy Complex 
Tiger Bay 

Total Combined cycle 

Combustion Turbine 
DeBary 
Intercession City 
Bayboro 
Bartow 
Suwannee 
Tumer 
Higgins 
Avon Park 
University of Florida 
Rio Pinar 

Total Combustion Turbine 

Total Units 
Total Net Generating Capability 

4 
2 
3 
- 3 

12 

3 
1 
4 
- 

10 
14 
4 
4 
3 
4 
4 
2 
1 
1 

47 
- 

Purchased Power 
Qualifying Facility Contracts 
Investor Owned Utilities 

2,302 
993 
444 
- I43 

3,882 

1,499 

1,706 
207 

64 
8,976 

TOTAL CAPACITY RESOURCES 

667 

184 
I87 
164 
154 
122 
52 
35 
13 

2,619 

1,041 (2) 

( I )  Adjusted for sale of approximately 8.2% of total capacity 
(2) includes 143 MW owned by Georgia Power Company (Jun-Sep) 

19 
2 

820 
617 

10,413 
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Facility Name 
Bay County Resource Recovery 

Firm 
Capacity 

(MW) 
11.0 

~ 

LFC Jefferson 

Cargill 

Dade County Resource Recovery 

El Dorado 

Jefferson Power 

Lake Cogen 

Lake County Resource Recovery 

8.5 

15.0 

43 .O 

114.2 

2.0 

110.0 

12.8 

LFC Madison 
~ 

Mulberry 

Orange Cogen (CFR-Biogen) 

Orlando Cogen 

Pasco Cogen 

Pasco County Resource Recovery 

Pinellas County Resource Recovery 1 

Pinellas County Resource Recovery 2 

Ridge Generating Station 

Royster 

US Agrichem 

TOTAL 

I 8.5 

79.2 

74.0 

79.2 

109.0 

23.0 

40.0 

14.8 

3 9.6 

30.8 

5.6 

820.2 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

(11 (2) (31 14) 

TOTAL FIRM FIRM 

INSTALLED CAPACITY CAPACITY 

SCHEDULE 7.1 

FOFSCAST OF CAPACITY, DEMAND AND SCHEDULED MAINTENANCE 

AT TlME OF SUMMER PEAK 

CAPACITY IMPORT EXPORT 

MW MW -- YEAR MW - 
2006 8.843 817 . 
2007 8,843 1.253 * 0 

2008 9,304 1 0 3 5  

2009 9.997 1.095 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

2010 10,136 1.093 

2011 10,614 890 

2012 10,775 8% 

2013 11,525 840 

201( 12 275 412 

2015 12 753 112 

QF 

MW - 
813 

802 

798 

798 

798 

798 

718 

667 

SW 

SW 

(61 

TOTAL 

CAPACITY 

AVAILABLE 

MW 

(7) 

SYSTEM FIRM 

SUMMER PEAK 

DEMAND 

MW 
I O  413 

10,898 

11.197 

11,890 

12,027 

12 302 

12,463 

13,102 

13 187 

13 665 

8.711 

9.084 

9.351 

9,554 

9.931 

10,155 

10,383 

10,593 

I O  813 

11,036 

RESERVE MARGIN 

BEFORE MAINTENANCE 

MW % O F P E A K  
1,702 19% 

1.814 20% 

I 846 20% 

2,336 24% 

2,096 21% 

2.117 21% 

2.380 2096 

2,509 24% 

2,374 22% 

2,629 2416 

SCHEDULED RESERVE MARGIN 

MAINTENANCE AFTER MAINTENANCE 

-- MW % O F P E A K  MW 

0 1,702 18% 

0 20% ! ,S I (  

1.846 20% 0 

0 2,336 24% 

0 21% 

a 2.147 21% 

2,098 

0 2.080 20% 

0 2,509 24% 

0 2,374 22% 

0 2,629 24% 

* Progress Energy Is  pwrulng SCaSOnai purchaser Qf approximately 200 MW In 2006 and 158 MW in 2W7. The deals are no1 ye1 conrummaled as of the lime of he Teen-Year Site PIX flling Since the purchase 1s 
expect4 IO be hon peaking capscity. no energy impact has been included in the plan 81 his time. 

The recently issued Clean Alr lnterstate Rule (CAIR) may impact PEF 's  need for new capacity While a compliance plan has not yet been flnallred, some altfmatives may impact 
the capacity OF exlstlng andlor Future generation resources, resulting In a need For additional capaciry. Once the compliance plan has been Finalized PEP will quantlfy the impacts 
on generating resources and determine if any additional capacicy Is needed. 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

XEAR 
2005106 

2 0 0 6 IO 7 

2W7I08 

2008109 

2009/10 

2010111 

2 0 I I I I 2  

201 2/13 

2013114 

201 4/15 

(21 

TOTAL 

INSTALLED 

CAPACITY 

MW 
9.757 

9,757 

10.274 

10.656 

11.057 

SCHEDULE 7 2 

FORECAST O F  CAPACITY, DEMAND AND SCHEDULED MAINTENANCE 

AT TIME OF WINTER PEAK 

(31 (4) 

FIRM FIRM 

CAPACITY CAPACITY 

IMPORT EXPORT 

MW MW 

617 0 
1,117 * 0 

1,137 0 

1,137 0 

I, I37 D 

-- 

11.248 I . w 2  0 

11.798 932 0 

11.989 932 0 

12,739 932 0 

13.489 412 0 

QF 
MW 

813 

802 

798 

79a 

798 

798 

798 

798 

513 

501 

- 

(61 
TOTAL 

CAPACITY 

AVAILABLE 

MW 

11,187 

11.676 

12,209 

12.591 

12.992 

13,048 

13,528 

13,719 

14,184 

14,402 

(7) 
SYSTEM FIRM 

WINTER PEAK 

DEMAND 

MW 

9.047 
9.584 

9,780 

10.134 

13.524 

10.727 

10.975 

11.203 

11,427 

11.634 

RESERVE MARGIN 

BEFORE MAINTENANCE 

MW 96OFPEAK 
2,140 24% 

2,092 22% 

2,429 25% 

2.457 24% 

2.468 23% 

2,321 22% 

2.553 23% 

2,516 22% 

2.757 2416 

2,768 21% 

(101 

SCHEDULED 

MAINTENANCE 

MW 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

RESERVE MARGIN 

AFTER MAINTENANCE 

MW % O F P E A K  
2.140 24% 

2.092 22% 

2.429 25% 

2,457 24% 

2 468 23% 

2 321 22% 

2,553 23% 

2,516 22% 

2,757 24% 

2,768 24% 

* lncludcs Seasonal Purchase of  500 MW In 2006107. 

The recently Issued Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) may lmpacl PEF's necd for new capacily. While a compliance plan has not yct bcen flnallzcd, some altenallves may Impact the capacliy of existing and/or future 
generation resources resulting in  a nced for additional capacily Once the compliance plan har k e n  finalized. PEF wi l l  quantify the imprcts on generating resources and determine I f  any additional capacity IS "ceded. 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 8 
PLANNED AND PROSPECTIVE GENERATING FACILITY ADDITIONS AKD CHANCES 

P!&"uE 
HINES ENERGY COMPLEX 

BARTOW CT 

CRYSTAL RJVER 

BARTOW CC 

BARTOW 

CRYSTAL RIVER 

COMBUSTION TURBIKE 

COMBINED CYCLE 

COMBUSTION TURBINE 

P-COAL. Supercritical 

P.COAL Supercritical 

COMBINED CYCLE 

AS OF JANUARY 1, 2W6 THROUGH DECEMBER 31.2015 

(2) (3) (4) (5) 16) (71 (8) (9) 

CONST 

UNIT LOCATION W I T  EUUU&WU START 

bllzicouNTyiryEE~9LLm B L T . M ! L a x  

4 POLK CC NC DFO PL TK lY2005 

5 . 6  PINELLAS CT NG DFO PL TK 12/2Oob 

5 CITRUS ST BIT .. WA .. 

1 PINELLAS CC NG DFO PL WA 12/2006 

1.3 PlNELLAS ST RPO -. WA .- 
4 CITRUS ST BIT -- WA -. 

I UXKXOWN GT NG DFO PL TK 06i2009 

I UNKNOWN cc NG DFO PL TK 0112009 

2 UNKNOWN GT NG DFO PL TK 06i2011 

1 UNKNOWN ST BIT .- RR -- 06/2008 

2 UNKNOWN ST BIT _. RR .. 0612009 

2 UNKNOWN CC NG DFO PL TK 0112013 

(10) 

COWL IS- 

SERVICE 

MeciB 

12/2007 

12i2W8 

0 4 / 2 0 0 9 

OUZO09 

(11) (12) (13) (14) ( 1 5 )  (16) 

EXPECTED CEN. MAX NET C- 

RETIREMEW NAMEPLATE SUMMER WINTER 

MQL.xB KYi KvY ~ X A T l l S ~  

461 517 U 

322 382 P (1) 

(22)  (22) P (2) 

837 897 P (1) 

OUZO09 

11i2009 

06/ZO10 

06i2011 

06i2012 

0612013 

c6/2014 

0612015 

(444) (452) P ( 1 )  

(22) (22) P (2 )  

161 191 P 

478 550 P 

161 191 P 

750 750 P 

750 750 P 

478 550 P 

NOTES 
( I )  As pan of the Banow Repowering Project, hvo CTs will go Into semce  12i2008. In June of 2009, they will be combined with an additional hvo CTr. four HRSCt, and 

one steam turbine to produce a slngle, 4 ~ 4 x 1  combined cycle with a tMal summer CapacItY Of 1.159 MW 

Derations due to FDG scnrbber installations ( 2 )  
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 9 
STATUS REPORT AND SPECIFICATIONS OF PROPOSED GENERATING FACILITIES 

AS OF JANUARY 1. 2006 

Plant Name and Unit Number: 

Capacity 
a. Summer: 
b. Winter: 

Technology Type: 

Anticipated Construction Timing 
a .  Field construction start date: 
b. Commercial in-service date: 

Fuel 
a. Primary fuel: 
b. Alternate fuel: 

Air Pollution Control Strategy: 

Cooling Method: 

Total Site Area: 

Construction Status: 

Certification Status: 

Status with Federal Agencies: 

Projected Unit Performance Data 
a. Planned Outage Factor (POF): 
b. Forced Outage Factor (FOF): 
c .  Equivalent Availability Factor (EAF): 
d. Resulting Capacity Factor (%): 
e .  Average Net Operating Heat Rate (ANOHR): 

Projected Unit Financial Data 
a. Book Life (Years): 
b .  Total Installed Cost (In-service year $/kW): 
c. Direct Construction Cost ($/kW): 
d. AFUDC Amount ($/kW): 
e. Escalation ($/kW): 
f .  Fixed O&M (S/kW-yr) : 
g. Variable O&M ($/MWh): 
h.  K Factor: 

HINES ENERGY COMPLEX UNIT #4 

461 
517 

COMBINED CYCLE 

1212005 
12/2007 (EXPECTED) 

NATURAL GAS 
DISTILLATE FUEL OIL 

DRY LOW NOx COMBUSTION 
with SELECTIVE CATALYTIC REDUCTION 

COOLING POND 

8,200 ACRES 

REGULATORY APPROVAL RECEIVED 
UNDER CONSTRUCTION 

SITE PERMITTED 

SITE PERMITTED 

6.0 % 
3.0 % 

91.2 % 
47.0 % 

7,915 BTU/kWh 

25 
495.40 
443.09 
52.31 
0.00 
1.26 
2.38 

NO CALCULATION 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 9 
STATUS REPORT AND SPECIFICATIONS OF PROPOSED GENERATING FACILITIES 

AS OF JANUARY 1 ,  2006 

Plant Name and Unit Number: 

Capacity 
a. Summer: 
b. Winter: 

Technology Type: 

Anticipated Construction Timing 
a. Field construction start date: 
b. Commercial in-service date: 

Fuel 
a .  Primary fuel: 
b. Alternate fuel: 

Air Pollution Control Strategy: 

Cooling Method: 

Total Site Area: 

Construction Stat us : 

Certification Status: 

Status with Federal Agencies: 

Projected Unit Performance Data 
a. Planned Outage Factor (POF): 
b.  Forced Outage Factor (FOF): 
c. Equivalent Availability Factor (EAF) : 
d. Resulting Capacity Factor (%): 
e. Average Net Operating Heat Rate (ANOHR): 

Projected Unit Financial Data 
a. Book Life (Years): 
b .  Total Installed Cost (In-service year $/kW): 
c .  Direct Construction Cost ($/kW): 
d. AFUDC Amount ($/kW): 
e. Escalation ($/kW) : 
f .  Fixed O&M ($/kW-yr): 
g. Variable O&M ($/MWh): 
h. K Factor: 

BARTOW REP0 WERING 

1,159 
1,279 

COMBINED CYCLE 

12/2006 
06/2009 (EXPECTED) 

NATURAL GAS 
DISTILLATE FUEL OIL 

DRY LOW NOx COMBUSTION 

COOLING WATER 

1,348 ACRES 

PLANNED 

N/A 

PLANNED 

6.9 % 
4.6 % 

88.8 % 
53.9 % 

7,236 BTUikWh 

25 
435.08 
403.56 

31.52 
0.00 
4.53 
2.50 

NO CALCULATION 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 9 
STATUS REPORT AND SPECIFICATIONS OF PROPOSED GENERATING FACILITIES 

AS OF JANUARY 1,2006 

Plant Name and Unit Number: 

Capacity 
a. Summer: 
b. Winter: 

Technology Type: 

Anticipated Construction Timing 
a. Field construction start date: 
b. Commercial in-service date: 

Fuel 
a. Primary fuel: 
b. Alternate fuel: 

Air Pollution Control Strategy: 

Cooling Method: 

Total Site Area: 

Construction Status: 

Certification Status: 

Status with Federal Agencies: 

Projected Unit Performance Data 
a. Planned Outage Factor (POF): 
b. Forced Outage Factor (FOF): 
c. Equivalent Availability Factor (EAF) : 
d.  Resulting Capacity Factor PO): 
e .  Average Net Operating Heat Rate (ANOHR): 

Projected Unit Financial Data 
a. Book Life (Years) : 
b. Total Installed Cost (In-service year $/kW) : 
c. Direct Construction Cost ($/kW): 
d. AFUDC Amount (UkW): 
e. Escalation ($/kW): 
f. Fixed O&M ($/kW-yr): 
g. Variable O&M ($/MWh): 
h. K Factor: 

SIMPLE CYCLE 1 

161 
191 

SIMPLE CYCLE 

06/2009 
06/20 10 (EXPECTED) 

NATURAL GAS 
DISTILLATE FUEL OIL 

DRY LOW NOx COMBUSTION 

NIA 

UNKNOWN ACRES 

PLANNED 

PLANNED 

PLANNED 

6.9 % 
4 . 7  % 
88.7 % 
1.3 % 

10,579 BTU/kWh 

25 
349.59 
273.09 
35.84 
40.66 

2.16 
10.64 

NO CALCULATION 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 9 
STATUS REPORT AND SPECIFICATIONS OF PROPOSED GENERATING FACILITIES 

AS OF JANUARY 1, 2006 

Plant Name and Unit Number: 

Capacity 
a. Summer: 
b. Winter: 

Technology Type: 

Anticipated Construction Timing 
a. Field construction start date: 
b. Commercial in-service date: 

Fuel 
a. Primary fuel: 
b. Alternate fuel: 

Air Pollution Control Strategy: 

Cooling Method: 

Total Site Area: 

Construction Status: 

Certification Status: 

Status with Federal Agencies: 

Projected Unit Performance Data 
a. Planned Outage Factor (POF): 
b. Forced Outage Factor (FOF): 
c. Equivalent Availability Factor (EAF): 
d. Resulting Capacity Factor (%): 
e. Average Net Operating Heat Rate (ANOHR): 

Projected Unit Financial Data 
a. Book Life (Years): 
b. Total Installed Cost (In-service year $/kW): 
c. Direct Construction Cost ($/kW): 
d. AFUDC Amount ($/kW): 
e. Escalation ($/kW): 
f .  Fixed O&M ($/kW-yr): 
g. Variable O&M ($/MWh): 
h. K Factor: 

COMBINED CYCLE 1 

478 
550 

COMBINED CYCLE 

01/2009 
06/2011 (EXPECTED) 

NATURAL GAS 
DISTILLATE FUEL OIL 

DRY LOW NOx COMBUSTION 
with SELECTIVE CATALYTIC REDUCTION 

UNKNOWN 

UNKNOWN ACRES 

PLANNED 

PLANNED 

PLANNED 

6.9 % 
4.6 % 

88.8 % 
58.3 % 

7,461 BTU/kWh 

25 
486.17 
352.00 

70.02 
64.15 

2.03 
1.21 

NO CALCULATION 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 9 
STATUS REPORT AND SPECIFICATIONS OF PROPOSED GENERATING FACILITIES 

AS OF JANUARY 1, 2006 

Plant Name and Unit Number: 

Capacity 
a. Summer: 
b. Winter: 

Technology Type: 

Anticipated Construction Timing 
a. Field construction start date: 
b. Commercial in-service date: 

Fuel 
a. Primary fuel: 
b. Alternate fuel: 

Air Pollution Control Strategy: 

Cooling Method: 

Total Site Area: 

Construction Status: 

Certification Status: 

Status with Federal Agencies: 

Projected Unit Performance Data 
a. Planned Outage Factor (POF): 
b. Forced Outage Factor (FOF): 
c .  Equivalent Availability Factor (EAF) : 
d. Resulting Capacity Factor (%): 
e. Average Net Operating Heat Rate (ANOHR): 

Projected Unit Financial Data 
a.  Book Life (Years): 
b. Total Installed Cost (In-service year $/kW): 
c. Direct Construction Cost ($/kW): 
d. AFUDC Amount ($/kW): 
e. Escalation ($/kW) : 
f .  Fixed O&M ($/kW-yr): 
g. Variable O&M ($/MWh): 
h.  K Factor: 

SIMPLE CYCLE 2 

161 
191 

SIMPLE CYCLE 

06/20 1 1 
06/2012 (EXPECTED) 

NATURAL GAS 
DISTILLATE FUEL OIL 

DRY LOW NOx COMBUSTION 

N/A 

UNKNOWN ACRES 

PLANNED 

PLANNED 

PLANNED 

6.9 % 
4.7 % 

88.7 % 
1.3 % 

10,579 BTU/kWh 

25 
369.08 
273.09 

37.84 
58.15 

2.16 
10.64 

NO CALCULATION 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 9 
STATUS REPORT AND SPECIFICATIONS OF PROPOSED GENERATING FACILITIES 

AS OF JANUARY 1, 2006 

Plant Name and Unit Number: 

Capacity 
a .  Summer: 
b. Winter: 

Technology Type: 

Anticipated Construction Timing 
a .  Field construction start date: 
b. Commercial in-service date: 

Fuel 
a .  Primary fuel: 
b. Alternate fuel: 

Air Pollution Control Strategy (a): 

Cooling Method: 

Total Site Area: 

Construction Status: 

Certification Status: 

Status with Federal Agencies: 

Projected Unit Performance Data 
a. Planned Outage Factor (POF): 
b. Forced Outage Factor (FOF): 
c. Equivalent Availability Factor (EAF) : 
d. Resulting Capacity Factor (%): 
e. Average Net Operating Heat Rate (ANOHR): 

Projected Unit Financial Data 
a. Book Life (Years): 
b. Total Installed Cost (In-service year $/kW): 
c. Direct Construction Cost ($/kW): 
d.  AFUDC Amount ($/kW) : 
e. Escalation ($/kW) : 
f .  Fixed O&M ($/kW-yr): 
g. Variable O&M ($/MWh): 
h.  K Factor: 

COAL- 1 

750 
750 

PULVERIZED COAL-SUPERCRITICAL 

0612008 
06/2013 (EXPECTED) 

BITUMINOUS 

LOW-NOX BURNERS, SELECTIVE 

UNKNOWN 

UNKNOWN ACRES 

PLANNED 

PLANNED 

PLANNED 

4.8 % 
4.2 % 

91.2 % 
89.5 % 

8,712 BTU/kWh 

40 
1651.57 
1143 -70 
224.49 
283.38 

31.94 
3.21 

NO CALCULATION 

(a) Subject to future requirements 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 9 
STATUS REPORT AND SPECIFICATIONS OF PROPOSED GENERATING FACILITIES 

AS OF JANUARY 1, 2006 

Plant Name and Unit Number: 

Capacity 
a. Summer: 
b. Winter: 

Technology Type: 

Anticipated Construction Timing 
a. Field construction start date: 
b. Commercial in-service date: 

Fuel 
a .  Primary fuel: 
b. Alternate fuel: 

Air Pollution Control Strategy (a): 

Cooling Method: 

Total Site Area: 

Construction Status: 

Certification Status: 

Status with Federal Agencies: 

Projected Unit Performance Data 
a. Planned Outage Factor (POF): 
b. Forced Outage Factor (FOF): 
c. Equivalent Availability Factor (EAF): 
d. Resulting Capacity Factor (%): 
e ,  Average Net Operating Heat Rate (ANOHR): 

Projected Unit Financial Data 
a. Book Life (Years): 
b. Total Installed Cost (In-service year SlkW) : 
c. Direct Construction Cost ($/kW): 
d. AFUDC Amount ($/kW): 
e ,  Escalation ($/kW) : 
f .  Fixed O&M ($/kW-yr): 
g. Variable O&M ($/MWh): 
h .  K Factor: 

COAL-2 

750 
750 

PULVERIZED COAL-SUPERCRITICAL 

06/2009 
06/2014 (EXPECTED) 

BITUMINOUS 

LOW-NOX BURNERS, SELECTIVE 

UNKNOWN 

UNKNOWN ACRES 

PLANNED 

PLANNED 

PLANNED 

4.8 % 
4.2 % 

91.2 % 
89.5 % 

8.712 BTU/kWh 

40 
1696.99 
1143.70 
230.66 
322.63 

31.94 
3.21 

NO CALCULATION 

(a) Subject to future requirements 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 9 
STATUS REPORT AND SPECIFICATIONS OF PROPOSED GENERATING FACILITIES 

AS OF JANUARY 1, 2006 

Plant Name and Unit Number: 

Capacity 
a .  Summer: 
b. Winter: 

Technology Type: 

Anticipated Construction Timing 
a. Field construction start date: 
b. Commercial in-service date: 

Fuel 
a. Primary fuel: 
b, Alternate fuel: 

Air Pollution Control Strategy: 

Cooling Method: 

Total Site Area: 

Construction Status: 

Certification Status: 

Status with Federal Agencies: 

Projected Unit Performance Data 
a. Planned Outage Factor (POF): 
b. Forced Outage Factor (FOF): 
c. Equivalent Availability Factor (EAF) : 
d. Resulting Capacity Factor (%): 
e. Average Net Operating Heat Rate (ANOHR): 

Projected Unit Financial Data 
a. Book Life (Years) : 
b. Total Installed Cost (In-service year $/kW) : 
c. Direct Construction Cost ($/kW): 
d. AFUDC Amount ($/kW): 
e. Escalation ($/kW) : 
f .  Fixed O&M ($/kW-yr): 
g. Variable O&M ($/MWh): 
h. K Factor: 

COMBINED CYCLE 2 

478 
550 

COMBINED CYCLE 

01120 13 
06/20 15 (EXPECTED) 

NATURAL GAS 
DISTILLATE FUEL OIL 

DRY LOW NOx COMBUSTION 
with SELECTIVE CATALYTIC REDUCTION 

UNKNOWN 

UNKNOWN ACRES 

PLANNED 

PLANNED 

PLANNED 

6.9 % 
4.6 % 

88.8 % 
58.3 % 

7,461 BTU/kWh 

25  
541,89 
352.00 

78.05 
111.84 

2.03 
1.21 

NO CALCULATION 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 10 
STATUS REPORT AND SPECIFICATIONS OF PROPOSED DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED TRANSMISSION LINES 

HINES UNIT #4 

(1) POINT OF ORIGIN AND TERMINATION: West Lake Wales Substation-Hines Energy Complex 

(2) NUMBER OF LINES: 1 

(3) RIGHT-OF-WAY: Existing Hines Energy Complex Site and new transmission right-of-way 

(4) LINE LENGTH: 21 

(5) VOLTAGE: 230kV 

(6) ANTICIPATED CONSTRUCTION TIMING: 6/2007 

(7) ANTICIPATED CAPITAL INVESTMENT: $32,987,944 * 

(8) SUBSTATIONS: N/A 

(9) PARTICIPATION WITH OTHER UTILITIES: N/A 

As recognized by the Florida Public Service Commission in its Order Granting Petition for Uetermination ot Need tor Hines Unit 
* 4 ,  the projected capital estimate may vary during construction of the Hines 4 facility. 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 10 
STATUS REPORT AND SPECIFICATIONS OF PROPOSED DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED TRANSMISSION LINES 

BARTOW REPOWERING 

(1) POINT OF ORIGIN AND TERMINATION: 

(2) NUMBER OF LINES: 

(3) RIGHT-OF-WAY: 

(4) LINE LENGTH: 

(5) VOLTAGE: 

(6) ANTICIPATED CONSTRUCTION TIMING: 

(7) ANTICIPATED CAPITAL INVESTMENT: 

(8) SUBSTATIONS: 

(9) PARTICIPATION WITH OTHER UTILITIES: 

Bartow Plant - Northeast Substation 

3 

Existing transmission line right-of-way 

4 

230kV 

09/2008 

$74,005,735 * 

NIA 

N/A 

* The projected capital estimate may vary during construction of the Bartow Repowering Project 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 10 
STATUS REPORT AND SPECIFICATIONS OF PROPOSED DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED TRANSMISSION LIKES 

BARTOW REPOWERING 

(1) POINT OF ORIGIN AND TERMINATION: 

(2) NUMBER OF LINES: 

(3) RIGHT-OF-WAY: 

(4) LINE LENGTH: 

(5) VOLTAGE: 

(6) ANTICIPATED CONSTRUCTION TIMING: 

(7) ANTICIPATED CAPITAL INVESTMENT: 

(8) SUBSTATIONS: 

(9) PARTICIPATION WITH OTHER UTILITIES: 

Northeast Substation - Thirty-Second Street Substation 

1 

New and existing transmission line right-of-ways 

2 

115kV 

09/2008 

$4,000,000 * 

Thirty-Second Street Substation - Addition 

N/A 

* The projected capital estimate may vary during construction of the Bartow Repowering Project 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 10 
STATUS REPORT AND SPECIFICATIONS OF PROPOSED DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED TRANSMISSION LINES 

BARTOW REPOWERING 

(1) POINT OF ORIGIN AND TERMINATION: 

(2) NUMBER O F  LINES: 

(3) RIGHT-OF-WAY: 

(4) LINE LENGTH: 

(5) VOLTAGE: 

(6) ANTICIPATED CONSTRUCTION TIMING: 

(7) ANTICIPATED CAPITAL INVESTMENT: 

(8) SUBSTATIONS: 

(9) PARTICIPATION WITH OTHER UTILITIES: 

Northeast Substation - Fortieth Street Substation 

1 

Existing transmission line right-of-ways 

8 

230kV 

09/2008 

$8,000,000 * 

N/A 

N/A 

* The projected capita! estimate may vary during construction of the Bartow Repowering Project 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 10 
STATUS REPORT AND SPECIFICATIONS OF PROPOSED DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED TRANSMISSION LINES 

BARTOW REPOWERING 

(1) POINT OF ORIGIN AND TERMINATION: 

(2) NUMBER OF LINES: 

(3) RIGHT-OF-WAY: 

(4) LINE LENGTH: 

(5) VOLTAGE: 

(6) ANTICIPATED CONSTRUCTION TIMING: 

(7) ANTICIPATED CAPITAL INVESTMENT: 

(8) SUBSTATIONS: 

(9) PARTICIPATION WITH OTHER UTILITIES: 

Pasadena Substation - Fifty-First Street Substation 

1 

Existing transmission line right-or-way 

0.4 

230kV 

0912008 

$5,000,000 * 

Fifty-First Street Substation - Addition 

NIA 

* The projected capital estimate may vary during construction of the Bartow Repowering Project 

3-20 

Hearing Exhibit - 000081 



INTEGRATED RESOURCE PLANNING OVERVIEW 

PEF employs an Integrated Resource Planning (IRP) process to determine the most cost-effective 

mix of supply- and demand-side alternatives that will reliably satisfy our customers’ hture 

demand and energy needs. PEF’s IRP process incorporates state-of-the-art computer models 

used to evaluate a wide range of future generation alternatives and cost-effective conservation 

and dispatchable demand-side management programs on a consistent and integrated basis. 

An overview of PEF’s IRP Process is shown in Figure 3.1. The process begins with the 

development of various forecasts, including demand and energy, fuel prices, and economic 

assumptions. Future supply- and demand-side resource alternatives are identified and extensive cost 

and operating data are collected to enable these to be modeled in detail. These aitematives are 

optimized together to determine the most cost-effective plan for PEF to pursue over the next ten 

years to meet the company’s reliability criteria. The resulting ten-year plan, the Integrated Optimal 

Plan, is then tested under different relevant sensitivity scenarios to identify variances, if any, which 

would warrant reconsideration of any of the base plan assumptions. If the plan is judged robust 

under sensitivity analysis and works within the corporate framework, it evolves as the Base 

Expansion Plan. This process is discussed in more detail in the following section titled “The IRP 

Process”. 

The Integrated Resource Plan provides PEF with substantial guidance in assessing and optimizing 

the Company’s overall resource mix on both the supply side and the demand side. When a decision 

supporting a significant resource commitment is being developed (e.g. plant construction, power 

purchase, DSM program implementation), the Company will move forward with directional 

guidance from the IRP and delve much further into the specific levels of examination required. This 

more detailed assessment will typically address very specific technical requirements and cost 

estimates, detailed corporate financial considerations, and the most current dynamics of the business 

and regulatory environments. 
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FIGURE 3.1 

Best Supply-side 
Resources 

IRP Process Overview 

Demand-Side Screening 
STRATEGIST 

Forecasts and Assumptions 

Supply-side Screening 
STRATEGIST 

I Base Optimal Supply-side Plan I 
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THE IRP PROCESS 

Forecasts and Assumptions 

The evaluation of possible supply- and demand-side alternatives, and development of the optimal 

plan, is an integral part of the IRP process. These steps together comprise the integration process 

that begins with the development of forecasts and collection of input data. Base forecasts that 

reflect PEF’s view of the most likely future scenarios are developed, along with high and low 

forecasts that reflect alternative future scenarios. Computer models used in the process are brought 

up-to-date to reflect this data, along with the latest operating parameters and maintenance schedules 

for PEF’s existing generating units, This establishes a consistent starting point for all further 

analysis. 

Reliability Criteria 

Utilities require a margin of generating capacity above the fm demands of their customers in order 

to provide reliable service. Periodic scheduled outages are required to perform maintenance and 

inspections of generating plant equipment and to refuel nuclear plants. At any given time during the 

year, some capacity may be out of service due to unanticipated equipment failures resulting in 

forced outages of generation units. Adequate reserve capacity must be available to accommodate 

these outages and to compensate for higher than projected peak demand due to forecast uncertainty 

and abnormal weather. In addition, some capacity must be available for operating reserves to 

maintain the balance between supply and demand on a moment-to-moment basis. 

PEF plans its resources in a manner consistent with utility industry planning practices, and employs 

both deterministic and probabilistic reliability criteria in the resource planning process. A Reserve 

Margin criterion is used as a deterministic measure of PEF’s ability to meet its forecasted seasonal 

peak load with firm capacity. PEF plans its resources to satis@ a 20 percent minimum Reserve 

Margin criterion. 

Loss of Load Probability (LOLP) is a probabilistic criterion that measures the probability that a 

company will be unable to meet its load throughout the year. While Reserve Margin only considers 

the peak load and amount of installed resources, LOLP also takes into account generating unit sizes, 

capacity mix, maintenance scheduling, unit availabilities, and capacity assistance available from 
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other utilities. A standard probabilistic reliability threshold commonly used in the electric utility 

industry, and the criterion employed by PEF, is a maximum of one day in ten years loss of load 

probability. 

PEF has based its resource planning on the use of dual reliability criteria since the early 1 9 9 0 ~ ~  a 

practice that has been accepted by the FPSC. PEF’s resource portfolio is designed to satisfy the 

minimum 20% Reserve Margin requirement and probabilistic analyses are conducted to ensure that 

the one day in ten years LOLP criterion is also satisfied. By using both the Reserve Margin and 

LOLP planning criteria, PEF’s resource portfolio is designed to have sufficient capacity available to 

meet customer peak demand, and to provide reliable generation service under all expected load 

conditions. 

Supply-side Screening 
Potential supply-side resources are screened to determine those that are the most cost-effective. Data 

used for the screening analysis is compiled from various industry sources and PEF’s experiences, 

The wide range of resource options is pre-screened to set aside those that do not warrant a detailed 

cost-effectiveness analysis. Typical screening criteria are costs, fuel source, technology maturity, 

environmental parameters, and overall resource feasibility. 

Economic evaluation of generation alternatives is performed using the STRATEGIST optimization 

program. The optimization program evaluates revenue requirements for specific resource plans 

generated from multiple combinations of hture resource additions that meet system reliability 

criteria and other system constraints. All resource plans are then ranked by system revenue 

requirements. The optimization run produces the optimal supply-side resource plan, which is 

considered the “Base Optimal Supply-side Plan.” 

Demand-Side Screening 

Like supply-side resources, data for large numbers of potential demand-side resources is also 

collected. These resources are pre-screened to eliminate those alternatives that are still in research 

and development, addressed by other regulations (building code), or not applicable to PEF’s 
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customers. STRATEGIST is updated with cost data and load impact parameters for each potential 

DSM measure to be evaluated. 

The Base Optimal Supply-side Plan is used to establish avoidable units for screening future 

demand-side resources. Each hture demand-side alternative is individually tested in this plan over 

the ten-year planning horizon to determine the benefit or detriment that the addition of this demand- 

side resource provides to the overall system. STRATEGIST calculates the benefits and costs for 

each demand-side measure evaluated and reports the appropriate ratios for the Rate Impact Measure 

(RIM), the Total Resource Cost Test (TRC), and the Participant Test. Demand-side programs that 

pass the RIM test are then bundled together to create demand-side portfolios. These portfolios 

contain the appropriate DSM options and make the optimization solvable with the STRATEGIST 

model. 

Resource Integration and the Integrated Optimal Plan 

The cost-effective generation alternatives and the demand-side portfolios developed in the screening 

process can then be optimized together to formulate an Integrated Optimal Plan. The optimization 

program considers all possible future combinations of supply- and demand-side alternatives that 

meet the company's reliability criteria in each year of the ten-year study period and reports those 

that provide both flexibility and low revenue requirements for PEF's ratepayers. 

Developing the Base Expansion Plan 

The plans that provide the lowest revenue requirements are then further tested using sensitivity 

analysis. The economics of the plan may be evaluated under high and low forecast scenarios for 

load, hel, and financial assumptions, or any other sensitivities which, in the judgment of the 

planner, are relevant given existing circumstances to ensure that the plan does not unduly burden the 

company or the ratepayers if the future unfolds in a manner significantly different from the base 

forecasts. From the sensitivity assessment, the ten-year plan that is identified as achieving the best 

balance of flexibility and cost is then reviewed within the corporate framework to determine how 

the plan potentially impacts or is impacted by many other factors. If the plan is judged robust under 

this review, it evolves as the Base Expansion Plan. 
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KEY CORPORATE FORECASTS 

Load Forecast 
The assumptions and methodology used to develop the base case load and energy forecast is 

described in detail in Chapter 2 of this TYSP. 

Fuel Forecast 
Base Fuel Case: The base case he1 price forecast was developed using short-tenn and long-term 

market price projections fiom industry-recognized sources. Coal prices are expected to be relatively 

stable month to month; however, oil and natural gas prices are expected to be more volatile on a 

day-to-day and month-to-month basis. 

In the short term, the base cost for coal is based on the existing contractual structure between 

Progress Fuels Corporation (PFC) and PEF and both contract and spot market coal and 

transportation arrangements between PFC and its various suppliers. For the longer term, the costs 

are based on market forecasts reflective of expected market conditions. Oil and natural gas prices 

are estimated based on current and expected contracts and spot purchase arrangements as well as 

near-term and long-term market forecasts. Oil and natural gas commodity prices are driven 

primarily by open market forces of supply and demand. Natural gas firm transportation cost is 

determined primarily by pipeline tariff rates and tends to change less frequently than commodity 

prices. 

Financial Forecast 
The key financial assumptions used in PEF’s most recent planning studies were 48% debt and 52% 

equity capital structure, projected debt cost of 6.5%, and an equity return of 12.0%. These 

assumptions resulted in a weighted average cost of capital of 9.36% and an after-tax discount rate of 

8.16%. 

TYSP RESOURCE ADDITIONS 

In this TYSP, PEF’s supply-side resources include the projected combined cycle (CC) expansion 

of the Hines Energy Complex (HEC) with Unit 4 forecasted to be in-service by December 2007. 

The TYSP also includes repowering the Bartow Steam Units with F-Class combined cycle 
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technology that would provide a portion of the capacity in-service by December 2008 with the 

completed combined cycle facility in-service by June 2009. Two generic combustion turbine 

units and two generic combined cycle units are included in the TYSP with forecasted in-service 

dates of June 20 10 and June 20 12 for the CTs and June 20 1 1 and June 20 15 for the CCs. 

The Company continues to study the economics of baseload generation alternatives including 

gas, coal, and nuclear options. Analyses indicate that coal and nuclear resources may provide 

economical baseload generation in the long-term. This TYSP thus includes the addition of two 

supercritical pulverized coal units during the planning horizon with forecasted in-service dates of 

June 2013 and June 2014. The Company has also announced its intent to file a combined 

construction permit-operating license (COL) application for a potential new nuclear facility in 

Florida with a possible in-service date beyond the 20 15 planning horizon. 

The economics of the baseload alternatives are partly dependent on legislation, projected load 

growth, fuel prices, and environmental compliance considerations. Although PEF has not 

committed to building a new coal or nuclear facility, the Company will continue to examine the 

merits of new generation alternatives and adjust its resource plans accordingly to ensure the 

optimal selection of resource additions. The Company is also currently conducting detailed 

analyses of generation sites and has not finalized its decision on the preferred site(s) for possible 

fiture generic combined cycle, coal, and nuclear additions. 

PLAN SENSITIVITIES 

Load Forecast 
In general, higher-than-projected load growth would shift the need for new capacity to an earlier 

year and lower-than-projected load growth would delay the need for new resources. PEF’s 

TYSP includes the Hines 4 addition and Bartow repowering projects in the near term, with 

generic CT, CC, and coal additions in the longer term. The Company’s resource plan would 

provide the flexibility to shift certain resources to earlier or later in-service dates should a 

significant change in projected customer demand begin to materialize. PEF therefore did not 

conduct detailed sensitivity analyses of the plan to the base case load forecast. 
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Fuel Forecast 

PEF’s current TYSP includes new natural gas fueled resources through 2012. The plan also 

includes coal units in 2013 and 2014, with 2013 being the earliest possible date that a new coal 

plant can be placed in-service. PEF focused its fuel forecast sensitivity on price projections for 

natural gas. Higher gas prices would improve the economics for pulverized coal; however, this 

scenario would not impact the schedule of resource additions since 2013 is the earliest date that a 

new coal plant can be placed in-service. PEF conducted a sensitivity analysis of the plan to 

lower gas prices relative to the base forecast. Results for the low gas price scenario did not shift 

the in-service date for the 2013 and 2014 coal units, which indicate the potential for new coal 

fired generation to remain economical in the long-term. 

The fuel price forecasts used in development of the TYSP show a greater differential in gadoil 

versus coal prices in the early years, with the differential decreasing in 2009 and increasing again 

beginning 20 16. Similar to the discussion above, a higher differential between gadoil and coal 

prices would improve the economics for pulverized coal; however, the TYSP already includes 

coal in the resource mix beginning June 2013 which is the earliest year that a coal plant can be 

constructed and placed in-service. Similarly, a smaller differential in gadoil versus coal prices 

would benefit the economics for a combined cycle plant; however, the low gas price forecast 

sensitivity discussed above still resulted in coal units included in the optimal plan. 

Fuel price forecasts can have a significant impact on the economics of generation alternatives. 

Results of the fuel forecast sensitivity analysis conducted for this TYSP did not suggest any 

significant reconsideration of the base plan. PEF will continue to monitor fuel price 

relationships to identify long-term structural changes and assess the potential impacts on the 

economics of resource selection. 

Financial Forecast 

PEF’s current TYSP includes combustion turbine and combined cycle additions through 2012 with 

pulverized coal additions in 2013 and 2014. Lower cost of capital escalation and escalation rates 

would favor options with longer construction lead times and higher capital costs such as the 

pulverized coal additions. However, PEF does not expect these assumptions to go much lower than 
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n 

the current base case forecast and, in any event, coal units likely cannot be added any sooner than 

20 13 as shown in the base plan. Higher financial assumptions would disfavor the pulverized coal 

additions; however, the Company has not committed to building new coal generation at this time. 

Thus, PEF did not test the sensitivity of the base resource plan to varying financial assumptions. 

PEF will continue to assess the economics of future generation altematives including consideration 

of the uncertainties in planning assumptions. 

TRANSMISSION PLANNING 

PEF’s transmission planning assessment practices are developed to test the ability of the planned 

system to meet the reliability criteria as outlined in the FERC Form 71 5 filing. This involves the 

use of load flow and transient stability programs to model various contingency situations that 

may occur, and determining if the system response meets the reliability criteria. In general, this 

involves running simulations for the loss of any single line, generator, or transformer. PEF 

normally runs this analysis for system load levels from minimum to peak for all possible 

contingencies, and for both summer and winter. Additional studies are performed to determine 

the system response to credible, less probable criteria, to assure the system meets PEF and 

Florida Reliability Coordinating Council, Inc. (FRCC) criteria. These studies include the loss of 

multiple generators or lines, and combinations of each, and some load loss is permissible under 

these more severe disturbances. These credible, less probable scenarios are also evaluated at 

various load levels, since some of the more severe situations occur at average or minimum load 

conditions, In particular, critical fault clearing times are typically the shortest (most severe) at 

minimum load conditions, with just a few large base load units supplying the system needs. 

As noted in the PEF reliability criteria, some remedial actions are allowed to reduce system 

loadings, in particular, sectionalizing is allowed to reduce loading on lower voltage lines for bulk 

system contingencies, but the risk to load on the sectionalized system must be reasonable (it 

would not be considered prudent to operate for long periods with a sectionalized system). In 

addition, the number of remedial action steps and the overall complexity of the scheme are 

evaluated to determine overall acceptability. 
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Presently, PEF uses the following reference documents to calculate Available Transfer 

Capability (ATC) for required transmission path postings on the Florida Open Access Same- 

Time Information System (OASIS): 

0 FRCC: FRCC ATC Calculation and Coordination Procedures, November 4,2003, which 

is posted on the FRCC website: 

(http:!/frcc .comJdownloads/FRCC%2OATC%2Omethodology-%2Ofinal- 1 1 -03 .pdf) 

NERC: Transmission Transfer Capability, May 1, 1995 

0 NERC: Available Transfer Capability - Definitions and Determination, July 30, 1996 

PEF uses the FRCC Capacity Benefit Margin (CBM) methodology to assess its CBM needs, 

This methodology is: 

“FRCC Transmission Providers make an assessment of the CBM needed on their respective 

systems by using either deterministic or probabilistic generation reliability analysis. The 

appropriate amount of transmission interface capability is then reserved for CBM on a per 

interface basis, taking into account the amount of generation available on other interconnected 

systems, the respective load peaking diversities of those systems, and Transmission Reliability 

Margin (TRM). Operating reserves may be included if appropriate in TRM and subsequently 

subtracted from the CBM if needed.” 

PEF currently has zero CBM reserved on each of its interfaces (posted paths). PEF’s CBM on 

each path is currently established through the transmission provider functions within PEF using 

deterministic and probabilistic generation reliability analysis. 

Currently, PEF proposes no bulk transmission additions that must be certified under the Florida 

Transmission Line Siting Act (TLSA). PEF’s proposed bulk transmission line additions are shown 

below: 
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TABLE 3.3 
PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

LINE 
MVA LENGTH COMMERCIAL 

RATING LME (CKT.- IN-SERVICE DATE 
WINTER OWNERSHIP TERMINALS MILES) (MOREAR) 

1141 PEFEPL VANDOLAH CHARLOTTE 551  , 1212006 
I 

LIST OF PROPOSED BULK TRANSMISSION LINE ADDITIONS 

NOMINAL 

(kV) 

230 

VOLTAGE 

1141 

1141 

1141 

1141 

21 6 i 2007 230 HINES ENERGY WEST LAKE 
COMPLEX WALES #I  PEF 

PEF LAM3 BRYAN WINDERMERE # 1 10 * I /2008 230 

PEF LAKE BRYAN WINDERMZRE #2 10 1 I2008 230 

PEF AVALON GIFFORD 7 7 12008 230 

I 230 I 1 4 I 912008 NORTHEAST 1 Circuit 1 1 612 I PEF 1 BARTOW 

525 

810 

810 

810 

1 612 1 PEF 1 BARTOW 1 1 4 1 9/2008 1 230 1 
Circuit 3 

PEF NORTHEAST 32m STREET 2 912008 1 I5 

PEF NORTHEAST 40" STREET 8* 912008 230 

PEF PASADENA 5 IST STREET 0.2 912008 230 

PEF 5 1 ST STREET 40m STREET 0.2 912008 230 

1 30 1 612010 1 230 I WEST LAKE i 1141 1 PEF 1 INTERCESSIONCITY 1 WALES#2 

! 230 I 1 1141 I PEF 1 HINESENERGY 512011 
COMPLEX 

1 1141 1 PEF 1 INTERCESSIONCITY I ~~~s~ I 30* I 612011 I 230 I 
* Rebuild existing circuit 
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CHAPTER 4 

ENVZRONMENTAL AND LAND USE INFORMATION 

PREFEFRED SITES 

PEF’s base expansion plan proposes new combined cycle generation at the Hines Energy 

Complex (HEC) site in Polk County and to repower the existing Bartow Plant in Pinellas County 

with combined cycle technology. Although not delineated in the base expansion plan, potential 

peaking simple-cycle combustion turbine generation site options for the 2010 and 2012 units 

include Intercession City (Osceola County), Anclote (Pasco County), Bartow (Pinellas) and 

DeBary (Volusia County). While these sites are suitable for new generation, PEF continues to 

evaluate other available options for future supply alternatives. 

The next proposed combined cycle unit at the HEC site is scheduled for commercial operation in 

December 2007. PEF will repower its existing Bartow Plant which is scheduled for commercial 

operation in June 2009. PEF continues to pursue siting opportunities for undesignated coal and 

combined cycle units with a commercial operation date of 2011 and beyond. PEF’s existing 

sites, as identified in Table 3.1 of Chapter 3, include the capability to further develop generation. 

All appropriate permitting requirements will be addressed for PEF’s preferred sites as discussed 

in the following site descriptions. The base expansion plan does not currently include any 

potential new sites for generation additions. Therefore, detailed environmental or land use data 

are not included. 

The ability to site new baseload generation (coal andor nuclear) in Florida is extremely limited, 

and PEF has not identified suitable sites for these technologies at this time. Siting studies are 

currently underway to identify possible sites for new baseload generation. 
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HINES ENERGY COMPLEX SITE 

In 1990, PEF completed a statewide search for a new 3,000 MW coal capable power plant site. As 

a result of this work, a large tract of mined-out phosphate land in south central Polk County was 

selected as the primary alternative. This 8,200-acre site is located south of the City of Bartow, near 

the cities of Fort Meade and Homeland, south of S.R. 640 and west of U.S. 17/98 (reference Figure 

4.1). It is an area that has been extensively mined and remains predominantly unreclaimed. 

The Governor and cabinet approved site certification for ultimate site development and construction 

of the first 470 MW increment on January 25, 1994, in accordance with the rules of the Power Plant 

Siting Act, Due to the thorough screening during the selection process, and the disturbed nature of 

the site, there were no major environmental limitations. As would be the situation at any location in 

the state, air emissions and water consumption were significant issues during the licensing process. 

The site’s initial preparation involved moving over 10 million cubic yards of soil and draining 4 

billion gallons of water. Construction of the energy complex recycled the land for a beneficial use 

and promote habitat restoration. 

The Hines Energy Complex is visited by several species of wildlife, including alligators, bobcats, 

turtles, and over 50 species of birds. The Hines site also contains a wildlife corridor, which creates 

a continuous connection between the Peace River and the Alafia River. 

PEF arranged for the City of Bartow to provide treated effluent for cooling pond make-up. The 

complex’s cooling pond initially covered 722 acres with an eventual expansion to 2,500 acres. 

The Hines Energy Complex is designed and permitted to be a zero discharge site. This means that 

there will be no discharges to surface waters either from the power plant facilities or from storm 

water runoff, Based on this design, storm water runoff from the site can be used as cooling pond 

make-up, minimizing groundwater withdrawals. 

The Florida Department of Environmental Protection air rules currently list all of Polk County as 

attainment for ambient air quality standards. The environmental impact on the site will be 
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minimized by PEF's close coordination with regulatory agencies to ensure compliance with all 

applicable environmental regulations. 

As future generation units are added, the remaining network of on-site clay settling ponds will be 

converted to cooling ponds and combustion waste storage areas to support power plant operations. 

Given the disturbed nature of the property, considerable development has been required in order to 

make it usable for electric utility application. An industrial rail network and an adequate road 

system service the site. 

The first combined cycle unit at this site, with a capacity of 482 M W  summer, began commercial 

operation in April 1999. The transmission improvements associated with this first unit were the 

rebuilding of the 230/115 kV double circuit Barcola to Ft. Meade line by increasing the conductor 

sizes and converting the line to double circuit 230 kV operation. 

The second combined cycle unit at this site entered commercial operation in December 2003 with a 

seasonal capacity rating of 516 MW summer. The transmission improvement associated with the 

second combined cycle unit at this site involved the addition of a 230 kV circuit from the Hines 

Energy Complex to Barcola. 

The third combined cycle unit at this site entered commercial operation in November 2005 with a 

seasonal capacity rating of 501 M W  summer, and required no transmission upgrades. 

The fourth HEC combined cycle unit is currently under construction. This unit has a commercial 

operation date of December 2007 with a seasonal capacity rating of 461 M W  summer. The 

transmission improvements associated with the fourth combined cycle unit at this site involved the 

addition of a 230 kV circuit from the Hines Energy Complex to West Lake-Wales and associated 

substation expansion and breaker replacements. 

The HEC is also a potential site for a combined cycle unit required in 201 1. 
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FIGURE 4.1 

Hines Energy Complex Site (Polk County) 

i! 0 Alturas 

Stare Route 6 3 6  
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INTERCESSION CITY SITE 

Intercession City was chosen as a potential site for installation of pealung combustion turbine units, 

The Intercession City site (Figure 4.2) consists of 162 acres in Osceola County, two miles west of 

Intercession City. The site is immediately west of Reedy Creek and the adjacent Reedy Creek 

Swamp. The site is adjacent to a secondary effluent pipeline from a municipal wastewater treatment 

plant, an oil pipeline, and natural gas supply from the Florida Gas Transmission (FGT) and 

Gulfstream pipelines. 

The Florida Department of Environmental Protection air rules currently list all of Osceola County as 

attainment for ambient air quality standards. The environmental impact on the site will be 

minimized by PEF's close coordination with regulatory agencies to ensure compliance with all 

applicable environmental regulations. 

Transmission modifications will be required to accommodate additional combustion turbine 

peaking units at this site. 
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FIGURE 4.2 

Intercession City Site (Osceola County) 
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DEBARY SITE 

DeBary was chosen as a potential site for installation of peaking combustion turbine units. 

The DeBary site (Figure 4.3) consists of 2,210 acres in Volusia County, immediately west of the 

town of DeBary. The site is bordered on the west by the St. Johns River and on the north by Blue 

Springs State Park. This site is adjacent to an oil pipeline and natural gas supply from the Florida 

Gas Transmission (FGT) pipeline. 

The Florida Department of Environmental Protection air rules currently list all of Volusia County as 

attainment for ambient air quality standards. The environmental impact on the site will be 

minimized by PEF's close coordination with regulatory agencies to ensure compliance with all 

applicable environmental regulations. 

Transmission modifications will be required to accommodate additional combustion turbine 

peaking units at this site. 
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FIGURE 4.3 

DeBary Site (Volusia County) 
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ANCLOTE SITE 

Anclote was chosen as a potential site for installation of pealung combustion turbine units. 

The Anclote site (Figure 4.4) consists of approximately 400 acres in Pasco County. The site is 

located in Holiday Florida at the mouth of the Anclote River. The site receives make-up water from 

the city of Tarpon Springs, fuel oil through a pipeline from the Bartow plant, and natural gas supply 

from the Florida Gas Transmission (FGT) pipeline. 

The Florida Department of Environmental Protection air rules currently list all of Pasco County as 

attainment for ambient air quality standards. The environmental impact on the site will be 

minimized by PEF's close coordination with regulatory agencies to ensure compliance with all 

applicable environmental regulations. 

Transmission modifications will be required to accommodate additional combustion turbine 

peaking units at this site. 
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FIGURE 4.4 

Anclote (Pasco County) 
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BARTOW SITE 

PEF has chosen to repower its existing Bartow Plant with combined cycle technology, which is 

scheduled for commercial operation in June 2009. 

The Bartow site (Figure 4.5) consists of 1,348 acres in Pinellas County, on the west shore of Tampa 

Bay. The site is on Weedon Island, north of downtown St. Petersburg. The site is adjacent to a 

barge fuel oil off-loading facility, a natural gas supply from the Florida Gas Transmission (FGT) 

pipeline, and a proposed Gulfstream natural gas pipeline. 

The Florida Department of Environmental Protection air rules currently list all of Pinellas County as 

attainment for ambient air quality standards. The environmental impact on the site will be 

minimized by PEF's close coordination with regulatory agencies to ensure compliance with all 

applicable environmental regulations. 

Transmission modifications will be required to accommodate the repowering of Bartow s t e m  units. 

4-1 1 

Hearing Exhibit - 000106 



FIGURE 4.5 
Bartow Site (Pinellas County) 
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CODE IDENTIFICATION SHEET 

Generatinp Unit Tvpe 

ST - Steam Turbine - Non-Nuclear 
NP - Steam Power - Nuclear 
GT - Gas Turbine 
CT - Combustion Turbine 
CC - Combined cycle 
SPP - Small Power Producer 
COG - Cogeneration Facility 

Fuel TvPe 

NUC - Nuclear (Uranium) 
NG - Natural Gas 
RFO - No. 6 Residual Fuel Oil 
DFO - No. 2 Distillate Fuel Oil 
BIT - Bituminous Coal 
MSW - Municipal Solid Waste 
WH - Waste Heat 
BIO - Biomass 

Fuel Transportation 

WA - Water 

RR - Railroad 
PL - Pipeline 
UN - unknown 

TK - Truck 

Future Generating Unit Status 

A - Generating unit capability increased 
FC - Existing generator planned for conversion to another fuel or energy source 
P - Planned for installation but not authorized; not under construction 
W - Proposed for repowering or life extension 
RT - Existing generator scheduled for retirement 
T - Regulatory approval received but not under construction 
U - Under construction, less than or equal to 50% complete 
V - Under construction, more than 50% complete 
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INTRODUCTION 

Section 186.801 of the Florida Statutes requires electric generating utilities to submit a Ten-Year 

Site Plan (TYSP) to the Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC). The TYSP includes 

historical and projected data pertaining to the utility’s load and resource needs as well as a 

review of those needs. It is compiled in accordance with FPSC Rules 25-22.070 through 22.072, 

Florida Administrative Code. 

Progress Energy Florida’s (PEF’s) TYSP is based on projections of long-term planning 

requirements that are dynamic in nature and subject to change. These planning documents 

should be used for general guidance concerning PEF’s planning assumptions and projections, 

and should not be taken as an assurance that particular events discussed in the TYSP will 

materialize or that particuIar plans will be implemented. Information and projections pertinent to 

periods further out in time are inherently subject to greater uncertainty. 

The TYSP document contains four chapters as described below: 

CHAPTER 1 

DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING FACILITIES 

CHAPTER 2 

FORECAST OF ELECTRICAL POWER DEMAND AND ENERGY CONSUMPTION 

CHAPTER 3 

FORECAST OF FACILITIES REQUIREMENTS 

CHAPTER 4 

ENVIRONMENTAL AND LAND USE INFORMATION 
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CHAPTER 1 

DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING FACILITIES 

EXISTING FACILITIES OVERVIEW 

0 WNERSHIP 

PEF is a wholly owned subsidiary of Progress Energy, Inc. (Progress Energy). Congress enacted 

legislation in 2005 repealing the Public Utilities Holding Company Act of 1935 (PUCHA) 

effective February 8, 2006. Subsequent to that date, Progress Energy is no longer subject to 

regulation by the Securities and Exchange Commission as a public utility holding company. 

Progress Energy is the parent company of PEF and certain other subsidiaries. 

AREA OF SERVICE 

PEF provided electric service during 2006 to an average of 1.6 million customers in Florida. Its 

service area covers approximately 20,000 square miles and includes the densely populated areas 

around Orlando, as well as the cities of St. Petersburg and Cleanvater. PEF is interconnected 

with 22 municipal and 9 rural electric cooperative systems. PEF is subject to the rules and 

regulations of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) and the FPSC. PEF’s Service 

Area is shown in Figure 1.1. 

TRANSMISSIONDISTRIBUTION 

The Company is part of a nationwide interconnected power network that enables power to be 

exchanged between utilities. The PEF transmission system includes approximately 5,000 circuit 

miles of transmission lines. The distribution system includes approximately 18,000 circuit miles 

of overhead distribution conductors and approximately 13,000 miles of underground cable. A 

map of the Electric System can be found in Figure 1.2. 

ENERGY MANAGEMENT and ENERGY EFFICIENCY 

PEF customers participating in the company’s residential Energy Management program help to 

manage future growth and costs. Approximately 3 89,000 customers participated in the Energy 

Management program at the end of 2006, contributing about 755,000 kW of winter peak-shaving 

capacity for use during high load periods. 
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PEF’s DSM Plan currently consists of seven residential programs, eight commercial and 

industrial programs, and one research and development program. This includes the 39 additional 

DSM measures and 2 new residential programs approved by the FPSC on January 5 ,  2007. 

(Docket 060647: Consummating Order PSC-07-0017-CO-EG making Order PSC-06010 18- 

TRG-EG effective and final). Megawatt contributions to the TYSP have increased as a result of 

these changes to conservation, standby, and residential load management programs. 

TOTAL CAPACITY RESOURCE 

As of December 31, 2,006, PEF had total summer capacity resources of approximately 10,752 

MW consisting of installed capacity of 8,844 MW (excluding Crystal River 3 joint ownership) 

and 1,908 MW of firm purchased power. Additional information on PEF’s existing generating 

resources is shown on Schedule 1 and Table 3.1. 
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FIGURE 1.1 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

Service Area Map 



1-4 

FIGURE 1.2 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

Electric System Map 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORlDA 

SCHEDLEE I 
EXISTING GENERATING FACILITIES 

AS OF DECEMBER31.2006 

ruamAME 
€TEAM 

ANCLOTE 
ANCLOTE 
BARTOW 
BARTOW 
BARTON' 
CRYSTALRIVER 
CRYSTAL RIVER 
CRYSTAL RIVER 
CRYSTAL RIVER 
CRYSTAL RIVER 
SUWANME RIVER 
SLWANNEE RIVER 
SUWANUEE RNER 

"IT 
m 

I 
2 
I 
2 
3 
1 

2 
3 .  
4 
5 
I 
1 
3 

LOCATION 
GQ!am 

PASCO 
PASCO 

PINELLAS 
PINELLAS 
PINELLAS 

CITRUS 
CITRUS 
cmus 
cmus 
cmus 

SWANNEE 
SWANNEE 
SLWANNEE 

ST 
ST 
ST 
ST 
ST 
ST 
ST 
ST 
ST 
ST 
ST 
ST 
ST 

WO NG 
RFO NG 
RFO 
RFO 
RFO NG 
BIT 
BIT 

NUC 
BIT 
BIT 
RFO NO 
RFO NG 
RFO NG 

ALT.NEL 
EEL BLZoAvsusE 

PL PL 
PL PL 

WA 
WA 
WA PL 
RR WA 
RR WA 
TK 
WA RR 
WA RR 

TlCaR PL 
ryJRR PL 
TKiRR PL 

HINES EhTRGY COMPLEX I POLK CC NG DFO PL TK 2'** 
WINES ENERGY COMPLEX 2 POLK CC NO DFO PL TK 
H N E S  ENERGY COMPLEX 3 POLK CC NG DFO PL TK 
TIGER BAY 1 POLK CC NO PL - 
AVON PARK 
AVON PARK 
BARTOW 
BARTOW 
BARTOW 
BAYBORO 
DEBARY 
DEBARY 
DEBARY 
HIGGINS 
HIGGINS 
MTERCESSION CITY 
INTERCESSION C I N  
INTERCESSION CITY 
INTERCESSION C I l Y  
RIO PINAR 
SUWAAWE R I M R  
SUWANNEE RIVER 
N R N E R  
TURNER 
N R N E R  
W. OF FLA 

PI 
P2 

PI .P3 
P2 
P4 

PI-P4 
PI.P6 
P7.P9 
PI0 

PI.P2 
P3.P4 
PI.P6 
P7.PlO 
PI1 *' 
P12.PI4 

PI 
PI.P3 

P2 
PI.P2 

P1 
P4 
PI 

HIGHLA\IDS 
HlGHL4NDS 

PWELLAS 
PINELLAS 
PINELLAS 
PINELLAS 
VOLUSM 
VOLUSU 
VOLUSLA 
PINELLAS 
PINELLAS 
OSCEOLA 
OSCEOLA 
OSCEOLA 
OSCEOLA 
ORANGE 

SUWAiWEE 
SWANNEE 

VOLUSU 
VOLUSLA 
VOLUSLA 

ALACKUA 

GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 
GT 

NG 
DFO 
DFO 
NG 
NG 

DFO 
DFO 
NG 

DFO 
NG 
NO 

DFO 
NG 
DFO 
NO 
DFO 
NG 

DFO 
DFO 
DFO 
DFO 
NG 

DFO 

DFO 
DFO 

DFO 

DFO 
DE0 

DFO 

DFO 

DFO 

PL TK 
TK 
WA 
PL WA 
PL WA 

WA 
TK 
PL TK 
TK 
PL TK 
PL TK 

PL,TK 
PL PhTK 

PL,TK 
PL PLTK 
TK 
PL TK 
TK 
TK 
TK 
TK 
PL 

j..' 

8 
8 

8 

i 

5 

5 

9...* 

(IO) 
COM'L IN. 
SERVICE 

kQaE's 

10174 
10178 
09158 
08161 
07/63 
10166 
11/69 
03177 
I2182 
10184 
11/53 
11/54 
I 015 6 

04199 
12103 
11/05 
08197 

12/68 
12168 

05~72.06/72 
Ob172 
06/72 
04173 

12175.04/76 
10192 
10192 

03169, 04169 
121'70, O l n l  

05/74 
10193 
01/97 
12100 
I1170 

IO/%O, 11/80 
lo180 
10170 
08174 
08174 
01/94 

0 1 )  (12) (13) (14) 
EXPECTED GEN MAX. 

RETREMENT NAMEPLATE SLRvlMER W T E R  
MaxEB w m M E  

556,200 498 522 
556,200 507 526 

I21 I25 127,500 
119 124 127,500 

239,360 204 215 
440.550 379 386 
523,800 491 496 
890.460 769 788 
739,260 722 734 
739,260 721 734 
34,500 30 33 
37,500 31 31 
75.000 Bp 82 

4,612 4,796 

546,500 463 528 
548.250 490 562 
561,000 503 570 
278,100 tpi 225 

1,659 1,885 

33,790 25 34 
33,790 25 36 
111,400 86 112 
55,700 44 56 
55,700 46 58 
226,800 177 232 
401,220 311 393 
345,000 249 287 
115,000 83 99 
67,580 53 68 
85,850 57 65 
340,200 282 369 
460,000 332 376 

143 161 165,000 
345.000 235 178 
19,290 13 16 

106 133 122.400 
6 I *204 51 66 
38.580 21 32 
71,200 64 85 
7 1,200 64 84 
43,000 u 47 

2,513 3,087 

TOTAL RESOURCES WVJ 8,844 9.168 
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CHAPTER 2 

FORECAST OF ELECTFUC POWER DEMAND 

AND 
ENERGY CONSUMPTION 

OVERVIEW 

The following Schedules 2, 3 and 4 represent PEF’s history and forecast of customers, energy 

sales (GWh), and peak demand (MW). High and low scenarios are also presented for sensitivity 

purposes. 

The base case was developed using assumptions to predict a forecast with a 5060 probability, or 

most likely scenario. The high and low scenarios, which have a 90/10 probability of occurrence 

or an 80 percent probability of an outcome falling between the high and low cases, employed a 

Monte Carlo simulation procedure that studied 1,000 possible outcomes of retail demand and 

energy. 

PEF’s customer growth is expected to average 1.8 percent between 2007 and 2016, less than the 

ten-year historical average of 2.4 percent. The ten-year historical growth rate falls to 2.1 percent 

when accounting for the creation of PEF’s Seasonal Service Rate tariff, which artificially inflates 

customer growth figures. Slower population growth - based on the latest projection from the 

University of Florida’s Bureau of Economic and Business Research - and economic conditions 

less favorable for the housinglconstruction industry (including, for example, higher interest rates, 

property insurance and property taxes) result in a lower base case customer projection when 

compared to the higher historical growth rate. This translates into lower projected energy and 

demand growth rates from historic rate levels. 

Net energy for load (NEL), which had grown at an average of 3.2 percent between 1997 and 

2006, is expected to increase by 2.6 percent per year from 2007-2016 in the base case, 2.7 

percent in the high case and 2.2 percent in the low case. A lower contribution from the 

wholesale jurisdiction, which grew an average of 10.2 percent between 1997 and 2006, results in 

lower expected system growth going forward than the historic rate. Retail NEL, which grew at a 
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2.8 percent average rate historically, is expected to grow 2.5 percent over the next ten years. 

Wholesale NEL is expected to average 2.9 percent between 2007 and 2016. 

Summer net firm demand is expected to grow an average of 2.1 percent per year during the next 

ten years. This compares to the 3.6 percent growth rate experienced throughout the last ten 

years. Again, lower contribution from the wholesale jurisdiction is expected going forward and a 

higher load management capability for the projected period. High and low summer growth rates 

for net firm demand are 2.3 percent and 1.8 percent per year, respectively. Winter net firm 

demand is projected to grow at 2.5 percent per year after having increased by 2.9 percent per 

year from 1997 to 2006. High and low winter net firm demand growth rates are 2.7 percent and 

2.2 percent, respectively. 

Summer net firm retail demand is expected to grow an average of 2.1 percent per year during the 

next ten years; this compares to the 3.6 percent average annual growth rate experienced 

throughout the last ten years. The historical growth percentage is driven by a period of declining 

load management capability while the projection period has a return to higher capability. High 

and low summer growth rates for net firm retail demand are 2.4 percent and 1.8 percent per year, 

respectively. Winter net firm retail demand is projected to grow at approximately 1.9 percent per 

year after having grown by 3.1 percent from 1997 to 2006. Again, higher load control capability 

is incorporated in the projection period. High and low winter net firm retail demand growth rates 

are 2.2 percent and 1.6 percent, respectively. 
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ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND DEMAND FORECAST SCHEDULES 

SCHEDULE 

2.1,2.2 and 2.3 

3.1.1, 3.1.2 and 3.1.3 

3.2.1, 3.2.2 and 3.2.3 

3.3.1, 3.3.2 and 3.3.3 

4 

DESCRIPTION 

History and Forecast of Energy Consumption and Number of 

Customers by Customer Class 

History and Forecast of Base, High and Low Summer Peak 

Demand (MW) 

History and Forecast of Base, High, and Low Winter Peak 

Demand (MW) 

History and Forecast of Base, High and Low Annual Net Energy 

for Load (GWh) 

Previous Year Actual and Two-Year Forecast of Peak Demand and 

Net Energy for Load by Month 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

YEAR 

1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
200 I 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

SCHEDULE 2.1 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ENERGY CONSUMPTION k?'D 

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS BY CUSTOMER CLASS 

RURAL AND RESIDENTML COMMERCIAL 
__________________________.___I_________--~-----------~-.----~--.--~----------------------------~~-~------. 

AVERAGE AVERAGE KWh AVERAGE AVERAGE KWh 
PEF MEMBERS PER NO. OF CONSUMPTION NO. OF CONSUMPTION 

POPULATION HOUSEHOLD GWh CUSTOMERS PER CUSTOMER GWh CUSTOMERS PER CUSTOMER 

2,878,315 
2,941,589 
3,028,821 
3,026,469 
3,122,946 
3,191,3 15 
3,267, I85 
3,348,917 
3,429,664 
3,512,066 

3,565,718 
3,629,609 
3,694,808 
3,762,611 
3,828,922 
3,895,566 
3,959,232 
4,025,804 
4,09 1,505 
4,155,712 

2.480 
2.487 
2.496 
2.452 
2.450 
2.452 
2.453 
2.454 
2.455 
2.453 

2.455 
2.450 
2.447 
2.446 
2.444 
2.442 
2.438 
2.436 
2.434 
2.432 

15,080 
16,526 
16,245 
17,116 
17,604 
18,754 
19,429 
19,347 
19,894 
20,021 

20,891 
21,457 
22,026 
22,605 
23,192 
23,792 
24,404 
25,027 
25,693 
26,363 

l,l60,611 
1,182,786 
1,2 13,470 
1,234,286 
1,274,672 
1,301,5 15 

1,331,914 
1,364,677 
1,397,012 
1,43 1,743 

I ,452,43 1 

1,48 1,473 
1,509,934 
1,538,271 
1,566,662 
1,595,236 
1,623,967 
1,652,629 
1,680,980 
1,708,763 

12,993 
13,972 
13,387 
13,867 
13,811 
14,409 
14,587 
14,177 
14,240 
13,984 

14,383 
14,484 
14,587 
14,695 
14,803 
14,914 
15,027 
15,144 
15,285 
15,428 

9,257 
9,999 

10,327 
10,813 
11,061 
I 1,420 
11,553 
11,734 
1 1,945 
1 1,975 

12,340 
12,674 
13,009 
13,361 
13,708 
14,056 
14,417 
14,796 
15,202 
15,622 

132,504 
136,345 
140,897 
143,475 
146,983 
150,577 
154,294 
158,780 
161,001 
162,774 

167,150 
170,889 
174,552 
178,195 
I8 1,846 
185,520 
189,213 
192,896 
196,539 
200,111 

69,862 
73,336 
73,295 
75,365 
75,254 
75,842 
74,877 
73,901 
74,192 
73,568 

73,826 
74, I65 
74,528 
74,980 
75,382 
75,765 
76,195 
76,705 
77,349 
78,067 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

YEAR 

1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
200 1 

2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

4,188 
4,375 
4,334 
4,249 
3,872 
3,835 
4,001 
4,069 
4,140 
4,160 

4,155 
4,393 

4,451 
4,518 
4,544 
4,571 
4,599 
4,587 
4,587 

4,423 

SCHEDULE 2.2 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND 

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS BY CUSTOMER CLASS 

2,830 
2,707 
2,629 
2,535 
2,55 1 
2,535 
2,643 
2,733 
2,703 
2,697 

2,701 
2,701 
2,701 
2,701 
2,701 
2,701 
2,701 
2,70 1 
2,701 
2,701 

1,479,859 
1,616,180 
1,648,536 
1,676,134 
1,s 17,836 
1,5 12,821 
1,513,810 
1,488,840 
1,531,632 
1,542,455 

1,538,3 19 
1,626,435 
1,637,542 
1,647,908 
1,672,714 
1,682,340 
1,692,336 
1,702,703 
1,698,260 
1,698,260 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

27 
27 
27 
28 
28 
28 
29 
28 
27 
27 

28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 
28 

2,299 
2,459 
2,509 
2,626 
2,698 
2,822 
2,946 
3,016 
3,171 
3,249 

3,353 
3,457 
3,570 
3,682 
3,798 
3,916 
4,038 
4,164 
4,293 
4,421 

30,85 1 
33,386 
33,442 
34,832 
35,263 
36,859 
37,958 
38,194 
39,177 
39,432 

40,767 
42,009 
43,056 
44,127 
45,244 
46,336 
47,458 
48,614 
49,803 
5 1,027 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SALES FOR 
RESALE 

YEAR GWh 

1997 

1998 

1999 

2000 

200 1 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

201 1 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

1,758 

2,340 

3,267 

3,732 

3,839 

3,173 

3,359 

4,301 

5,195 

4,220 

4,524 

4,501 

4,527 

5,238 

5,363 

5,437 

5,542 

5,673 

5,795 

5,873 

SCKEDULE 2.3 

HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND 
NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS BY CUSTOMER CLASS 

(3) 

UTILITY USE 
&LOSSES 

GWh 
_________________- 

1,996 

2,037 

2,45 1 

2,678 

1,831 

2,535 

2,594 

2,773 

2,506 

2,389 

2,905 

2,958 

3,026 

3,151 

3,169 

3,244 

3,321 

3,445 

3,476 

3,560 

(4) 

NET ENERGY 
FOR LOAD 

GWh 
_---_---------____ 

34,605 

37,763 

39,160 

4 1,242 

40,933 

42,567 

43,911 

45,268 

46,818 

46,041 

48,194 

49,468 

50,609 

52,516 

53,776 

55,017 

56,321 

57,132 

59,074 

60,460 

OTHER 
CUSTOMERS 

(AVERAGE NO.) 

TOTAL 
NO. OF 

CUSTOMERS 

18,562 

19,013 

19,601 

20,003 

20,752 

21,156 

21,665 

22,437 

22,701 

23,182 

23,687 

24,280 

24,877 

25,474 

26,071 

26,669 

27,266 

27,864 

28,460 

29,058 

1,314,507 

1,340,851 

1,376,597 

1,400,299 

1,444,958 

1,475,783 

1,5 10,5 16 

1,548,627 

1,583,417 

1,620,396 

1,645,969 

1,679,343 

1,712,064 

1,744,641 

1,777,280 

1,810,126 

1,843,147 

1,876,090 

1,908,680 

1,940,633 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3.1.1 
HISTORY AI'D FORECAST OF SUMMER PEAK DEMAND (MW) 

BASE CASE 

OTHER COMM. / WD. RESIDENTIAL 
LOAD RESIDENTIAL LOAD COMM. / IND. DEMAND NET FIRM 

YEAR TOTAL WHOLESALE RETAIL LNTERRUPTBLE MANAGEMENT CONSERVATION MANAOEMENT CONSERVATION REDUCTIONS DEMAND 
~ ..._._ ~ .._ .... ~ ~ _._ _... ..._ .. I...... - ..... - ....._.. _ _  _.........._........ .....- ~ ~ .___ 

1997 7,786 
1998 8.367 
I999 9,039 
2000 8,902 
2001 8,832 
2002 9,412 
2003 8,877 
2004 9,578 

2006 10,186 
2005 10,345 

2007 10,658 
2008 10.927 
2M19 11,010 
2010 11.318 
2011 11,569 
2012 11,807 
2013 12,062 
2014 12,437 
2015 12,671 
2016 12,906 

8 74 
943 
1,326 
1,319 
1,117 
1,203 
887 
1,071 
1,118 
1,257 

1.321 
1,337 
1,192 
1,269 
1.287 
1.296 
1,320 
1,469 
1.483 
1.499 

6,912 
7,424 
7,713 
7.583 
7,715 
8,209 
7.590 
8,507 
9,221 
8,929 

9,337 
9,590 
9,818 
10,049 
10,282 
10,511 
10,742 
10,968 
11,188 
I 1,407 

288 
29 1 

292 
277 
283 
305 
3 00 
53 1 

448 
329 

449 
473 
474 
479 
484 
485 
486 
483 
478 
477 

555 
438 
so5 
455 
414 
390 
393 
355 
343 
319 

319 
332 
35 I 
312 
393 
414 
421 
438 
441 
441 

78 
97 
I I3 
I27 
139 
I53 
I72 
188 
206 
226 

243 
259 
275 
292 
308 
325 
342 
360 
367 
367 

CI 

42 
45 
48 
48 
43 
44 
39 
38 
37 

43 
52 
61 
70 
80 
89 
98 
I07 
I10 
I10 

I24 
I34 
145 
146 
147 
I50 
154 
155 
158 
161 

168 
I77 
185 
194 
203 
211 
220 
229 
232 
232 

Hlrtarlcal Values (1997 - 2006): 
Col. (2) - recorded peak t implemented load conhol +residential and CommcrciaUindustrial c.a"vaticm and customcr-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Cols. (5) - (9) = Represent total cumulahvc capabilities at peak Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation. 
Col. (Om) -Customcr-o.rmed self-sewice cogeneration. 
Col. (IO) - (2). (5). (6) ~ (7). (8) - (9) - (OTH). 
ProJected Valuer (2007 - 3016): 
Colr. (2). (4) - forewted peak without load wntol, consepa!ion, and customer-ouncd self-service cogeneration. 
Cob. (5) - (9) =cumulative comerValion and load cnnuol capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation. 
Col. (OTH) = customer-owed self-service cogmeration. 
C0l.(lO)=(2).(5)-(6).(7)-(8)-(9)-(OTH). 

170 
182 
183 
75 
75 
75 
75 
I IO 
110 
I IO 

I IO 
I IO 
I IO 
110 
110 

110 

110 
110 

110 
110 

6,531 
7,183 
7,756 
1.714 
7,726 
8,296 
7,738 
8,200 
9,041 
9,003 

9,327 
9525 
9,553 
9,801 
9,992 
10,173 
10,379 
10,711 
10,932 
11,169 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3.1.2 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF SUMMER PEAK DEMAND (MW) 

HIGH LOAD FORECAST 

OTHER COMM. / Ih'D. RESIDENTIAL 
LOAD RESIDENTW LOAD COMM. / IND. DEMAND NET F[RM 

YEAR TOTAL WHOLESALE RETAIL INTERRUPTIBLE MANAGEMENT CONSERVATION MANAGEMENT CONSERVATION REDUCTIONS DEMAND 
__.___ ___. .._. ~ ._I_.__ - .... .._ ~ ...._.. ~ .... I.. .-.- ...... ...... --... .... -- ............ .-_...-.-.-__ ....._ 

1997 7,786 
1998 8,367 
1999 9,039 
2000 8,902 
2001 8,832 
2002 9.412 
2003 8,877 
2004 9,578 
2005 10,345 
2006 10,186 

2007 10,801 
2008 11,086 
2009 11,185 
2010 11,513 
2011 11,814 
2012 12,067 
2013 12,369 
2014 12,773 
2015 13.065 
2016 13.338 

874 
943 
1,326 
1,319 
1,117 
1,203 
887 
1,071 
1,118 
1,257 

1,321 
1,337 
1.192 
1,269 
1,287 
1.296 
1,320 
1,469 
1,483 
1,499 

6,912 
7,424 
7.713 
7,583 
7.715 
8,209 
7,990 
8,507 
9.227 
8.929 

9,480 
9,748 
9,993 
10,244 
10,527 
10,771 
11,049 
I 1,304 
11,582 
11.839 

288 
291 
292 
277 
283 
305 
300 
531 
448 
329 

449 
473 
474 
479 
484 
485 
486 
483 
478 
477 

555 
438 
505 
455 
414 
390 
393 
355 
343 
319 

319 
332 
351 
372 
393 
414 
427 
438 
441 
441 

78 
97 
I I3 
127 
139 
153 
I72 
188 
206 
226 

243 
259 
275 
292 
308 
325 
342 
360 
367 
367 

41 
42 
45 
48 
48 
43 
44 
39 
38 
37 

43 
52 
61 
70 
80 
89 
98 
I 07 

110 

110 

I24 
I34 
145 
146 

147 
150 

154 
I55 
158 
161 

168 
177 
185 
194 
203 
21 I 
220 
229 
232 
232 

Hlstorical V d u a  (1997 - 2006): 
Col. (2) - rewrded peak t implemented load contlnl+ raldential and CommcrciaVindustrial conservation and customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Cols. (5) - (9) = Represent total cumulative capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby g e n e d o n .  
Col. (om) =Customer-owed self-service cogeneration. 
Col. (IO) - (2). ( 5 ) .  (6) - (7) - (8) - (9). (OTH). 
Projected Vnluer (2007 - 2016): 
Cols. (2) - (4) = forecasted peak wthout load conuol, comervation, and customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Cols. (5) - (9) = cumulative conservation and load eanml capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation. 
Col. (Om) - customer-owed self-service cogeneration. 
Col. (10) = (2). ( 5 ) .  (6) - (7). (8). (9). (OTH). 

170 
182 
183 
75 
75 
75 
75 
110 

110 
110 

1 I O  

110 

I IO 
I IO 
110 

110 
110 

110 
I I O  

I IO 

6,531 
7,183 
7.756 
7,774 
7,726 
8.296 
7.738 
8.204 
9.041 
9,003 

9,470 
9,683 
9,728 
9,996 
10,237 
10,433 
10,686 
1 1,047 
I I .327 
11,601 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3.1.3 
HlSTORY AVD FORECAST OF SUMMER PEAK DEMAh'D ( M W )  

LOW LOAD FOECAST 

RES ID ENTIA L COMM. / MD. OTHER 
LOAD E S D E N T l A L  LOAD COMM./ND.  DEMAND NETFIRM 

YEAR TOTAL WHOLESALE RETAIL INTERRUPTISLE MANAGEMENT CONSERVATION MANAGEMENT CONSERVATION REDUCTIONS DEMAND _ _ _ _ _  ..... ...........I.._____ ...___ ~ .____.__ ......._....... _..__ .___ ._....... ~ ....___... -.. .................... - 

1997 7,786 
1998 8,367 
1999 9,039 
2000 8,902 
2001 8,832 
2002 9,412 
2003 8,877 
2004 9.578 
2005 10,345 
2006 10,186 

2007 10,524 
2008 10,776 
2009 10,849 
2010 11,122 
2011 11,350 
2012 11.548 
2013 11.778 
2014 12.106 
2015 12.305 
2016 12,513 

874 
943 

1,326 
1,319 
1,117 
1,203 
887 

1,071 
1,118 
1,257 

1,321 
1,337 
1,192 
1,269 
1,287 
1,296 
1,320 
1,469 
1,483 
1,499 

6,912 
7,424 
7,713 
7,583 
7,715 
8,209 
7,990 
8,507 
9,227 
8,929 

9,203 
9.438 
9,657 
9,853 
10.063 
10.252 
10,458 
10,637 
10,822 
11,014 

288 
29 
292 
271 
283 
305 
300 
53 I 
4 4 8  
329 

449 
473 
474 
479 
484 
485 
486 
483 
478 
477 

555 

43 8 
505 
455 
414 
390 
393 
355 
343 
319 

319 
332 
351 
372 
393 
414 
427 
438 
441 
441 

78 
97 

I I3 
127 
I39 
153 
172 
188 
206 
226 

243 
259 
275 
292 
308 
325 
342 
360 
367 
367 

41 
42 
45 
43 
48 
43 
44 
39 
38 
37 

43 
52 
61 
70 
80 
89 
98 
107 
I I O  
I10 

I14 
I34 
145 
I46 
147 
I50 
I54 
155 
158 
161 

168 
177 
I85 
I94 
203 
211 
220 
229 
232 
232 

Historical Valuea (1997 - 2006): 
Col. (2) = recorded peak + implemented load conkol+ residential and commerciaVindustrial consewation and customcr-owed self-scrricc cogeneration. 
Cols. ( 5 ) .  (9) = Represent total cumulative capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation. 
Col. (OM)  =Cunomcr-ouned self-service cogeneration. 
Col. (IO) = (2) - ( 5 )  . (6) - (7). (8). (9). (OTH). 
Projected Values (2007 - 2016): 

Cols. (2) - (4) = forecasted peak without load control. consewation, and customer-owed self-scr.'icz cogeneration. 
Cols. ( 5 ) .  (9) = cumulative consewation and load wnhol capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation. 
Col. (OM) = customer-ouncd self-senice cogeneration. 
Col. (10) = (2). (5) - (6). (7) - (8) - (9). (OTH). 

170 
182 
183 
75 
75 
75 
75 
110 

110 
I IO 

110 
110 
110 
110 
110 
110 

110 
I IO 
1 IO 
110 

6,531 
7.183 
7,756 
7,774 
7.726 
8,296 
7,738 
8,200 
9,041 
9,003 

9,193 
9,373 
9,392 
9,605 
9.773 
9,914 
10.095 
10,380 
10,567 
10,776 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3.2.1 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF WINTER PEAK DEMAND (MW 

BASE CASE 

RESIDENTIAL COMM. 1 NO. OTHER 
LOAD RESDENTLAL LOAD COMM. / MD. DEMAND NETFIRM 

YEAR TOTAL WHOLESALE RETAIL INTERRUPTIBLE MANAOEMENT CONSERVATION MANAGEMENT CONSERVATIOX REDUCTIONS DEMAND 
_..._.....-.. .........._........ ~_I___^.__...._._. ....._...... _._ ._...._.._I -- -- _ _ _  

I996197 8,486 
1997198 7,752 
1998199 10,473 
1999100 10,033 
2000101 11,443 
2001102 10,669 
2002i03 11,548 
2003104 9,317 
2004105 10,824 
2005106 10.736 

2006107 1 1,728 
2007108 12,132 
2008/09 12,302 
2009110 12,817 
2010111 13,126 
2011112 13,516 
201Y13 13.885 
2013114 14,197 
2014115 14,513 
201916 14,827 
2016117 15,139 

1,235 
94 1 

1,741 
1,728 
1,984 
1,624 
1,538 
1,167 
1,600 
1,467 

1,711 
1,789 
1,727 
2,012 
2,082 
2,241 
2,377 
2,456 
2,548 
2,639 
2.729 

7,251 
6,811 
8,732 
8,305 
9,459 
9,045 
10,010 
8,150 
9224 
9,269 

10,017 
10,343 
10,575 
10,805 
11,044 

11,275 
11,508 

11,741 
11,965 
12.187 
12,410 

i90 
318 
305 
225 
25s 
285 
271 
498 
575 
298 

366 
452 
453 
454 
464 
465 
466 
467 
46 I 
456 
457 

917 
663 
874 
849 
826 
819 
793 
786 
777 
769 

760 
777 
793 
811 
829 
846 
864 
882 
899 
899 
899 

133 
164 
196 
229 
154 
278 
313 
343 
371 
413 

454 
495 
538 
580 
613 
666 
710 
754 
798 
798 
798 

16 

17 
I8 
20 
23 
24 
27 
26 
26 
26 

21 

37 
47 
57 
67 
76 
86 
96 
105 
105 
IO5 

98 

I06 
110 

I I2 
113 
1 I4 
117 
1 I7 
1 I7 
118 

I20 
I26 
133 
139 
146 
152 
158 
165 
171 

171 
171 

Historical Valuer (1997 - ZOOa): 

Col. (2) =recorded pcak + implcmcrmd load conuol 7 rcridential and comerciaUindutdal conservation and customer-w” self.semicc cogeneration. 
Cols. (5) - (9) = Represent total cumulative capabilities at pcak. Col. (8) includes c@mmerciai load managcmcnt and standby generation. 
Col. (OTH) = Voltage reduction and cutomer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Col. ( IO) - (2). (5). (6). (7). (8) ~ (9) . (OTW. 
Projected Valuer (2007 - 2016): 
Cois. (2) - (4) forccasted peak without load control and conservation. 
Cols. (5). (9) = Represent cumulative conservation and load control capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generatton 
Coi. (OTH) - Voltage reduction and customer.omcd relf.ren.ice cogeneration. 
Col.(10)~(2)-(5)-(6)-(7)-(8).(9)-(OTW). 

i90 
168 
187 
182 
187 
188 
198 
261 
282 
281 

296 
302 
305 
309 
313 
316 
320 
324 
327 
332 
336 

6.842 
6.317 
8,783 
8,416 
9,785 
8,960 
9,828 
7,287 
8,676 
6,830 

9.705 
9,943 
10,034 
10,468 
10,685 
10,994 
11,280 
11,509 
11,751 
12,064 
12.372 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE3.2.2 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF WINTER PEAK DEMAP;D (MW) 

HIGH LOAD FORECAST 

RESIDENTIAL COhiM i N D .  OTHER 
LOAD RESiDENTlAL LOAD COMM. 1 N D .  DEMAND NET FIRM 

YEAR TOTAL WHOLESALE RETAIL INTERRUPTIBLE MANAGEMENT CONSERVATION MANAGEMENT CONSERVATION REDUCTIONS DEMAND 
-.I.-.._- ..._ .... ........................................................ 

1996197 8.486 
1997198 7,752 
1998199 10,473 
I999100 10,033 
2000101 11,443 
2001102 10,669 
2002.103 11,548 
20031W 9,317 
2004105 10,824 
20051% 10,736 

2006107 11,880 
2007108 12,300 
20081W 12,487 
20WilO 13,022 
2010111 13,383 
2011112 13,788 
201U13 14,207 
2013/14 14,548 
2014115 14,923 
2015116 15,275 
2016117 15,643 

1,235 
94 I 

I ,74 I 
1,728 
1,984 
1,624 
1.538 
1,167 
1,600 
1.467 

1,711 
1,789 
1,727 
2,012 
2,082 
2,241 
2,377 
2,456 
2,548 
2,639 
2,729 

7,251 
6,81 I 
8,732 
8,305 
9,459 
9,045 
10,010 

8.150 
9,224 
9,269 

10,169 
10,510 
10,761 
11,010 
I 1,302 
11,548 
11,831 
12,092 
12.376 
12,636 
12,915 

290 
318 
305 
225 
255 
285 
271 
498 
575 
298 

366 
452 
453 
454 
464 
465 
466 
467 
46 I 
456 
457 

917 
663 
814 
849 
826 
819 
793 
786 
777 
169 

760 
777 
793 
811 
829 
846 
864 
882 
899 
899 
899 

133 
164 

I96 
229 
254 
278 
313 
343 
371 
413 

454 
49s 
538 
580 
623 
666 
710 
754 
798 
798 
798 

16 
17 
18 
20 
23 
24 
21 
26 
26 
26 

27 
37 
47 
57 
67 
76 
86 
96 
105 
I05 
105 

98 
IO6 
110 

112 
113 
1 I4 
I I7 
117 
117 
118 

I20 
126 
133 
139 
I46 
152 
158 
165 
171 
171 
171 

Hlstorlcal Values (1997 - 2006): 
GI. (2) =recorded peak + implemented load conuol +residential and commercial/indua~al conservation and cwtomer-owned self-service cogenent>on. 
GIs. (5) . (9) - Represent total cumulative capabilities at peak. Cal. (8) includes commercial load management and alandhy generation. 
&I. (OTH) - Voltage reduchon and customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Col. (IO) - (2) - (5) - (6) ~ (7) - (8) - (9). (OTM. 
Projected Valuer (2007 - 2016): 

Cols. (2) . (4) forecsrted peak without load contml and conservation. 
CoIs. (5) - (9) = Represent cumulative consemation and load conuol capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation. 
Col. (OTH) = Voltage reduction and customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Col.(10)=(2)-(5)-(6)-(7)-(8)-(9)-(OTM. 

i90 
168 
187 
182 
187 
188 
198 
261 
282 
281 

296 
302 
305 
309 
313 
316 
320 
324 
327 
332 
336 

6,842 
6.3 I7 
8,783 
8,416 
9.785 
8.960 
9,828 
7,287 
8,676 
8,830 

9,857 
30.111 
10.219 
10,672 
10,943 
11,266 
11,603 
11,860 
12,161 
12,513 
12,876 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3.2.3 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF WNTER PEAK DEMAND (MW 

LOW LOAD FORECAST 

(1) (2) (3) (4) ( 5 )  (6) (7) (8) (9) (OTM (10) 

RESIDENTL4L COMM. / "D. OTHER 
LOAD RESIDENTIAL LOAD COMM. / INb. DEh4ANI NET FIRM 

YEAR TOTAL WHOLESALE RETAIL INTERRUPTIBLE MANAGEMENT CONSERVATION MA..ACEMENT CONSERVATION UDUCTIONS DEMAND 
~ ~ ~ .- ........-...---. ~ 

1996197 8,486 
1997198 7,752 
1998199 10,473 
1999100 10,033 
200010I 11.443 
2001102 10,669 
2002/03 11,548 
2003104 9,317 
2004105 10,824 
2005106 10,736 

2006107 11,586 
2007108 11,971 
2008/09 12,132 
2009110 12,609 
2010/11 12,894 
2011112 13,244 
2012113 13,588 
2013114 13,853 
2014/15 14,134 
2015/16 14,418 
2016117 14,687 

1,235 
94 I 
1,741 
1,728 
1,984 
1,624 
1.538 
1,167 
1,600 
1,467 

1,711 
1,789 
1,727 
2.012 
2,082 
2,241 
2,377 
2,456 
2,548 
2,639 
2,729 

7,251 
6,81 I 
8,732 
8,305 
9,459 
9.045 
10.010 

8,150 
9,224 
9,269 

9,875 
10,181 
10,406 
10,597 
10.813 
11,004 
11,212 
11,397 
11,587 
I 1,779 
I 1,959 

290 
318 
305 
225 
255 
285 
271 
498 
575 
298 

366 
452 
453 
454 
464 
465 
466 
467 
461 
456 
457 

917 
6-53 
874 
849 
826 
819 
793 
786 
777 
769 

760 
777 
793 
811 
829 
856 
864 
882 
899 
899 
899 

I33 
I64 
196 
219 
254 
278 
313 
343 
37 I 
413 

454 
495 
538 
580 
613 
666 
710 
754 
798 
798 
798 

16 
17 
18 
20 
23 
24 
27 
26 
26 
26 

27 
37 
47 
57 
67 
76 
86 
96 
IO5 
105 
105 

98 
106 
I10 
112 
113 
114 
117 
117 
1 I7 
118 

120 
126 
133 
139 
146 
152 
158 
I65 
171 
171 
171 

Bistorlcal Values (1997 - 2006): 
Col. (2) - recorded peak - implemented load control +residential and commerciaUindusrrial conservation and cwtomer-owncd self-service cogeneration. 
Cels. (5) - (9) -Represent total cumulative capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation. 
Col. (OTH) - Voltage reduction and cmtomer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Col . (10)=(2) - (5) - (6) - (7) - (8) - (9) - (OT~.  
Projected Valuer (2W7 - 2016): 
Coli. (2). (4) forecasted peak without load control and conservation. 
Cols. ( 5 ) .  (9) =Represent cumulative conservation and load conhol capabilities at peak. Col. (8) includes commercial load management and standby generation, 
Col. (OW) = Voltage reduction and customer-owned self-service cogeneration. 
Col. (IO) = (2). (5) ~ (6) . (7) - (8) - (9) - (OTW. 

190 
168 
187 
182 
187 
188 
198 
261 
282 
281 

296 
302 
305 
309 
313 
316 
320 
324 
327 
332 
336 

6,842 
6,317 
8,783 
8,416 
9.785 
8,960 
9,828 
7,287 
8,676 
8,830 

9,563 
9.782 
9,864 
10,259 
10,454 
10,722 
10,984 
11,165 
11,372 
11,656 
11,920 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDCZE 3.3.1 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ANNUAL NET ENERGY FOR L0.4D (GWh) 

BASE CASE 

OTHER LOAD 
RESIDENTIAL COMM. / IND. ENERGY UTiLlTY USE NET ENERGY FACTOR 

YEAR TOTAL CONSERVATION CONSERVATION REDUCTIONS* RETAIL WHOLESALE &LOSSES FOR LOAD (%) ** 

1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
200 1 

2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 I 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

35,752 
38,949 
40,375 
42,486 
42,200 
43,860 
45,232 
46,835 
48,479 
47,680 

49,878 
51,201 
52,389 
54,344 
55,652 
56,942 
58,293 
59,152 
6 I ,094 
62,481 

268 
289 
312 
334 
354 
377 
400 
427 
460 
495 

522 
552 
582 
612 
642 
672 
702 
732 
732 
732 

317 
333 
339 
345 
349 
352 
357 
3 60 
363 
365 

383 
40 1 

419 
437 
455 
473 
49 1 

509 
509 
509 

562 
564 
564 
565 
564 
564 
564 
780 
779 
779 

779 
780 

179 
779 
779 
780 
779 
779 
179 
780 

30,850 
33,387 
33,441 
34,832 
35,263 
36,859 
37,957 
38,193 
39,177 
39,432 

40,766 
42,009 
43,055 
44,127 
45,243 
46,331 
47,457 
48,614 
49,802 
5 1,027 

1,758 
2,340 
3,267 
3,732 
3,839 
3,173 
3,359 
4,301 
5,195 
4,220 

4,524 
4,501 
4,527 
5,238 
5,363 
5,437 
5,542 
5,673 
5,195 
5,873 

1,991 
2,036 
2,452 
2,678 
1,831 
2,535 
2,595 
2,714 
2,506 
2,389 

2,904 
2,958 
3,027 
3,151 
3,170 
3,243 
3,322 
3,445 
3,477 
3,560 

34,605 
37,763 
39,160 
41,242 
40,933 
42,567 
43,911 
45,268 
46,878 
46,041 

48,194 
49,468 
50,609 
52,5 16 
53,776 
55,017 
56,321 
57,732 
59,074 
60,460 

* Column (OTH) includes Conservation Energy For Lighting and Public Authority Customers, Customer-Owned Self-service Cogeneration 
and Load Control Programs. 

** Load Factors for historical years are calculated using the actual winter peak demand except the 1998 and 2004 historical load factors 
which are based on the actual summer peak demand. 
Load Factors for future years are calculated using the net firm winter peak demand (Schedule 3.2.1) 

49.0 
53.9 
50.0 
50.5 
47.5 
50.0 
47.7 
56.5 
52.3 
52.1 

56.7 
56.6 
57.6 
57.3 
57.5 
57.0 
57.0 
57.3 
57.4 
57.2 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3.3.2 

HISTORY AND FORECAST OF ANNUAL NET ENERGY FOR LOAD ( O W )  
HIGH LOAD FORECAST 

OTHER LOAD 
RESIDENTIAL COMM. I IND. ENERGY UTILlTY USE NET ENERGY FACTOR 

YEAR TOTAL CONSERVATION CONSERVATION REDUCTIONS* RETAIL WHOLESALE & LOSSES FOR LOAD (%) ** 
_____._____ ______.___ ____.___________________________.__________________ _---.I__-___----- 

1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
200 1 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

35,752 
38,949 
40,375 
42,486 
42,200 
43,860 
45,232 
46,835 
48,479 
41,680 

51,005 
51,987 
53,260 
55,320 
56,877 
58,250 
59,848 
61,459 
63,097 
64,684 

268 
289 
312 
334 
354 
317 
400 
427 
460 
495 

522 
552 
582 
612 
642 
672 
702 
732 
732 
732 

317 
333 
339 
345 
349 
352 
357 
360 
363 
365 

383 
401 
419 
437 
455 
473 
49 I 
509 
509 
509 

5 62 
5 64 
564 
565 
564 
5 64 
5 64 
180 
779 
179 

779 
780 
179 
119 
779 
780 
779 
719 
779 
780 

30,850 
33,387 
33,441 
34,832 
35,263 
36,859 
37,957 
38,193 
39,177 
39,432 

41,429 
42,744 
43,869 
45,032 
46,389 
47,555 
48,911 
50,203 
5 1,675 
53,083 

1,758 
2,340 
3,267 
3,732 
3,839 
3,173 
3,359 
4,301 
5,195 
4,220 

4,524 
4,501 
4,527 
5,238 
5,363 
5,437 
5,542 
5,673 
5,795 
5,873 

1,997 
2,036 
2,452 
2,678 
1,831 
2,535 
2,595 
2,774 
2,506 
2,389 

3,368 
3,009 
3,084 
3,222 
3,249 
3,333 
3,423 
3,563 
3,607 
3,707 

34,605 
31,763 
39,160 
41,242 
40,933 
42,567 
43,911 
45,268 
46,878 
46,041 

49,321 
50,254 
5 1,480 
53,492 
55,001 
56,325 
57,876 
59,439 
61,077 
62,663 

* Column (OTH) includes Conservation Energy For Lighting and Public Authority Customers, Customer-Owned Self-service Cogeneration 
and Load Control Programs. 

* *  Load Factors for historical years arc calculated using the actual winter peak demand except the 1998 and 2004 historical load factors 
which arc based on the actual summer peak demand. 
Load Factors for future years are calculated using the net firm winter peak demand (Schedule 3.2.2) 

49.0 
53.9 
50.0 
50.5 
47.5 
50.0 
41.7 
56.5 
52.3 
52.1 

57.1 
56.6 
57.5 
57.2 
57.4 
56.9 
56.9 
57.2 
57.3 
57.2 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 3.3.3 
HISTORY AND FORECAST OF A W A L  hZT ENERGY FOR LOAD ( G W )  

LOW LOAD FORECAST 

1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

35,752 
38,949 
40,375 
42,486 
42,200 
43,860 
45,232 
46,835 
48,479 
47,680 

49,569 
50,448 
51,583 
53,358 
54,549 
55,637 
56,860 
58,077 
59,234 
60,468 

268 
289 
312 
334 
354 
377 
400 
427 
460 
495 

522 
552 
582 
612 
642 
672 
702 
732 
732 
732 

317 
333 
339 
345 
349 
352 
357 
360 
363 
365 

383 
40 1 

419 
437 
455 
473 
49 1 
509 
509 
509 

562 
564 
564 
565 
564 

564 
564 
780 
779 
779 

779 
780 
179 
179 
779 
780 
719 
779 
179 
I80 

30,850 
33,387 
33,441 
34,832 
35,263 
36,859 
37,957 
38,193 
39,177 
39,432 

40,147 
41,304 
42,306 
43,207 
44,2 16 
45,117 
46,123 
47,049 
48,062 
49,147 

1,758 
2,340 
3,267 
3,732 
3,839 
3,173 
3,359 
4,301 
5,195 
4,220 

4,524 
4,501 
4,527 
5,238 
5,363 
5,437 
5,542 
5,673 
5,795 
5,873 

1,997 
2,036 
2,452 
2,678 
1,831 
2,535 
2,595 
2,774 
2,506 
2,389 

3,214 
2,910 
2,970 
3,085 
3,094 
3,158 
3,223 
3,335 
3,357 
3,427 

34,605 
37,163 

39,160 
41,242 
40,933 
42,567 
43,911 
45,268 
46,878 
46,041 

47,885 
48,715 
49.803 
51,530 
52,613 
53,712 
54,888 
56,057 
57,214 
58,447 

* Column ( O m  includes Conservation Energy For Lighting and Public Authority Customers, Customer-Owned Self-service Cogeneration 
and Load Control Programs. 

** Load Factors for historical years are calculated using the actual winter peak demand except the 1998 and 2004 historical load factors 
whicli are based on the actual summer peak demand. 
Load Factors for future years are calculated using the net firm winter peak demand (Schedule 3.2.3) 

49.0 
53.9 
50.0 
50.5 
47.5 
50.0 
47.1 
56.5 
52.3 
52.1 

57.2 
56.7 
57.6 
57.3 
57.5 
57.0 
57.0 
57.3 
57.4 
57.2 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 4 

PREVIOUS YEAR ACTUAL AND TWO-YEAR FORECAST OF PEAK DEMAND 
AND NET ENERGY FOR LOAD BY MONTH 

A C T U A L  
2006 

MONTH 
JANUARY 

FEBRUARY 
MARCH 
APRIL. 
MAY 
JUNE 
JULY 

AUGUST 
SEPTEMBER 

OCTOBER 
NOVEMBER 
DECEMBER 

PEAK DEMAND NEL 
MW GWh 

10,095 3,191 
6,441 3,286 
7,837 3,582 
8,382 4,020 
9,349 4,40 1 
9,462 4,699 
9,689 4,920 
8,794 4,270 
8,286 3,763 
6,4 15 3,192 
6,792 3,327 

7,870 3,390 

(4) ( 5 )  
F O R E C A S T  

2007 

PEAKDEMAND NEL 
Mw GWh 

9,705 3,772 
7,862 3,257 
6,692 3,509 
7,387 3,498 
8,482 4,27 1 
8,905 4,478 
9,156 4,867 
9,327 4,9 19 
8,553 4,434 
7,975 3,982 
6,463 3,426 
7,529 3,781 

(6) (7) 
F O R E C A S T  

2008 

PEAKDEMAND NEL 

MW GWh 

8,014 3,383 
6,863 3,63 1 
7,540 3,576 
8,672 4,361 
9,07 1 4,574 
9,337 4,985 
9,525 5,047 
8,729 4,537 
8,202 4,076 
6,569 3,502 
7,7 17 3,882 

9,943 3,914 

TOTAL 46,041 48,194 

NOTE: "Actual" = "Total" - "Interruptible" - "Res. LM" - "CII LM" - "Voltage Reduction & Standby Generation" 

49,468 
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FUEL REOUIFWMENTS AND ENERGY SOURCES 

PEF’s two-year actual and ten-year projected nuclear, coal, oil, and gas requirements (by fuel 

units) are shown on Schedule 5 .  PEF’s two-year actual and ten-year projected energy sources, in 

GWh and percent, are shown by fuel type on Schedules 6.1 and 6.2, respectively. PEF’s fuel 

requirements and energy sources reflect a diverse fuel supply system that is not dependent on 

any one-fuel source. Natural gas consumption is projected to increase as plants and purchases 

with tolling agreements are added to meet future load growth. However, the planned nuclear 

addition in 2016 decreases future natural gas consumption as is shown in the projections. 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 5 

FUEL REQUIREMENTS 

NUCLEAR 

COAL 

RESIDUAL 

DISTILLATE 

NATURAL GAS 

OTHER (SPECIFY 

(17) OTHER, DISTILLATE 

TOTAL 

STEAM 

cc 
C T  
DIESEL 

TOTAL 

STEAM 

cc 
CT 

DIESEL 

TOTAL 

STEAM 

cc 
CT 

ANNUAL 

(18) OTHER, NATURAL GAS ANNUAL 

(18.1) OTHER, NATURAL GASANNUAL 

1,000 TON 

1,000 BBL 

1.000 BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 MCF 

1,000 MCF 

1,000 MCF 

1,000 MCF 

1,000 BBL 

1,000 MCF 

1, DO0 MCF 

6.249 5,977 6,179 6,059 6,240 6,389 6,977 6,959 6.728 6,874 6.951 6,792 

10,324 7,353 9,646 8,490 6,338 5,030 5.522 5,384 5.152 5,307 5,190 4.780 

10,324 7,353 9,646 8,490 6,338 5,030 5.522 5,384 5,152 5,307 5,190 4,780 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

1,098 713 987 784 901 986 1,196 1,192 1,284 1,220 1,335 1,056 

97 90 41 38 46 54 53 44 54 42 41 45 

3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0  

998 621 946 746 855 932 1.144 1,148 1,230 1,177 1.288 1,010 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

68,447 76,448 83,645 100.282 129,303 140,233 150,996 149,977 168,758 180,835 193,010 175,170 

732 1,731 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

52,590 61.487 65,316 84,124 112,747 125,315 133.815 132,786 151,618 164.412 175,697 159,507 

15,125 13,230 18,328 16,159 16,556 14,918 17,180 17,191 17,140 16,423 17,312 15,663 

N/A N/A 47 11 13 5 13 19 15 0 0 0 

N / A N / A O  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

N/A NIA 8.512 4,954 1,720 4,327 6.867 6,743 6.524 5,956 6,720 3,861 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 6.1 

ENERGY SOURCES (GWh) 

(1 6) 

z ! u  
349 

13.385 

15.680 

2.926 

2,926 

0 

0 

0 

394 

0 

0 

394 

0 

23,566 

0 

22.014 

1.252 

1.476 

1.657 

1,328 

0 

m 3 M 5  
GWh 2.220 

GWh 5.829 

GWh 15.834 

2na6 
2,091 

6,382 

14.968 

4.656 

4,656 

0 

0 

0 

258 

0 

1 

257 

0 

9.657 

161 

8,511 

979 

4,394 

3,683 

-48 

2 p p z 2 M B 2 M 1 9 z Q l - Q 2 e u 2 Q u  
2,200 1.854 1,881 1,750 734 689 

zQl3211l4m 
672 592 669 (1) 4 " U A L  FIRM INTERCHANGE 1/ 

5 ,951 6.671 5,099 6,992 6.473 8,114 7.575 8.183 7,576 NUCLEAR 

COAL 

RESIDUAL 

DISTILLATE 

NATURAL GAS 

OTHER 21 

QF PURCHASES 

RENEWABLES 

15,260 14,781 15,187 14.782 16.149 16,108 15.568 15.900 16.083 

TOTAL G W ~  6.618 

STEAM GWh 6.618 

CC GWh 0 
CT GWh 0 

DIESEL GWh 0 

5.968 5,217 3.894 3.092 3.418 3.329 

5,968 5.217 3,894 3.092 3.418 3,329 

0 0 0 0 0 0  

0 0 0 0 0 0  

0 0 0 0 0 0  

3.181 3.278 3.207 

3.181 3.278 3,207 

0 0 0  

0 0 0  

0 0 0  

TOTAL GWh 414 

STEAM G W h  0 

CC GWh 0 
CT GWh 4 1 4  

DIESEL CWh 0 

364 277 321 356 449 451 

0 0 0 0 0 0  

0 0 0 0 0 0  

364 217 321 356 449 451 

0 0 0 0 0 0  

495 464 511 

0 0  0 

0 0 0  

495 464 511 

0 0 0  

TOTAL 

STEAM 
cc 
CT 

GWh 8,236 

GWh 74 

GWh 7,025 

GWh 1.137 

10.408 12,714 16.828 18.507 19,966 19.780 

o o a o o o  
9,002 11.480 15.510 17.328 18.601 18.416 

1.406 1.234 1.318 1.179 1.365 1.363 

22,442 24.111 25,177 

0 0 0  

21,070 22,809 24.400 

1.372 1.303 1,377 

GWh 4.211 

GWh -. 
3.357 3,247 2,552 2.460 2.463 2.468 

1.145 1,231 1,301 2.064 2,062 2.065 

2.283 1.473 1.473 

2.033 1,700 1,658 

GWh 3.599 

GWh 4 3  

3,542 3,476 3,546 2.512 2.061 2.014 

0 0 0 0 0 0  

2.072 2.031 2,121 

0 0 0  

IMPORT FROM OUT OF STATE 

EXPORT TO OUT OF STATE 

(19) NET ENERGY FOR LOAD G W h  46,878 46.041 48,194 49,468 50,609 52.516 53,776 55.017 56,321 57,732 59,074 60.460 

I/ NET ENERGY PURCHASED (+) OR SOLD C) WITHIN THE FRCC REGIOK. 

2/  KET ENERGY PURCHASED (+) OR SOLD (.I, 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE 6.2 

ENERGY SOURCES (PERCENT) 

&'NUAL FIRM INTERCHANGE 1/ 

NUCLEAR 

COAL 

RESIDUAL 

DISTILLATE 

NATURAL GAS 

OTHER 21 

QF PURCHASES 

IMPORT FROM OUT OF STATE 

EXPORT TO OUT OF STATE 

NET ENERGY FOR LOAD 

TOTAL 

STEAM 

cc 
CT 

DIESEL 

TOTAL 

STEAM 

cc 
CT 

DIESEL 

TOTAL 

STEAM 

cc 
CT 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% % 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

4.7% 4.5% 4.6% 3.7% 3.7% 3.3% 1.4% 1.3% 1.2% 1.0% 1.1% 06% 

12.4% 13.9% 12.3% 13.5% 10.1% 13.3% 12.0% 14.7% 13.4% 14.2% 12.8% 22.1% 

33.8% 32.5% 31.7% 29.9% 30.0% 28.1% 30.0% 29.3% 27.6% 27.5% 27.2% 25.9% 

14.1% 10.1% 12.4% 10.5% 7.7% 5.9% 6.4% 6.1% 5.6% 5.7% 5.1% 4.8% 

14.1% 10.1% 12.4% 10.5% 7.7% 5.9% 6.4% 6.1% 5.6% 5.7% 5.4% 4.8% 

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

0.9% 0.6% 0.8% 0.6% 0.6% 0.7% 0.8% 0.8% 0.9% 0.8% 0.9% 0.7% 

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

0.9% 0.6% 0.8% 0.6% 0.6% 0.7% 0.81 0.8% 0.9% 0.8% 0.9% 0.7% 

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

17.6% 21.0% 21.6% 25.7% 33.3% 35.2% 37.1% 36.0% 39.8% 41.8% 43.6% 38.5% 

0.2% 0.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

15.0% 18.5% 18.7% 23.2% 30.6% 33.0% 34.6% 33.5% 37.4% 39.5% 41.3% 36.4% 

2.4% 2.1% 2.9% 2.5% 2.6% 2.2% 2.5% 2.5% 2.4% 2.3% 2.3% 2.1% 

9.0% 9.5% 7.0% 6.6% 5.0% 4.7% 4.6% 4.5% 4.1% 2.6% 2.5% 2.4% 

7.7% 8.0% 7.3% 7.0% 7.0% 4.8% 3.8% 3.7% 3.7% 3.5% 3.6% 2.2% 

-0.2% -0 1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

1/ NET ENERGY PURCHASED (+) OR SOLD (-) WITHIN THE FRCC REGION. 

2/ NET ENERGY PURCHASED (t) OR SOLD (.). 
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FORECASTING METHODS AND PROCEDURES 

INTRODUCTION 

Accurate forecasts of long-range electric energy consumption, customer growth, and peak demand 

are essential elements in electric utility planning. Accurate projections of a utility’s future load 

growth require a forecasting methodology with the ability to account for a variety of factors 

influencing electric energy usage over the planning horizon. PEF’s forecasting framework utilizes a 

set of econometric models to achieve this end. This section will describe the underlying 

methodology of the customer, energy, and peak demand forecasts including the principal 

assumptions incorporated within each. Also included is a description of how Demand-Side 

Management (DSM) impacts the forecast, the development of high and low forecast scenarios and a 

review of DSM programs. 

Figure 2.1, entitled “Customer, Energy and Demand Forecast”, gives a general description of PEF’s 

forecasting process. Highlighted in the diagram is a disaggregated modeling approach that blends 

the impacts of average class usage as well as customer growth based on a specific set of 

assumptions for each class. Also accounted for is some direct contact with large customers. These 

inputs provide the tools needed to frame the most likely scenario of the company’s future demand. 

FORECAST ASSUMPTIONS 

The first step in any forecasting effort is the development of assumptions upon which the forecast is 

based. The Corporate Planning Department develops these assumptions based on discussions with 

a number of departments within PEF, as well as through the research efforts of a number of extemal 

sources, These assumptions specify major factors that influence the level of customers, energy 

sales, or peak demand over the forecast horizon. The following set of assumptions forms the basis 

for the forecast presented in this document. 
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FIGURE 2.1 

Customer, Energy, and Demand Forecast 
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GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS 

1. Normal weather conditions for energy sales are assumed over the forecast horizon using a sales- 

weighted thirty-year average of conditions at seven weather stations across Florida (St. 

Petersburg, Tampa, Orlando, Winter Haven, Gainesville, Daytona, and Tallahassee). For 

kilowatt-hour sales projections, normal weather is based on a historical thrrty-year average of 

service area weighted billing month degree-days. Seasonal peak demand projections are based 

on a thirty-year historical average of system-weighted temperatures at time of seasonal peak at 

the Tampa, Orlando, and Tallahassee weather stations; the other weather stations are not used in 

developing the historic average because they lack the data needed for peak-weather 

normalization. 

2. The population projections produced by the Bureau of Economic and Business Research 

(BEBR) at the University of Florida as published in "Florida Population Studies Bulletin No. 

144 (February 2006) provide the basis for development of the customer forecast. State and 

national economic assumptions produced by Economy.Com in their national and Florida 

forecasts (March 2006) are also incorporated. 

3. Within the PEF service area the phosphate mining industry is the dominant sector in the 

industrial sales class. Four major customers accounted for 30% of the industrial class MWh 

sales in 2006. These energy intensive customers mine and process phosphate-based fertilizer 

products for the global marketplace. Both supply and demand conditions for their products are 

dictated by global conditions that include, but are not limited to, foreign competition, 

nationahternational agricultural industry conditions, exchange-rate fluctuations, and 

intemational trade pacts. Load and energy consumption at the PEF-served mining or chemical 

processing sites depend heavily on plant operations, which are heavily influenced by the state of 

these global conditions as well as local conditions. After years of excess mining capacity and 

weak product pricing power, the industry has consolidated down to fewer players in time to take 

advantage of better market conditions. Also, a weaker U.S currency value on the foreign 

exchange is expected to help the industry in two ways. First, American farm commodities will 

be more competitive overseas and lead to higher crop production at home. This will result in 

greater demand for fertilizer products. Second, a weak U.S. dollar results in US. fertilizer 
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producers becoming more price competitive relative to foreign producers. Going forward, 

energy consumption is expected to increase in the near term, as a new mine operation is 

expected to open, A significant risk to this projection lies in the volatile price of energy (natural 

gas), which is a major cost of fertilizer production. Operations at several sites in the U.S. have 

already scaled back or shutdown in 2005-2006 due to profitability concerns caused by high 

energy prices. The energy projection for this industry assumes no major reductions or 

shutdowns of operations in the service territory. 

4. PEF supplies load and energy service to wholesale customers on a "full", "partial", and 

"supplemental" requirement basis. Full requirements (FR) customers' demand and energy is 

assumed to grow at a rate that approximates their historical trend. Contracts for this service 

include the cities of Bartow, Chattahoochee, Mt. Dora, Quincy, Williston, and Winter Park. 

Partial requirements (PR) customer load is assumed to reflect the current contractual 

obligations reflected by the nature of the stratified load they have contracted for, plus their 

ability to receive dispatched energy from power marketers any time it is more economical for 

them to do so. Contracts for PR service included in this forecast are with the Florida 

Municipal Power Agency (FMPA), New Smyrna Beach, Tallahassee, Homestead, Reedy 

Creek Utilities, TECO Energy (Market Mitigation Sale) and Seminole Electric Cooperative, 

Inc. (SECI). PEF's contractual arrangement with SECI includes a "supplemental" service 

contract (1983 contract) for service over and above stated levels they commit to supply 

themselves. This contract is projected to become a "winter only" seasonal purchase in 2014 

when the term of this contract expires in December 2013. A firm PR contract with SECI 

includes 450 MW of stratified intermediate service (October 1995 contract) which is 

projected to continue through the forecast horizon. In addition, a FR contract to serve SECI 

load, will commence in 2010, and last through the forecast horizon. Finally, an agreement to 

provide interruptible service at a SECI metering site has also been included in this projection. 

5. This forecast assumes that PEF will successfully renew all future franchise agreements. 

6. This forecast incorporates demand and energy reductions from PEF's dispatchable and non- 

dispatchable DSM programs required to meet the approved goals set by the FPSC. 
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7. Expected energy and demand reductions from self-service cogeneration are also included in this 

forecast. PEF will supply the supplemental load of self-service cogeneration customers. While 

PEF offers “standby” service to all cogeneration customers, the forecast does not assume an 

unplanned need for standby power. 

8. This forecast assumes that the regulatory environment and the obligation to serve our retail 

customers will continue throughout the forecast horizon. Regarding wholesale customers, the 

company does not plan for generation resources unless a long-term contract is in place. Current 

FR customers are assumed to renew their contracts with PEF except those who have given 

notice to terminate. Current PR contracts are projected to terminate as terms reach their 

expiration date. Deviation fkom these assumptions can occur based on information provided by 

the Regulated Commercial Operations Department. 

SHORT-TERM ECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS 

The economic outlook for this forecast was developed in 2006 as energy prices were hitting record 

highs around the world. The consensus was that the US.  economy, which was growing at a 

reasonable rate, would not slip into recession due to the higher cost of energy. Instead, a “soft patch” 

in economic activity apparent at the time of this forecast development as high gasoline prices had 

been reducing consumer confidence levels. Short term interest rates, controlled mostly by Federal 

Reserve Board (FED) policy decisions, peaked in mid-2006 and have remained stable after 17 

increases based upon signs coming from a weakening construction industry and lower inflation. 

Economists are not in complete agreement about where monetary policy may go from here. A slight 

majority suspect that the FED has ended its “tightening” policy of gradually raising interest rates as 

opposed to those who believe that new inflationary fears will require more rate increases. 

Consensus opinion believes that the economic stimulus supplied by the three federal tax cuts and the 

refinancing boom have successfully kept the U.S. economy out of recession after the September 11, 

2001 terrorist attacks. Now, with rates back up to more normal levels, and talk of rescinding some of 

the tax cuts, stimulus from these two economic tools is not expected going forward. One item 

believed to become a positive factor for future economic momentum is the weaker US .  currency. 

Up to this point several major U.S. trading partners, mainly China, have their currencies pegged to 
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the U.S. Dollar. This has kept the typical advantages of a weaker currency from helping U.S. 

manufacturers. Going forward, it is expected that economic and political pressures will force the 

Chinese to de-link their currency and allow it to appreciate in value. This likely will make 

American-produced products more competitive with imported Chinese goods, as well as other goods 

produced around the globe. 

The housing sector, which had a record run in the first half of the decade, has peaked and has now 

slowed. While the fall-off in housing starts has only taken the industry down to normal levels seen 

before the run-up, no one feels confident predicting when the bottom will be reached. Home sales 

have dipped significantly and the number of unsold and even vacant homes has hit record levels 

leading to significant price reductions in some areas of the country. On top of all this, the number of 

foreclosures and mortgages in default has risen of late. More homeowners, struggling to meet higher 

payments fkom adjustable-rate loans, are walking away from homes as they become “upside-down” 

in the mortgage (when the market price falls below the outstanding loan amount.) All of this does 

not bode well for Florida, which played a major part in the recent housing boom. In order to grow 

out of this, migration into the State will need to absorb this overhang in available housing at a time 

when out-of-state homeowners may have a difficult time selling their property. 

The Florida economy has faired much better than the nation, especially in terms of job growth. The 

tourism industry, which has bounced back from the terrorism fears of 2001, will now have to juggle 

the impact of high oil prices on the travel industry. Also, the increases in property insurance and 

property taxes in Florida have caused anxiety. Florida’s reputation as a low cost-of-living state has 

been impacted. 

Besides growth in State population, growth in energy consumption can also be directly tied to the 

levels of economic activity as measured by total personal income and employment. Florida has 

experienced excellent employment growth since the last recession -better than most other states. 

However, due to the run-up in energy prices, the need for greater national energy independence and 

the wider review of the potential effects of climate change upon the environment, energy 

consumption of all types and at all consumer levels are coming under greater scrutiny. In addition, 

federal and state tax incentives to conserve energy are becoming more widespread and energy-saving 
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capital improvements are becoming more economically viable. Even players with significant 

economic influence - like Wal-Mart stores - are pressing their suppliers to become more energy 

efficient. Just as occurred after each of the Arab oil embargoes, all of these factors may drive the 

country to improve energy use per unit of Gross Domestic Product (GDP), which could reduce the 

growth in energy demand. The level of energy prices will obviously play a major role in the 

outcome. 

LONG-TERM ECOKOMIC ASSUMPTIONS 

The long-term economic outlook assumes that changes in economic and demographic conditions 

will follow a trended behavior pattern. The main focus involves identifying these trends. No 

attempt is made to predict business cycle fluctuations during this period. 

Population Growth Trends 

This forecast assumes Florida will experience slower immigration and population growth over 

parts of the long term, as reflected in the BEBR projections. Florida's climate and low cost of 

living have historically attracted a major share of the retirement population from the eastern half 

of the United States. This will continue to occur, but at less than historic rates for several 

reasons, First, Americans entering retirement age during the late 1990s and early twenty-first 

century were born during the Great Depression era of the 1930s. This decade experienced a low 

birth rate due to the economic conditions at that time. Now that this generation is retiring, there 

exists a smaller pool of retirees capable of migrating to Florida. As we enter into the second 

decade of the new century and the baby-boom generation enters retirement age, the reverse effect 

can be expected. 

Second, the enormous growth in population and corresponding development of the 1980s, 1990s 

and early 2000s made portions of Florida less desirable and less affordable for retirement living. 

This diminished the quality of retiree life, and along with increasing competition from 

neighboring states, is expected to cause a slight decline in Florida's share of these prospective 

new residents over the long term. 
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Another reason for a population growth slowdown appears to be the fear and expense of 

Hurricanes. The summers of 2004 and 2005 may force some in-migrants to rethink their 

retirement location as the inconvenience caused by recent destruction and ever-increasing cost of 

property insurance makes Florida a less desirable place to live. 

Economic Growth Trends 

Florida has been recently experiencing a 1980s-style population explosion and service sector job 

creation. The State has benefited greatly from generational lows in interest rates, which along 

with investors' unfriendly attitude toward the equity markets, set the stage for a tremendous 

explosion in home construction. The national level of homebuilding in 2005, which rose to more 

than 3 1% higher than in 2000, set an all time record. This growth produced strong gains in both 

the construction industry and service-producing sectors of the Florida economy. 

We now see that this pace of growth has not been sustained, and the economic environment that 

produced this construction boom has retumed to normal. Interest rates have risen to more "long 

term" norms. More 

importantly, affordability rates have dropped as housing prices in many parts of Florida have 

out-paced many areas of the country. This could have a major impact on retiree decisions to 

move into the area. Making matters worse is the availability and affordability of homeowners 

insurance, which has become a concem of increasing importance since the Hurricane seasons of 

2004 and 2005. 

Investment in equity markets over housing has occurred as well. 

Florida's rapid population growth of late has created a period of strong job creation, especially in 

the service sector industries. While the service-oriented economy expanded to support an 

increasing population level, there were also a number of corporations migrating to Florida 

capitalizing on the low cost, low tax business environment. This being the case, increased job 

opportunities in Florida created greater in-migration among the nation's working age population. 

Florida's ability to attract businesses from other states because of its "comparative advantage" is 

expected to continue throughout the forecast period but at a less significant level. Florida's 

successful effort to attract a large biotech firm, Scripps Research, has the potential to draw a 

whole new growth industry to the State, the same way Disney and NASA once did. 
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The forecast assumes negative growth in real electricity price. That is, the change in the nominal 

price of electricity per kWh over time is expected to be less than the overall rate of inflation. 

This also implies that future fuel price escalation will track at or below the general rate of 

inflation throughout the forecast horizon. 

Real personal incomes are assumed to increase throughout the forecast period thereby boosting 

the average customer's ability to purchase electricity. As incomes grow faster than the price of 

electricity, consumers, on average, will remain inclined to purchase additional electric appliances 

and increase their utilization of existing end-uses. 

FORECAST METHODOLOGY 
The PEF forecast of customers, energy sales, and peak demand is developed using customer 

class-specific econometric models. These models are expressly designed to capture class- 

specific variation over time. By modeling customer growth and average energy usage 

individually, subtle changes in existing customer usage are better captured as well as growth 

from new customers. Peak demand models are projected on a disaggregated basis as well. This 

allows for appropriate handling of individual assumptions in the areas of wholesale contracts, 

load management, and interruptible service. 

ENERGY AND CUSTOMER FORECAST 

In the retail jurisdiction, customer class models have been specified showing a historical 

relationship to weather and economic/demographic indicators using monthly data for sales models 

and annual data for customer models. Sales are regressed against "driver" variables that best 

explain monthly fluctuations over the historical sample period. Forecasts of these input variables 

are either derived internally or come from a review of the latest projections made by several 

independent forecasting concerns. The external sources of data include Moody's Economy.Com 

and the University of Florida's Bureau of Economic and Business Research. Internal company 

forecasts are used for projections of electricity price, weather conditions, and the length of the 

billing month. Normal weather, which is assumed throughout the forecast horizon, is based on the 

30-year average of heating and cooling degree-days by month as measured at several weather 

stations throughout Florida for energy projections and temperatures around the hour of peak for the 
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firm retail demand forecast. Projections of PEF's demand-side management (conservation 

programs) are also incorporated as reductions to the forecast. Specific sectors are modeled as 

follows: 

Residential Sector 

Residential kwh usage per customer is modeled as a function of real Florida personal income, 

cooling degree-days, heating degree-days, the real price of electricity to the residential class and the 

average number of billing days in each sales month. This equation captures significant variation in 

residential usage caused by economic cycles, weather fluctuations, electric price movements, and 

sales month duration. Projections of kwh usage per customer combined with the customer forecast 

provide the forecast of total residential energy sales. The residential customer forecast is developed 

by correlating annual customer growth with PEF service area population growth and mortgage rates. 

County level population projections for the 29 counties, in which PEF serves residential customers, 

are provided by the BEBR. 

Commercial Sector 

Commercial MWh energy sales are forecast based on commercial (non-agricultural, non- 

manufacturing and non-governmental) employment, the real price of electricity to the commercial 

class, the average number of billing days in each sales month and heating and cooling degree-days. 

The measure of cooling degree-days utilized here differs slightly from that used in the residential 

sector reflecting different temperature bases where heating and cooling load become observable. 

Commercial customers are projected as a function of the number of residential customers served. 

Industrial Sector 

Energy sales to this sector are separated into two sub-sectors. A significant portion of industrial 

energy use is consumed by the phosphate mining industry. Because this one industry comprises 

nearly a 30% share of the total industrial class, it is separated and modeled apart from the rest of the 

class. The term "non-phosphate industrial" is used to refer to those customers who comprise the 

remaining portion of total industrial class sales. Both groups are impacted significantly by changes 

in economic activity. However, adequately explaining sales levels requires separate explanatory 

variables. Non-phosphate industrial energy sales are modeled using Florida manufacturing 
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employment and a Florida industrial production index developed by Economy.Com, the real price 

of electricity to the industrial class, and the average number of sales month billing days. 

The industrial phosphate mining industry is modeled using customer-specific information with 

respect to expected market conditions. Since this sub-sector is comprised of only four customers, 

the forecast is dependent upon information received from direct customer contact. PEF industrial 

customer representatives provide specific phosphate customer information regarding customer 

production schedules, inventory levels, area mine-out and start-up predictions, and changes in self- 

service generation or energy supply situations over the forecast horizon. 

Street Lighting 
Electricity sales to the street and highway lighting class are projected to increase due to growth in 

the service area population base. Because this class comprised less than 0.01% of PEF’s 2006 

electric sales and just 0.1% of total customers, a simple time trend was used to project energy 

consumption and customer growth in this class. 

Public Authorities 
Energy sales to public authorities (SPA), comprised mostly of government operated services, is also 

projected to grow with the size of the service area. The level of government services, and thus 

energy use per customer, can be tied to the population base, as well as to the state of the economy. 

Factors affecting population growth will affect the need for additional governmental services (i.e., 

schools, city services, etc.) thereby increasing SPA energy usage per customer. Government 

employment has been determined to be the best indicator of the level of government services 

provided. This variable, along with heating and cooling degree-days (class specific), the real price 

of electricity and the average number of sales month billing days, results in a significant level of 

explained variation over the historical sample period. Intercept shift variables are also included in 

this model to account for the large change in school-related energy use in the billing months of 

January, July, and August. SPA customers are projected linearly as a function of a time-trend. 
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Sales for Resale Sector 

The Sales for Resale sector encompasses all firm sales to other electric power entities. This 

includes sales to other utilities (municipal or investor-owned) as well as power agencies (Rural 

Electric Authority or Municipal). 

SECI is a wholesale, or sales for resale, customer of PEF on both a supplemental contract basis 

and contract demand basis. Under the supplemental contract, PEF provides service for those 

energy requirements above the level of generation capacity served by either SECI’s own 

facilities or its firm purchase obligations. Monthly supplemental energy is developed using an 

average historical load shape of total SECI load in the PEF control area, subtracting out the level 

of SECI “committed” capacity from each hour. Beyond supplemental service, PEF has an 

agreement with SECI to serve stratified intermediate and peaking energy. This agreement 

involves serving 450 MW of stratified intermediate demand that is assumed to remain a 

requirement on the PEF system throughout the forecast horizon. A “winter-only” seasonal 

peaking strata contract for 600 MW will replace the supplemental contract in 2014. An 

agreement to provide non-firm service is currently in effect between PEF and SECI amounting to 

an estimated 15 MW. Another contract, signed in 2004 to supply full requirements service for 

150 MW, will begin in 2010. 

The municipal sales for resale class includes a number of customers, divergent not only in scope of 

service, (Le., full or partial requirement), but also in composition of ultimate consumers. Each 

customer is modeled separately in order to accurately reflect its individual profile. Several of the 

customers in this class are municipalities whose full energy requirements are met by PEF. The full 

requirement customers are modeled individually using local weather station data and population 

growth trends. Since the ultimate consumers of electricity in this sector are, to a large degree, 

residential and commercial customers, it is assumed that their use patterns will follow those of the 

PEF retail-based residential and commercial customer classes. PEF serves partial requirement 

service (PR) to municipalities such as New Smyrna Beach (NSB), Homestead, and Tallahassee, and 

other power providers like FMPA. In each case, these customers contract with PEF for a specific 

level and type of demand needed to provide their particular electrical system with an appropriate 

level of reliability. The terms of the FMPA contract is subject to change each year via a letter of 
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"declared" M W  nomination. More specifically, this means that the level and type of demand and 

energy under contract can increase or decrease for each year a value is nominated. The energy 

forecast for each contract is derived using its historical load factors where enough history exists, or 

typical load factors for a given type of contracted stratified load. The energy projections for FMPA 

also include a "losses service contract" for energy PEF supplies to FMPA for transmission losses 

incurred when "wheeling" power to their ultimate customers in PEF's transmission area. This 

projection is based on the projected requirements of the aggregated needs of the cities of Ocala, 

Leesburg, Bushnell, Havana, and Newberry. 

PEAK DEMAND FORECAST 

The forecast of peak demand also employs a disaggregated econometric methodology. For seasonal 

(winter and summer) peak demands, as well as each month of the year, PEF's coincident system 

peak is dissected into five major components. These components consist of potential firm retail 

load, conservation and load management program capability, wholesale demand, company use 

demand and interruptible demand. 

Potential firm retail load refers to projections of PEF retail hourly seasonal net peak demand 

(excluding the non-firm intermptible/curtailable/standby services) before the cumulative effects of 

any conservation activity or the activation of PEF's Load Management program. The historical 

values of this series are constructed to show the size of PEF's firm retail net peak demand assuming 

no utility-induced conservation or load control had taken place. The value of constructing such a 

"clean" series enables the forecaster to observe and correlate the underlying trend in retail peak 

demand to total system customer levels and coincident weather conditions at the time of the peak 

without the impacts of year-to-year variation in conservation activity or load control reductions. 

Seasonal peaks are projected using historical seasonal peak data regardless of which month the peak 

occurred, The projections become the potential retail demand projection for the month of January 

(winter) and August (summer) since this is typically when the seasonal peaks occur. The non- 

seasonal peak months are projected the same as the seasonal peaks, but the analysis is limited to the 

specific month being projected. 
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Energy conservation and direct load control estimates are consistent with PEF’s DSM goals that 

have been approved by the FPSC. These estimates are incorporated into the MW forecast. 

Projections of dispatchable and cumulative non-dispatchable DSM are subtracted from the 

projection of potential firm retail demand resulting in a projected series of retail demand figures one 

would expect to occur. 

Sales for Resale demand projections represent load supplied by PEF to other electric utilities such as 

SECI, FMPA, and other electric distribution companies. The SECI supplemental demand 

projection is based on a trend of their historical demand within the PEF control area. The level of 

M W  to be served by PEF is dependent upon the amount of generation resources SECI supplies itself 

or contracts from others. An assumption has been made that beyond the last year of committed 

capacity declaration (five years out), SECI will shift their level of self-serve resources to meet their 

base and intermediate load needs. For FMPA and NSB demand projections, historical ratios of 

coincident-to-contract levels of demand are applied to future MW contract levels. Demand 

requirements continue at the M W  level indicated by the final year in their respective contract 

declaration letter. The full requirements municipal demand forecast is estimated for individual 

cities using linear econometric equations modeling both weather and economic impacts specific to 

each locale. The seasonal (winter and summer) projections become the January and August peak 

values, respectively. The non-seasonal peak months are calculated using monthly allocation factors 

derived from applying the historical relationship between each winter month (November to March) 

relative to the winter peak, and each summer month (April to October) in relation to the summer 

peak demand. 

PEF “company use” at the time of system peak is estimated using load research metering studies 

and is assumed to remain stable over the forecast horizon. The interruptible and curtailable service 

(IS and CS) load component is developed from historic trends, as well as the incorporation of 

specific information obtained ffom PEF’s large industrial accounts by field representatives. 

Each of the peak demand components described above is a positive value except for the DSM 

program MW impacts and IS and CS load. These impacts represent a reduction in peak demand 
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and are assigned a negative value. Total system firm peak demand is then calculated as the 

arithmetic sum of the five components. 

HIGH AND LOW FORECAST SCENARIOS 

The high and low bandwidth scenarios around the base MWh energy sales forecast are developed 

using a Monte Carlo simulation applied to a multivariate regression model that closely replicates the 

base retail MWh energy forecast in aggregate. This model accounts for variation in Gross Domestic 

Product, retail customers and electricity price. The base forecasts for these variables were 

developed based on input from Economy.Com and internal company price projections. Variation 

around the base forecast predictor variables used in the Monte Carlo simulation was based on an 80 

percent confidence interval calculated around variation in each variable's historic growth rate. 

While the total number of degree-days (weather) was also incorporated into the model specification, 

the high and low scenarios do not attempt to capture extreme weather conditions. Normal weather 

conditions were assumed in all three scenarios. 

The Monte Carlo simulation was produced through the estimation of 1,000 scenarios for each 

year of the forecast horizon. These simulations allowed for random normal variation in the 

growth trajectories of the economic input variables (while accounting for cross-correlation 

amongst these variables), as well as simultaneous variation in the equation (model error) and 

coefficient estimates. These scenarios were then sorted and rank ordered from one to a thousand, 

while the simulated scenario with no variation was adjusted to equal the base forecast. 

The low retail scenario was chosen from among the ranked scenarios resulting in a bandwidth 

forecast reflecting an approximate probability of occurrence of 0.10. The high retail scenario 

similarly represents a bandwidth forecast with an approximate probability of occurrence also at 

0.10. In both scenarios, the high and low peak demand bandwidth forecasts, are projected from the 

energy forecasts using the load factor implicit in the base forecast scenario. 

2-35 

Hearing Exhibit - 0001 61 



CONSERVATIOX 

Summer MW Winter MW 

Year Goal Achieved Goal Achieved 

2005 13 18 43 48 

2006 21 37 75 99 

PEF’s DSM performance is shown in the following tables, which compare the conservation 

savings actually achieved through PEF’s DSM programs for the reporting years of 2005 and 

2006 with the Commission-approved conservations goals. 

Annual GWh Energy 

Goal Achieved 

21 29 

35 58 

On August 9, 2004, the FPSC issued a PAA Order approving new conservation goals for PEF 

that span the ten-year period from 2005 through 2014, as well as a new DSM Plan for PEF that 

was specifically designed to meet the new conservation goals. (Docket 040031-EG, Order No, 

PSC-04-0769-PAA-EG). On January 5, 2007, the FPSC issued a PAA Order approving 39 

additional DSM measures and 2 residential programs, which will serve to increase the demand 

and energy savings available through PEF’s DSM Plan. (Docket 060647: Consummating Order 

PSC-07-0017-CO-EG making Order PSC-06- 10 18-TRF-EG effective and final.) 

Summer M W  

Year Goal Achieved 

2005 4 8 

2006 7 16 

Winter M W  Annual GWh Energy 

Goal Achieved Goal Achieved 

3 6 3 3 

7 12 6 9 

The forecasts contained in this Ten-Year Site Plan document are based on these 2007 program 

additions and modifications to PEF’s DSM Plan and, therefore, appropriately reflect the most 

current projection of DSM savings over the next ten years. PEF’s DSM Plan consists of seven 

residential programs, eight commercial and industrial programs, and one research and 
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development program. On January 5 ,  2007, the FPSC issued a PA4  Order approving 39 

additional DSM measures and 2 residential programs. (Docket 060647: Consummating Order 

PSC-07-00 17-CO-EG making Order PSC-06- 101 8-TRF-EG effective and final). Megawatt 

contributions to the TYSP, reflected in this report, have increased as a result of these changes to 

conservation, standby and residential load management programs. The programs are subject to 

periodic monitoring and evaluation for the purpose of ensuring that all DSM resources are 

acquired in a cost-effective manner and that the program savings are durable. Following is a 

brief description of these programs. 

RESIDENTIAL PROGRAMS 

Home Energy Check Program 
This energy audit program provides customers w..h an analysis of their current energy use and 

recommendations on how they can save on their electricity bills through low-cost or no-cost 

energy-saving practices and measures. The Home Energy Check program offers PEF customers 

the following types of audits: Type 1: Free Walk-Through Audit (Home Energy Check); Type 2: 

Customer-completed Mail In Audit (Do It Yourself Home Energy Check); Type 3: Online Home 

Energy Check (Internet Option)-a customer-completed audit; Type 4: Phone Assisted Audit -A 

customer assisted survey of structure and appliance use; Type 5 :  Computer Assisted Audit; Type 

6: Home Energy Rating Audit (Class I, 11,111). Additionally, a student audit was piloted in 2006. 

The Home Energy Check Program serves as the foundation of the Home Energy Improvement 

Program in that the audit is a prerequisite for participation in the energy saving measures offered 

in the Home Energy Improvement Program. 

Home Energy Improvement Program 

This is the umbrella program to increase energy efficiency for existing residential homes. It 

combines efficiency improvements to the thermal envelope with upgraded electric appliances. 

The program provides incentives for attic insulation upgrades, duct testing and repair, and high 

efficiency electric heat pumps. The additional measures within this program include spray-in 

wall insulation, central AC 14 SEER non-electric heat, supply and return plenum duct seal, 

proper sizing of hi-efficiency HVAC, HVAC commissioning, reflective roof coating for 
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manufactured homes, reflective roof for single-family homes, window film or screen, and 

replacement windows. 

Residential New Construction Program 

This program promotes energy efficient new home construction in order to provide customers 

with more efficient dwellings combined with improved environmental comfort. The program 

provides education and information to the design and building community on energy efficient 

equipment and construction. It also facilitates the design and construction of energy efficient 

homes by working directly with the builders to comply with program requirements. The 

program provides incentives to the builder for high efficiency electric heat pumps and high 

performance windows. The highest level of the program incorporates the Environmental 

Protection Agency’s Energy Star Homes Program and qualifies participants for cooperative 

advertising. New measures within the ResidentiaI New Construction Program include HVAC 

commissioning, window film or screen, reflective roof for single-family homes, attic spray-on 
8 .  

foam insulation, conditioned space air handler and energy recovery ventilation. 

Low Income Weatherization Assistance Program 

This umbrella program seeks to improve energy efficiency for low-income customers in existing 

residential dwellings. It combines efficiency improvements to the thermal envelope with 

upgraded electric appliances. The program provides incentives for attic insulation upgrades, duct 

testing and repair, reduced air infiltration, water heater wrap, HVAC maintenance, high 

efficiency heat pumps, heat recovery units, and dedicated heat pump water heaters. 

Neighborhood Energy Saver Program 

The newly approved Neighborhood Energy Saver (NES) Program consists of 12 measures 

including compact fluorescent bulb replacement, water heater wrap and insulation for water 

pipes, water heater temperature check and adjustment, low-flow faucet aerator, low-flow 

showerhead / refrigerator coil brush, HVAC filters and weatherization measures (weather 

stripping / door sweeps / etc.). In addition to the installation of new conservation measures, an 

important component of this program is educating families on energy efficiency techniques and 

the promotion of behavioral changes to help customers control their energy usage. 
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Residential Energy Management Program 
This is a voluntary customer program that allows PEF to reduce peak demand and thus defer 

generation construction. Peak demand is reduced by interrupting service to selected electrical 

equipment with radio controlled switches installed on the customer's premises. These 

interruptions are at PEF's option, during specified time periods, and coincident with hours of 

peak demand. Participating customers receive a monthly credit on their electricity bills prorated 

above 600 kWWmonth. 

Renewable Energy Saver Program (2007) 

The Renewable Energy Saver Program is designed to reduce system peak demand and increase 

renewable energy generation on the PEF grid. The program seeks to meet the following overall 

goals: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5 .  

6. 

Obtain energy and demand reductions that are significant and measurable. 

Enhance customers/contractors awareness of the capabilities of renewable energy 
technologies. 

Educate customers/contractors about additional opportunities to generate / use renewable 
energy. 

Develop and offer renewable energy measures to the marketplace. 

Minimize "lost opportunities" in the renewable energy market. 

Increase participation in the PEF Load Management program. 

The Renewable Energy Saver Program consists of two measures: 

0 Solar Water Heater with Energy Management - This measure encourages residential 

customers to install a solar thermal water heating system. The customer must have whole 

house electric cooling, electric water heating, and electric heating to be eligible for this 

program. Pool heaters and photovoltaic systems would not qualify. In order to qualify for 

this incentive, the heating, air conditioning, and water heating systems must be on the Energy 

Management Program and the solar thermal system must provide a minimum of 50% of the 

water-heating load. 
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0 Solar Photovoltaics with Energy Management - This measure promotes environmental 

stewardship and renewable energy education through the installation of solar energy systems 

at schools within Progress Energy Florida’s service territory. Customers participating in the 

Winter-Only Energy Management or Year-Round Energy Management plan can elect to 

donate their monthly credit toward the Solar Photovoltaics with Energy Management Fund. 

The fund will accumulate associated participant credits for a period of two years, at which 

time the customer may elect to renew for an additional two years. All proceeds collected 

from participating customers, and their associated monthly credits, will be used to promote 

photovoltaics and renewable energy education opportunities. 

COMMERCIALDNDUSTRLAL (C/I) PROGRAMS 

Business Energy Check Program 

This energy audit program provides commercial and industrial customers with an assessment of 

the current energy usage at their facilities, recommendations on how they can improve the 

environmental conditions of their facilities while saving on their electricity bills, and information 

on low-cost energy efficiency measures. The Business Energy Check consists of the following 

types of audits: A free walk-through audit, and a paid walk-through audit. Small business 

customers also have the option to complete a Business Energy Check online at Progress Energy’s 

website. In most cases, this program is a prerequisite for participation in the other C/I programs. 

Better Business Program 

This is the umbrella efficiency program for existing commercial and industrial customers. The 

program provides customers with information, education, and advice on energy-related issues 

and incentives on efficiency measures that are cost-effective to PEF and its customers. The 

Better Business Program promotes energy efficient heating, ventilation, air conditioning 

(HVAC), and some building retrofit measures (in particular, ceiling insulation upgrade, duct 

leakage test and repair, energy-recovery ventilation and Energy Star cool roof coating products.) 

Newly approved measures within this program include demand-control ventilation, efficient 

compressed air systems, efficient motors, efficient indoor lighting, green roof, occupancy 

sensors, packaged AC steam cleaning, roof insulation, roof-top unit recommissioning, thermal 

energy storage and window film or screen. 
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Commercialllndustrial New Construction Program 

The primary goal of this program is to foster the design and construction of energy efficient 

buildings. The new construction program: 1) provides education and information to the design 

community on all aspects of energy efficient building design; 2) requires that the building 

design, at a minimum, surpass the state energy code; 3) provides financial incentives for specific 

energy efficient equipment; and 4) provides energy design awards to building design teams. 

Incentives will be provided for high efficiency HVAC equipment, energy recovery ventilation 

and Energy Star cool roof coating products. Additional options, beginning in 2007, include 

demand-control ventilation, efficient compressed air systems, efficient motors, efficient indoor 

lighting, green roof, occupancy sensors, roof insulation, thermal Energy Storage and window 

film or screen. 

Innovation Incentive Program 

This program promotes a reduction in demand and energy by subsidizing energy conservation 

projects for customers in PEF’s service territory. The intent of the program is to encourage 

legitimate energy efficiency measures that reduce kW demand andor kWh energy, but are not 

addressed by other programs. Energy efficiency opportunities are identified by PEF 

representatives during a Business Energy Check audit. If a candidate project meets program 

specifications, it will be eligible for an incentive payment, subject to PEF approval. 

Commercial Energy Management Program (Rate Schedule GSLM-1) 

This direct load control program reduces PEF’s demand during peak or emergency conditions. 

As described in PEF’s DSM Plan, this program is currently closed to new participants. It is 

applicable to existing program participants who have electric space cooling equipment suitable 

for interruptible operation and are eligible for service under the Rate Schedule GS-1, GST-1, 

GSD-1, or GSDT-1. The program is also applicable to existing participants who have any of the 

following electrical equipment installed on permanent residential structures and utilized for 

domestic (household) purposes: 1) water heater(s), 2) central electric heating systems(s), 3) 

central electric cooling system(s), andor  4) swimming pool pump(s). Customers receive a 

monthly credit on their bills depending on the type of equipment in the program and the 

interruption schedule. 
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Standby Generation Program 

This demand control program reduces PEF’s demand based upon the indirect control of customer 

generation equipment. This is a voluntary program available to all commercial, industrial, and 

agricultural customers who have on-site generation capability and are willing to reduce their PEF 

demand when PEF deems it necessary. The customers participating in the Standby Generation 

program receive a monthly credit on their electricity bills according to the demonstrated ability 

of the customer to reduce demand at PEF’s request. 

Interruptible Service Program 

This direct load control program reduces PEF’s demand at times of capacity shortage during 

peak or emergency conditions. The program is available to qualified non-residential customers 

with an average billing demand of 500 kW or more, who are willing to have their power 

interrupted. PEF will have remote control of the circuit breaker or disconnect switch supplying 

the customer’s equipment. In return for this ability to interrupt load, customers participating in 

the Interruptible Service program receive a monthly interruptible demand credit applied to their 

electric bills. 

Curtailable Service 

This direct load control program reduces PEF’s demand at times of peak or emergency 

conditions. The program is available to qualified non-residential customers with an average 

billing demand of 500 kW or more, who are willing to curtail 25 percent of their average 

monthly billing demand. Customers participating in the Curtailable Service program receive a 

monthly curtailable demand credit applied to their electric bills. 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS 

Technology Development Program 

The primary purpose of this program is to establish a system to “Aggressively pursue research, 

development and demonstration projects jointly with others as well as individual projects’’ (Rule 

25-17.00 1, ( 5 )  (0, Florida Administration Code). PEF will undertake certain development, 

educational and demonstration projects that have promise to become cost-effective demand 

reduction and energy efficiency programs. This would include projects like Broadband-Over-the 
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Power-Line-In-Premise load management capabilities, which the Company is currently 

evaluating and testing. The objective of this project is to develop the next generation of load 

management with goals of increasing customer awareness to efficiently use energy, while 

advancing demand response capabilities. Additional projects include the evaluation of off-peak 

generation storage for on-peak demand consumption. In most cases, each demand reduction and 

energy efficiency project that is proposed and investigated under this program requires field- 

testing with customers. 
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CHAPTER 3 

FORECAST OF FACILITIES REQUIREMENTS 

RESOURCE PLANNING FORECAST 

OVERVIEW OF CURRENT FORECAST 

Supply-side Resources 
PEF has a summer total capacity resource of 10,752 MW, as shown in Table 3.1. This capacity 

resource includes nuclear (769 Mw), fossil steam (3,903MW), combined cycle plants (1,659 MW), 

combustion turbine (2,513 MW, 143 MW of which is owned by Georgia Power for the months June 

through September), utility purchased power (484 MW), independent power purchases (61 1 MW), 

and non-utility purchased power (813 MW). Table 3.2 shows PEF’s contracts for firm capacity 

provided by Qualifying Facilities (QF’s). 

Demand-Side Programs 

Total DSM resources are shown in Schedules 3.1.1 and 3.2.1 of Chapter 2. These programs include 

Non-Dispatchable DSM, Interruptible Load, and Dispatchable Load Control resources. PEF’s 2007 

Ten-Year Site Plan Demand-Side Management projections are consistent with the DSM Goals 

established by the Commission in Docket No. 04003 1 -EG. 

Capacity and Demand Forecast 
PEF’s forecasts of capacity and demand for the projected summer and winter peaks are shown in 

Schedules 7.1 and 7.2, respectively. PEF’s forecasts of capacity and demand are based on serving 

expected growth in retail requirements in its regulated service area and meeting commitments to 

wholesale power customers who have entered into supply contracts with PEF. In its planning 

process, PEF balances its supply plan for the needs of retail and wholesale customers and endeavors 

to ensure that cost-effective resources are available to meet the needs across the customer base, 

Over the years, as wholesale markets have grown more competitive, PEF has remained active in the 

competitive solicitations while planning in a manner that maintains an appropriate balance of 

commitments and resources within the overall regulated supply framework. 
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Base Expansion Plan 

PEF’s planned supply resource additions and changes are shown in Schedule 8 and are referred to as 

PEF’s Base Expansion Plan. This Plan includes a net gain in summer capacity of 3,575 M W s  

through the summer of 2016. As identified in Schedule 8, PEF’s next planned unit is the Hines 4 

Unit, a 461 MW (summer) power block with a December 2007 in-service date. PEF’s self-build 

option for Hines Unit 4 was determined to be the most cost-effective alternative, followed by the 

Bartow Repowering Project to be completed by June 2009. 

PEF’s Base Expansion Plan projects the need for additional units with proposed in-service dates 

from 2007 through 2016. These units, together with the OUC purchase (December 2006 - 

February 2007), the Central Power & Lime purchase (December 2005 - December 2010), the 

Reliant/Osceola purchase (January 2007 - February 2009), the TEA purchase (from January 

2007 - February 2007, and June 2007 - September 2007), purchases currently under negotiation 

for the summers of 2007 and 2008, the Shady Hills Purchase (April 2007 - April 2024), and the 

Southern Company Purchase (June 2010 - December 2017) help the PEF system meet the 

growing energy requirements of its customer base. Additionally, some undesignated seasonal 

purchases for 2007 and 2008 are projected as well to meet requirements. Some of the identified 

unit additions may be impacted by PEF’s ability to extend or replace existing purchase power 

contracts, as well as contracts with cogenerators and QF’s. Status reports and specifications for 

new generation facilities are included in Schedule 9. Shown in Schedule 10 are the new 

transmission lines associated with Hines #4 and the Bartow Repowering Project. 

Current planning studies identify gas-fired units as the most economic alternatives for system 

expansion in the near term. New nuclear technologies appear to offer more favorable long-term 

economics, and provide favorable environmental characteristics, measured against possible 

emission limits imposed by the recently issued Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAR). PEF is currently 

evaluating the nuclear option with the intent of pursuing preliminary licensing activities for the 

addition of new nuclear capacity in 20 16. In the years prior to the addition of new nuclear capacity, 

PEF also is investigating the possibility of coal gasification as a fuel source for one of the combined 

cycle facilities listed in the resource plan. 
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TABLE 3.1 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

TOTAL CAPACITY RESOURCES OF 
POWER PLANTS AND PURCHASED POWER CONTRACTS 

AS OF DECEMBER 31,2006 

SUMMER 
NUMBER NET DEPENDABLE 

PLANTS OF UNITS CAPABILITY 

Nuclear Steam 

Total Nuclear Steam 1 769 

(Mw) 

1 - 769 (1) Crystal River - 

Fossil Steam 
Crystal River 
h c l o t e  
Bartow 
Suwannee River 

Total Fossil Steam 

Combined Cycle 
Hines Energy Complex 
Tiger Bay 

Total Combined cycle 

Combustion Turbine 
DeBary 
Intercession City 
Bayboro 
Bartow 
Suwannee 
Turner 
Higgins 
Avon Park 
University of Florida 
Rio Pinar 

Total Combustion Turbine 

Total Units 
Total Net Generating Capability 

4 
2 
3 
- 3 

12 

3 
1 
4 
- 

10 
14 
4 
4 
3 
4 
4 
2 
1 
1 

47 
I 

2,313 
1,005 

444 
- 141 

3,903 

1,456 
- 203 

1,659 

643 
992 (2) 
177 
176 
157 
150 
110 
50 
45 
1 3  

2,513 

64 
8,844 

( I )  Adjustedfor sale of approximately 8.2% of total capacity 
(2) Includes 143 MWowned by Georgia Power Company (Jun-Sep) 

Purchased Power 
Qualifying Facility Contracts 
Investor Owned Utilities 
Independent Power Producers 

19 813 
2 484 
2 61 1 

TOTAL CAPACITY RESOURCES 10,752 
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TABLE 3.2 

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

QUALIFYING FACILITY GENERATION CONTRACTS 

AS OF DECEMBER 31,2006 

Facility Name 
Bay County Resource Recovery 

Firm 
Capacity 

(Mw) 
11.0 

Cargill 

Lake County Resource Recovery 

LFC Jefferson 

LFC Madison 

Mulberry 

Orange Cogen (CFR-Biogen) 

15.0 

12.8 

8.5 

8.5 

79.2 

74.0 

~~ ~ _ _ _ _ _  

Dade County Resource Recovery 

Pinellas County Resource Recovery 1 

Pinellas County Resource Recovery 2 

Ridge Generating Station 

Ro yster 

TOTAL 

43 .O 

40.0 

14.8 

39.6 

30.8 

812.6 

El Dorado 114.2 

Lake Cogen 110.0 

~ 

Orlando Cogen 79.2 

I Pasco Cogen 109.0 

Pasco County Resource Recovery 23.0 
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA 

(1) (2) 

TOTAL 

INSTALLED 

CAPACITY 

YEAR MW 
2007 8.701 

2m8 9.175 

2009 9,881 

ZOIO 9.891 

2011 9.926 

2012 10.011 

2013 10,614 

2014 11.151 

2015 11.151 

2016 12,276 

(3) (4) 

FIRM FIRM 

CAPACITY CAPACITY 

IMPORT EXPORT 

S C H E D n E  7 1 

FORECAST OF CAPACITY. DEMAND AND SCHEDULED MAINTENANCE 

AT TIME OF SUMMER PEAK 

MW Mw 
1.661 . 0 
-- 

1.503 . 0 

1.095 0 

1,253 0 

1.370 0 

1,530 0 

1.530 0 

1,530 0 

1.530 0 

1.459 0 

QF 
Mw 

(6) 

TOTAL 

CAPACITY 

AVAILABLE 

MW 
803 

799 

659 

715 

175 

175 

665 

478 

418 

478 

11.165 

11,471 

11,635 

11,919 

12,011 

12,382 

12.809 

13.159 

13,159 

14 213 

cn (8) (9) 

SYSTEM FIRM 

SUMMER PEAK RESERVE MARGIN 

DEMAND BEFORE MAINTENANCE 

MW % O F P E A K  -- Mw 
9.327 1.838 20% 

9,525 1,952 20% 

9,553 2,082 22% 

3.801 2.118 22% 

9.992 2,019 21% 

10.173 2.209 22% 

10,319 2,430 23% 

10,711 2,448 23% 

10,933 2.226 20% 

3,044 27% 11,169 

SCHEDULED RESERVE MARGIN 

MAINTENANCE AFTER MAINTENANCE 

MW %OFPEAK 
1.838 20% 

1,952 20% 

2,082 22% 

2.118 22% 

2,079 21% 

2,209 22% 

2,430 23% 

2,448 23% 

2,226 20% 

3,044 21% 

-- Mw 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Pmpo Energy k punving s " r  x a w n a l  purchases of approximately 200 Wi ln 2001 md 250 MW In 2W8. The deals are not yet canrummated as of h e  Um of he Ten.Year Site Plan llllng. Since the p u r c k  
k expected 1D be fmm peaking opacity. no energy Impact has been included in the plan at t h h  h e .  
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Prior Application of Item 10 under Order No. 14546 

brmortization 
Company Order No. Date Proiect Description 

FPL 1 PSC-96-1172-FOF-El 1 09/19/96 ]Thermal Uprate of Turkey Point units 3 & 4 
I I 

Estimated 
Savinqs Over 

Conversion of peaking units to natural gas 1 FPC (PSC-97-0359-FOF-El 
(DeBary 7, Bartow 3 &4, Suwannee 1) 

FPC 

FPC 

PSC-96-0353-FOF-El 

PSC-95-1089-FOF-El 

0311 3/96 

09/05/95 5-years 

~ -~ 

Conversion of combustion turbine units to 
natural gas (Intercession City CT units P8 and 
P I  0) 

$20 million 
Conversion of combustion turbine units to 
natural gas (Intercession City CT units P7 and 
P9) 

PEF 

I FPC IPSC-98-0412-FOF-E1 1 03l20198 IConversion of Suwannee 3 to natural gas 

CR3 Uprate Project $381.8 million IO-years $1,020.2 million 2.7 

Proiect Cost 
$1 0 million 

$7.5 million 

$2.6 million 

$2.5 million 

$2.45 million 

Period Recove Period Y 2- ears $18.7 million 

I $22 
5-years 

5-years I '  $1 6 million 

5-years 1 $3.25 million 

Ratio of Savinqs 
to Costs Over 

Recovery Perioc 
1.9 

2.9 

6.2 

8.0 

1.3 

Source: Relevant Orders per Javier Portuondo July 19. 2007 Rebuttal Testimony, pages 20-21. 
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Crystal River 3 Uprale 
NPV Analysis. For Discussion P u ~ ~ s e s  Only 

Relail Relum on rate bise [pretax) 13.19% 

MUR Pbd Mod? 
BeglnnlngBalance 

Add l o v e s "  
Lers R e t i m s  
Ending Balance 
Average Balance 
Deptwalion Rate 
Depwation Expense 
Less Rdirements 
Beginning Balance Depwallm 
Ending Balance DepWabon 

P h i s  1 Plant 

Add Imeslmed 
Less RdirementS 
Endmng Balance 
Average Balance 
Depmation Rate 
Depreuatlan Expense 
Less Retirements 

Ending Balance Depeaation 

Beglnnlng Balance 

Begl""lng B a l m  oepeoabon 

Phase 2 Plant 

Add lmeslmenl 
L e s  Retirmrms 
Ending Balance 
Average B a l m  
Deprecidon Rate 
Oewoabon Expense 
Less Rehremenl~ 
Beginning Balance Depreaation 
Ending Balance Depreaatlon 

Beg"Ing Balance 

Begmnng Balance 
Add Inv&enl 
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1WW 

. .  .~ . . .  . . . . . . .  ~ . .  - 645 - 
. . . . .  . .  . . .  . . .  . . . .  . . ~  

645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 645 
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101 13 67 32 M 8777 87 n 87 77 87 77 87 77 8777 8777 87 77 87 77 67 77 87 77 87 77 87 n 87 77 87 77 87.77 67 n 8777 87.77 87 77 87 77 87 n 87.77 87.77 8777 8 7 n  87.77 87 77 
052 7 36 23 16 M M  87 77 87 77 87 77 87 77 8777 87 77 8777 8777 8777 87.77 87 77 87 77 87.77 8777 8777 8777 8777 nn 8777 8777 8777 8777 8777 8777 8777 87 77 8771 

O W 8 3  OlwD OlwO OlwO OlwO O l o W  OloW OlwO OlOW 01WO OW17 
. . . . . .  - 073 878 878 878 878 878 8 7 6  878 878 878 8M - - - - . .  . . . . .  

. . .  073 951 18.28 2706 SY 4461 5339 62 17 70% 7972 87 77 87.77 87.77 8777 8777 8777 8777 8777 8777 nn 8777 8 7 n  8777 6777 0777 87 77 nn 

. .  . 073 951  1828 2706 s e4 44 61 53 39 62 17 70% 7972 87 n 87 77 87 77 87 77 87 77 87 n 87 n 87 77 87 77 87 77 87.77 87 77 87.77 87.77 87.77 8777 87 77 87 77 

- 2 W  3152 5521 8519 13454 i9872 19872 198.72 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 198.72 19872 198.72 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 198.72 19872 198.72 19872 19872 198.72 
. . . . . . .  . . . . . .  ~ . . ~ .  2 W  2943 2369 2998 4935 E418 - . ~ .  

2 w  3152 5521 8519 13454 198.72 19872 19872 19872 198.72 19872 198.72 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 198.72 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 198.72 19872 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

104 1680 4337 7OM la86 16663 19872 19872 19872 198.72 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 198.72 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 198.72 
0016667 01 01 0 1  0 1  0 1  0 1  0 1  0 1  0.1 0083333 

331 1987 1967 1987 19.87 1987 1987 1987 1987 1987 1656 - - - . . . . . . . . . . . .  

~. - 331 2318 4306 6293 82Bo 102.67 12255 14242 16229 182.16 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19672 19872 19872 19872 19872 
. .  - 331 2318 4306 6293 6280 10267 12255 14242 16229 16216 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 19872 

431 2460 4269 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51.16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51.16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51.16 51.lC 51 16 51 16 51 16 
.~ . .  ~. .~ . .  . . . . . . . .  431 2029 1810 847 - 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
- 431 24M 4269 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51.16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 

- - 215 1445 33M 4 6 s  51 16 51 16 51 16 51.16 51 16 51 16 51-16 51 16 51 16 51.16 51 16 51 16 51.16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 
0016657 01 01  01 0 1  0 1  0 1  0 1  0 1  0 1  0083333 

. .  - 0.6 512 512 5.12 5.12 512 512 512 512 512 426 - . .  . .  . . . . . . . .  

. .  - 0.85 5.97 11.08 1620 2132 2643 3155 3666 41 76 46W 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51.16 51 16 51.16 51.16 

. . . .  - 085 597 1108 1620 2132 2643 3155 3666 4178 4690 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 51 16 5116 51 16 51 16 51.16 51 16 

Docket No. 070052-El 
Javier Pottunondo 

Late - Filed Depositibn Exhibit 3 
05-23-07 

Pageiof ? 



I I 1% IS
 






